## University of Massachusetts Boston

From the SelectedWorks of James L. Soldner

2008

# Rehabilitation Administration Literature: 30+ Years of Role and Function

T. F. Riggar, Southern Illinois University Carbondale William Crimando, Southern Illinois University Carbondale Paige N. Dunlap, Winston-Salem State University James L. Soldner, Utah State University



## **Rehabilitation Administration Literature:**

## **30+ Years of Role and Function**

T. F. Riggar

W. Crimando

P. N. Dunlap

J. L. Soldner

**Rehabilitation Institute** 

Southern Illinois University Carbondale

Please note that this monograph was forwarded to the National Clearinghouse of

Rehabilitation Training Materials, and to receive additional copies, contact them at:

National Clearinghouse of Rehabilitation Training Materials (NCRTM) 6524 Old Main Hill Utah State University Logan, Utah 84322-6524

Telephone: 435-797-4316 Fax: 435-797-7537 http://ncrtm.org

#### Introduction

Over the past 30+ years, attention and information related to rehabilitation administration in the literature has been consistently compared to other areas of rehabilitation, i.e., counseling, vocational evaluation and work adjustment. More recently other areas of rehabilitation administration, e.g., private sector rehabilitation and supported employment have received considerable attention in the literature. Riggar et al.(1988) suggest that new ground was broken with the premiere and continued publication of the Journal of Rehabilitation Administration (JRA) in 1977. All literature on the traditional areas of rehabilitation, administrative theory, professional management, personnel concerns, fiscal management, mental health, program planning, and evaluation have been included in this publication. A cursory review of the literature in other rehabilitation journals reveals that articles related to administration have been authored by academicians as well as practitioners. These articles have been published in over a dozen rehabilitation journals, including JRA as well as rehabilitation-related articles in other human service, or even business journals. This selected bibliography seeks to consolidate all literature related to rehabilitation administration published since 1970.

Bibliographic sources include: Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling, Journal of Counseling and Development (formerly the Personnel and Guidance Journal 1970-1984), Journal of Disability Policy Studies, Journal of Job Placement, Journal of Rehabilitation, Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, Journal of Rehabilitation Psychology, Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin, Rehabilitation Education, Rehabilitation Literature (1970-1986), Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin, Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling, The Academy of Management Journal, The Academy of

iii

Management Executive, and The Academy of Management Review, and occasionally, articles in such publications as Rehabilitation Today, American Counselor, and The Rehabilitation Professional are included.

#### **Previous Reviews**

Several rehabilitation administration literature reviews have been undertaken during the past 30 years, with 1983, 1984, 1988, 1991, 1997, and 1998 being the most recent. In the first effort by Riggar, Beardsley, and Riggar (1983), the authors sought to develop a format for classifying reviewed literature based on the roles, functions and training needs of rehabilitation administrators. Using roles and functions identified by Matkin, Sawyer, Lorenz, and Rubin (1982), Riggar et al. (1983) were able to classify literature within content areas.

Benson, Gaesser, Janes and Phillips (1984), in a subsequent review, analyzed and indexed the contents of seven years of JRA to provide a useful reference for educators and practitioners. According to Benson et al. (1984), those efforts, which included subject, title, and author indexes were designed to provide an "orderly method for finding an article or editorial written by a specific author or related to a specific subject" (p. 155). In a 1988 effort, Riggar, Crimando, Bordieri, Hanley-Maxwell and Benshoff (1988) consolidated and indexed the literature reviews of Riggar et al. (1983) and Benson et al. (1984).

In 1991 Mount and Schumacher determined the primary content areas that current rehabilitation administrators perceived as needed in a graduate curriculum. Williamson, Evenson, and Perry outlined the worker roles and competencies for baccalaureate rehabilitation service providers, and Barrett, Flowers, Crimando, Riggar and Bailey, in 1997, reviewed the entire scope of human resource development for rehabilitation administrators.

iv

These works were followed by the 1998 efforts of Edwards who detailed the work activities of middle managers in rehabilitation facilities. All of these studies of the last 30+ years have provided the basis of the role and functions of rehabilitation administrators and supervisors, and hence the table of contents herein.

#### **Justification**

Periodic reviews of the literature related to administration are essential for rehabilitation administrators as they carry out their roles as administrators. The need for current and future administrators - as well as educators and practitioners - to be well prepared (i.e., informed and aware of resources and training information available for their staff and students) is clear given studies over the past decade on the rapidly expanding and changing roles and responsibilities for rehabilitation professionals.

Surveys by McDonald and Lorenz (1977) and Sawyer and Shumacher (1980) have suggested that more than 50% of rehabilitation administrators had relatively little administrative training prior to being named to their positions. Menz (1983) projected that between 1980 and 1990 administrative/supervisory personnel in rehabilitation facilities would be among the top six areas of greatest need for new personnel. Administration, according to Menz (1989), was projected to be the eighth fastest growing area of rehabilitation. Other studies by Matkin (1982), and Sullivan (1982) found that rehabilitation practitioners advance to supervisory levels rapidly in their careers, often within 18 months. These data are supported further by Emener (1983), who estimated that one-third of the graduates of Master's level rehabilitation counseling education programs are involved in upward mobility paths within five years of entering the profession.

V

This earlier research supports the need for prepared and competent rehabilitation administrators in terms of the growing number of leaders becoming necessary in rehabilitation administration. Other trends and challenges in rehabilitation service delivery also support the need for the preparedness of rehabilitation administrators.

Legal accountability and responsibility, according to Matkin (1980), are important issues for professionals in rehabilitation settings, especially in the light of the Americans with Disabilities Act, The Civil Rights Act of 1991, and the 1992 Rehabilitation Act Amendments. Individualized Written Rehabilitation Plans (IWRP), for example, mandated as part of the 1973 Rehabilitation Act (P. L. 93-112) along with emphasis on client advocacy changed the way rehabilitation services were programmed and delivered.

The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), 1990; Civil Rights Act (CRA), 1991; Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act (PRWORA), 1996; Rehabilitation Act Amendments (RA), 1998; Workforce Investment Act (WIA), 1998; and the Ticket to Work and Work Incentives Improvement Act (TWWIIA), 1999 are changing the face of rehabilitation service delivery in the current era, and will continue to challenge rehabilitation administrators as well. In a two-part Special Issue series [22(3) & 22(4), 1991] in the Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling (JARC) Maki and Riggar, as editors, provided a historical and contemporary foundation and direction for personal and professional interaction within the scheme of human services as concerns policy , law, and jurisprudence. Of particular relevance to rehabilitation administrators are discussions of disability policy, the federal legislative process, key disability and rehabilitation legislation, and judicial interpretations. Implication for involved leaders followed in the second special

vi

with emphasis on ethical responses, critical values, impact on practice, and the role, function, and responsibilities of rehabilitation consumers and professionals in disability policy and law.

Because minorities have been traditionally under-represented in the delivery of vocational rehabilitation services, the Rehabilitation Act Amendments of 1992 include mandates that have implications for rehabilitation administrators and service delivery. The Amendments not only emphasize placement in competitive employment and a requirement for defining qualifications of rehabilitation professionals, but the focus of Section 21 stresses the need for outreach to traditionally under-served populations for participation in vocational rehabilitation and independent living programs. The Amendments denote specific strategies for such outreach: (a) active recruitment of minority populations to the field and practice of Vocational Rehabilitation, and (b) provision of financial support to Historical Black Colleges for the preparation of minorities for Vocational Rehabilitation.

Not only do the Amendments emphasize placement in competitive employment, the need for a definition of qualifications, and minority recruitment, now vocational rehabilitation agencies, as part of the individualized written rehabilitation plan (IWRP)must provide a list of services and providers available to clients. The client can then choose from that list which services are appropriate as part of their IWRP. All of these issues imply that rehabilitation administrators require a myriad of competencies to be efficient and effective in their positions.

One such competency is the management of diversity within the organization, as managers need to understand the people that they manage (Riggar, Eckert, & Crimando, 1993). The difficulty for administrators arises when "attempting to accept, understand, and utilize the cultural diversity of the individual rehabilitation professionals within the

vii

organization while at the same time establishing a corporate culture that transforms all the 'varieties' of human resources into an effective, efficient and innovative workforce" (Riggar, Eckert, & Crimando, 1993, p. 53).

This effective use of human resource potential within an organization is crucial, especially in these times of downsizing, streamlining, and in general, doing more with less. The effective management of diversity is one means of supporting effective human resource development (HRD). Riggar, Crimando and Pusch (1993) write, "the most critical component of any rehabilitation organization is not its physical facilities, buildings, equipment or location, nor is it the sophistication of computer services, high-tech machines or streamlined procedures. The most critical component of any agency or facility is the staff" (p. 38).

A key factor in the realization of human resource development is the empowerment of the staff within that organization. Rehabilitation administrators, after establishing an empowering climate, will have to play a variety of roles in order to provide employees with the direction, support, resources and knowledge necessary for employees to feel empowered (Barrett, Crimando, & Riggar, 1993). Effective and empowering administrators are leaders, mentors (Viranyi, Crimando, Riggar & Schmidt, 1992), facilitators, communicators, resource developers/distributors, recruiters, and evaluators (Barrett, Crimando, & Riggar, 1993). As evaluator, it is essential that administrators be competent to implement efficient and effective performance appraisal (Bordieri, Crimando, Riggar, & Schmidt, 1992) and discipline systems (Barrett, Crimando, & Riggar, 1994) in the organization as part of a productive HRD plan. In order to be prepared to play the evaluator role and other such roles, rehabilitation administrators must be well-versed in the literature that examines these issues. Among those required work roles Edwards (1999) recently noted educational efforts for middle managers in rehabilitation facilities. She identified Entrepreneur, Disturbance Handler/Negotiator, Resource Allocator/Financial Control, Strategic Assessment, Operations, Interpersonal Relations, Communications, and Monitor. Proposed curriculum development toward education efforts falls within the 1983 utilized table of contents herein. In this orientation, current research supports past literature and provides information about transitioning into the new millennium. Packard and Kauppi (1999) are consistent with past literature in asserting that democratic leadership high in relationship and supportive behaviors continues to produce the most efficacious results.

All such trends and issues that challenge rehabilitation administrators continue to be addressed and queried in the literature. This comprehensive review of literature related to rehabilitation administration expedites the information gathering and disseminating process, making references readily available to rehabilitation administrators. Current computer databases of the literature are not as comprehensive in the area of rehabilitation administration as they might be, making this monograph even more necessary. This valuable resource will help leaders in rehabilitation to meet these challenging trends and issues.

#### **Classification Scheme**

The categorization of literature herein is not simply the result of author opinion but based on the variety of previous reviews that have been published and noted in this introduction and in the review enclosed. Most specifically, the 1983 classification of the literature by Riggar, Beardsley, and Riggar provided the original format/framework for the table of contents continued to date. While studies since that time, as indicated, have added or deleted various components in the arena of training needs and functional characterizing

ix

rehabilitation administrators roles, the basic classification of over a decade ago still remains usable and applicable today. On that basis the present classification scheme reflects the past/tradition of rehabilitation administration and management while allowing for involvement and inclusion of new requirements and mandates of today's administrators.

## Table of Contents

| Administrative Theory                |
|--------------------------------------|
| Systematic Thinking/Time Management4 |
| Demographics7                        |
| Applied Behavior Analysis19          |
| General Theory21                     |
| General Theory - Legislative         |
| General Theory - Economics42         |
| General Theory - Trends              |
| General Theory - Programming65       |
| General Theory - Design              |
| General Theory - Change              |
| Professional Management97            |
| Ethics100                            |
| Careers/Career Development           |
| Role and Function128                 |
| Training141                          |
| Training - In-Service152             |
| Training - University Based157       |
| Training - Continuing Education166   |
| Training - Competencies170           |
| Training - Techniques177             |
| Certification/Licensing183           |

| Management                      |     |
|---------------------------------|-----|
| Performance Appraisal           | 201 |
| Recruit, Select, Hire           | 207 |
| Supervisory Management          | 213 |
| Motivation/Merit                | 224 |
| Human Resources Concerns        |     |
| Working Life/Values             | 229 |
| Attitudes/Discrimination        | 234 |
| Stress                          | 242 |
| Burnout                         | 247 |
| Mental Health                   | 252 |
| Job Satisfaction                | 256 |
| General Concerns                |     |
| Women in Rehabilitation         |     |
| Fiscal Management               | 275 |
| Production Management           |     |
| Program Evaluation and Planning |     |
| Evaluation                      |     |
| Programs                        |     |
| Problems                        |     |
| State/Federal                   |     |
| Training - University           |     |
| Training - Short Term           |     |

| Public Relations           |
|----------------------------|
| Rights/Discrimination      |
| Policy Advocacy            |
| Resources                  |
| Board of Directors         |
| Marketing Service          |
| Marketing                  |
| Paraprofessionals          |
| Labor Relations            |
| Research                   |
| Rehabilitation Research    |
| Research Design/Statistics |
| Professional Journals      |
| Publishing - How to        |

**ADMINISTRATIVE THEORY** 

## **Administrative Theory**

- Alonso, R., & Autry, L. H. (1977). Rehabilitation administration: Creativity and accountability. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 1(4), 4-10.
- Brown, D. (1990). Facing the future: Readying rehabilitation for the year 2000. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *56*(2), 17-20.
- Browning, P., & Wright, W. (1973). A technique for problem identification in rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 17(1), 30-38.
- Childers, R. L. (1970). Toward a science of rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *36*(6), 21-24.
- Crimando, W. (1981). An idea-generating paradigm and resources for the practitioner/researcher. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 12(3), 107-112.
- Elleson, V. J. (1983). Competition: A cultural imperative? *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 62(4), 195-198.
- Hardy, R. E. (1971). The issue of theory in rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *32*(6), 168-171.
- Moriarty, J. B., McLaughlin, D. E., & Walls, R. T. (1985). RADAR: A decision support system. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 9(2), 57-62.
- Steiner, G. A. (1977). The creative organization. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 1(1), 4-12.
- Wainwright, C. O., & Sanders, R. W. (1988). Human resource development in rehabilitation administration: Historical and current perspectives. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 12(4), 87-90.

Winter, M. S. (1976). The rehabilitation team: A catalyst to risky rehabilitation decisions? *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *19*(4), 580-598.

**ADMINISTRATIVE THEORY** 

Systematic Thinking/Time Management

### Systematic Thinking/Time Management

- Byrd, E. K. (1980). Irrational ideas in the management of time. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 11(1), 46-49.
- Byrd, E. K. (1982). Time management in a rehabilitation setting. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 48(3), 47-50.
- Chadbourne, J. W., Rosenberg, J. H., & Mahoney, J. T. (1982). Defining decision making patterns: A tool for career-life planning. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 61(1), 51-53.
- Crimando, W. (1981). An idea-generating paradigm and resources for the practitioner/ researcher. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *12*(3), 107-112.
- Crimando, W., & Riggar, T. F. (2006). Internal marketing: Promoting your "brand" within the organization. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration 30*(2), 115-131.
- Elleson, V. J. (1983). Competition: A cultural imperative? *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 62(4), 195-198.
- Gade, E., & Simonson, M. (1978). The clinical decision-making skills of the rehabilitation counselor. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 22(2), 125-129.
- Herbert, J. T. (2001). Thoughts on becoming a rehabilitation counselor educator. *Rehabilitation Education*, *15*(3), 307-316.
- Mann, L., Beswick, G., Allouache, P., & Ivey, M. (1989). Decision workshops for the improvement of decision-making skills and confidence. *Journal of Counseling* and Development, 67(8), 478-481.
- Misra, S., Tseng, M. S., & Majumder, R. (1987). Information needs for decision making in vocational rehabilitation: A national survey of caseload and program managers. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 11(1), 14-20.

- Mitus, J. (2005). The role of organizational socialization on the affective commitment of newly hired rehabilitation counselors. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 29(1), 19-32.
- Moore, S. F., Degiorgio, L., Kampfe, C. M., Porter, D. F., Sax, C., McAllan, L., Sales, A.P., & Smith, M. (2006). Rehabilitation student perceptions of web-basedlearning. *Rehabilitation Education*, 20(1), 31-42.
- Moriarty, J. B., McLaughlin, D. E., & Walls, R. T. (1985). RADAR: A decision support system. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 9(2), 57-62.
- Nadolsky, J. M., & Brewer, E. W. (1977). The staff conference and group decisionmaking: A preliminary investigation. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 38(8), 242-251.
- Nichols, J. L. (2006). Balancing intuition and reason: Turning in to indecision. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 72(4), 40-48.
- Parish, C. R. (1978). A problem with problems. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 2(1), 4-6.
- Peterson, D. B., Hautamaki, J. B., & Hershenson, D. B. (2006). Reflections on our past and prospects for our future: A survey of the members of the American Rehabilitation Counseling Association (ARCA). *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin, 50*(1), 4-13.
- Saxon, J. P. (1975). Communication and decision making in rehabilitation supervision. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 6(1), 21-26.
- Steiner, G. A. (1977). The creative organization. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 1(1), 4-12.
- Winter, M. S. (1976). The rehabilitation team: A catalyst to risky rehabilitation decisions? *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *19*(4), 580-598.

**ADMINISTRATIVE THEORY** 

Demographics

## **Demographics**

- Alston, R. J., Harley, D. A., & Wilson, K.B. (2000). Rehabilitation education at universities with predominantly minority enrollments [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Education*, 14(4).
- Asbury, C. A., Walker, S., Belgrave, F. Z., Maholmes, V., & Green, L. (1994).
   Psychosocial, cultural, and accessibility factors associated with participation of African-Americans in rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *39*(2), 113-121.
- Bagley, C. A., & Copeland, E. J. (1994). African and African American graduate students' racial identity and personal problem-solving strategies. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 73(2), 167-171.
- Barad, C. B. (1971). A survey of vocational evaluation practices in Maryland and the District of Columbia. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 4(2), 6-10.
- Bordieri, J. E., & Thomas, D. (1986). Facility based services purchased by state vocational rehabilitation agencies. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 19(4), 135-138.
- Bowe, F. (2006). Disability meets the boom. *Rehabilitation Education*, 19(4), 265-268.
- Brown, D. (1990). Facing the future: Readying rehabilitation for the year 2000. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *56*(2), 17-20.
- Buxbaum, J. (1990). Demographic changes in the Hunter College RehabilitationCounselor Education Program and implications for the field of rehabilitation.*Rehabilitation Education*, 4(1), 1-12.
- Cobb, J. T., Jr. (1980). Georgia VEWAA faculty survey of staff/client ratios and staff utilization. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, *13*(4), 154-156.

- Cook, D. (1990). Characteristics and concerns of American Rehabilitation Counseling Association members. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *34*(2), 149-154.
- Cook, D., Andrew, J., & Faubion, C. (1998). Rehabilitation education and research productivity. *Rehabilitation Education*, 12(1), 17-27.
- Crisler, J. R. (1977). Results of the career ladder survey in state vocational rehabilitation agencies. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 8, 218-227.
- Crisler, J. R., & Crandell, E. O. (1977). Employment criteria and salaries for rehabilitation personnel in state DVR agencies having career ladders. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 8(3), 150-163.
- Crisler, J. R., Porter, T. L., & Jones, R. D. (1972). Rehabilitation counselor salaries and benefits: 1971. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *3*(3), 152-167.
- Cumming-McCann, A., & Accordino, M. P. (2005). An investigation of rehabilitation counselor characteristics, white racial attitudes, and self-reported multicultural counseling competencies. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 48(3), 167-176.
- Czerlinsky, T. (1987). Vocational rehabilitation facilities: Some critical characteristics. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 20(1), 11-17.
- Decker, R. S., & Stanojevich, B. (1978). A national survey of the employment of placement specialists by general and blind rehabilitation agencies. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 9(2), 41-45.
- Dellario, D. J. (1991). Rehabilitation doctorates: Evolution or extinction? *Rehabilitation Education*, 5(3), 161-166.
- DiMichael, S. G., & Thomas, K. R. (1985). ARCA's journey in professionalism: A commemorative review on the 25th anniversary. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 63(7), 428-435.

- Dirks, J. F., Laskowski, B. J., & Boyd, D. (1987). The industrially injured. *Journal of Private Sector Rehabilitation*, 2(2),99-104.
- Dumont, F., & Carson, A. D. (1995). Precursors of vocational psychology in ancient civilizations. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 73(4), 371-378.
- Dziekan, K. I., & Okocha, A. A. G. (1993). Accessibility of rehabilitation services:
  Comparison by racial-ethnic status. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *36*(4), 183-189.
- Edwards, Y. V., & Wilson, K. B. (Eds.). (2005). Introduction to the special issue:
  Latino/Hispanic ethnicity in the vocational rehabilitation system and the human services: A look into the future [Special issue]. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 36(2).
- Ellison, M. L., Danley, K. S., Crean, T., Rogers, E. S., & Colodzin, R. (1996).
  Involvement of people with psychiatric disabilities in state agencies of vocational rehabilitation: State agency survey. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 20(4), 319-333.
- Ellison, M. L., Danley, K. S., Crean, T., Rogers, E. S., & Colodzin, R. (1996).
  Involvement of people with psychiatric disabilities in state agencies of vocational rehabilitation: State agency survey. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 20(4), 319-333.
- Evenson, T., & Holloway, L. (2006). The state of rehabilitation undergraduate education:
  A survey of undergraduate coordinators. *Rehabilitation Education*, 20(2), 103-113.
- Fagan, T. K., & Jenkins, W. M. (1989). People with disabilities: An update. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 68(2), 140-144.

- Fortune, J. R., Fried, J. H., Fortune, B. M., & Moore, K. S. (1991). Resurvey of the vocational evaluation and work adjustment members in the Great Plains Region:
  A 1988 profile of members in ten states. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 24(4), 141-145.
- Frain, M. P., Ferrin, J. M., Rosenthal, D. A., & Wampold, B. E. (2006). A meta-analysis of rehabilitation outcomes based on education level of the counselor. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 72(1), 10-18.
- Garrett, M. T., & Pirchette, E. F. (2000). Red as an apple: Native American acculturation and counseling with or without reservation. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 78(1), 3-13.
- Geist, G. O. (1976). University training programs in rehabilitation: 1974-75 fact sheet of the Council of Rehabilitation Counselor Educators. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 20(2), 156-158.
- Godley, S. H., Hafer, M., Riggar, T. F., & Maki, D. R. (1983). Gender and job function:
  Differences in salary, educational levels, and experience. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 7(1), 22-25.
- Gregg, C. H. (1977). The employment patterns of rehabilitation counseling graduates. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 20(4), 302-303.
- Habeck, R. V., Scully, S. M., Van Tol, B., & Hunt, H. A. (1998). Successful employer strategies for preventing and managing disability. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 42(2), 144-161.
- Hampton, N. Z. (2001). An evolving rehabilitation service delivery system in the People's Republic of China. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 67(3), 20-25.

- Hampton, N. Z., & Crystal, R. (1998). Gender differences in acceptance of disability among vocational rehabilitation consumers. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 30(1), 16-21.
- Harley, D. A., Mpofu, E., & Ford, H. (2000). Tokenism and minorities in rehabilitation administration and leadership: Implications for the new millennium. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 24(2), 73090.
- Harrison, D. K., & Wayne, B. (1987). Female and male acceptance for rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 53(2), 37-39.
- Henkel, Z. G. (1973). The relationship between vocational evaluation and education as professions in Alabama. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 6(3), 24-34.
- Hoffman, P. R. 1971). History of the Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Association. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 4(3), 6-16.
- Huebner, R. A., & Thomas, K. R. (1996). A comparison of the interpersonal characteristics of rehabilitation counseling students and college students with and without disabilities. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 40(1), 45-61.
- Jones, R. D., & Fagnani, J. (1975). Rehabilitation counselor salaries and benefits, 1975. Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling, 6(3), 131-143.
- Jones, R., Babcock, R. B., & Dolecki, L. S. (1973). Rehabilitation counselor salaries and benefits, 1973. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 4(3), 133-148.
- Kampfe, C. M., Wadsworth, J. S., Smith, S. M., & Harley, D. A. (2006). The infusion of aging issues in the rehabilitation curriculum: A review of the literature, *Rehabilitation Education*, 19(4), 225-234.

- Kerr, N., & Meyerson, L. (1979). Number and roles of psychologists in the federal-state vocational rehabilitation service system. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 26(3), 169-175.
- Kosciulek, J. F. (1995). On identifying head injury family types. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 26(3), 13-18.
- Kundu, M. M., Dutta, A., & Walker, S. (2006). Participation in ethnically diverse personnel in state-federal vocational rehabilitation agencies. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 37(1), 30-37.
- Lemons, S. L., & Sweeney, P. (1981). Vocational rehabilitation professionals in the Veterans Administration. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 12(3), 151-155.
- Leung, P. (1990). Position openings in rehabilitation psychology: A ten-year survey. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 35(3), 157-160.
- Leung, P. (1993). A changing demography and its challenge. *Journal of Vocational Rehabilitation*, *3*(1), 3-12.
- Lichtenberg, P. A., & Rosenthal, M. (1994). Characteristics of geriatric rehabilitation programs: A survey of practitioners. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *39*(5), 227-281.
- Livingston, R. H. (1978). A time for change implications of the CRCC demographic data for rehabilitation curriculum. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 9(2), 36-40.
- Lofaro, G. A. (1984). 1982 annual dissertation review. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 27(5), 252-267.

- Lorenz, J. R., & Jaet, D. N. (1979). Utilizing data from a salary survey of rehabilitation facility personnel in the United States: 1978. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 3(4), 171-184.
- Lorenz, J. R., Jaet, D. N., & Hawley, I. B. (1978). Factors contributing to salary differences for vocationally oriented rehabilitation facility personnel in Illinois. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 2(3), 96-106.
- Lynch, R. K., & McSweeney, K. (1981). The professional status of rehabilitation counseling in state/federal vocational rehabilitation agencies. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 12(4), 186-190.
- Maki, D. R., & Riggar, T. F. (1981). Characteristics of the VEWAA membership: 1981. Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin, 14(3), 133-138.
- Marvel, S. D., Vogt, J. E., Crimando. W. (1999). Job market in rehabilitation academia revisited: Projections of size and character. *Rehabilitation Education*, 12(4), 289-297.
- Matkin, R. E., Bauer, L. L., & Nickles, L. E. (1993). Personality characteristics of certified rehabilitation counselors in various work settings. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 24(3), 42-53.
- Middleton, R. A., Stadler, H. A., Simpson, C., Guo, Y., Brown, M. J., Crow, G.,
  Schnuck, K., Alemu, Y., & Lazarte, A. A. (2005). Mental health practitioners:
  The relationship between white racial identity attitudes and self-reported
  multicultural counseling competencies, *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 83(4), 444-456.
- Millis, B. (1994). Faculty development in the 1990s: What it is and why we can't wait. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72(5), 454-464.

- Mitchell, J. Dm., Adkins, R. H., & Kemp, B. J. (2006). The effects of aging on employment on people with and without disabilities. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 49(3), 157-165.
- Ochs, L. A., & Roessler, R. T. (2001). Students with disabilities: How ready are they for the 21<sup>st</sup> century? *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 44(3), 170-176.
- Phillips, J. S., & Wainwright, C. O. (1986). The National Rehabilitation Administration Association. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 52(3), 47-50.
- Reagles, K. W. (1983). Rehabilitation in a multipurpose private sector company. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 27(1), 48-53.
- Riley, B. J. (1980). A survey of job descriptions and salary ranges for vocational evaluators and work adjustment personnel in Great Plains Region. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 13(4), 150-153.
- Roberts, C. D., Oliveri, M. V., & Delmonico, R. L. (1989). National rehabilitation manpower needs assessment: 1984. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 32(3), 194-202.
- Rosenthal, D. A., & Berven, N. L. (1999). Effects of client race on clinical judgment. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 42(3), 243-264.
- Sankovsky, R. (1971). Characteristics of the VEWAA membership: 1971. Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin, 4(2), 17-26.
- Scott, D. A., & Robinson, T. L. (2001). White male identity development: The key model. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 79(4), 415-421.
- Smart, J. F., & Smart, D. W. (1997). The racial/ethnic demography of disability. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 63(4), 9-15.

- Smolkin, C. (1973). Comparative salaries of vocational evaluators and rehabilitation counselors within state divisions of vocational rehabilitation. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 6(3), 45-49.
- Stensrud, R., & Gilbride, D. (1994). The professional world of rehabilitation educators: Characteristics, satisfaction, and theoretical considerations. *Rehabilitation Education*, 8(2), 149-165.
- Trusty, J. (2002). African Americans' educational expectations: Longitudinal causal models for women and men. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 80(3), 332-345.
- Trotter, A. B., & Kozochowicz, I. (1970). American Rehabilitation Counseling
  Association: Membership survey. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 14(1), 14-18.
- Ugland, D. (1981). Minnesota rehabilitation personnel manpower survey, 1980-81. Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling, 12(3), 156-159.
- Utsey, S. O., Ponterotto, J. G., Reynolds, A. L., & Cancelli, A. A. (2000). Racial discrimination, coping, life satisfaction, and self-esteem among African Americans. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 78(1), 72-80.
- Wainwright, C. O., & Sanders, R. W. (1988). Human resource development in rehabilitation administration: Historical and current perspectives. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 12(4), 87-90.
- Walls, R. T., & Fullmer S. L. (1996). Comparing rehabilitated workers with the United States workforce. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 40(2), 153-164.

- Weed, R., Baird, K., Bunlap, K., & Lewis, S. (1999). Cultural diversity within rehabilitation education and professional employment. *The Rehabilitation Professional*, 7(3), 25-30.
- Weinrach, S. G. (2002). The counseling profession's relationship to Jews and the issues that concern them: More than a case of selective awareness. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 80(3), 300-314.
- Wheaton, J. E., Finch, J. R., Wilson, K. B., & Granello, D. H. (1997). Patterns of services to vocational rehabilitation consumers based upon sex, race, and closure status. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 20(3), 209-225.
- Wilkins, R. D., DeLoach, C. P., & Banks, J. J. (1985). Survey of rehabilitation counselor positions in state-federal agencies. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 16(2), 35-44, 56.
- Wilson, K. B., Turner, T., & Jackson, R. L. II (2002). Vocational rehabilitation services received after successful closure: A comparison by race. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 33(1), 26-34.
- Wilson, K. B., & Senices, J. (2005). Exploring the vocational rehabilitation acceptance rates for Hispanics versus non-hispanics in the United States. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 83(1), 86-96.
- Wright, B. A. (1993). Division of Rehabilitation Psychology: Roots, guiding principle, and a persistent concern. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 38(1), 63-65.
- Wyant, D. R. (1986). Rehabilitation in the Veterans Administration. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 52(1), 67-68.

Zea, M. C., Belgrave, F. Z., & Townsend, T. G. (1996). The influence of social support and active coping on depression among African Americans and Latinos with disabilities. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 41(3), 225-242. **ADMINISTRATIVE THEORY** 

Applied Behavior Analysis

## **Applied Behavior Analysis**

- Blocher, D. H. (1988). Point of view: On the uses and misuses of the term theory. *Journal* of Counseling and Development, 66(2), 67-68.
- Corthell, D. W. (1987). Trends in facilities [Editorial]. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 20(2), 43-44.
- Godley, S. H., & Cuvo, A. J. (1981). Single-subject experimental designs: Applications to rehabilitation administration. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 5(1), 14-22.
- Karan, O. C., & Gardner, W. I. (1973). Vocational rehabilitation practices: A behavioral analysis. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 34(10), 290-299.
- McRae, S., & Lutzker, J. R. (1982). Applied behavior analysis and rehabilitation administration: End of courtship, time for marriage. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 6(3), 105-111.
- Reagles, K. W., & O'Neill, J. (1977). Single-subject designs for client groups: Implications for program evaluation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 21(1), 13-22.
- Rice, J. M. (1981). Behavioral applications to rehabilitation administration: An examination of four relevant concepts. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 5(1), 5-10.

Administrative Theory

**General Theory** 

- Alston, R. J., & Bell, T. J. (1996). Cultural mistrust and the rehabilitation enigma for African Americans. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 62(2), 16-20.
- Armstrong, M. J. (1989). International cooperation in rehabilitation education: A perspective of United States activity. *Rehabilitation Education*, *3*(4), 337-346.
- Arokiasamy, C. V. (1993). A theory for rehabilitation? *Rehabilitation Education*, 7, 77-98.
- Arredondo, P., Rosen, D. C., Rice, T., Perez, P, & Tovar-Gamero, Z.G. (2005).
  Multicultural counseling: A 10-year content analysis of the Journal of Counseling
  & Development. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 83(2), 155-161.
- Atkinson, D. E. (1999). Rehabilitation leadership competencies for the next millennium. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 22(4), 293-296.
- Banks, J. J. (1983). Statement of the National Rehabilitation Counseling Association(NRCA) [Editorial]. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 14(1), 6-7, 10.
- Biggs, H. C. (2000). Leadership in rehabilitation. *The Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, 6(1), ii.
- Brabham, R. E., & Emener, W. G. (1988). Human resource development in rehabilitation administration: Futuristic perspectives. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *12*(4), 124-129.
- Burkhead, E. J., Ebener, D. J., & Marini, I. (1996). Humor, coping and adaptation to disability. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 27(40), 50-53.
- Carnes, G. D. (1971/1972). The realities of power in an imperfect professional world. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 2(4), 155-160.

- Casas, J. M., & Ponterotto, J. G. (1984). Profiling an invisible minority in higher education: The Chicana. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 62(6), 349-353.
- Chan, F. (1987). Editorial reply: Trends in facilities. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 24(4), 163-164.
- Cochran, D. J. (1982). Organizational consultation: A planning group approach. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *60*(5), 314-318.
- Constantine, M. G., Hage, S. M., Kindaichi, M. M., & Bryant, R. M. (2007). Social justice and multicultural issues: Implications for the practice and training of counselors and counseling psychologist. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 85(1), 24-29.
- Cosier, R. A., & Dalton, D. R. (1993). Management consulting: Planning, entry, performance. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72(2), 191-198.
- Cottone, R. R. (1987). A systematic theory of vocational rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *30*(3), 167-176.
- Cottone, R. R. (1988). The search for a scientific foundation for ethical theory in vocational rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *54*(4), 21-26.
- Crisler, J. R., Field, T. F., & Pierson, J. (1980). Developing and implementing the Management Control Project (MCP) in the Georgia DVR Agency. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 46(1), 52-57.
- Emener, W. G., & Ferrandino, J. (1983). A philosophical framework for rehabilitation:
   Implications for clients, counselors, and agencies. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 14(1), 62-68.
- Esser, T. J. (1975). The workshop environment: Some essential considerations. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 8(1), 31-35.

- Faison, K., Isbister, F., & Wieck, C. (1990). RSA and supported employment. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 56(2), 11-13.
- Faull, K., & Kalliath, T. J. (2001). Spirituality as a determinant of health for those with disabilities. *The Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, 7(1), 43-51.
- Fordyce, W. E. (1982). Interdisciplinary process: Implications for rehabilitation psychology. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 27(1), 5-11.
- Gersick, C. J., G., Gartunek, J. M., & Dutton, J. E. (2000). Learning from academia: The importance of relationships in professional life. *The Academy of Management Journal*, 43(6), 1026.1044.
- Goldberg, R. T. (1989). Comparison of the German and American systems of rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 55(1), 59-62.
- Hershenson, D. B. (2000). Toward a cultural anthropology of disability and rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *43*(3), 150-157.
- Holland, B. E., & Falvo, D. R. (1990). Forgotten: Elderly persons with disability-a consequence of policy. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 56(2), 32-35.
- Holzbauer, J.J. (2005). Disability harassment of students in transition from school to work: Implications for rehabilitation counseling. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 35(4), 307.
- Johnson, S. S., & Janes, M. W. (1984). Legislation and litigation involving the employment of disabled women: An overview. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 62(6), 346-349.
- Kimmerling, G. F. (1993). The business side of a helping profession. American Counselor, 2(4), 5-6.

- Lamb, H. R., & Mackota, C. (1975). Vocational rehabilitation counseling: A "second class" profession? *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 41(3), 21-24.
- Latta, J. (1981). Toward a more effective management philosophy. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 5(2), 51-58.
- Linkowski, D. C., & Szymanski, E. M. (1993). Accreditation in rehabilitation counseling: Historical and current context and process. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 37(2), 81-91.
- Lofaro, G. A. (1983). Doctoral research in rehabilitation [Special issue]. (Administration). *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *26*(4), 243-244, 302.
- Lorenz, J. R., Hawley, I. B., McDonald, A. A., Sr., Baker, J. H., Waters, G. E., & Young,
  M. W. (1977). Rehabilitation administration: Fact or fiction? A symposium. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 1(4), 24-37.
- Maki, D. R., Berven, N. L., & Allen, H. A. (1985). Doctoral study in rehabilitation counseling: Current status. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 28(3), 146-154.
- Matkin, R. E. (1985). Rehabilitation: An ambiguous term and an unfulfilled ideal. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *46*(11-12), 314-320.
- Matkin, R. E. (1986). Oracles from the Vulcan Chronicles. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 52(3), 63-64.
- Matkin, R. E. (1986). The vitalizing effects of private sector rehabilitation. *Journal of Private Sector Rehabilitation*, 1(1), 6-12.
- McConnell, L. R. (1990). Policy alternatives for employment of persons with disabilities:A comparison with women, blacks, and Hispanics. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 14(2), 52-57.

- McKenzie, D. (1999). What is this thing called rehabilitation? One practitioner's view. *Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, *5*(1), 47-53.
- McNaughton, H. K., & McPherson, K. M. (2000). New Zealand and the ACC: A noble experiment that failed? *Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, 6(2), 86-95.
- Moxley, D. P. (2006). Core marketing competencies of the rehabilitation facility. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *30*(2), 87-102.
- Nemec, P. B. (2001). Revisiting some well-worn truths. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin, 44*(4), 229-231.
- Newman, J. (1987). Governance as a facility management issue [Editorial]. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 11(2), 42.
- Oh, K., Kim, J. H., Rosenthal, D. A., & Lui. J. W. (2005). Vocational rehabilitation in South Korea: Historical development, present status, and future direction. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 71(1), 49-55.
- Olander, C., Walker, B., & Prazak, G. (1990). An agenda for excellence: The search for exemplary vocational rehabilitation services. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 56(1), 17-18.
- Olshansky, S. (1976). The Greenleigh Associates' study of sheltered workshops: A response. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *37*(10), 309-311.
- Peterson, D. B., & Kosciulek, J. F. (2005). Introduction to the Special Issue of Rehabilitation Education: The international classification of functioning, disability and health (ICF). *Rehabilitation Education*, 19(2&3), 75-80.

- Ponterotto, J. G., & Benesch, K. F. (1988). An organizational framework for understanding the role of culture in counseling. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 66(5), 237-241.
- Potts, B. (2005). Disability and employment: Considering the importance of social capital. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 71(3), 20-25.
- Remley, T. P., Jr., & Hendren, G. R. (1989). Legal liability of supervisors. *Rehabilitation Education*, 3(3), 177-183.
- Riggar, T. F., & Matkin, R. E. (1984). Rehabilitation counselors working as administrators: A pilot investigation. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 15(1), 9-13.
- Riggar, T. F. (2005). Editorial: The history and the future of the Journal of
  Rehabilitation Administration. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 29(2),
  63-64.
- Rubin, S. E., & Millard, R. P. (1991). Ethical principles and American public policy on disability. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 57(1), 13-16.
- Rule, W. R., & Wright, K. C. (1981). Regulating the regulators: A rehabilitation dilemma. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 5(2), 45-50.
- Sawyer, H. W., & Morgan, B. G. (1981). Adjustment techniques in transition. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin, 14*, 20-27.
- Schiro-Geist, C., & Donlon, J. G. (1994). Workers' compensation and the "Alphabet Soup" of credentials: How to spell success for the rehabilitation professional. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 18(4), 229-235.

- Scofield, M. E. (1984). Personal constructs and decision rules associated with the problem-solving competency in rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 22(3), 131-141.
- Solomon, J. R. (1972). Public private pact. Journal of Rehabilitation, 38(1), 20-21.
- Stadler, H. A., Willing, K. L., Eberhage, M. G., & Ward, W. H. (1988). Impairment: Implications for the counseling profession. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 66(6), 258-260.
- Talbot, H. S. (1984). A concept of rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 45(1), 152-158.
- Thomas, K. R. (1985). Rehabilitation services, training, and research: A political analysis. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *51*(4), 17-21.
- Thomas, K. R., Greco, M. A., & Kravetz, S. P. (1973). Perceptions of work and dependence: A comparison of rehabilitation counselors and social workers. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 17(2), 120-128.
- Thomas, K. R., & Weinrach, S. G. (1998). Multiculturalism, cultural diversity, and affirmative action goals: A reconsideration. *Rehabilitation Education*, 12(1), 65-75.
- Thomas, S. W. (1981). Rehabilitation engineering in vocational evaluation and work adjustment. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, *14*(3), 120-124.
- Vogenthaler, D. R., & Riggar, T. F. (1985). Theory Z in rehabilitation administration. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *51*(1), 42-45, 79.
- Walker, M. L. (1979). The university as forum for community rehabilitation planning. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 22(4), 357-360.

- Walker, M. L., & Walker, R. B. (1995). Mindfulness in rehabilitation practice, education, and research. *Rehabilitation Education*, 9(2), 201-204.
- Woods, D. E. (1989). International exchange of experts and information in rehabilitation: Reexamining assumptions. *Rehabilitation Education*, *3*(4), 263-268.

Administrative Theory

General Theory-Legislative

## **General Theory-Legislative**

- Adams, J. E. (1991). Judicial and regulatory interpretation of the employment rights of persons with disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 22(3), 28-46.
- Alston, R. J. (1997). Disability and health care reform: Principles, practices, & politics. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, *63*(3), 5-9.
- Alson, R. J., Bell, T., & Leung, P. (1997). Reform laws and health care coverage:
  Combating exclusion of persons with disabilities. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 63(3), 15-19.
- Baker, F. M. (1978). Five years later The 1973 mandates and rehabilitation facilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 2(3), 87-94.
- Batavia, A. I., & DeJong, G. (1990). Developing a comprehensive health services research capacity in physical disability and rehabilitation. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 1(1), 37-61.
- Bell, C. G. (1993). The Americans with Disabilities Act and injured workers: Implications for rehabilitation professionals and the worker's compensation system. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 38(2), 103-115.
- Benshoff, J. J., & Souheaver, H. G. (1991). Private sector rehabilitation and the Americans with Disabilities Act. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 22(4), 27-31.
- Bentley, S. (1999). The reformed Californian workers' compensation system: Outcomes for injured workers. *Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, *5*(1), 23-31.
- Berkowitz, M. (1990). Should rehabilitation be mandatory in workers' compensation programs? *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, *1*(1), 63-80.

- Billings, C. D. (1986). Florida's workers' compensation rehabilitation program: Past, present, and future. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 52(1), 73-74.
- Bowe, F. G. (1990). Into the private sector. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 1(1), 89-101.
- Braddock, D., & Hemp, R. (1996). Medicaid spending reductions and developmental disabilities. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 7(1), 1-32.
- Braun, S. A., & Cox, J. A. (2005). Managed mental health care: Intentional misdiagnosis of mental disorders. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 83(4), 425-433.
- Bruyere, S. (1994). Editor's introduction and overview, ADA. *Rehabilitation Education*, 8(1), 3-8.
- Bua-lam, P., Majumder, R., & Misra, S. (1993). A roll call of voting behavior on the
  1986 Rehabilitation Act Amendment: Regression and probity probability models.
  Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 17(2), 65-69.
- Buchanan, R. J., & Alston, R. J. (1997). Medicaid policies and home health care provisions for persons with disabilities. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 63(3), 20-34.
- Buys, N. J., & Fried, J. H. (1994). Employers' level of knowledge of the Americans with Disabilities Act and its impact on their workers' compensation practices. *Journal* of Rehabilitation Administration, 18(4), 241-253.
- Cannon, D. (1989). Design for all persons: The Architectural Barriers Act and public transit. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 55(2), 10-12.
- Carney, N. C. (1991). Disability policy and law: Impact on public sector practices. Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling, 22(4), 24-26.

- Cavenaugh, B., Moore, J. E., Giesen, J. M., & Maxson, J. (1996). The use of nominees in the Randolph-Sheppard Program: A comparison study. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 20(3), 193-207.
- Cottone, R. R. (1986). Counselor regulation: Implications for the field of vocational evaluation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *52*(1), 25-29.
- Crystal, R. M. (2000). The ticket to work incentives improvement act: Implications for rehabilitation practice. *The Rehabilitation Professional*, 8(4), 35-38.
- Crystal, R. M., & Rogers, J. (2002). Worker compensation in America: A 20-year retrospective (1975-1995). *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 26(1), 47-58.
- Dalgin, R. S. (2001). Impact of Title I of the Americans with Disabilities Act on people with psychiatric disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 32(1), 45-50.
- Danek, M. M., Parker, R., & Szymanski, E. M. (1991). Disability research and policy: Forging an alliance. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 22(4), 5-10.
- Davis, A., Yazark, D., & Kelling, G., Jr. (1996). Cross-examination of expert witnesses:What to expect from the opposing counsel. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 27(2), 53-58.
- DeJong, G., & Batavia, A. I. (1990). The Americans with Disabilities Act and the current state of U.S. disability policy. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, *1*(3), 65-75.
- Devience, A., Jr., & Convery, J. J. (1992). A primer on the new workforce law: The Americans with Disabilities Act. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 16(2), 40-45.

- Downes, S., & Thomas, S. (1994). The Americans with Disabilities Act: Implications for education of vocational evaluation, job development, and job placement personnel. *Rehabilitation Education*, 8(1), 27-35.
- Doyon, M. (1990). The practical impact of the Americans with Disabilities Act. *Rehab* USA, 1(2), 14.
- Doyon, M. W. (1991). ADA compliance: The law in motion. Rehab USA, 2(3), 2.
- Easterly, L., & McCallioni, P. (2007). Affirmative business: Examining the relevance of small business research. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 73(1), 12-21.
- Faison, K., Isbister, F., & Wieck, C. (1990). RSA and supported employment. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 56(2), 11-13.
- Francis, R. A. (1983). The development of federal accessibility law. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 49(1), 29-32, 36.
- Gilbride, D. D., Stensrud, R., & Connolly, M. (1992). Employer's concerns about the ADA: Implications and opportunities for rehabilitation counselors. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 23(3), 45-46.
- Golden, T. P. (Ed.) (1998). Utilizing the work incentive provisions of the Social Security Act. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 29(4), Winter, Special Issue.
- Growick, B. (2001). Grey matter: the political implications of TTW-WIIA. *Rehabilitation Education*, 15(1), 89-94.
- Hagen-Foley, D. L., Rosenthal, D. A., & Thomas, D. R. (2005). Informed consumer choice in community rehabilitation programs. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 48(2), 110-117.

- Harley, D. A., Wilson, K. B., & DeShea, L. (2001). The exploration of Social Security Disability Insurance, race and work status at closure on successfully rehabilitated customers in the United States. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 3(25), 137-143.
- Jansen, M. A. (1986). Special issue on rehabilitation psychology and the law [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *31*(1).
- Jenkins, W. M., Anderson, R. M., & Odle, S. J. (1977). Expediting government involvement in rehabilitation workshop programs. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 10(4), 31-39.
- Johnson, S. S., & Janes, M. W. (1984). Legislation and litigation involving the employer of disabled women: An overview. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 62(6), 346-349.
- Johnson, T. E. (1993). Americans with Disabilities Act. Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin, 26(2), 67-69.
- Jones, J., & Jones, J. (2001). Clarifying the confusion between the Americans with Disabilities Act and Social Security Disability Insurance. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 25(1), 43-50.
- Kirchner, C. (1993). Disability statistics: The politics and science of counting. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 4(2), 1-7.
- Koch, D. S. (1999). Protections in federal rehabilitation legislation for persons with alcohol and other drug abuse disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 30(3), 29-34.

- Ledbetter, J., Jr., Parmley, R. J., & Chastain, R. M. (1975). Rehabilitation services through contractual agreement: Legal and psychological considerations. *Journal* of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling, 6(3), 144-158.
- Maki, D. R., & Riggar, T. F. (Eds.). (1991). Disability policy and the laws, part I [Special issue]. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 22(3).
- Maki, D. R., & Riggar, T. F. (Eds.). (1991). Disability policy and the laws, part II [Special issue]. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 22(4).
- Mappes, D. C., Robb, G. P., & Engels, D. W. (1985). Conflicts between ethics and law in counseling and psychotherapy. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 64(4), 246-252.
- Marini, I., & Stebnicki, M. A. (1999). Social Security Administration's alternative provider program: What can rehabilitation administrators expect? *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 23(1), 32-41.
- Martin, D. A., Conley, R. W., & Noble, J. H. (1995). The ADA and disability benefits policy. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 6(2), 1-15.
- Martin, M. E. (1977). Legal concerns of the rehabilitation counselor, part I. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 8(1), 5-14.
- Martin, M. E. (1977). Legal concerns of the rehabilitation counselor, part II. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 8(2), 66-83.
- Martin, M. E. (1977). Legal concerns of the rehabilitation counselor, part III. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 8(3), 130-149.
- Martin, M. E. (1977). Legal concerns of the rehabilitation counselor, part IV. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 8(4), 194-207.

McCrone, W. P. (1991). The federal legislative process for rehabilitation counselors. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 22(3), 16-20.

- McFarlane, F., & Dew, D. W. (1998). NCRE position paper on the appropriations needs of the Title III of the Rehabilitation Act, as amended, to meet the expectations of the comprehensive system of personnel development. *Rehabilitation Education*, *12*(2), 161-165.
- Michaels, R. E. (1994). Title VII: A major step forward. OSERS, 6(2), 8-10.
- Middlton, R. A., Flowers, C., & Zawaiza, T. (1996). Multiculturalism, Affirmative Action, and section 21 of the 1992 Rehabilitation Act Amendments: Fact or fiction? *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 40(1), 11-30.
- Mitchell, J., Jacobs, H. E., & Yen, F. (1987). Costs and response rates in follow-up for a psychiatric vocational rehabilitation program. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 30(4), 273-277.
- Moore, C. L., & Feist-Price, S. (1999). Societal attitudes and civil rights of persons with disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *30*(2), 19-24.
- Moore, D., & Ford, J. A. (1996). Policy responses to substance abuse and disability: A concept paper. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 7(1), 91-106.
- Morris, B. (1994). ADA compliance: Insurance. Rehabilitation Today, 4(1). 12-13.
- Moss, K., Johnsen, M., &Ullman, M. (1998). Assessing employment discrimination charges filed by individuals with psychiatric disabilities under the Americans with Disabilities Act. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 9(1), 81-106.
- Murdick, N. L., & Gartin, B. C. (1996). The inclusion controversy: Emerging patterns in case law. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 7(2), 43-55.

- Nadolsky, J. M. (1984). Social security: In need of rehabilitation [Editorial]. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 50(4), 6-8.
- National Council on Disability. The education of students with disabilities: Where do we stand? A report to the President and the Congress of the United States, Sept.
  1989. Journal of Disability Policy Studies, 1(1), 103-132.
- Nelson, J. (1994). Change in the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and federal regulations. *OSERS*, 6(2), 4-7.
- Newman, J. F., & Dinwoodie, R. E. (1996). Impact of the Americans with Disabilities
  Act on private sector employers. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 20, 3-13.
- Percy, S. L. (1993). Challenges and dilemmas in implementing disability rights policies. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 4(1), 41-63.
- Perlman, L. G., & Kirk, F. S. (1991). Key disability and rehabilitation legislation. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 22(3), 21-27.
- Prater, L. (2005). Enforcing Title I of the Americans with Disabilities Act. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *36*(1), 12-19.
- President's Committee on Employment of People with Disabilities. (1994). Operation people first. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 5(2), 81-106.
- Randolph, A. H. (1975). The Rehabilitation Act of 1973: Implementation and implications. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 18(4), 200-205.
- Reeves, J. E. (1991). Clearing the hurdles toward ADA compliance. *Rehab USA*, 2(3), 3-5.
- Remley, T. P., Jr., & Hendren, G. R. (1989). Legal liability of supervisors. *Rehabilitation Education*, 3(3), 177-183.

- Remley. T. P., Jr., Herlihy, B., & Herlihy, S. B. (1997). The U. S. Supreme Court decision in Jaffee v. Redmond: Implications for counselors. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 75(3), 213-218.
- Rhoads, M., Slate, J., & Steger, H. (1994). Limited understanding of Section 504 and its applications to higher education. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 25(2), 29-31.
- Riggar, T. F., Maki, D. R., & Flowers, C. (1991). Civil Rights Act of 1991. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 22(4), 36-43.
- Roessler, R. (2002). TWWIIA initiatives and work incentives: Return-to-work implications. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 68(3), 11-15.
- Rogers, J. B., Bishop, M., & Crystal, R. M. (2005). Predicting rehabilitation outcome for Supplemental Security Income and Social Security Disability Income recipients: Implications for consideration with the Ticket to Work Program. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 71(3), 5-10.
- Rosenthal, M., & Kolpan, K. I. (1986). Head injury rehabilitation: Psycholegal issues and roles for the rehabilitation psychologist. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *31*(1), 37-46.
- Rowley, W. J., & MacDonald, D. (2001). Counseling and the law: A cross-cultural perspective. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 79(4), 422-429.
- Sales, B. (1986). Special issue on rehabilitation psychology and the law [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Psychology, 31*(1).
- Salkever, D. S. (1994). Access to vocational rehabilitation services for persons with severe disabilities. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, *5*(2), 45-63.
- Satcher, J. (1992). Responding to employer concerns about the ADA and job applicants with disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 23(3), 37-40.

- Schmidt, M. J. (1991). The role, function, and responsibilities of rehabilitation consumers and professionals in disability policy and law. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 22(4), 32-35.
- Schriner, K. (1996). The Rehabilitation Act Amendments of 1992: Initiatives and issues. Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling, 27, 15-23.
- Schriner, K. F. (1990). Why study disability policy? *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, *1*(1), 1-7.
- Schriner, K. F., Barnartt, S. N., & Altmann, B. M. (1997). Disabled women and public policy: Where we've been, where we're going. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 8(1&2).
- Scotch, R. K., & Berkowitz, E. D. (1990). One comprehensive system? A historical perspective on federal disability policy. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 1(3), 1-19.
- Smith, E. R., & Riggar, T. F. (1988). Accessible transportation: Human rights.. .versus. costs. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 54(2), 13-17.
- Smits, S. J., Decker, R. S., & Schneider, H. C. (1982). System innovations in response to the congressional mandate to serve severely disabled persons. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 6(1), 15-22.
- Tarvydas, V. M., & Cottone, R. R. (1991). Ethical responses to legislative, organizational, and economic dynamics: A four level model of ethical practice. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 22(4), 11-18.
- Thomas, S. W. (1981). Impact of the 1981 rehabilitation regulations on vocational evaluation of learning disabled. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 14(1), 28-31.

- Vallario, J. P., & Emener, W. G. (1991). Rehabilitation counseling and the law: Critical considerations of confidentiality and privilege, malpractice, and forensics. *Journal* of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling, 22(2), 7-14.
- Walls, R. T., Masson, C., & Werner, T. J. (1977). Negative incentives to vocational rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 38(5), 143-151.
- Walters, S. E., & Baker, C. M. (1996). Title I of the Americans With Disabilities Act:Employer and recruiter attitudes towards individuals with disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 20, 15-23.
- Weber, M. (1994). Towards access, accountability, procedural regularity and participation: The Rehabilitation Act Amendments of 1992 and 1993. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 60(3), 21-25.
- Werth, J. Jr., & Gordon, J. R. (2002). Amicus Curiae brief for the United States Supreme Court on mental health issues associated with "physician-assisted suicide". *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 80(2), 160-172.
- Whitney-Thomas, J., Timmons, J. C., & Gilmore, D. S. (1999). Expending access:
  Changes in vocational rehabilitation practice since the 1992 Rehabilitation Act
  Amendments. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 43(1), 30-40.
- Whitten, E. B. (1975). Twenty-five years of congressional activity. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 41(4), 30-31.

Administrative Theory

General Theory-Economics

## **General Theory-Economics**

- Baer, R., Simmons, T., Flexer, R., & Smith, C. (1994). A study of the costs and benefits of supported employment for persons with severe physical and multiple disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 18(1), 46-57.
- Berkowitz, M.(1984). The economist and rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 45(11-12), 354-357.
- Blades, D. A., & Harley, D. A. (1997). Vocational and medical rehabilitation: The impact of health care policy and funding on service provision. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 63(3), 35-39.
- Braden, C. J. (1991). Learned response to chronic illness: Disability payment recipients vs. nonrecipients. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 36(4), 265-277.
- Braun, S. A., & Cox, J. A. (2005). Managed mental health care: Intentional misdiagnosis of mental disorders. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 83(4), 425-433.
- Bruyere, S. M., Erickson, W. A., & VanLooy, S. A. (2006). The impact of business size on employer ADA response. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 49(4), 194-206.
- Burkhauser, R., & Daly, M. (1994). The economic consequences of disability: A comparison of German and American people with disabilities. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 5(1), 25-52.
- Carling, P. J. (1989). Access to housing: Cornerstone of the American dream. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 55(3), 6-8.
- Carlsson, R. J., & Corbett, A. P. (1987). Vocational rehabilitation and earnings enhancement. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 53(1), 26-32.

- Chan, F., Lui, J., Rosenthal, D., Pruett, S. R., & Ferrin, J. M. (2002). Managed care and rehabilitation counseling. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *26*(2), 85-98.
- Coker, C. C., & Valley, J. (1995). Costing employment models. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 19(3), 199-213.
- Cope, R., McCreery, A. M., & Milstein, S. (1987). Indicators of commercial vitality among rehabilitation facilities: Results and recommendations from ten case studies. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 11(3), 88-97.
- Crystal, R. M., & Rogers, J. (2002). Worker compensation in America: A 20-year retrospective (1975-1995). *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 26(1), 47-58.
- Dean, D. H., & Dolan, R. C. (1987). Issues in the economic evaluation of the vocational rehabilitation program. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 53(1), 13-19.
- Duchene, P. A. (1993). Profits in rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *17*(1), 31-32.
- Emener, W. G., Lauth, T. P., Renick, J. C., & Smits, S. J. (1985). Impact of government retrenchment on professionalism: The cases of rehabilitation counseling and social work. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 9(2), 45-53.
- Fujiura, G. T., Yamaki, K., & Czechowicz, S. (1998). Disability among ethnic and racial minorities in the United States: A summary of economic status and family structure. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 9(2), 111-130.
- Garske, G. G., & Williams, B. T. (1999). The financial costs of severe mental illness. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 65(4), 39-44.

- Gayles, T., & Alston, R. J. (2005). Health care benefits and disability coverage offered by small business: Service precautions for rehabilitation agencies. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 28(2), 85-91.
- Gettings, R., & Chapin, R. (1992). Improving state rate-setting and reimbursement policies for developmental disabilities services. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 3(2), 1-18.
- Gibbs, R. L., Dodd, J. M., Hecimovic, A., & Nikoloff, E. (1996). Managed care administrators' opinions of vocational rehabilitation services. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 27, 42-44.
- Golden, T. P. (Ed.). (1998). Utilizing the work incentive provisions of the Social Security Act [Winter, Special Issue]. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 29(4).
- Habeck, R. V., Williams, C. L., Dugan, K. E., & Ewing, M. E. (1989). Balancing human and economic costs in disability management. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 55(4), 16-19.
- Hagner, D. (2000). Primary and secondary labor markets: Implications for vocational rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling*, *44*(1), 22-29.
- Hall, R. (1994). Timeliness as a factor related to outcomes and costs in California's workers compensation vocational rehabilitation program. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 18(4), 261-269.
- Hanley-Maxwell, C., & Millington, M. (1992). Enhancing independence in supported employment: Natural supports in business and industry. *Journal of Vocational Rehabilitation*, 2(4), 51-59.
- Kamkar, M., & Tenney, F. (1991). Factors affecting SSDI beneficiaries' return to work. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 15(1), 143-145.

- Keppel, A. (1990). Issues in long term disability and risk analysis. *Journal of Private Sector Rehabilitation*, 5(1), 19-25.
- Kosciulek, J. F. (1999). The consumer-directed theory of empowerment. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 42(2), 196-213.
- Legge, B. J. (1972). What's best administered is best. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 38(1), 12-13.
- Lehmann, I. S. (2006). Minimum wage rates and employment of individuals with disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 72(2), 40-57.
- Matkin, R. E. (1980). Public/private rehabilitation during recession. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 46(4), 58-61.
- Matkin, R. E. (1980). Vocational rehabilitation during economic recession. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *11*(3), 124-127.
- Matkin, R. E. (1985). NRA and the federal budget process: A proposal to increase rehabilitation funding. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *51*(1), 25-30, 80.
- McMahan, R. S. (1979). An economist looks at the business of rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *3*(4), 161-168.
- Misra, S., Bua-lam, P., & Majumder, R. K. (1992). A realistic assessment of economic benefits of the rehabilitation program using worklife expectancy tables. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 16(1), 15-22.
- Mitchell, J., Jacobs, H. E., & Yen, F. (1987). Costs and response rates in follow-up for a psychiatric vocational rehabilitation program. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 30(4), 273-277.
- Nerney, R., & Conley, R. W. (1992). A policy analysis of community costs for persons with severe disabilities. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 3(2), 31-52.

- Pati, G. C. (1985). Economics of rehabilitation in the workplace. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *51*(4), 22-30.
- Potts, B. (2005). Disability and employment: Considering the importance of social capital. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 71(3), 20-25.
- Reagles, S. A. (1981). Economic incentives and employment of the handicapped. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 25(1), 13-19.
- Rogers, J. B., Bishop, M., & Crystal, R. M. (2005). Predicting rehabilitation outcome for Supplemental Security Income and Social Security Disability Income recipients: Implications for consideration with the Ticket to Work Program. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 71(3), 5-10.
- Rule, W. R., & Wright, K. C. (1981). Rehabilitation's unheralded partner: Economics. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 12(4), 208-211.
- Rush, F. R., Conley, R. W., & McCaughrin, W. B. (1993). Benefit-cost analysis of supported employment in Illinois. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 59(2), 31-36.
- Satcher, J., & Hendren, G. R. (1992). Employer agreement with the disabilities act of 1990: Implications for rehabilitation counseling. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 58(3), 13-17.
- Shifron, R., Dye, A., & Shifron, G. (1983). Implications for counseling the unemployed in a recessionary economy. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *61*(9), 529.
- Tedder, N. E., & Maxson, J. H. (1990). Job tasks, knowledge and business practices among Randolph-Sheppard business enterprise operators: A comparison with state licensing agency training practices. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 14(1), 11-19.

- Thomas, D. F., & Bordieri, J. E. (1987). Fees for services: Principles and practices among state vocational rehabilitation general agencies and facilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 11(1), 23-32.
- Walls, R. T., Dowler, D. L., & Fullmer, S. L. (1989). Cash and in-kind benefits:
  Incentives rather than disincentives for vocational rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 33(2), 118-126.
- Walls, R. T., Dowler, D. L., & Misra, S. (1985). A conservative economic evaluation of VR case service costs using the minimum wage criterion. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 9(3), 92-97.
- Wilson, K. B. (1999). Differences in hourly wages and hours worked between successfully rehabilitated African Americans and European Americans: The more things change, the more they stay the same. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 30(4), 10-15.
- Wolf, R. P. (1986). Let the sheltered workshop beware: An overview of product liability exposure. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 52(2), 19-24.

Administrative Theory

General Theory-Trends

## **General Theory-Trends**

- Alston, P. A. (Ed.). (2001). Spirituality and disability [Special issue]. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 67(1).
- Alston, R. J. (1996). Multiculturalism in rehabilitation education: History, pedagogy, and future trends [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Education*, *10*(2-3).
- Alston, R. J., Wilson, K. B., & Harley, D. A. (Eds.) (2002). Race and rehabilitation services [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 45(3).
- Ancis, J. R., Sedlacek, W. E., & Mohr, J. J. (2000). Student perceptions of campus cultural climate by race. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 78(2), 180-185.
- Andrews, H., Barker, J., Pittman, J., Mars, L., Struening, E., & LaRocca, N. (1992).
  National trends in vocational rehabilitation: A comparison of individuals with physical disabilities and individuals with psychiatric disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 58(1), 7-16.
- Backer, T. E. (1988). The future of rehabilitation in the workplace: Drug abuse, AIDS, & disability management. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *19*(2), 38-41.
- Barnartt, S. N. (1996). Disability culture or disability consciousness? Journal of Disability Policy Studies, 7(2), 1-19.
- Barrett, K., Riggar, T. F., & Flowers, C. (1997). Violence in the workplace: Examining the risk. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 21(2), 95-114.
- Bitter, J. A. (Ed.). (2000). Rehabilitation leadership and online technology [Special issue]. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 24(1).
- Boggs, G., & Growick, B. (1994). Industrial rehabilitation: Preparing professionals for a post-ADA world. *Rehabilitation Education*, 8(1), 59-66.

- Bollman, B. T., Ray, A. M., & Emener, W. G. (1990). On predicting populations for vocational rehabilitation services: Researching and educating our way into the future. *Rehabilitation Education*, 4(3), 171-176.
- Bowe, F. G. (1985). Employment trends in the information age. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 29(1), 19-25.
- Bromet, E. A., & Growick, B. (2001). Telework: A new frontier in vocational rehabilitation. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *32*(2), 19-24.
- Budd, H. A. (1997). Occupational rehabilitation in the maritime industry: Case
  management issues. *The Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, 3(1), 40-47.
- Burgess, K. M., Benshoff, J. J., Early, J. K., & Taricone, P. F. (1990). Field placement in employee assistance settings. *Rehabilitation Education*, 4, 109-119.
- Butterworth, J., Foley, S., Kirnan, W. E., & Ciulla, T. (2006). Employment supports for persons with disabilities: Current practices in cross-agency collaboration and service integration. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 30(4), 253-268.
- Cannon, D. (1989). Design for all persons: The Architectural Barriers Act and public transit. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 55(2), 10-12.
- Carney, N. C. (1991). Disability policy and law: Impact on public sector practices. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 22(4), 24-26.
- Chan, F., Wong, D. W., Rosenthal, D. A., Kundu, M. M., & Dutta, A. (2005). Eligibility rate of traditional underserved individuals with disabilities revisited: A data mining approach. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 36(3), 3-10.

Coffey, D. D., & Roesselet, L. (1987). People par excellence: How small firms can get them and keep them and the politics of management [Topical review]. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin, 20*(2), 79-81.

Collins, M. S. (1980). Rehabilitation in the '80s. Journal of Rehabilitation, 46(4), 32-35.

- Corthell, D. W. (1987). Editorial trends in facilities. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 20(2), 43-44.
- Cruickshank, W. M. (1970). Rehabilitation toward a broader spectrum. *Psychological Aspects of Disability*, 17(3), 149-158.
- Davis, A., & Yazak, D. (1998). Writing across the curriculum as an approach to promoting curriculum coherence. *Rehabilitation Education*, *12*(1), 29-43.
- Dixon, C. G., Emener, W. G., & Richard, M. (2002). Rehabilitation administration issues and practices: Past, present, and future. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 26(2), 65-72.
- Drum, C. E. (1998). The social construction of personnel policy: Implications for people with disabilities. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 9(1), 125-250.
- Ehrle, R. A. (1972). Diminishing functional disability: Complementary rehabilitation efforts. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *19*(4), 174-179.
- Eisenberg, M. G. (1987). Rehabilitation psychology: Exploring issues. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 32, 3-4.
- Emener, W. G. (1986). Future perspectives on rehabilitation in America. *Journal of Private Sector Rehabilitation*, 1(2), 59-70.
- Emener, W. G. (1988). Human resource development in rehabilitation administration, management, and supervision: Reaching beyond our limits [Editorial]. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 12(4), 85-86.

- Emener, W. G. (1991). Empowerment in rehabilitation: An empowerment philosophy for rehabilitation in the 20th century. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *57*(4), 7-12.
- Emener, W. G. (1993). Evolutionary processes in rehabilitation counseling credentialing:
  Some of the emperors did not always like their new clothes. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 37(2), 194-196.
- Fabian, E.S., & Edwards, Y. V. (2002). Psychiatric disabilities: A 20 year anthology and implications for the future. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 26(2), 73-84.
- Faraci, P., Leiter, P., & Weeks, D. K. (1996). Trends in length of stay, charges, and functional outcomes: Implications for the rehabilitation industry. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, Inc.*, 20(2), 137-151.
- Feigin, R. (1995). Trends and directions in the role of the vocational rehabilitation counselor in Israel. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *61*(4), 16-19.
- Fern, D. D., & Decoteau, J. P. (1989). Emerging trends in the national supported employment initiative: A preliminary analysis of twenty-seven states. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 22(3), 117-119.
- Field, S. (1988). Society in transition. Journal of Job Placement, 4(2), 15-17.
- Field, T., & Emener, W. (1982). Rehabilitation counseling in the '80s: The coming of Camelot. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 13(1), 40-46.
- Flowers, C. R., Pusch, B., & Edwards, D. (1996). Rehabilitation cultural diversity initiative: A regional survey of cultural diversity within CILS. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 62(3), 22-28.

- Flowers, C. R., Forbes, W. S., Crimando, W. & Riggar, T. F. (2005). A regional survey of rehabilitation cultural diversity within CILs: A ten-year follow-up. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 71(2), 14-21.
- Galvin, D. E. (1986). Health promotion, disability management, and rehabilitation in the workplace. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 47(9-10), 218-223.
- Gice, J. (1985). In search of . . . "The perfect vocational evaluation." *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 18(1), 4-7.
- Gilbridge, D., & Stensrud, R. (1999). Expanding our horizons: Using the internet in rehabilitation education. *Rehabilitation Education*, *13*(3), 219-230.
- Greenwood, R., Johnson, V., & Schriner, K. (1988). Employer perspectives on employerrehabilitation partnerships. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 19(1), 8-12.
- Habeck, R. V., Shrey, D. E., & Growick, B. S. (1991). Disability management and industrial rehabilitation [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 34(3).
- Habeck, R. V., & Szymanski, E. M. (1999). Vocational rehabilitation strategies for the new world of work: Introduction to the special issue. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 42(4).
- Hagner, D. C., & Murphy, S. T.(1989). Closing the shop on sheltered work: Case studies of organizational change. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 55(3), 68-74.
- Hale, P., Jr., & Shipp, M. (1989). Personal transportation: A challenge to the rehabilitation community. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 55(2), 8-9.
- Hansen, C. E., & Perlman, L. G. (1993). Private sector rehabilitation: Insurance, trends, and issues for the 21st century: A summary of the 17th Mary E. Switzer memorial seminar. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 59(3), 12-16.

- Harley, D. A., Feist-Price, S., Alston, R. J. (1996). Cultural diversity: A content analysis of the rehabilitation literature. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 27(2), 59-62.
- Harley, D. A., Mpofu, E., & Ford, H. (2000). Tokenism and minorities in rehabilitation administration and leadership: Implications for the new millennium. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 24(2), 73-90.
- Harley, D. A., Tice, K., & Kaplan, L. (2001). Professional border crossings: Implications of collaboration between vocational rehabilitation counselor and social workers in public schools to assist students with disabilities and families. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 25(1), 29-42.
- Havranke, J. E., Brodwin, M. G., & Kontosh, L. G. (1999). O\*Net Job Analysis and Vocational Evaluation for the 21<sup>st</sup> Century. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 30(3), 42-46.
- Healy, C. C. (1972). Manpower trends: Counseling or political solutions? *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 51(1), 39-44.
- Heppner, P., & Johnson, J. (1994). New horizons in counseling: Faculty development. Journal of Counseling and Development, 72(5), 451-453.
- Hesketh, B. (1985). In search of a conceptual framework for vocational psychology. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 64(1), 26-30.
- Hein, S., Lustig, D. C., & Uruk, A. (2005). Consumers' recommendations to improve satisfaction with rehabilitation services: A qualitative study. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 49(1), 29-39.
- Holland, B. E., & Falvo, D. R. (1990). Forgotten: Elderly persons with disability-a consequence of policy. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 56(2), 32-35.

- Hotz, J. C., Maki, D. R., & Riggar, T. F. (1984). Rehabilitation practice: An empirical examination. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment*, 17(3), 113-118.
- Howell, P. B. (1989). Will you thrive or just survive? [Guest editorial]. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 13(1), 3.
- Huntt, D. C., & Growick, B. S. (1997). Managed care for people with disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *63*(3), 10-14.
- Hurley, M. L. (1982). Working paper on the role of rehabilitation in refugee resettlement. Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling, 13(4), 7-19.
- Jansen, M. A. (1986). Rehabilitation psychology: New directions? Reflections on the profession and the journal [Editorial]. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 31(4), 195-196.
- Keith, R. A. (1986). Organizational effectiveness in the rehabilitation hospital: A crossnational comparison. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 31(3), 131-141.
- Kilbury, R. F., Benshoff, J. J., & Riggar, T. F. (1990). The expansion of private sector rehabilitation: Will rehabilitation education respond? *Rehabilitation Education*, 4(3), 163-170.
- LaForge, J. (1991). Preferred language practice in professional rehabilitation journals. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 57(1), 49-51.
- Lam, C. S. (1984). Modern technology in sheltered workshop production. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 50(4), 24-27.
- Lam, C. S. (1993). Cross-cultural rehabilitation: What Americans can learn from their foreign peers. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *24*(3), 26-30.
- Layne, C. M., & Hohenshil, T. H. (2005). High tech counseling: Revisited. Journal of Counseling & Development, 83(2), 222-226.

- Lassiter, R. (1972). Future possibilities for growth in vocational rehabilitation. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *3*(2), 3-15.
- Leahy, M., Chang, F., Taylor, D., Wood, C., & Downey, W. (1998). Evolving knowledge and skill factors for practice in private sector. *NARPPS Journal*, *6*(1), 34-43.
- Leahy, M. J., & Tarvydas, V. M. (2001). Transforming our professional organizations: A first step toward the unification of the rehabilitation counseling profession. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 32(3), 3-8.
- LeBlanc, S., & Smart, J. F. (2005). Power, perception, and privilege: White privilege and the rehabilitation of Mexican Americans. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *36*(2), 12-19.
- Linkowski, D. C. (1974). Rehabilitation and rehabilitation counseling: A framework for the future. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *5*(1), 13-18.
- Lofaro, G. A. (1983). Doctoral research in rehabilitation [History]. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *26*(4), 243, 300-301.
- Lowery, L. (1983). Cultural diversity in management. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 7(2), 45-52.
- Lynch, R. K., & Herbert, J. T. (1984). Employment trends for rehabilitation counselors. Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling, 15(3), 43-45.
- Matkin, R. E. (1984). Cashing in on recovery: A challenge for rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *45*(3-4), 74-79, 89.
- Matkin, R. E., & Banks, B. J. (1983). Policy statement: NRCA task force on consultation/ private practice: Rehabilitation credentialing issues. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 14(2), 53-56.

- Matkin, R. E., & Janes, M. W. (1985). Rehabilitation in space: The next frontier. *Journal* of *Rehabilitation*, *51*(3), 29-32.
- Mau, W., & Bikos, L. H. (2000). Educational and vocational aspirations of minority and female students: A longitudinal study. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 78(2), 196-194.
- McAlees, D. C. (1990). New directions for rehabilitation facilities. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 23(1), 25-30.
- McAnaney, D., Webster, B., Lohan, M., & Wynne, R. (2001). Disability management: A system of response to a system? *The Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, 7(1), 1-22.
- McCrory, D. J., Connolly, P. S., Hanson-Mayer, T. P., Sheridan-Landolfi, J. M., Barone,F. C., Blood, A. H., & Gilson, A. B. (1980). The rehabilitation crisis: The impact of growth. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *11*(3), 136-139.
- McFadden, J. (1996). A transcultural perspective: Reaction to C. H. Patterson's "Multicultural counseling: From diversity to universality." *Journal of Counseling* and Development, 74, 232-235.
- McFarlane, F. R., & Frost, D. E. (1981). Rehabilitation directions: Feast, famine, or extinction in the 1980s. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 47(3), 20-23.
- McFarlane, F. R., & Griswold, P. P. (1992). Leadership in rehabilitation: Challenges and future directions. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *16*(3), 86-90.
- McMahon, B. T., & Fraser, R. T. (1978). The future of subprofessionals: A time for evaluation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 22(1), 30-37.
- Menz, F. E. (1987). An appraisal of trends in rehabilitation facilities: 1980-1984. Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin, 20(2), 67-74.

- Messing, J. K. (1993). Mediation: An intervention strategy for counselors. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72, 67-72.
- Middleton, R. A. (1996). Cultural diversity: Knowledge, sensitivity, and beliefs of vocational rehabilitation professionals in one state agency. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 20(4), 291-316.
- Mitchell, J. D., Adkins, R. H., & Kemp, B. J. (2006). The effects of aging on employment on people with and without disabilities. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 49(3), 157-165.
- Molinaro, D. A., & Walls, R. T. (1987). The paradigm shift in vocational rehabilitation. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 11(2), 44-49.
- Moore, D., & Lee, L. (1994). Substance use among applicants for vocational rehabilitation services. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 60(4), 48-53.
- Nadolsky, J. M. (1984). The "1984" crisis in rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 50(1), 4-5.
- Nave, G., & Browning, P. (1983). Preparing rehabilitation leaders for the computer age. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 26(5), 364-367.
- Newman, E. (1970). Changing rehabilitation manpower utilization. *Journal of Rehabilitation, 36*(5), 45-48.
- Pape, D. B., Cottone, R. R., & Tarvydas, V. M. (1987). Professionalism and futurism [Special issue]. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 18(4).
- Parent, W. S., Hill, M. L., & Wehman, P. (1989). From sheltered to supported employment outcomes: Challenges for rehabilitation facilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 55(4), 51-57.

- Patterson, C. H. (1996). Multicultural counseling: From diversity to universality. Journal of Counseling and Development, 74, 227-231.
- Patterson, J. B., & Pankowski, J. (1988). Preparing the consumer of rehabilitation administration, management, and supervision: Preservice, in-service, and continuing education issues. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 12(4), 117-121.
- Peterson, D. B., Hautamaki, J. B., & Hersenson, D. B. (2006). Reflections on our past and prospects for our future: A survey of the members of the American Rehabilitation Counseling Association (ARCA). *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin, 50*(1), 4-13.
- Peterson, M. (1985). Trends in vocational assessment in schools: A national survey. Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin, 18(3), 114-120.
- Reichert, D. A., & MacGuffie, R. A. (1988). AIDS: An overview for rehabilitation counselors. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 19(2), 34-37.
- Rhoades, D. R., McFarland, K. F., & Knight, P. G. (1995). Evolution of consumerism in rehabilitation counseling: A theoretical perspective. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 61(2), 26-29.
- Riggar, T. F., Crimando, W., Flowers, C. R., Stebnicki, M., Porter, D., & Etzbach, C.
  (2005). Rehabilitation counselors working as administrators: A 20-Year followup. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *36*(3), 11-15.
- Roessler, R. T. (1988). A conceptual basis for return to work interventions. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 32(2), 98-107.
- Rogan, P., & Murphy, S. (1991). Supported employment and vocational rehabilitation: Merger or misadventure? *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 57(2), 39-45.

- Romano, G. (1992). Diversity, development, dignity: Lofty ideals or achievable goals? *American Counselor*, 1(4), 6-9.
- Rosenthal, D. A., Hursh, N., Lui, J., Isom, R., & Sasson, J. (2007). A survey of current disability management practice: Emerging trends and implications for certification. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 50(2), 76-86.
- Rosenthal, D. A., & Oksheski, J. (1999). Disability management and rehabilitation counseling: Present status and future opportunities. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 65(1), 31-38.
- Sachs, P. R., & Redd, C. A. (1993). The Americans with Disabilities Act and individuals with neurological impairments. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 38(2), 87-101.
- Sawyer, H. W. (1992). Adjustment services: Opportunities for the future. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 25(3), 102-104.
- Schriner, K. F. (1998). (Editorial) Political empowerment: Introduction to special section on the political participation of people with disabilities. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 9(2).
- Schriner, K. F. (1990). Why study disability policy? *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, *1*(1), 1-7.
- Shafer, M., & Quiroga, T. (1993). Perspectives and transition among Hispanic and disabled youth. *Journal of Vocational Rehabilitation*, 3(1), 54-61.
- Shworles, T. R. (1983). The person with disability and the benefits of the microcomputer revolution: To have or not to have. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 44(11-12), 322-330.
- Sink, J. (1977). Trends in rehabilitation. Journal of Rehabilitation, 43(1), 36-40.
- Spence, J., Woods, J. N., & Young, P. L. (1984). The computer: Expanded uses in a sheltered workshop. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *50*(3), 64-65, 67.

- Strohmer, D. C., & Herbert, J. T. (Eds.) (1996) Editorial: School bus yellow and Strohmer blue. *Rehabilitation Education*, 10(4).
- Stubbins, J. (1984). Social science perspectives on vocational rehabilitation [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *45*(11-12).
- Swedlund, N. P., & Nosek, M. A. (2000). An exploratory study on the work on independent living centers to address abuse of women with disabilities. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 66(4), 57-64.
- Szymanski, E. M., Hanley-Maxwell, C., & Schriner, K. F. (1990). Supported employment personnel issues: Facing the future [Editorial]. *Rehabilitation Education*, 4, 231-232.
- Taylor, D., Riggar, T. F., Moore, C. L., & Turner, T. N. (1999). Long distance education/interactive television: Practical challenges. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 22(3), 165-178.
- Thomas, K. R., & Weinrach, S. G. (1998). Multiculturalism, cultural diversity, and affirmative action goals: A reconsideration. *Rehabilitation Education*, 12(1), 65-75.
- Torkelson-Lynch, R., & Thomas, K. R. (1994). People with disabilities as victims: Changing an ill-advised paradigm. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *60*(1), 8-11.
- Vanderheiden, G. C. (1983). The practical use of microcomputers in rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *44*(3-4), 66-70.
- Vash, C. L. (1991). More thoughts on empowerment. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 57(4), 13-16.

- Wainwright, C. O., & Sanders, R. W. (1988). Human resource development in rehabilitation administration: Historical and current perspectives. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 12(4), 87-90.
- Walker, M. L. (1985). Tomorrow's things: Mary E. Switzer as leader. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 9(4), 112-118.
- Walls, R. T., & Fullmer, S. L. (1990). Computer software for management and evaluation in vocational rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 14(3), 75-79.
- Walls, R. T., Misra, S., & Majumder, R. K. (2002). Trends in vocational rehabilitation: 1978, 1988, 1998. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 68(3), 4-10.
- Watson, S. (1994). Applying theory to practice: A prospective and prescriptive analysis of the implementation of the Americans with Disabilities Act. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 5(1), 1-24.
- Wheaton, J. E., Finch, J. R., Wilson, K. B., & Granello, D. H. (1997). Patterns of services to vocational rehabilitation consumers based upon sex, race, and closure status. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 20(3), 209-225.
- Willis, S. P., Hendershot, G. E., & Fabian, E. S. (2005). Help-seeking behavior among people with disabilities: Results from a national survey. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 71(1), 42-48.
- Wrenn, C. G. (1983). The fighting, risk-taking counselor. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 61(6), 323-326.
- Wyatt, T., Daniels, W. H., & White, L. J. (2000). Noncompetition agreements and the counseling profession: An unrecognized reality for private practioners. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 78(1), 14-20.

- Yeh, C. J., & Hwang, M. Y. (2000). Interdependence in ethnic identity and self: Implications for theory and practice. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 78(4), 420-429.
- Zola, I. K. (1993). Disability statistics, what we count and what it tells us. A personal and political analysis. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, *4*(2), 9-39.

Administrative Theory

General Theory-Programming

## **General Theory-Programming**

- Akridge, R. L. (1986). A community model of habilitation/rehabilitation. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 10(3), 81-86.
- Alston, R. J., & Crystal, R. M. (1989). Rehabilitation of older workers: An assessment of training and placement needs. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 13(2), 53-56.
- Anthony, W. A. (1985). Human and information resource development in the age of information: A dialogue with Robert Carkhuff. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 63, 372-374.
- Baer, R. M., Martonyi, E. A., Simmons, T. J., Flexer, R. W., & Grobel, G. W. (1994). Employer collaboration: A tri-lateral group process model. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 18(3), 151-163.
- Bahcall, D. S., & Berven, N. L. (1986). Service to older adults in rehabilitation facilities. Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin, 19(1), 9-14.
- Balcazar, F. E., Keys, C. B., Davis, M., Lardon, C., & Jons, C. (2005). Strengths and challenges of intervention research in vocational rehabilitation: An illustration of agency-university collaboration. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 71(2), 40-48.
- Barnartt, S. N., Seelman, K. D., & Gracer, B. (1990). Policy issues in communications accessibility. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 1(2), 47-63.
- Batavia, A. I., & DeJong, G. (1990). Developing a comprehensive health services research capacity in physical disability and rehabilitation. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 1(1), 37-61.
- Bellini, J., & Rumrill, P. (2002). Rehabilitation counseling research [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Education*, 16(2), 113-114.

Bentley, S. (1998). Rehabilitation counseling distance education on the internet:Avoiding the black spots on the information highway. *The Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, 4(1), 13-22.

- Black, D. A., Grant, C., Lapsley, H. M., & Rawson, G. K. (1994). The services and social needs of people with multiple sclerosis in New South Wales, Australia. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 60(4), 60-65.
- Blackwell, T. L., Marini, I., & Chacon, M. (2001). The impact of the Americans with Disabilities Act on independent living [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Education*, 4(15), 395-408.
- Boeltzig, H. (2005). Working together: The role of community-based disability organizations within the one-stop delivery system. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 29(1), 3-18.
- Botterbusch, K. (1989). Supported employment models: A review of the literature. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 22(3), 95-102.
- Bullis, M. (1983). Procedural issues in cooperative work-study programs. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 49(2), 33-35.
- Buys, N. J., & Rennie, J. (2001). Developing relationships between vocational rehabilitation agencies and employees. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 44(2), 95-103.
- Capella-McDonnall, M. E. (2006). Use of the homemaker closure with consumers who are blind or visually impaired versus consumers with other disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 30(4), 229-240

- Chan, F., Parker, H. J., Lam, C. S., Mecaskey, C., & Malphurs, L. (1987). Computer case management simulations: Applications in rehabilitation education. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 30(4), 211-217.
- Cho, D. W. (1984). An alternate employment model for handicapped persons. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 8(2), 55-63.
- Chung, R. C., & Bemak, F. (2002). The relationship of culture and empathy in crosscultural counseling. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 80(2), 154-159.
- Clark, H. B., Northrop, J. T., Burnett, J. M., Garner, A. R., & Daileda, D. A. (1983). Environmental and architectural planning for community-based, residential treatment facilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 7(1), 28-33.
- Clawson, P. D., & Skinner, A. L. (2002). Accessibility of the ten most frequently used internet career sites. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *33*(2), 3-7.
- Clinebell, S. K., Fenn, E. K., & Rowley, D. J. (1989). A measurement of internal forces of rehabilitation agencies for and against supported employment. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 13(3), 87-94.
- Cloutier, H., Mallory, J., Hagner, D., & Cotton, P. (2006). Choice and control over resources: New Hampshire's individual career account demonstration projects. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 72(2), 4-11.
- Conte, L., Murphy, S. T., & Nisbet, J. (1989). A qualitative study of work stations in industry. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 55(2), 53-61.
- Cooper, P. G., & Davis, S. (1979). Case flow modeling: A program management innovation for planning services to the severely disabled. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 3(1), 22-30.

- Crimando, W., & Bordieri, J. E. (1991). Do computers make it better? Effects of source on students' perceptions of vocational evaluation report quality. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 34(4), 332-343.
- Davis, A., & Yazak, D. (1995). Implementation and accreditation issues in the development of distance learning programs. *Rehabilitation Education*, 9(4), 293-307.
- Dinwoodie, R. E. (1991). Privatization practices in rehabilitation services. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *15*(3), 194-198.
- Drubach, D. A., Kelly, M. P., Peralta, L. M., & Perez, J. (1996). The community based rehabilitation program: A model for medical rehabilitation in the nineties. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 20, 37-46.
- Dwyre, A. E., & Trach, J. S. (1996). Consumer choice for people with cognitive disabilities: Who makes the choices in the job search process? *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 27(3), 42-47.
- Emener, W. G., & Griswold, P. P. (1986). Rehabilitation programs and the need for synergy and interrelated policy development: The OSERS school-to-work initiative. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 10(2), 40-47.
- Evenson, T., & Holloway, L. (2006). The state of rehabilitation undergraduate education:
  A survey of undergraduate coordinators. *Rehabilitation Education*, 20(2), 103-113.
- Faubion, C. W., Roessler, R. T., & Calico, J. (1998). Meeting the needs of underserved populations: Vocational rehabilitation and the Cherokee Nation 130 Project. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 41(3), 173-189.

- Ferguson, P. M., Hibbard, M., Leinen, J., & Schaff, S. (1990). Supported community life:Disability policy and the renewal of mediating structures. *Journal of DisabilityPolicy Studies*, 1(1), 9-35.
- Flexer, R., Goebel, G., Baer, R., Simmons, T., Matonyi, E., Shell, D., Steele, R., & Sabousky, R. (1994). Participant, employer, and rehabilitation resources in supported employment: A collaborative support approach. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 25(4), 9-15.
- Fordyce, W. E. (1974). Behavioral science and rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 21(3), 82-85.
- Garrett, B., Huff, M., & Sheppard-Jones, K. (2002). Rehabilitation and education partnerships: Nurturing positive communities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 26(2), 123-133.
- Garske, G. G., McReynolds, C. M. (2005). Psychiatric rehabilitation counseling programs. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *36*(4), 24-28.
- Glosoff, H. L., Herlihy, B., & Spence, E. B. (2000). Privileged communication in the counselor-client relationship. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 78(4), 454-462.
- Goodwin, Jr., L. R. (2006). Rehabilitation counselor specialty areas offered by rehabilitation counselor education program. *Rehabilitation Education*, 20(2), 133-143.
- Griffin, C. E. (1994). Improving rehabilitation service utilization among ethnic/racial groups: Rehabilitation administrator's role. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 18(1), 37-45.

- Habeck, R. V., Scully, S. M., Van Tol, B., & Hunt, H. A. (1998). Successful employer strategies for preventing and managing disability. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 42(2), 144-161.
- Harley, D. A., Rice, S., & Dean, G. (1996). Rural rehabilitation: A consortium for administration, coordination, and delivery of services. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 20(2), 109-117.
- Harley, D. A., Tice, K., & Kaplan, L. (2001). Professional border crossings: Implications of collaboration between vocational rehabilitation counselors and social workers in public schools to assist students with disabilities and families. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 25(1), 29-42.
- Harvey, R. F., & Jellinek, H. M. (1982). A team approach to comprehensive medical rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *6*(3), 134-139.
- Henry, D., Keys, C., & Reese, L. S. (2001). Value-based job analysis: An approach to human resource management in rehabilitation agencies serving people with developmental disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 25(1), 1-18.
- Hershenson, D. B. (1992). Conceptions of disability: Implications for rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *3*(35), 154-160.
- Hohenshil, T. H. (2000). High tech counseling. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 78(3), 365-368.
- Holcomb-McCoy, C. C., & Myers, J. E. (1999). Multicultural competence and counselor training: A national survey. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 77(3), 294-295.
- Honeycutt, T. C., & Brucker, D. (2006). Developing a screening tool to predict disability program participation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 72(2), 21-31.

- Howard, S. (1991). Organizational resources for addressing sexual harassment. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 69(6), 507-511.
- Kampfe, C. M., Wadsworth, J. S., Smith, S. M., & Harley, D. A. (2006). The infusion of aging issues in the rehabilitation curriculum: A review of the literature, *Rehabilitation Education*, 19(4), 225-234.
- Kase, H. M. (1979). Serving the deinstitutionalized mentally disabled through program innovations. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *3*(3), 141-144.
- Keferl, J. E. (1999). Working alliances: Maximizing opportunities for persons with coexisting disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 23(1), 43-55.
- Kennedy, J. (1997). Personal assistance benefits & federal health care reforms: Who is eligible on the basis of ADL assistance criteria? *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 63(3), 40-45.
- Kennedy, J. (1993). Policy and program issues in providing personal assistance services. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 59(3), 17-23.
- Kiernan, W., Butterworth, J., McNally, L., Gilmore, D., & McGaughey, M. (1996). Integrated employment: Provider prospectives and implications. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 20, 47-60.
- Kosciulek, J. F. (2005). Structural equation model of the consumer-directed theory of empowerment in a vocational rehabilitation context. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 49(1), 40-50.
- Kosciulek, J. F., & Merz, M. A. (2001). Structural analysis of the consumer-directed theory of empowerment. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 44(4), 209-216.

- Langone, J., & Gill, D. H. (1986). Developing effective vocational programs for mentally retarded persons: Cooperative planning between rehabilitation and education. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 52(2), 63-67.
- Liggett, A. M., & Hasazi, S. B. (1996). Rethinking implementation of the Least Restrictive Environment Policy of the IDEA: Educational leaders in the forefront. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 7(1), 55-76.
- Liveneh, H., & Antonak, R. F. (2005). Psychosocial adaptation to chronic illness and disability: A primer for counselors. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 83(1), 12-20.
- Mallik, K., & Sprinkle, J. (1977). System approach in vocational rehabilitation agencies with a new look. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *38*(5), 138-143.
- Marini, I., & Stebnicki, M. A. (1999). Social Security Administration's alternative provider program: What can rehabilitation administrators expect? *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 23(1), 32-41.
- Marshall, C. A., Martin, W. E., Jr., & Johnson, M. J. (1990). Issues to consider in the provision of vocational rehabilitation services to American Indians with alcohol problems. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 21(3), 45-48.
- Matkin, R. E. (1983). Educating employers to hire disabled workers. *Journal of Rehabilitation, 49*(3), 60-63.
- Misra, S. (2000). An assessment of the state-of-the-art of information systems in state rehabilitation agencies. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 24(2), 5-24.
- Mpofu, E., & Conyers, L. M. (2002). Application of tokenism theory to quality enhancement in rehabilitation services. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *33*(2), 31-38.

- Murov, H. (1986). A rehabilitation oriented social security disability system. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 52(1), 21-24.
- Nadolsky, J. M. (1985). Achieving unity in special education and rehabilitation [Editorial]. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *51*(1), 22-23.
- Noll, A. J. (1993). Reasonable accommodations, assistive technology, and vocational evaluation. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 26(1), 25-27.
- Patterson, J. B. (2000). Using the internet to facilitate the rehabilitation process. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 66(1), 4-10.
- Peterson, D. B. (2000). Clinical problem solving in micro-case management: Computerassisted information-gathering strategies in rehabilitation counseling. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 43(2), 84-96.
- Phillips, J. S., Fairfax, L. J., & Young, M. J. (1985). Diversifying independent living services: Options within vocational rehabilitation, implications for rehabilitation facilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 9(2), 66-72.
- Remer, R., Niguette, G. F., Anderson, G. L., & Terrel, J. E. (1984). A meta-system for the delivery of primary preventive interventions. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 63(1), 30-34.
- RFATP Seminar Participants (1987). Supported employment in Region VIII: Some directions. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 11(4), 140-144.
- Rice, D. B., Farley, R. C., & Parkerson, S. (1987). The future workplace: Implications for vocational evaluation. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 20(3), 95-98.
- Roessler, R. (2002). TWWIIA initiatives and work incentives: Return-to-work implications. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 68(3), 11-15.

- Roessler, R. T., Johnson, V. A., & Schriner, K. F. (1988). Enhancement of the work personality: A transition priority. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 19(1), 3-7.
- Rubin, S. E., Farley, R. C., Roessler, R. T., & Greenwood, R. (1981). The Advanced Facilitative Case Management Training Package Series. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 25(1), 49-60.
- Sampson, J. P., Jr., Kolodinsky, R. W., & Greeno, B. P. (1997). Counseling on the information highway: Future possibilities and potential problems. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 75(3), 203-212.
- Sawyer, H. W., Saxon, J. P., & Mitchell, M. E. (1984). Vocational assessment of acute care patients. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, *17*(3), 90-94.
- Schriner, K., & Shields, T. G. (1998). Long-term supports using an employee-directed approach to supported employment. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 64(2), 33-37.
- Shaw, L. R., MacGillis, P. W., & Dvorchik, K. M. (1994). Alcoholism and the Americans with Disabilities Act: Obligations and accommodations. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 38(2), 108-123.
- Shinnick, M. D. (1985). Improving the effectiveness of rehabilitation services through a common language for practitioners. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *51*(3), 33-38.
- Smart, J. F., & Smart, D. W. (1992). Curriculum changes in multicultural rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Education*, 6(2), 105-122.
- Smart, J. F., & Smart, D. W. (1993). Acculturation, biculturalism, and the rehabilitation of Mexican Americans. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 24(2), 46-51.

- Smart, J. F., & Smart, D. W. (1993). The rehabilitation of Hispanics with disabilities: Sociocultural constraints. *Rehabilitation Education*, 7(3), 167-184.
- Smart, J. F., & Smart, D. W. (1993). Vocational evaluation of Hispanics with disabilities: Issues and implications. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 26(3), 111-122.
- Smart, J. F., & Smart, D. W. (1994). Rehabilitation of Hispanics: Implications for training and educating service providers. *Rehabilitation Education*, 8(4), 360-368.
- Smart, J. F., & Smart, D. W. (2006). Models of disability: Implications for the counseling profession. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 84(1), 29-40.
- Smits, S. J., & Emener, W. G., Jr. (1980). Insufficient/ineffective counselor involvement in job placement activities: A system failure. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 4(4), 147-155.
- Syzmanski, E. M. (1988). Rehabilitation planning with social security work incentives: A sequential guide for the rehabilitation professional. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *54*(2), 28-33.
- Szuhay, J. A. (1987). One view of rehabilitation and medicine in Russia. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 53(2), 71-76.
- Szymanski, E. M., & Parker, R. M. (1989). Supported employment in rehabilitation counseling: Issues and practices. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 20(3), 65-72.
- Thomas, K. R., & Weinrach, S. G. (1998). Multiculturalism, cultural diversity, and affirmative action goals: A reconsideration. *Rehabilitation Education*, 12(1), 65-75.

- Thomas, S. W. (1972). Development and use of a statewide vocational training services chart. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, *5*(2), 21-27.
- Todd, P. (1987). Supported employment: Implications for education. *Rehabilitation Education*, 1(2/3), 155-159.
- Toriello, P. J., & Leierer, S. J. (2005). The relationship between the clinical orientation of substance abuse professionals and the clinical decisions. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 48(2), 75-88.
- Whitehead, C. W. (1987). Supported employment: Challenge and opportunity for sheltered workshops. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *53*(3), 23-28.
- Williams, D. T., Hershenson, D. B., & Fabian, E. S. (2000). Causal attributions of disabilities and the choice of rehabilitation approach. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 43(2), 106-112.
- Woest, J., Klein, M., Atkins, B. J. (1986). An overview of supported employment strategies. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *10*(4), 129-136.
- Wright, K. C., & Rule, W. (1983). Rehabilitation: In need of its own service. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 49(1), 20-23.
- Wright, M. E. (1971). Self-help groups in the rehabilitation enterprise. *Psychological Aspects of Disability, 18*, 43-45.
- Wright, T. J. (1993). African Americans and the public vocational rehabilitation system. *Journal of Vocational Rehabilitation*, *3*(1), 20-27.
- Wrzesniewski, A., & Dutton, J. E. (2001). Crafting a job: Revisioning employees as active crafters of their work. *The Academy of Management Review*, 26(2), 179-201.

Zola, I. K. (1972). The problem and prospects of mutual aid groups. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 19(4), 180-183. Administrative Theory

General Theory-Design

## **General Theory-Design**

- Alpert, D., Pulvino, C. J., & Lee, J. L. (1985). Computer applications in counseling:
  Some practical suggestions. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 63(8), 522-525.
- Arokiasamy, C., Benshoff, J. J., McLean, L. S., & Moss, G. L. (1992). Computer applications in program evaluation: Basic guidelines. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 16(1), 5-14.
- Barcus, J. M., Wehman, P., Moon, M. S., Brooke, V., Goodall, P., & Everson, J. M.
  (1988). Design and implementation of a short-term inservice training program for supported employment service providers. *Rehabilitation Education*, 2(1), 17-33.
- Baron, A., Jr. (1985). Computerized counseling: In search of a humanistic technology. Journal of Counseling and Development, 63(6), 385-386.
- Barrett, K. (1994). Networking for rehabilitation organizations: Creating and maintaining access to information access to information and resources. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 18(2), 93-104.
- Berven, N. L. (1985). Computer technology in professional education. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 29(1), 26-41.
- Boeltzig, H. (2005). Working together: The role of community-based disability organizations within the one-stop delivery system. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 29(1), 3-18.
- Bolton, B., & Cook, D. (2000). The experiential requirement in rehabilitation doctoral programs [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Education*, 14(2).
- Bowe, F., & Little, N. (1984). Computer accessibility: A study. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 45(9-10), 289-291.

- Brown, D. S., & Vargo, J. (1993). Bibliography of resources on universal design. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *59*(3), 8-11.
- Brown, S. C. (1993). Revitalizing "handicap" for disability research: Developing tools to assess progress in quality of life for persons with disabilities. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, *4*(2), 57-76.
- Brown, S., & Johnson, K. (1994). Recent federal legislation and the role of vocational rehabilitation in the transition from school to community. *Rehabilitation Education*, 8(1), 67-78.
- Bruyere, S. M., Erickson, W. A., & ValLooy, S. A. (2006). The impact of business size on employer ADA response. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 49(4), 194-206.
- Capella-McDonnall, M. E. (2006). Use of the homemaker closure with consumers who are blind or visually impaired versus consumers with other disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 30(4), 229-240.
- Carillo, R. P. (1993). Value-the new reality in medical rehabilitation [Guest editorial]. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 17(1), 5-6.
- Carter, A. G. (1977). Psychoeducational design for rehabilitation workshops. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, *10*(1), 27-39.
- Chan, F., Parker, H. J., Lam, C. S., Mecaskey, C., & Malphurs, L. (1987). Computer case management simulations: Applications in rehabilitation education. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 30(4), 210-217.
- Chubon, R. A. (1991). Defining rehabilitation from a systems perspective: Critical implications. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 23(1), 27-32.

- Coles, A. V. (1996). Reasonable accommodations in the workplace for persons with affective mood disorders: A case study. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation*, 27(4), 40-44.
- Colquhoun, R. (1998). The work repertory grid. *The Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, 4(1), 23-36.
- Denholm, D. H. (1972). The design and layout of a rehabilitation workshop. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *33*(6), 166-170.
- Ekstrom, R., & Johnson, C. (Guest Eds.). (1984). Computers in counseling and development [Special issue]. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 63(3).
- Feist-Price, S., & Ford-Harris, D. (1994). Rehabilitation counseling: Issues specific to providing services to African-American clients. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 60(4), 13-19.
- Feroz, R. F., & Katz-Garris, L. (1984). Incorporating Theory Z into rehabilitation administration. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 8(3), 84-91.
- Frank, J. J. (1999). Internet or nyet?: Some internet prospects and problems in Rehabilitation Education (Abstract). *Rehabilitation Education*, 13(2), 163-172.
- Habeck, R. V., Hunt, H. A., & Van Tol, B. (1998). Workplace fosters associated with preventing and managing work disability. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 42(2), 144-161.
- Hagesfeld, B., & Jones, R. E. (1981). The effects of organizational design on the delivery of rehabilitation services: Implications for improving administrative effectiveness. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 5(3), 95-105.
- Hale, P., Jr., & Shipp, M. (1989). Personal transportation: A challenge to the rehabilitation community. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 55(2), 8-9.

- Hanna, F. J., Talley, W. B., & Guindon, M. H. (2000). The power of perception: Toward a model of cultural oppression and liberation. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 78(4), 430-441.
- Harbach, R. L., & Markos, P. A. (1995). Shared functions approach to rehabilitation. Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling, 26(3), 3-5.
- Harley, D. A. (Ed.). (2000). Effective psychiatric rehabilitation: A collaborative challenge [Special issue]. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 31(4).
- Harley, D. A., & Tice, K. (2001). Professional border crossings: Implications of collaboration between vocational rehabilitation counselors and social workers in public schools to assist students with disabilities and families. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 3(25), 161-173.
- Holmes, G. E. (1993). The historical roots of the empowerment dilemma in vocational rehabilitation. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, *4*(1), 1-19.
- Hotz, J. C. (1984). Organization redevelopment in public rehabilitation agencies. *Journal* of *Rehabilitation Administration*, 8(2), 41-47.
- Huse, E. F. (1978). Organization development. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 56(7), 403-406.
- Ibrahim, F. A. (1985). Human rights and ethical issues in the use of advanced technology. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 64(2), 134-135.
- Jackson, D. N., & Hayes, D. H. (1993). Multicultural issues in consultation. Journal of Counseling and Development, 72(2), 144-147.
- Kossek, E. E., Colquitt, J. A., & Noe, R. A. (2001). Caregiving decision, well-being, and performance: The effects of place and provider as a function of dependent type and work-family climates. *The Academy of Management Journal, 44*(1), 29-44.

- Lubeck, R. C., & Davis, P. K. (1991). W. E. Deming's 14 points for quality: Can they be applied to rehabilitation? *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 15(4), 216-221.
- Majumder, R. K., Walls, R. T., Fullmer, S. L., & Dowler, D. L. (1994). Information flow in vocational rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *37*(4), 332-346.
- Matkin, R. E. (1984). The American Rehabilitation Association: A proposal to strengthen professional identity. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *50*(3), 32-36.
- Matrone, K. F., & Leahy, M. J. (2005). The relationship between vocational rehabilitation client outcomes and rehabilitation counselor multicultural counseling competencies. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 48(4), 233-244.
- McCarthy, H., & Gottlieb, A. (1988). Factors associated with the use of computers in vocational rehabilitation facilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 19(2), 7-10.
- McCarthy, M. M., & Sorenson, G. P. (1993). School counselors and consultants: Legal duties and liabilities. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72(2), 159-167.
- McConnell, R. L. (1984). Organization development in the public sector: A review of the Michigan Rehabilitation Services experience. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 8(1), 23-30.
- McCray, P., & Blakemore, T. F. (1985). Computer use in rehabilitation facilities. *Journal* of *Rehabilitation Administration*, 9(4), 121-128.
- Misra, S., & White, R. A. (1990). Structural and functional issues of rehabilitation programs within umbrella agencies. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 14(4), 107-110.

- Mitchell, L. K., Brodwin, M. G., & Benoit, R. B. (1990). Strengthening the Worker's Compensation system by increasing client efficacy. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 21(4), 22-26.
- Moriarty, J. B. (1991). Beyond automation: The rehabilitation office of tomorrow and the design of information-based human service organizations. *Rehabilitation Education*, 5(4), 297-305.
- Mullins, L. L., Keller, J. R., & Chaney, J. M. (1994). A system and social cognitive approach to team functioning in physical rehabilitation settings. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 39(3), 161-178.
- Nichols, B. (1981). Middle management in rehabilitation facilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 5(4), 163-168.
- O'Toole, W. T., & Wagner, W. G. (1985). Effects of microcomputer training on performance and attitudes of rehabilitation counseling students. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 28(3), 175-178.
- Parker, R. (Ed.). (1985). Implementing computer technology in the rehabilitation process [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 28(4).
- Reid, C., Chan, F., Wong, D. W., Wheaton, J., & Long, N. M. (1995). Teaching and evaluating rehabilitation case management skills through computer simulations:
  Methodological considerations. *The Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, 1, 93-105.
- Riggar, T. F., Crimando, W., Bordieri, J. E., & Phillips, J. S. (1990). Matrix management: Increasing applicability for rehabilitation administration. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 14(4), 113-118.

- Roessler, R. T. (1986). Technology utilization in rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 47(7-8), 170-173.
- Rogers, E. S., Anthony, W. A., & Danley, K. S. (1989). The impact of interagency collaboration on system and client outcomes. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 33(2), 100-109.
- Sampson, J. P., Jr. (1987). Computer-assisted or computerized: What's in a name? *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 66(3), 116-117.
- Schaller, J., Parker, R., & Garcia, S. G. (1998). Moving toward culturally competent rehabilitation counseling services: Issues and practices. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 29(2), 40-48.
- Schmitt, P., & Growick, B. (1985). Computer technology in rehabilitation counseling. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 28(4), 233-241.
- Sharf, R. S. (1985). Artificial intelligence: Implications for the future of counseling. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 64(1), 34-37.
- Smith, C. A. (1991). Searching for relational management information systems: A systematic approach. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 15(2), 170-173.
- Smits, S. J., Rossini, F. A., & Davis, L. M. (1987). Managing the present from the future: The challenge of preparing for technology in rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 11(4), 121-130.
- Stewart, J. R. (2002). Supplementing the scientific method with alternative approaches to rehabilitation research. *Rehabilitation Education*, *16*(2), 227-236.
- Thompson, V. C. (1997). Independent and interdependent views of self: Implications for culturally sensitive vocational rehabilitation services. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 63(4), 16-20.

- Upton, T. D., & Beck, R. (2002). Case management: Rehabilitation applications and administrative implications. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 26(1), 39-46.
- Walls, R. T., Dowler, D. L., Cordingly, K., Orslene, L. E., & Greer, J. D. (2001).Microenterprising and people with disabilities: Strategies for success and failure.*The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 67(2), 29-35.
- Watson, G., & Grossman, L. (1994). Pursuing a comprehensive faculty development program: Making fragmentation work. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72(5), 465-473.
- Wetzel, M. C., Patterson, J. R., McNaboe, K. A., Taylor, M. J., Wetzel, R. J., & Dobias,
  W. C. (1994). Provider network for mission centered enhancement of service
  quality. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 18(2), 111-126.
- Wilson, K. B. (2000). Predicting vocational rehabilitation acceptance based on race, education, work status, and source of support at application. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 43(2), 97-105.

Administrative Theory

General Theory-Change

## **General Theory-Change**

- Alston, R. J., & Mngadi, S. (1992). The interaction between disability status and the African American experience: Implications for rehabilitation counseling. *Journal* of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling, 23(2), 12-16.
- Alston, R. J., Wilson, K. B., & Harley, D. A. (Eds.) (2002). Race and rehabilitation services [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 45(3).
- Aplin, J. C. (1978). Structural change vs. behavioral change. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 56(7), 407-411.
- Belgrave, F. Z., & Walker, S. (1991). Predictors of employment outcome of black persons with disabilities. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 36(2), 111-119.
- Bellini, J., & Rumrill, P. (2002). Rehabilitation counseling research [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Education*, 16(2), 113-114.
- Benshoff, J. J., & O'Brien, J. K. (1994). The Americans With Disabilities Act and job placement: Accessibility issues. *Journal of Job Placement*, 10(1), 25-28.
- Berger, M. A. (1983). The preservation of counseling in an era of cutback management. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 62(3), 170-173.
- Biggs, H. C. (2000). Change as a constant in rehabilitation counseling. *The Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, 5(2), ii.
- Bitter, J. A. (Ed.). (2000). Rehabilitation leadership and online technology [Special issue]. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 24(1).
- Bowe, F. G. (1990). Into the private sector. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 1(1), 89-101.
- Clampitt, P. G., DeKoch, R. J., & Cashman, T. (2000). A strategy for communicating about uncertainty. *Academy of Management Executive*, *14*(4), 41-57.

- Coffey, D. D. (1991). About change [Editorial]. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 24(3), 83-85.
- Crimando, W., Riggar, T. F., & Bordieri, J. E. (1988). Proactive change management in rehabilitation: An idea whose time has been. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 12(1), 20-22.
- Crimando, W., Riggar, T. F., Bordieri, J., Benshoff, J. J., & Hanley-Maxwell, C. (1989).Managing change: A P. O. L. E. S. perspective. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 13(4), 143-150.
- Dalgin, R. S. (2001). Impact of Title I of the Americans with Disabilities Act on people with psychiatric disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 32(1), 45-50.
- Danek, M. M., Parker, R., & Szymanski, E. M. (1991). Disability research and policy:Forging an alliance. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 22(4), 5-10.
- Davenport, D. S., & Yurich, J. M. (1991). Multicultural gender issues. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 70(1), 64-71.
- Dodd, J. M., Nelson, J. R., Ostwald, S. W., Fischer, J., & Rose, P. M. (1991). Responses of rehabilitation counselor education programs to learning disabilities.
   *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 34(4), 368-371.
- Easterly, L., & McCallioni, P. (2007). Affirmative business: Examining the relevance of small business research. Journal of Rehabilitation, 73(1), 12-21.

Fetsch, R. J. (1990). Toward the cutting edge with strategic planning and futuring techniques. *Journal of Counseling and Development, 68*(6), 692-695.

Field, S. (1988). Society in transition. Journal of Job Placement, 4(2), 15-17.

- Flowers, C. R., Forbes, W. S., Crimando, W. & Riggar, T. F. (2005). A regional survey of rehabilitation cultural diversity within CILS: A ten-year follow-up. *Journal of Rehabilitation* 71(2), 14-21.
- Gold, M., Van Gelder, M., Schalock, R. L., & Hastings College. (1999). A behavioral approach to understanding and managing organizational change: Moving from workshop to community employment. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 22(3), 191-208.
- Granello, P. F., & Witmer, J. M (1998). Standards of care: Potential implications for the counseling professional. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, *76*(4), 371-380.
- Hagner, D. C., & Murphy, S. T. (1989). Closing the shop on sheltered work: Case studies of organizational change. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 55(3), 68-74.
- Hahn, H. (1993). The political implications of disability definitions and data. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 4(2), 41-52.
- Hall, J. P., & Parker, K. (2005). One-stop career centers and job seekers with disabilities:Insights from Kansas. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 71(4), 38-47.
- Hansen, C. E., & Parker, R. M. (1972). Change-resistance or adaptation. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *3*(3), 149-150.
- Harley, D. A. (Ed.). (2000). Cultural diversity [Special issue]. Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling, 31(1).
- Harley, D. A., & Bishop, M. (Eds.) (2002). Special issue on a 20-year anthology and retrospective (1975-1995) and implications for the future, Part I [Special issue]. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 26(1).
- Harley, D. A., Bishop, M., & Wilson, K. B. (2002). Rural rehabilitation: Old problems in a new day. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 26(1), 5-14.

- Hay, W. E., & Spoonster, J. (1977). Organizational development and the administration of change: A case study in rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 1(1), 28-36.
- Huneke, B. K., Gaiser, W. R., & Rowe, M. (1995). Union Pacific Railroad medical quality assurance process: Innovations in work injury management. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 26(4), 42-45.
- Hutchinson, E. (2006). Framework for a course entitled, "Providing Rehabilitation Services in the Private Sector". *RehabPro*, *14*(1), 31-32.
- Hutchison, J. (1973). Rehabilitation workshops: Yesterday, today, and tomorrow. *Journal* of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling, 4(3), 149-156.
- Jackson, J. L. (1995). Reengineering the rehabilitation process. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *61*(2), 8-12.
- Kortering, L. J., & Edgar, E. B. (1988). Vocational rehabilitation and special education:A need for cooperation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *31*(3), 178-184.
- Leahy, M. J., & Szymanski, E. M. (1995). Rehabilitation counseling: Evolution and current status. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 74, 163-166.
- Lewis, A. (2005). Using data to improve outcomes to rehabilitation practice. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 29(1), 43-56.
- Lowery, L. (1983). Cultural diversity in management. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 7(2), 45-51.
- Lubeck, R. C., & Davis, P. K. (1991). W. E. Deming's 14 points for quality: Can they be applied to rehabilitation? *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 15(4), 216-221.

- Marrone, J., Hoff, D., & Gold, M. (1999). Organizational change for community employment. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 65(2), 10-19.
- Marshall, C. A., Johnson, S. R., & Lonetree, G. L. (1993). Acknowledging our diversity: Vocational rehabilitation and American Indians. *Journal of Vocational Rehabilitation*, 3(1), 12-20.
- McKinley, C., & Reeves, R. K. (1997). SCAN: A survival tool for information overload. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 21(1), 45-60.
- McKinley, W., & Scherer, A. G. (2001). Some unanticipated consequences of organizational restructuring. *The Academy of Management Review*, 25(4), 735-752.
- Moore, S. F., Degiorgio, L., Kampfe, C. M., Porter, D. F., Sax, C., McAllan, L., Sales, A.P., & Smith, M. (2006). Rehabilitation student perceptions of web-based learning. *Rehabilitation Education*, 20(1), 31-42.
- Morrison, E. W., & Milliken, F. J. (2000). Organizational silence: A barrier to change and pluralism. *The Academy of Management Review*, *25*(4), 706-725.
- Murphy, S. (1992). Closing the sheltered workshop: A case study of agency change. *Inclusion*, 4(4), 29-33.
- Nadolsky, J. M. (1983). Improving rehabilitation literacy [Editorial]. *Journal of Rehabilitation, 49*(4), 6-7.
- Nadolsky, J. M. (1985). The evolution of rehabilitation in a service society. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *51*(3), 7-12.
- Ochs, L. A., & Roessler, R. T. (2001). Students with disabilities: How ready are they for the 21<sup>st</sup> century? *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 44(3), 170-176.

- Paul, M. F. (1982). Power, leadership, and trust: Implications for counselors in terms of organizational change. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 60(9), 538-541.
- Phillips, L. J., & Stuifbergen, A. K. (2006). Predicting continued employment in persons with multiple sclerosis. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 72(1), 35-43.
- Piderit, S. K. (2000). Rethinking resistance and recognizing ambivalence: A multidimensional view of attitudes toward an organizational change. *The Academy of Management Review*, 25(4), 783-794.
- Potts, B. (2005). Disability and employment: Considering the importance of social capital. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 71(3), 20-25.
- Richard, O. C. (2000). Racial diversity, business strategy, and firm performance: A resource-based view. *The Academy of Management Journal*, *43*(2), 164-177.
- Riggar, T. F., Crimando, W., Bordieri, J., Hanley-Maxwell, C., Benshoff, J. J., & Calzaretta, W. A. (1989). Managing organizational change: A review of the literature. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *13*(4), 134-140.
- Robinson, T. L. (1997). Insurmountable opportunities. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 76(1), 6-7.
- Romano, G. (1992). Power and pain of professionalization. *American Counselor*, *1*(1), 16-23.
- Ryan, C. P. (1995). Work isn't what it used to be: Implications, recommendations, and strategies for vocational rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *61*(4), 8-15.
- Saleh, M. A. (1991). Changes and challenges: The quest for leadership in rehabilitation for the 21st century. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 15(4), 211-213.
- Shaw, A. R., Kling, N. D., & Bitter, J. (1999). The use of technology based groups for idea generation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 23(1), 5-18.

- Skapow, J. C., Pruitt, S. D., & Epping-Jordan, J. E. (1997). Rehabilitation psychology in primary care: Preparing for a changing health care environment. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 42(4), 325-336.
- Smart, J. F., Smart, D. W., & Eldredge, G. (1992). Review of the literature of Mexican Americans in public vocational rehabilitation programs. *Rehabilitation Education*, 6, 21-32.
- Sodowsky, G. R., & Plake, B. S. (1992). A study of acculturation differences among international people and suggestions for sensitivity to within-group differences. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 71(1), 53-59.
- Solomon, J. R. (1984). The application of Japanese management strategies to rehabilitation administration. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 8(1), 4-11.
- Taylor, D., Riggar, T. F., Moore, C. L., & Turner, T. N. (1999). Long distance education/interactive television: Practical challenges. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 22(3), 165-178.
- Tomko, M. A. (1972). Coming changes in vocational evaluation. *Vocational Evaluation* and Work Adjustment Bulletin, 5(3), 9-11.
- Ward, M. J., & Halloran, W. D. (1993). Transition issues for the 1990's. OSERS News in Print, 6(1), 4-5.
- Weaver, C. (1994). Privatizing vocational rehabilitation: Options for increasing individual choice and enhancing competition. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 5(1), 53-76.
- Whitehead, C. W. (1990). Integrated employment and rehabilitation facilities:Responding to change. *Journal of Job Placement*, 6(1), 16-20.

- Whitehead, C., Davis, P. K., & Fisher, M. (1989). The current and future role of rehabilitation facilities in external employment. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 20(3), 58-64.
- Whiteley, J. M. (1984). The social ecology of peace: Implications for the helping professions and education. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, *63*(2), 77-85.
- Whitney-Thomas, J., Timmons, J. C., & Gilmore, D. S. (1999). Expending access:Changes in vocational rehabilitation practice since the 1992 Rehabilitation ActAmendments. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 43(1), 30-40.
- Yang, H., Leung, P., Wang, J., & Shim, N. (1996). Asian Pacific Americans: The need for ethnicity-specific disability and rehabilitation data. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 7(1), 33-54.
- Young, W. G. (1975). Effecting human change: Considerations and methods. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 8(1), 36-41.

## **Professional Management**

- Brubaker, D. R. (1981). Identity and organizational problems in professional rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 47(1), 54-58.
- Carter, A. G. (1977). Psychoeducational design for rehabilitation workshops. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin, 10*(1), 27-39.

Denholm, D. H., & Fellow, P. E. (1972). The design and layout of a rehabilitation workshop. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *33*(6), 166-170.

- Elliot, T. R., Byrd, E. K., & Byrd, P. D. (1983). An examination of disability as depicted on prime-time television programming. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *49*(3), 39-42.
- Giblin, E. J., & Ornati, O. A. (1977). Optimizing the utilization of human resources. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 1(2), 4-14.
- Greenwood, R., Marr, J. N., Roessler, R. T., & Rowland, P. S. (1980). The social climate of a rehabilitation center: Implications for organizational development. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 4(1), 20-24.
- Hagesfeld, B., & Jones, R. E. (1981). The effects of organizational design on the delivery of rehabilitation services: Implications for improving administrative effectiveness. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 5(3), 95-106.
- Heinlen, K. T., Welfel, E. R., Richmond, E. N., & Rak, C. F. (2003). The scope of webcounseling: A survey of services and compliance with NBCC standards for the ethical practice of webcounseling. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 81(1), 61-69.
- Huse, E. F. (1978). Organizational development. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 56(7), 403-406.

- Latta, J. A. (1987). Excellence in rehabilitation: The leadership connection. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 11(2), 53-59.
- Mann, L., Beswick, G., Allouache, P., & Ivey, M. (1989). Decision workshops for the improvement of decision-making skills and confidence. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 67(8), 478-481.
- Nichols, B. (1981). Middle management in rehabilitation facilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 5(4), 163-168.
- O'Connor, S. (1988). Management of individuals with disabilities in the workplace. Journal of Job Placement, 4(2), 18-21.
- Rideout, C. A., & Richardson, S. A. (1989). A team building model: Appreciating differences using the Myers-Briggs Type Indicator with developmental theory. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 67(9), 529-533.
- Smith, J. W., Cuvo, A. J., & Phillips., J. S. (1983. Increasing referrals to a rehabilitation facility: The effects of personal and non-personal information contacts. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 7(3), 95-101.
- Wadsworth, J., Upton, T. D., & Michaelson, S. (2005). Enhancing the objectivity and the accuracy of reports: A process approach. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 28(2), 75-84.

**Ethics** 

## Ethics

- Allen, V. B., Sampson, J. P., Jr., & Herlihy, B. (1988). Details of the 1988 AACD ethical standards. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 67(3), 157-158.
- Banja, J. D. (1994). Deception in advertising and marketing: Ethical application in rehabilitation. Archives of physical medicine and rehabilitation,75(9), 1015-1018.
- Blackwell, T. L., Autry, T. L., & Guglielmo, D. E. (2001). Ethical issues in disclosure of test data. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 44(3), 161-169.
- Blackwell, T. L., & Guglielmo, D. E. (2001). Ethics and assessment. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 32(1), 10-14.
- Blackwell, T. L., & Patterson, J. B. (2003). Ethical and legal implications of informed consent in rehabilitation counseling. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 34(), 3-9.
- Braun, S. A., & Cox, J. A. (2005). Managed mental health care: Intentional misdiagnosis of mental disorders. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 83(4), 425-433.
- Burn, D. (1992). Ethical implications in cross-cultural counseling and training. Journal of Counseling and Development, 70(5), 578-583.
- Chauvin, J. C., & Remley, T. P., Jr. (1996). Responding to allegations of unethical conduct. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 74(6), 563-568.
- Cobia, D. C., & Boes, S. R. (2000). Professional disclosure statements and formal plans for supervision: Two strategies for minimizing the risk of ethical conflicts in postmaster's supervision. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 78(3), 293-296.
- Code of professional ethics for rehabilitation counselors. (1988). *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 31(3), 255-268.

- Code of professional ethics for rehabilitation counselors. (1988). *Rehabilitation Education*, 2, 65-74.
- Commission on Rehabilitation Counselor Certification. (2001). Code of professional ethics for rehabilitation counselors [Special issue]. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 4(32), 38-61.
- Cormier, L. S., & Bernard, J. M. (1982). Ethical and legal responsibilities of clinical supervisors. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 60(8), 486-490.
- Cottone, R. R. (1981). Ethical issues related to use of paradoxical techniques in work adjustment. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment*, *14*(4), 167-170.
- Cottone, R. R. (2001). A social constructivism model of ethical decision making in counseling. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 79(1), 39-45.
- Cottone, R. R., & Claus, R. E. (2000). Ethical decision-making models: A review of the literature. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 78(3), 275-283.
- Cottone, R. R., Simmons, B., & Wilfley, D. (1983). Ethical issues in vocational rehabilitation: A review of the literature from 1970 to 1981. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 49(2), 19-24.
- Daniels, J. A. (2001). Managed care, ethics, and counseling. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 79(1), 119-122.
- Davis, A., & Yazak, D. (1996). Supporting a colleague in ethical conflict: Resolving problems of common sense. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 27(3), 11-16.
- Dickey, K. D., Houseley, W. F., & Guest, C., Jr. (1993). Ethics in supervision of rehabilitation counselor trainees: A survey. *Rehabilitation Education*, 7(3), 195-201.

- Dolan, J. (1982). Ethics and politics of program evaluation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 6(2), 49-53.
- Doyle, K. (1997). Substance abuse counselors in recovery: Implications for the ethical issue of dual relationships. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 75(6), 428-432.
- Driscoll, J. M. (1992). Keeping covenants and confidence sacred: One point of view. Journal of Counseling and Development, 70, 704-708.
- Early, J. K. (1987). The need to define ethical behavior in vocational evaluation and work adjustment. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, *24*(4), 149-153.
- Early, J. K. (1990). Ethics in business administration: A foundation for rehabilitation administration. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 14(1), 5-8.
- Emener, W. G., Wright, T. J., Klein, L. F., Lavender, L. A., & Smith, D. W. (1986).
  Rules of ethical conduct and rehabilitation counseling: Results of a national survey. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *18*(3), 3-15.
- Estrada-Hernandez, N., Smiling, Q. R., & Felder, D. (2006). Ethical consideration for rehabilitation administrators and counselors working as consultants. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 30(4), 217-228.
- Ethics and publication [Editorial]. (1996). *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *39*(3), 162-164.
- Falvo, D. R., & Parker, R. M. (2001). Ethics in rehabilitation education and research. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 43(4), 197-202.
- Feist, S. M. (1991). Ethical and legal rights of persons with AIDS: Confidentiality issues. *Rehabilitation Education*, 5(3), 225-231.

- Fischer, J. M., & Chambers, E. (2003). Multicultural counseling ethics and assessment competencies: Directions for counselor education programs. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 34(2), 17-21.
- Flowers, C. R. (1994). Legal and ethical issues related to continued employment opportunities for individuals with AIDS. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 18(3), 187-195.
- Frankel, A. (1970). Uses and abuses of status in teacher-student relationships. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin, 14*(2), 95-102.
- Garcia, G. G., Cartwright, B., Winston, S. M., & Borzuchowska, B. (2003). A transcultural integrative model for ethical decision making in counseling. *Journal* of Counseling & Development, 81(3), 268-277.
- Garcia, J. G., Winston, S. M., Borzuchowsaka, B., & McGuire-Kuletz, M. (2004).Evaluating the integrative model of ethical decision-making. *Rehabilitation Education*, 18(3), 147-164.
- Gatens-Robinson, E., & Tarvydas, V. (1992). Ethics of care, women's perspectives and the status of the mainstream rehabilitation ethical analysis. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 23(4), 26-33.
- Geist, G. O., Curin, S., Prestridge, R., & Schelb, G. (1973). Ethics and the counseloragency relationships. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *17*(1), 15-21.
- Gibson, W. T., & Pope, K. S. (1993). The ethics of counseling: A national survey of certified counselors. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 71(3), 330-336.
- Glover-Graf, N., & Janikowski, T. P. (2003). Rehabilitation counseling student disclosure of disability and use of educational accommodations. *Rehabilitation Education*, 17(4), 224.236.

- Gross, D. R., & Robinson, S. E. (1985). Ethics: The neglect issue in consultation. *Journal* of Counseling and Development, 64(1), 38-41.
- Hammond, L. C., & Gantt, L. (1998). Using art in counseling: Ethical considerations. Journal of Counseling & Development, 76(3), 271-276.
- Harding, A. K., Gray, L. A., & Neal, M. (1993). Confidentiality limits with clients who have HIV: A review of ethical and legal guidelines and professional policies. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 71(3), 297-305.
- Harley, D. A., Feist-Price, S., & Alston, R. J. (1996). Cultural diversity and ethics:
  Expanding the definition to be inclusive. *Rehabilitation Education*, 10(2-3), 201-210.
- Herlihy, B., & Remley, T. P. (1995). Unified ethical standards: A challenge for professionalism. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 74, 130-133.
- Herlihy, B., & Sheeley, V. L. (1987). Privileged communication in selected helping professions: A comparison among statutes. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 65(9), 479-483.
- Hermann, M. A., & Herlihy, B. R. (2006). Legal and ethical implications of refusing to counsel homosexual clients. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 84(4), 414-418.
- Hillerbrand, E., & Stone, G. L. (1986). Ethics and clients: A challenging mixture for counselors. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 64(7), 419-420.
- Hinkeldey, N. S., & Spokane, A. R. (1985). Effects of pressure and legal guideline clarity on counselor decision making in legal and ethical conflict situations. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 64(4), 240-245.

- Houser, R., & Lash, M. (1996). Implications of research from the human genome project for rehabilitation counselors. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 27(2), 3-7.
- Howie, J., Gatens-Robinson, E., & Rubin, S. E. (1992). Applying ethical principles in rehabilitation counseling. *Rehabilitation Education*, 6, 41-55.
- Jensen, M. A., & Peterson, T. L. (1992). Ethical dilemmas and ethics preparation of addiction counselors. *Rehabilitation Education*, 6(2), 139-150.
- Kaiser, J. M., & Brown, J. (1988). Ethical dilemmas in private rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 54(4), 27-30.
- Kimmerling, G. F. (1992). Faculty-student relationships: Where to draw the line. *American Counselor*, *1*(4), 5, 38-39.
- Kinnier, R. T. (1995). A reconceptualization of values clarification: Values conflict resolution. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 74(1), 18-24.
- Kocet, M. M. (2006). Ethical challenges in a complex world: Highlights of the 2005 ACA Code of Ethics. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 84(2), 228-234.
- Kontosh, L. G. (2000). Ethical rehabilitation counseling in a managed-care environment. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 66(2), 9-13.
- Kosciulek, J. F. (2004). Theory of informed consumer choice in vocational rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Education*, 18(1), 3-11.
- Langford, C. A. (1994). Ethical problems in structuring student training groups: Issues for rehabilitation counselor educators. *Rehabilitation Education*, 8(4), 332-347.
- Lawrence, G., & Kurpius, S. E. R. (2000). Legal and ethical issues involved when counseling minors in nonschool settings. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 78(2), 130-136.

- Lee, S. S., & Rosen, E. A. (1984). Employee counseling services: Ethical dilemmas. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 62(5), 276-280.
- Lichtenberg, J. W. (1985). Welcome to New York Dr. Fox [Point of view]. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 63(5), 315-316.
- Lucignano, G., & Lee, S. (1991). Ethical issues involved in the role of psychologists in medical settings. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *57*(2), 55-57.
- Lynch, D. C. (1994). Ethical evaluation of research content. *Rehabilitation Education*, 8(3), 275-282.
- MacDonald-Wilson, K. L. (2005). Managing disclosure of psychiatric disabilities to employers. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *36*(4), 11-21.
- Magee, H. (1999). Ethical issues in vocational expert witness testimony. *The Rehabilitation Professional*, 7(4), 29-32.
- Malaski, C., & Tarvydas, V. M. (2002). Teaching ethics and the ethics of teaching:Challenger for rehabilitation counselor educators. *Rehabilitation Education*, *16*(1), 1-15.
- Marshall, C. A., Leung, P., Johnson, S. R., & Busby, H. (2003). Ethical practice and cultural factors in rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Education*, 17(1), 55-65.
- Matkin, R. E. (1980). Legal and ethical issues in vocational assessment. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, *13*(2), 57-61.
- Matkin, R. E. (1980). Supervisory responsibilities relating to legal and ethical issues in rehabilitation settings. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *4*(4), 133-144.
- Matkin, R. E. (1983). Legal and ethical challenges in the private rehabilitation sector. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *44*(7-8), 206-209, 256.

- McCarthy, H. (1986). Corporate social responsibility and services to people with disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *10*(2), 60-67.
- McGinn, F., Flowers, C. R., & Rubin, S. E. (1994). In quest of an explicit multicultural emphasis in ethical standards for rehabilitation counselors. *Rehabilitation Education*, 7(4), 261-268.
- McQuade, L. J., & Murray, G. C. (2001). Guide to the revised CRCC code of ethics for the rehabilitation counselor [Special issue]. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 4(32), 33-37.
- Murphy, S. T., & Ursprung, A. (1983). The politics of vocational evaluation: A qualitative study. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *44*(1-2), 2-12.
- Nadolsky, J. M. (1986). Ethical issues in the transition from public to private rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *52*(1), 6-9.
- National Rehabilitation Administration Association. (1988). Code of ethics. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72(2), 128-156.
- NRCA Ethics Sub-committee. (1972-1973). Ethical standards for rehabilitation counselors. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *3*(4), 218-228.
- Obermann, C. E. (1972-1973). A code of ethics for rehabilitation counselors. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *3*(4), 213-217.
- Pape, D. A., & Klein, M. A. (1986). Ethical issues in rehabilitation counseling: A survey of rehabilitation practitioners. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 17(4), 8-13.
- Pate, R. H., Jr. (1992). Student suicide: Are you liable? American Counselor, 1(3), 14-19.
- Patterson, C. H. (1971). Are ethics different in different settings? *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *50*(4), 254-259.

- Patterson, J. B. (1988). Ethics education: A literature review. *Rehabilitation Education*, 2(2), 121-128.
- Patterson, J. B. (1989). Ethics and rehabilitation supervision. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 55(4), 44-49.
- Patterson, J. B. (1989). Ethics training in rehabilitation counseling programs: A national survey. *Rehabilitation Education*, *3*(3), 155-161.
- Patterson, J. B. (2000). Ethics and rehabilitation counseling Introduction to the special issues [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 43(4), 186-187.
- Patterson, J. B., Buckley, J., & Smull, M. (1989). Ethics in supported employment. Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling, 20(3), 12-20.
- Patterson, J. B., & Curl, R. M. (1990). Ethics education in supported employment preparation. *Rehabilitation Education*, 4, 247-259.
- Patterson, J. B., & Groble, M. B. (2003). Ethical issues associated with computer and internet-based services. *Rehabilitation Education*, 17(2), 101-110.
- Patterson, J. B., Patric, A., & Parker, R. M. (2000). Choice: Ethical and legal rehabilitation challenges. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 43(4), 203-208.
- Patterson, J. B., & Settles, R. (1992). Ethics education of certified rehabilitation counselors. *Rehabilitation Education*, 6, 1-9.
- Pederson, P. B. (1997). The cultural context of the American Counseling Association code of ethics. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, *76*(1), 23-28.
- Peterson, D. B. & Threats, T. M. (2005). Ethical and clinical implication of the international classification of functioning, disability, and health (ICF) in rehabilitation education. *Rehabilitation Education*, 19(2&3), 129-138.

- Phelps, R. E., Taylor, J. D., & Gerard, P. A. (2001). Cultural mistrust, ethnic identity, racial identity, and self-esteem among ethnically diverse black university students. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 79(2), 209-216.
- Pollard, R. Q. (1992). Cross-cultural ethics in the conduct of deafness research. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *37*(2), 87-101.
- Ponzo, Z. (1985). The counselor and physical attractiveness. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 63(8), 482-485.
- Remley, T. P., Jr. (1992). What should I do about an ethical complaint? *American Counselor, 1*(4), 33,35.
- Rubin, S. E., & Millard, R. P. (1991). Ethical principles and American public policy on disability. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 57(1), 13-16.
- Rubin, S. E., Millard, R. P., Wilson, C. A., & Wong, H. D. (1991). An introduction to the ethical case management practices training program. *Rehabilitation Education*, 5, 113-120.
- Salo, M., Forester-Miller, F., & Hamilton, W. M. (1996). Report of the ACA ethics committee: 1995-1996 *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 75(2), 174-176.
- Schwiebert, V. L., Myers, J. E., & Dice, C. (2000). Ethical guidelines for counselors working with older adults. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 78(2), 123-129.
- Scofield, M. E., & Scofield, B. J. (1978). Ethical concerns in clinical practice supervision. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 9(2), 27-29.
- Scott, C. G. (2000). Ethical issues in addictions counseling. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 43(4), 209-214.

- Shaw, H. E., & Shaw, S. F. (2006). Critical ethical issues on online counseling: Assessing current practices with an ethical intent checklist. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 84(1), 41-53.
- Smart, J. F., & Smart, D. W. (1997). Culturally sensitive informed choice in rehabilitation counseling. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 28(2), 32-37.
- Stadler, H. (1986). Professional ethics [Special issue]. Journal of Counseling and Development, 64(5).
- Stebnicki, M. (1994). Ethical dilemmas in adult guardianship and substitute decisionmaking: Consideration for rehabilitation professionals. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 60(2), 23-27.
- Stebnicki, M. A. (1997). A conceptual framework for utilizing a functional assessment approach for determining mental capacity: A new look at informed consent in rehabilitation. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, *63*(4), 32-37.
- Tarvydas, V. (1994). Ethical orientations of masters rehabilitation counseling students. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *37*(3), 202-214.
- Tarvydas, V. M., (2003). The ethical imperative for culturally competent practice. *Rehabilitation Education*, 17(2), 117-123.
- Tarvydas, V. M., & Cottone, R. R. (1991). Ethical responses to legislative, organizational, and economic dynamics: A four level model of ethical practice. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 22(4), 11-18.
- Tarvydas, V. M. & Cottone, R. R. (2000). The code of ethics for professional rehabilitation counselors: What we have and what we need. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 43(4), 188-196.

- Tarvydas, V. M., Leahy, M. J., Saunders, J. L., Chan, F., Thielsen, V. A., & Murray, G.
  (2001). Beliefs about the ethics of practice among crcs: A national survey. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 32(2), 9-18.
- Thoreson, R. W., Shaughnessy, P., & Frazier, P. A. (1995). Sexual contact during and after professional relationships: Practices and attitudes of female counselors. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 74(1), 84-89.
- Vacc, N. A., Juhnke, G. A., & Nilsen, K. A. (2001). Community mental health service providers' codes of ethics and standards for educational and psychological testing. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 79(2), 217-224.
- Vasquez, M. J. T., & Kitchener, K. S. (Eds.). (1988). Ethics in counseling: Sexual intimacy between counselor and client [Special feature]. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 67(4).
- Vaughn, B. T., Taylor, D. W., & Wright, W. R. (1998). Ethical dilemmas encountered by private sector rehabilitation practitioners. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 64(4), 47-52.
- Ware, M. L. (1971). The law and counselor ethics. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *50*(4), 305-310.
- Weed, R. O. (2000). Ethical issues in expert opinions and testimony. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin, 43*(4), 215-218.
- Wilcoxon, S. A. (1987). Ethical standards: A study of application and utility. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 65(9), 510-511.
- Wilson, C. A., Rubin, S. E., & Millard, R. P. (1991). Preparing rehabilitation counselors to deal with ethical dilemmas. *Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, 22(1), 30-33.
- Wong, H. D., & Millard, R. P. (1992). Ethical dilemmas encountered by independent living service providers. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 58(4), 10-15.

Wong, H. D., Rubin, S. E., & Millard, R. P. (1991). Ethical dilemmas encountered by rehabilitation counselors. *Rehabilitation Education*, *5*(1), 19-27.

Careers/Career Development

## **Careers/Career Development**

- Akridge, R. L. (1985). Rehabilitation, career development and self-awareness. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 51(2), 24-30.
- Atkinson, D. E. (1999). Rehabilitation leadership competencies for the next millennium. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 22(4), 293-296.

Barrett, K., Flowers, C., Crimando, W., Riggar, T. F., & Bailey, T. (1997). Training never ends: Human resource development of rehabilitation administrators. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 21(1), 3-18.

- Blimline, C. A., Thorn, M., Wilson, J. C., & Wilcox, J. (1983). Counseling in a government agency: Interventions for employees and supervisors. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 61(9), 570-574.
- Bonett, R. M. (1994). Marital status and sex: Impact on career self-efficacy. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 73(2), 187-190.
- Brown, D. (1990). Facing the future: Readying rehabilitation for the year 2000. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *56*(2), 17-20.
- Burkhalter, B. (Guest Ed.). (2001). Succession planning in rehabilitation [Special issue]. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 25(2).
- Casto, C., Caldwell, C., & Salazar, C. F. (2005). Creating mentoring relationships between female faculty and students in counselor education: Guidelines for potential mentees and mentors. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 83(3), 331-336.
- Chadbourne, J. W., Rosenberg, J. H., & Mahoney, J. T. (1982). Defining decision making patterns: A tool for career-life planning. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 61(1), 51-53.

- Champin, M. H., & Leahy, M. J. (1999). Factors contributing to rehabilitation counselor success in the private sector in Michigan. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 30(3), 19-28.
- Chan, F., & Parker, H. J. (1986). Occupational aspirations of undergraduate rehabilitation students. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *17*(1), 47-48.
- Chaplin, M. H. (2006). The pursuit of promotion and tenure. *Rehabilitation Education*, 20(1), 21-30.
- Clawson, J. G., & Haskins, M. E. (2000). Beating the career blues. *The Academy of Management*, 14(3), 91-102.
- Coffey, D. (1989). Lifelong learning in professional growth and development. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 22(3), 87.
- Conoley, J. C., & Bonner, M. (1991). The effects of counselor fee and title on perceptions of counselor behavior. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, *69*(4), 356-358.
- Conyne, R. K., & Cochran, D. J. (1973). Academia and career development: Toward integration. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 52(4), 217-222.
- Cook, D., Bolton, B., Bellini, J., & Neath, J. (1997). A statewide investigation of the rehabilitation counselor generalist hypothesis. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 40(3), 192-201.
- Crimando, W., Fisher, M., & Janikowski, T. P. (1989). Job market in rehabilitation academia: Projections of size and character. *Rehabilitation Education*, *3*(1), 1-9.
- Crimando, W., Flowers, C. R., & Riggar, T. F. (2005). Postgraduate rehabilitation counselor training: Rehabilitation administration. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 29(2), 97-106.

- Decker, R. S., & Stanojevich, B. (1978). A national survey of the employment of placement specialists by general and blind rehabilitation agencies. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 9(2), 41-45.
- Degeneffe, C., & Bishop, M. (2004). Navigating the process of seeking and attaining a first position in rehabilitation counseling academia: Strategies for success. *Rehabilitation Education*, 18(1), 33-40.
- Desmond, R. E. (1985). Careers in employee assistance programs. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *16*(2), 26-30.
- Dew, D. W., & Peterson, S. (2002). Survey of master's level rehabilitation counselor programs: Relationships to public vocational rehabilitation recruitment and retention of state vocational rehabilitation counselors. *Rehabilitation Education*, 16(1), 61-66.
- Dixon, C. G., Emener, W. G., Kelley, S., & Wright, T. J. (1999). Rehabilitation counselor education students' career goal aspirations and development: A partial replication study. *Rehabilitation Education*, 13(2), 143-152.
- Dorn, F. J. (1986). Career development in business and industry. *Journal of Counseling* and Development, 64(10), 653-654.
- Dorn, F. J. (1992). Occupational wellness: The integration of career identity and personal identity. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, *71*(2), 176-178.
- Edwards, L. A. (1981). Who's in the driver's seat for your career? *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *12*(3), 164-169.
- Ellien, V. J., Menz, F. E., & Coffey, D. D. (1979). Toward professional identity: The adjustment specialist. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 12(3), 16-23.

- Emener, W. G. (1992). Consumerism in rehabilitation education and the empowerment of students' personal and professional development. *Rehabilitation Education*, 6(3), 265-273.
- Emener, W. G., Evans, T. D., Lowe, R. E., & Richard, M. A. (2001). Graduate certificate programs: An excellent complement to rehabilitation counselor education programs in the new millennium. *Rehabilitation Education*, 15(3), 243-254.
- Emener, W. G., Mars, M. G., & Schmidt, J. F. (1984). Client feedback in rehabilitation counselor evaluation: A field-based professional development application.
   *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 15(1), 33-39.
- Emener, W. G., Tannenbaum, S. L., & Cady, B. A. (1990). Rehabilitation counselor education students' career goal aspirations and development: An empirical investigation. *Rehabilitation Education*, 4, 121-137.
- Feist-Price, S., & Harley, D. A. (1996). Career counseling and development strategies for African Americans with disabilities, *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 27(2), 23-29.
- Flowers, C. R., & Crimando, W. (2005). Perceived academic preparation, stressors, and coping strategies among rehabilitation educators. *Rehabilitation Education*, 18(4), 223-233.
- Forrest, D. V. (1983). Employee assistance programs in the 1980s: Expanding career options for counselors. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 62(2), 105-107.
- Freeman, J. B. (1979). Rehabilitation counselor and supervisor perceptions of counselor training needs and continuing education. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 10(3), 154-157.

- Fuqua, D. R., & Hartman, B. W. (1983). Differential diagnosis and treatment of career indecision. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 62(1), 27-29.
- Garske, G. G., & Turpin, J. O. (1992). Minimum training and experience qualifications for entry level rehabilitation counselors: A national survey. *Rehabilitation Education*, 6(4), 341-354.
- Gelwick, B. P. (1974). Training faculty to do career advising. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 53(3), 214-217.
- Gerstein, L. H., & Bayer, G. A. (1988). Employee assistance programs: A systematic investigation of their use. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 66(6), 294-297.
- Glover-Graf, N. M., & Janikowski, T. P. (2001). Career selection and use of accommodations by students with disabilities in rehabilitation education programs. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 44(4), 222-228.
- Goldman, L. (1973). Career information for ourselves. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 52(3), 139.
- Goodwin, L. R. (1988). The rehabilitation counselor education job search: A practical guide for the applicant. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *19*(1), 37-42.
- Griffith, A. R. (1980). A survey of career development in corporations. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 58(8), 537-543.
- Hamachek, D. E. (1985). The self's development and ego growth: Conceptual analysis and implications for counselors. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 64(2), 136-142.

- Hansen, C. E. (1971). The rehabilitation counselor training and employment. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *37*(3), 39-42.
- Haring-Hidore, M. (1987). Mentoring as a career enhancement strategy for women. Journal of Counseling and Development, 66(3), 147-148.
- Harley, D. A. (2001). Utilizing portfolios for rehabilitation personnel: A professional development strategy. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 3(25), 151-159.
- Harley, D. A. (2002). Portfolio development for rehabilitation education doctoral students: A tool for professional advancement in academia. *Rehabilitation Education*, 16(1), 15-26.
- Harley, D. A. (2004). Planned happenstance in developing and managing career development for rehabilitation personnel. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 28(1), 23-34.
- Harley, D. A., Jolivette, L., Collins, B., & Schuster, J. W. (2004). Professional portfolio development for rehabilitation counselors and human service providers: A tool for professional development and leadership. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 35(2), 3-8.
- Hastings, M. A. (1984). Employee assistance programs: A place for rehabilitation counselors? *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 15(4), 29-30, 56.
- Havranek, J. E. (1999). Opportunities for private sector rehabilitation services in transition from school to work. *The Rehabilitation Professional*, 7(4), 34-36.
- Hill, N. R., Leinbaugh, T., Bradley, C., & Hazler, R. (2005). Female counselor educators: Encouraging and discouraging factors in academia. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 83(3), 374-380.

Jackson, J. L. (1980). The emerging role of the administrative technician in the rehabilitation process. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *41*(11-12), 284-288.

- James, S. H., & Greenwalt, B. C. (2001). Documenting success and achievement: Presentation and working portfolios for counselors. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 79(2), 161-165.
- Janes, M. E., & Emener, W. G. (1986). Rehabilitation counselor education graduates' perceptions of their employment and career satisfaction. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 29(3), 182-189.
- Jaques, M. E., Kauppi, D. W., & Schoen, S. (1974). Program profile: A follow-up study of rehabilitation counseling graduates from 1957 to 1971. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 17(4), 223-231.
- Kaplan, S. P. (1986). Rehabilitation counseling in medical settings: Career opportunities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 17(2), 45-46.
- Kelley, S. D. M., Dixon, C. G., Emener, W. G., & Wright, T. J. (1999). Evaluation of career outcomes following graduate education in rehabilitation counseling: A 25 year retrospective study. *Rehabilitation Education*, 13(3), 249-260.
- Koch, L. C., Hennessey, M., Niese, N., Tabor, T., & Petro, C. (2004). Preparing for a career in rehabilitation counseling: The perspectives of employed rehabilitation counselors. *Rehabilitation Education*, 18(2), 93-106.
- Koch, L., Schultz, D., & Cusick, J. (1998). Teaching tips encouraging rehabilitation counseling students to develop a portfolio as a career development tool.
   *Rehabilitation Education*, 12(3), 261-267.

- Koch, L. C., & Telzrow, C. F. (2002). Mentoring new faculty in rehabilitation counselor education programs: Challenges, strategies, and innovative models. *Rehabilitation Education*, 16(1), 49-60.
- Kottler, J. A. (1993). When clients don't get better: Facing failure as a counselor. *American Counselor*, 2(4), 14-19.
- Krupp, J. A. (1992). Over 40? Here's to excitement, growth, and learning. American Counselor, 1(4), 28-32.
- Kunce, J. T., Thoreson, R. W., & Parker, R. M. (1975). Rehabilitation counselor education trainee selection factors and subsequent occupational outcomes. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 18(3), 176-181.
- Leahy, M. J. (2002). Professionalism in rehabilitation counseling: A retrospective review. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 26(2), 99-110.
- Lenertz, R. (2000). Human resources: A career alternative for rehabilitation counselors. *The Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, 5(2), 106-114.
- Leung, P. (1990). Position openings in rehabilitation psychology: A ten-year survey. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *35*(3), 157-160.
- Leung, S. A., Ivey, D., & Suzuki, L. (1994). Factors affecting the career aspirations of Asian Americans. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72(4), 404-410.
- Levinson, H., & Wofford, J. C. (2000). Approaching retirement as the flexibility phase. Academy of Management, 14(2), 84-95.
- Luzzo, D. A., & McWhirter, E. H. (2001). Sex and ethnic differences in the perception of educational and career-related barriers and levels of coping efficacy. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 79(1), 61-67.

- Matkin, R. E., & Humbert, C. V. (1987). Interorganizational communication issues for effective service delivery and professional growth among rehabilitation counselors. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 18(2), 48-52.
- McAuliffe, G. (1993). Career as an imaginative quest. *American Counselor*, 2(1), 13-16, 36.
- McCarthy, T. P., Pelletier, J. R., & Accordino, M. P. (2006). Psychiatric rehabilitation education in a rehabilitation counseling graduate program: Training effect on vocational rehabilitation counselor knowledge and skills. *Rehabilitation Education*, 19(4), 215-224.
- McMahon, B. T. (1988). Curriculum development and career opportunities in head injury rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Education*, 2(3,4), 247.
- McMahon, B. T., & Shaw, L. R. (1983). Employee assistance programming: A rehabilitation perspective. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *49*(4), 42-46.
- McMahon, B. T., Shaw, L. R., & Mahaffey, D. P. (1988). Career opportunities and professional preparation in head injury rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 31(4), 344-354.
- Mitchack, J. A., & Volksdorf, N. R. (1976). Personal characteristics affecting selection of psychologists by counseling centers and mental health clinics. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 19(3), 516-520.
- Mount, R. E., & Schumacker, R. E. (1991). Rehabilitation administrator perceptions of graduate curriculum needs: A guide to curriculum development. *Rehabilitation Education*, 5(1), 53-58.
- Mpofu, E. (2006). Service learning: Impact on the achievement of pre-service human service students. *Rehabilitation Education*, *19*(4), 249-258.

- O'Hare, M. M. (1987). Career decision-making models: Espoused theory versus theoryin-use. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 65(6), 301-303.
- Pankowski, M. L., & Pankowski, J. M. (1974). Why a master's degree in rehabilitation counseling? *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *5*(3), 147-153.
- Perosa, S. L., & Perosa, L. M. (1987). Strategies for counseling midcareer changers: A conceptual framework. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 65(10), 558-561.
- Porter, D. F., Donnell, C. M., Edwards, Y. V., & Moore, C. L. (2002). Challenges faced by minority doctoral candidates seeking academic positions. *Rehabilitation Education*, 16(1), 37-44.
- Prosser-Gelwick, B. (1974). Training faculty to do career advising. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *53*(3), 214-217.
- Richardson, T. Q., & Molinaro, K. L. (1996). White counselor self-awareness: A prerequisite for developing multicultural competence. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 74, 238-242.
- Riggar, T. F., & Matkin, R. E. (1984). Rehabilitation counselors working as administrators: A pilot investigation. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 15(1), 9-13.
- Riggar, T. F., Crimando, W., Bordieri, J., & Phillips, J. S. (1988). Rehabilitation administration preservice education: Preparing the professional rehabilitation administrator, manager, and supervisor. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *12*(4), 93-102.
- Rosenberg, H., & Smith, D. H. (1998). Consumer and case manager perceptions of important case manager characteristics. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *64*(4), 40-46.

- Rumrill, P. D., & Roessler, R. T. (1999). New directions in vocational rehabilitation: A "career development" perspective on "closure". *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 65(1), 26-30.
- Sawyer, H. W., Allen, H. A., & Maki, D. R. (1980). Perceived professional status of the vocational evaluator. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 13(2), 50-53.
- Schiro-Geist, C., Broadbent, E., & Boyraz, G. (2006). The role of comprehensive standards in a continuum of educational opportunities for rehabilitation and disabilities practitioners. *RehabPro*, 14(1), 25-29.
- Schmidt, M. J. (1991). Professional preparation for rehabilitation administration in the private sector. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *15*(2), 176-179.
- Scorzelli, J. F. (1995). The use of a job task analysis in assessing the perceptions of human resource managers on the role of the rehabilitation counselor in industry. *Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, 26(1), 47-50.
- Seibert, S. E., Kraimer, M. L., & Liden, R. C. (2001). A social capital theory of career success. *The Academy of Management Journal*, 44(2), 219-237.
- Shahnasarian, M. (2003). The rehabilitation counselor as forensic expert, life care planner, and case manager in catastrophic disability: A case illustration. *Journal* of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling, 33(4), 5-9.
- Smith, D. C., & Growick, B. (1999). The vocational consultant as an expert in divorce litigation. *The Rehabilitation Professional*, 7(6), 30-34.
- Stewart, D., & Nejedlo, R. J. (1980). Pyramid power in career development. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 58(8), 531-534.

- Strauser, D. R., Lustig, D. C., & Urek, A. C. (2004). Differences in career thoughts between individuals with and without disability: Do they really exist? *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 35(2), 25-31.
- Strauser, D. R., Lustig, D. C., Keim, J., Ketz, K., & Malesky, A. (2002). Analyzing the differences in career thoughts based on disability status. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 68(1), 27-32.
- Stubbins, J. (1982). The entry level for rehabilitation counselors: A reassessment. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 25(4), 242-250.
- Suojanen, W. W., & Spates, J. M. (1979). Motivation and career development of state vocational rehabilitation personnel. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 3(3), 119-125.
- Szymanski, E. M., Trevino, B., & Fernandez, D. (1996). Rehabilitation career planning with minorities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 27(4), 45-49.
- Tansey, T. N., Salzberg, C., Swett, E. A., & Ferrin, J. M. (2006). Using bibliographic database software in mentoring doctoral candidates. *Rehabilitation Education*, 19(4), 259-264.
- Trolley, B. C. (1996). Carving a role for rehabilitation counselors in the schools in the 1990's. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 27(3), 48-53.
- Trolley, B. C., & Cervoni, A. B. (1999). New millennium employment reflections for rehabilitation counselors: A follow-up study. *Rehabilitation Education*, 13(4), 335-347.
- Trusty, J., Robinson, C. R., Plata, M., & Ng, K. (2000). Effects of gender, socioeconomic status, and early academic performance on postsecondary educational choice. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 78(4), 463-472.

- Weber, W. F., Evenson, T. L., Clapp, V., & Weigel, K. W. (1987). Undergraduate rehabilitation skills preferred by the rehabilitation employer. *Rehabilitation Education*, 1(4), 255-263.
- Weed, R., Baird, K., Dunlap, K., & Lewis, S. (1999). Cultural diversity within rehabilitation education and professional employment. *The Rehabilitation Professional*, 7(3), 25-30.
- Weinstein, G., & Alschuler, A. S. (1985). Educating and counseling for self-knowledge development. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 64(1), 19-25.
- Wiener, S. M. (1986). In search of excellence: Insurance rehabilitation nursing. *Journal of Private Sector Rehabilitation*, 1(2), 77-81.

**Role and Function** 

## **Role and Function**

- Ames, T. R. H. (1985). Middle-level technicians in the field of rehabilitation. Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling, 16(1), 32-35.
- Anderson, D. (1992). A case for standards of counseling practice. *Journal of Counseling* and Development, 71(1), 22-26.
- Andrew, J. D., & Robertson, J. D. (2001). Private-sector computer skills expectations for rehabilitation counselor job applicants. *Rehabilitation Education*, 15(3), 295-300.
- Andrew, J. D., & Sabik, S. F. (1999). Computer skills expectations for rehabilitation counselor job applicants. *Rehabilitation Education*, 13(4), 349-357.
- Barad, C. B., Lawrence, R. E., & Krieger, G. W. (1974). Role conflict and consensus in vocational evaluation. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 7(2), 20-26.
- Barrett, K. E. (2006). Marketing for rehabilitation administrators: An overview and primer. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 30(2), 65-76.
- Barry, P., & O'Leary, J. (1989). Roles of the psychologist on a traumatic brain injury rehabilitation team. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 34(2), 83-90.
- Beardsley, M. M., Rubin, S. E., & Garner, W. E. (1987). A systematic model for designing and implementing staff development and training programs for rehabilitation counselors. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 18(2), 11-14.
- Berens, D. E., & Weed, R. O. (2001). Ethics update for rehabilitation counselors in the private sector [Special issue]. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 4(32), 27-32.

- Berven, N. L. (1979). "The roles and functions of the rehabilitation counselor" revisited. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 23(2), 84-88.
- Blimline, C. A., Thorn, M., Wilson, J. C., & Wilcox, J. (1983). Counseling in a government agency: Interventions for employees and supervisors. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 61(9), 570-574.
- Bordieri, J. E., Riggar, T. F., Crimando, W., & Matkin, R. E. (1988). Education and training needs for rehabilitation administrators. *Rehabilitation Education*, *2*, 9-15.
- Brooke, V., Sale, P., & Moon S. (1990). An analysis of job duties performed by supported employment program managers. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 34(1), 53-60.
- Brubaker, D. R. (1977). Professionalization and rehabilitation counseling. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 8(4), 208-217.
- Burge, W. G. (1972). The counselor-evaluator relationship: Its nature and effects. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 5(2), 16-20.
- Butterworth, J., Jr., Steere, D. E., Pancsofar, E. L., & Powell, T. H. (1990). The search for superman or wonderwoman: Job design and organizational supports for the supported-employment professional. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 14(2), 37-42.
- Carney, J., & Cobia, D. C. (1994) Relationship of characteristics of counselors-in-training to their attitudes towards persons with disabilities. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 38(1), 72-76.
- Carpino, L., & Newman, J. F. (1991). Role assessment of the allied health rehabilitation team. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 15(3), 187-190.

- Crisp, R. (2005). Key factors related to vocational evaluators: A report of one state's efforts. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 71(4), 23-29.
- Curtis, R., & Sherlock, J. J. (2006). Wearing two hats: Counselors working as managerial leaders in agencies and schools. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 84(1), 120-126.
- Dellario, D. J. (1991). Rehabilitation doctorates: Evolution or extinction? *Rehabilitation Education*, 5(3), 161-166.
- Ebener, D. J., Berven, N. L., & Wright, G. N. (1993). Self-perceived abilities of rehabilitation of educators to teach competencies for rehabilitation practice. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 37(1), 6-14.
- Edwards, P. (1999). Work activities of middle managers in rehabilitation facilities. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 22(3), 179-190.
- Emener, W. G., & Rubin, S. E. (1980). Rehabilitation counselor roles and functions and sources of role strain. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 11(2), 57-69.
- Emener, W. G., Mars, M. G., & Schmidt, J. F. (1984). Client feedback in rehabilitation counselor evaluation: A field-based, professional development application. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 15(1), 33-39.
- Evans, R. L. (1984). The resource manager in physical rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 45(1-2), 16-18.
- Feigin, R. (1995). Trends and directions in the role of the vocational rehabilitation counselor in Israel. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 61, 16-19.
- Feinberg, L. B., & McFarland, F. R. (1979). Setting-based factors in rehabilitation counselor role variability. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 10(2), 95-101.

- Fisher, T. F., & Bender, P. A. (1995). Medical inquiry for employment before and after Title I of the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990: The role of the rehabilitation counselor. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 6(4), 62-65.
- Fraser, R. T., & Clowers, M. R. (1978). Rehabilitation counselor functions: Perceptions of time spent and complexity. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 9(2), 31-43.
- Gale, A. U., & Austin, B. D. (2003). Professionalism's challenges to professional counselors' collective identity. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 81(1), 3-10.
- Garvin, R. E. (1985). The role of the rehabilitation counselor in industry. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *16*(4), 44-47, 50.
- Gottlieb, A., Vandergoot, D., & Lutsky, L. (1991). The role of the rehabilitation professional in corporate disability management. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 57(2), 23-28.
- Hamilton, M. & Shumate, S. (2005). The role and function of certified vocational rehabilitation specialists. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 71(1), 5-19.
- Hansen, C. E. (1971). The rehabilitation counselor: Training and employment. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *37*(3), 39-43.
- Henkel, Z. G. (1973). The relationship between vocational evaluation and education as professions in Alabama. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 6(3), 24-34.
- Holmes, G. E., & Karst, R. H. (1989). Case record management: A professional skill. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 20(1), 36-40.

- Hosie, T. W., West, J. D., & Mackey, J. A. (1993). Employment and roles of counselors in employee assistance programs. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 71(3), 355-359.
- Hutchinseon, E. (2006). Framework for a course entitled, "Providing Rehabilitation Services in the Private Sector". *RehabPro*, *1*4(1), 31-32.
- Irons, T. R. (1989). Professional fragmentation in rehabilitation counseling. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 55(3), 41-45.
- Jackson, J. L. (1980). The emerging role of the administrative technician in the rehabilitation process. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *41*(11-12), 284-288.
- Jellinek, H. M. (1982). Rehabilitation supervisors' perceptions of leader behavior and time allocation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 25(3), 131-137.
- Jellinek, H. M., & Lynch, R. K. (1983). Rehabilitation counseling: A case of mistaken identity. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *14*(1), 40-43.
- Jenkins, W., & Strauser, D. R. (1999). Horizontal expansion of the role of the rehabilitation counselor. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 65(1), 4-9.
- Joiner, J. G. (1974). Restrictive counselor role determinants. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 5(2), 80-87.
- Kearns, D., McCarthy, P., & Sheehan, M. (1997). Organizational restructuring:
  Considerations for workplace rehabilitation professionals. *The Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, *3*(1), 21-29.
- Kenny, D. T. (1998). The role of the rehabilitation provider in occupational rehabilitation: Providing for whom? Part 2: Perceptions of key stakeholders. *Australian Journal* of Rehabilitation Counseling, 4(2), 111-122.

- Kerr, N., & Meyerson, L. (1979). Number and roles of psychologists in the federal-state vocational rehabilitation service system. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 26(3), 169-175.
- Keys, S. G., Bemak, F., Carpenter, S. L., & King-Sears, M. E. (1998). Collaborative consultant: A new role for counselors serving at-risk youths. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 76(2), 123-133.
- Klein, M., & Rellick, C. (1988). Counselors in business and industry: A survey of corporate human service programs and potential roles and functions. *Rehabilitation Education*, 1(4), 265-269.
- Kluesner, B. K., Taylor, D. W., & Bordieri, J. (2005). An investigation of the job tasks and functions of providers of job placement activities. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 71(3), 26-35.
- Koch, L. C., & Rumrill, P.D., Jr. (1997). Rehabilitation counseling outside the state agency: Settings, roles, and functions for new millennium. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 28(4), 9-14.
- Kuehn, M. D. (1991). An agenda for professional practice in the 1990s. Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling, 22(3), 6-15.
- Kunce, J. T., & Angelone, E. O. (1990). Personality characteristics of counselors: Implications for rehabilitation counselor roles and functions. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 34(1), 4-15.
- Leahy, J., Chan, F., Shaw, L., & Lui, J. (1997). Preparation of rehabilitation counselors for case management practice in health care settings. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 63(3), 53-59.

- Leahy, M. J., Szymanski, E. M., & Linkowski, D. C. (1993). Knowledge importance in rehabilitation counseling. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *37*(2), 130-145.
- Lees-Haley, P. (1987). Proof of earnings impairment in psychological workers' compensation claims: The vocational expert as facilitator. *Journal of Private Sector Rehabilitation*, 2(2), 75-80.
- Livneh, H. (1981). Rehabilitation counselor functions and tasks in Rhode Island. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 25(2), 101-104.
- Lofaro, G. A. (1983). Doctoral research in rehabilitation [Role & characteristics]. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *26*(4), 237-240, 296-298.
- Lown, N. F., Clark, M. C., & Flynn, C. C. (1998). Job responsibilities of rehabilitation engineers in vocational rehabilitation agencies. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 22(1), 31-46.
- MacGuffie, R. A., Misener, B. B., & Reichert, D. A. (1989). Present and ideal roles and functions of the medical rehabilitation counselor. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 20(2), 33-40.
- Marini, I., Isom, R., & Reid, C. (2003). Integrating life care planning and expert testimony into rehabilitation education. *Rehabilitation Education*, 17(4), 248-255.
- Matkin, R. E., & Humbert, C. V. (1987). NRCA policy statement-interorganizational communication issues for effective service delivery and professional growth among rehabilitation counselors. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 18(2), 48-52.
- Matkin, R. E., (1987). Insurance rehabilitation job tasks, associated knowledges, and recommended training sites. *Journal of Private Sector Rehabilitation*, 2(1), 3-54.

- Matkin, R. E., Beardsley, M. M., & Garner, W. E. (1987). A research proposal for achieving a unified multidimensional measure of occupational roles in the rehabilitation field. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 18(1), 29-34.
- Matkin, R. E., Sawyer, H. W., Lorenz, J. R., & Rubin, S. E. (1982). Rehabilitation administrators and supervisors: Their work assignments, training needs, and suggestions for preparation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 6(4), 170-183.
- McFarlane, F. R., & DiPaola, S. M. (1979). Rehabilitation counselor, vocational evaluator, and work adjustment specialist: Are these professionals different?
   *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 10(3), 148-153.
- Menz, F. E., & Bordieri, J. E. (1987). Training experiences and perceptions of rehabilitation facility administrators. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 11, 60-67.
- Moore, S., McCuller, G. L., & Salzberg, C. L. (1988). Professional skill levels of sheltered workshop staff: Selection criteria and post-employment training. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 54(3), 67-70.
- Muthard, J. E., & Salomone, P. R. (1972). The future roles of the rehabilitation counselor. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *16*(2), 71-79.
- Nadolsky, J. M. (1974). Guidelines for the classification and utilization of vocational evaluation personnel. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *35*(6), 162-174.
- Nichols, B. (1981). Middle management in rehabilitation facilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 5(4), 163-168.
- Olney, M. F. (1999). Roles of support staff in the lives of individuals with developmental disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 22(4), 249-257.

- Pachana, N. A., Marcopulos, B. A., & Leatham, J. (1998). The role of the rehabilitation provider in occupational rehabilitation: Providing for whom? Part I: Selfperceptions. *Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, 4(2), 97-110.
- Parker, H. J., & Chan, F. (1988). Prestige of rehabilitation occupations: Perceptions of a national sample of rehabilitation counseling students. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 54(1), 39-44.
- Peth, P. R. (1971). A critical examination of the role and function of the nonprofessional in rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *14*(3), 141-153.
- Pope-Davis, D. B., & Ottavi, T. M. (1994). Examining the association between selfreported multicultural counseling competencies and demographic variables among counselors. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72(1), 651-654.
- Riggar, T. F., & Matkin, R. E. (1984). Rehabilitation counselors working as administrators: A pilot investigation. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 15(1), 9-13.
- Riggar, T. F., Crimando, W., Bordieri, J., & Phillips, J. S. (1988). Rehabilitation administration reservice education: Preparing the professional rehabilitation administrator, manager, and supervisor. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *12*(4), 93-102.
- Roberts, R. R., & Engelkes, J. R. (1970). Who is a trained rehabilitation counselor? *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 13(3), 295-300.
- Rosenberg, H., & Smith, D. H. (1998). Consumer and case manager perceptions of important case manager characteristics. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *64*(4), 40-46.

- Rosenthall, M., & Kolpan, K. I. (1986). Head injury rehabilitation: Psychological issues and roles for the rehabilitation psychologist. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 31(1), 37-46.
- Rubin, S. E. (Guest Ed.). (1984). Roles and functions of certified rehabilitation counselors [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 27(4).
- Rubin, S. E., & Bolton, B. (1975). An empirical study of the counselor-coordinator dimension. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 6(2), 78-83.
- Rubin, S. E., & Emener, W. G. (1979). Recent rehabilitation counselor role changes and role strain-a pilot investigation. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 10(3), 142-147.
- Sandowski, C. (1985). The role of the discharge planner. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 46(1-2), 16-20.
- Schmidt, J. (1994). Substance abuse prevention and intervention: An expanded perspective for counselors. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72(5), 514-519.
- Schmidt, M. J. (1991). The role, function, and responsibilities of rehabilitation consumers and professionals in disability policy and law. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 22(4), 32-35.
- Scorzelli, J. F. (1999). The perceptions of agency directors on the role and functions of the rehabilitation counselor in Thailand. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 30(4), 29-32.
- Scully, S. M., Habeck, R. V., & Leahy, M. J. (1999). Knowledge and skill areas associated with disability management practice for rehabilitation counselors. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 43(1), 20-29.

- Sinsabaugh, L. L., & Martin, Jr., E. D. (1999). A survey of private sector practitioners in the state of Virginia. *The Rehabilitation Professional*, 7(1), 29-34.
- Smiling, Q. (2005). Divergence of the roles of rehabilitation counselor and rehabilitation administrator: Implications for succession planning in rehabilitation administration. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 29(1), 33-42.
- Smith, C. A., & Bordieri, J. E. (1988). The provision of training and perceived training needs of rehabilitation facility production staff. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 12(3), 67-71.
- Sowers, J., Hall, S., & Rainforth, B. (1990). Related services personnel in supported employment: Roles and training needs. *Rehabilitation Education*, *4*, 319-331.
- Stephens, J. E., & Emener, W. G. (1988). Preparing the professional rehabilitation administrator, manager, and supervisor: In-service and continuing education issues and approaches. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 12(4), 106-114.
- Stubbins, J. (1989). The interdisciplinary status of rehabilitation psychology. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *34*(3), 207-215.
- Szymanski, E. M., & Danek, M. M. (1992). The relationship of rehabilitation counselor education to rehabilitation client outcome: A replication and extension. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 58(1), 49-56.
- Thielsen, V. A., & Leahy, M. J. (2001). Essential knowledge and skills for effective clinical supervision in rehabilitation counseling. *Rehabilitation Counseling*, 44(4), 196-208.
- Thomas, K. R. (1990). Research on rehabilitation counselor roles and functions: A dinosaur that refuses to die. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin, 34*(1), 72-78.

- Thomas, K. R. (1990). Some observations on the feasibility of establishing the superiority of establishing the superiority of rehabilitation counselors with Master's degrees. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin, 34*(2), 155-164.
- Tucker, C. M., Abrams, J. M., Brady, B. A., Parker, J. S., & Knopf, L. G. (1989).
   Perceived importance of counselor characteristics among vocational rehabilitation counselors and supervisors. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 32(4), 333-341.
- Tucker, C. M., Parker, J. S., Parham, G. D., Brady, B. A., & Brown, J. G. (1988).
  Perceived importance of counselor characteristics among vocational rehabilitation counselors and clients. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *19*(3), 28-31.
- Upton, T. D. (2003). Vocational expertise in the disability determination process: Implications for rehabilitation administrators. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 27(1), 25-32.
- Usdane, W. M. (1971). Considerations for rehabilitation psychology training. *Psychological Aspects of Disability*, *18*(3), 131-135.
- Walker, S., Orange, C., & Rackley, R. (1993). A formidable challenge: The preparation of minority personnel. *Journal of Vocational Rehabilitation*, 3(1), 46-54.
- Weikel, W. J. (1986). The expanding role of the counselor as a vocational expert witness. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 64(8), 63-64.
- Wright, M. E. (1971). Advocacy: A new rehabilitation role function. *Psychological Aspects of Disability*, 18(2), 89-90.

Training

## Training

- Alston, R. J. (1996). Multiculturalism in rehabilitation education: History, pedagogy, and future trends [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Education*, *10*(2-3).
- Anderson, R. J., & Courtnage, L. E. (1992). Preservice legal training concerning issues and rights of people with disabilities: A national survey. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 3(2), 21-29.
- Andrew, J. (2000). Teaching tips. Distance education: Perspectives from future rehabilitation educators. *Rehabilitation Education*, *14*(2), 217-224.
- Anthony, W. A., Dell Orto, A. E., Lasky, R. G., Marinelli, R. P., Power, P. W., &
  Spaniol, L. J. (1977). A training model for rehabilitation counseling education. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 20(3), 218-235.
- Anthony, W. A., Slowkowski, P., & Bendix, L. (1976). Developing the specific skills and knowledge of the rehabilitation counselor. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 19(3), 456-464.
- Barrett, K., Flowers, C., Crimando, W., Riggar, T. F., & Bailey, T. (1997). Training never ends: Human resource development of rehabilitation administrators. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 21(1), 3-18.
- Beardsley, M. M., Rubin, S. E., & Garner, W. E. (1987). A systematic model for designing & implementing staff development and training programs for rehabilitation counselors. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 18(2), 11-14.
- Bernier, J. E. (1980). Training and supervising counselors: Lessons learned from deliberate psychological education. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 59(1), 15-20.

- Bishop, M. & Harley, D. A. (Eds.). (2007). Leadership training in professional organizations: Introduction to the special issue. [Special issue]. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 31(1), 33-40.
- Bombardier, C. H., Kilber, J., & Ehde, D. (1997). Misconceptions about traumatic brain injury among educators and rehabilitation staff: A competitive study. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 42(4), 273-286.
- Bordieri, J. E., Riggar, T. F., Crimando, W., & Matkin, R. E. (1988). Education and training needs for rehabilitation administrators. *Rehabilitation Education*, *2*, 9-15.
- Bruyere, S. (1994). The ADA and training for employment-related professionals: Implications for rehabilitation education. *Rehabilitation Education*, 8(1), 79-88.
- Carnley, N. (1977). Differences between American and European workshops: Implications for training. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 10(4), 23-30.
- Cook, D. W., & Bolton, B. (1992). Rehabilitation counselor education and case performance: An independent replication. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 36(1), 37-43.
- Crimando, W., & Baker, R. (1984). Computer-assisted instruction in rehabilitation education. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 28(1), 50-54.
- Crimando, W., Flowers, C. R., & Riggar, T. F. (2005). Postgraduate rehabilitation counselor training: Rehabilitation administration. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 29(2), 97-106.
- Crystal, R. M. (1981). An integrative model for rehabilitation training and practice. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 12(4), 191-194.

- Eckert, J. M., Falvo, D. R., Crimando, W., & Riggar, T. F. (1993). Training and orientation of certified ombudsperson volunteers for long-term care facilities. *Educational Gerontology*, 19(8), 743-752.
- Emener, W. G., & Rasch, J. D. (1982). Local and national availability and accessibility and training materials in rehabilitation education. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 48(4), 40-44.
- English, R. W., Oberle, J. B., & Byrne, A. R. (1979). Rehabilitation counselor supervision: A national perspective [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 22(3).
- Flett, R., Biggs, H., & Alpass, F. (1994). The effects of professional training on occupational stress and personal affect in rehabilitation practitioners. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 60, 39-43.
- Flowers, C. R., Strong, R., Turner, T. N., Moore, C., & Edwards, D. W. (1998). State vocational rehabilitation agencies and preservice educational programs: Are complimentary needs being met? *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 41(3), 217-230.
- Gough, D. L., Sharp-Pucci, M., & Ouellette, S. E. (1988). Deafness rehabilitation professionals: Perspectives on preservice training. *Rehabilitation Education*, 2(2), 95-104.
- Gugerty, J. (1978). Graduate-level counselor training versus on-the-job performance: Are they related? *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *21*(3), 194-197.
- Hampton, N. Z. (2002). Teaching a vocational assessment course online: Design and implementation. *Rehabilitation Education*, 16(4), 357-371.

- Hansen, C. E. (1971). The rehabilitation counselor: Training and employment. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *37*(3), 39-43.
- Hansen, C. E. (1973). Rehabilitation training. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 4(4), 208-224.
- Harley, D. A. (1997). Women, drugs, and AIDS: Implications for rehabilitation education and management. *Rehabilitation Education*, 11(1&2), 111-122.
- Harley, D. A., & Bishop, M. (2007). Rehabilitation training needs in the 21<sup>st</sup> century:
  Concerns and recommendations. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 31(1), 51-56.
- Herbert, J. T., & Wright, G. N. (1985). Attitudes of state vocational rehabilitation agencies toward counselor education. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 28(3), 155-160.
- Herr, E. L., & Scofield, M. E. (1983). The counselor's role in the development of staff competence. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 61(5), 300-304.
- Hershenson, D. B. (1988). Along for the ride: The evolution of rehabilitation counselor education. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *31*(3), 204-217.
- Hershenson, D. B., & McKenna, M. A. (1999). Trends affecting rehabilitation counselor education. *Rehabilitation Education*, 12(4), 277-288.
- Hosie, T. W. (1995). Counseling specialties: A case of basic preparation rather than advanced specialization. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 74, 177-180.
- Hosie, T. W., Patterson, J. B., & Hollingsworth, D. K. (1989). School and rehabilitation counselor preparation: Meeting the needs of individuals with disabilities. *Journal* of Counseling and Development, 68(2), 171-176.

- Johnston, J., Kerr, B., Bondeson, W., Hansen, R., & Claiborn, C. (1994). The Wakonse Conference on College Teaching. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72(5), 480.
- Kauppi, D. R. (1999). Distance education in rehabilitation counseling: From the process that brought us Y2K. *Rehabilitation Education*, *13*(3), 207-218.
- Kemp, B., Brummel-Smith, K. & Plowman, V. J. (1989). Geriatric rehab program focuses on research, training and service. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 55(4), 9-11.
- Kirkpatrick, J. D. (1983). A three-step model for more effective presentations. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 62(3), 178-179.
- Kraus, L. E., Nelson, J., Ripple, J., & Temkin, T. (1999). Training needs in personal assistance services of consumers, providers, and family members. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 22(4), 217-230.
- Leconte, P. J. (1989). Statement on rehabilitation training and education needs and priorities to the Rehabilitation Services Administration. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 22(2), 47-50.
- Leconte, P. J. (1991). In support of training in rehabilitation. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin, 24*(4), 151-156.
- Lee, G. K., Chronister, J., Tsang, H., Ingraham, K., & Oulvey, E. (2005). Psychiatric rehabilitation training needs of state vocational rehabilitation counselors: A preliminary study. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 71(3), 11-19.
- LeRoy, B. W., & Hartley-Malivuk, T. (1991). Supported employment staff training model. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 57(2), 51-54.

- Lewis, D., Johnson, D., Erikson, R., & Bruinicks, R. (1994). Multiattribute evaluation of program alternatives within special education. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 5(1), 77-112.
- Lofaro, G. A. (1983). Doctoral research in rehabilitation (Education & training). *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 26(4), 240-243, 296-297.
- Mank, D., Buckley, J., Green, J. H., VanCovern, D. L., & Revell, W. G. (1992).
  Technical assistance on a national scale: Efforts to improve and expand supported employment. *Journal of Vocational Rehabilitation*, 2(4), 35-45.
- Marini, I. (1994). Identified service and training needs of centers for independent living in the southeastern United States. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *60*(1), 47-51.
- Martin, G. (1984). Training developmentally handicapped persons as supervisors in sheltered workshops. Applied Research in Mental Retardation, 5(2), 199-218.
- McDonald, A. A., Sr., & Lorenz, J. R. (1977). Graduate curriculum and training delivery preferences of practicing rehabilitation facility administrators. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 1(4), 12-22.
- McReynolds, C.J., & Garske, G. G. (2003). Psychiatric disabilities: Challenges and training issues for rehabilitation professionals. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 69(4), 13-18.
- Menz, F. E., & Bordieri, J. E. (1986). Rehabilitation facility administrator training needs:
  Priorities and patterns for the 1980's. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *10*(3), 89-98.
- Menz, F. E., & Bordieri, J. E. (1987). Training experiences and perceptions of rehabilitation facility administrators. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 11(2), 60-68.

- Nadolsky, J. M. (1986). Preparing for quality in rehabilitation education. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 52(2), 7-10.
- Nemec, P. B., Spaniel, L., & Dell Orto, A. E. (2001). Psychiatric rehabilitation education [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Education*, 15(2), 115-118.
- Nolte, D. (1992). Change in our profession. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 25(3), 62.
- Pape, D. A., & Berven, N. L. (1983). Effects of training on intake interviewing skills in rehabilitation counseling. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 26(3), 164-173.
- Pape, D. A., & Tarvydas, V. M. (1993). Responsible and responsive rehabilitation consultation on the ADA: The importance of training for psychologists. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 38(2), 117-131.
- Patterson, J. B., & Pankowski, J. (1988). Preparing the consumer of rehabilitation administration, management, and supervision: Preservice, in-service and continuing education issues. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 12(4), 117-121.
- Pederson, P. B. (1991). Education and training, part II [Special issue]. Journal of Counseling and Development, 70(1), 77.
- Riemer-Reiss, M. (2000). Vocational rehabilitation counseling at distance: Challenges, strategies and ethics to consider. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 66(1), 11-17.
- Riggar, T. F. (2006). Editorial: Education, training and development never end. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *30*(4), 215-216.
- Riggar, T. F., Crimando, W., & Pusch, B. D. (1993). "Learning never ends": Human resource development. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 17(2), 38-48.

- Rubin, S. E., Pusch, B. D., Fogarty, C., & McGinn, F. (1995). Enhancing the cultural sensitivity of rehabilitation counselors. *Rehabilitation Education*, 9(4), 253-264.
- Simon, S. E. (1991). Training rehabilitation administrators [Editorial]. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *15*(4), 209-210.
- Skovholt, T. M., & Ronnestad, M. H. (1992). Themes in therapist and counselor development. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 70(4), 505-515.
- Smart, J. F. (1999). Issues in rehabilitation distance education. *Rehabilitation Education*, *13*(3), 187-206.
- Stude, E. (1994). Implications of the ADA for Masters and Bachelors level rehabilitation counseling and rehabilitation services professionals. *Rehabilitation Education*, 8(1), 17-25.
- Sullivan, M. B., & McFarlane, F. R. (1978). Training needs identification and assessment of rehabilitation counselors. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 22(2), 142-145.
- Swett, E. A., & Bishop, M. (2007). Nontraditional training opportunities for rehabilitation administrators. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 31(1), 41-50.
- Szymanski, E. M., Linkowski, D. C., Leahy, M. J., Diamond, E. E., Thoreson, R. W. (1993). Human resource development: An examination of perceived training needs of certified rehabilitation counselors. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 37(2), 163-181.
- Tedder, N. E., & Maxson, J. H. (1990). Job tasks, knowledge and business practices among Randolph-Sheppard Business Enterprise Operators: A comparison with state licensing agency training practices. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 14(1), 11-16.

- Todd, P. (1993). Leader or follower: The role of the expert in training. *Rehabilitation Education*, 7, 67-68.
- Upton, T. D., Benshoff, J. J., & McFarlane, F. (2004). Empowerment beliefs of rehabilitation educators: Relevance for rehabilitation administration. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 28(1), 35-46.
- Usdane, W. M. (1971). Considerations for rehabilitation psychology training. *Psychological Aspects of Disability*, *18*(3), 131-135.
- Van Gelder, M., Gold, M., & Schalock, R. L. (1996). Does training have an impact: The evaluation of a competency based staff training program in supported employment. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 20(4), 273-287.
- Walker, M. L., & Wright, G. N. (Guest editors). (1989). International rehabilitation education. *Rehabilitation Education*, 3(4).
- Warn, M. (1999). Beyond the classroom: Instructional strategies and distance technologies that support lifelong learning. *Rehabilitation Education*, 13(1), 37-50.
- Watson, A. L., & Collins, R. (1993). Culturally sensitive training for professionals. *Journal of Vocational Rehabilitation*, 3(1), 38-46.
- Wheaton, J. E., Covan, J. D., O'Briant, S. J., & Howell, R. D. (2001). Web page accessibility: A forgotten requirement for distance education. *Rehabilitation Education*, 15(3), 225-232.
- Wheaton, J. E., & Granello, D.H. (2002). Self-perceived multicultural training needs of state rehabilitation counselors. *Rehabilitation Education*, 16(1), 67-80.

Williams, E. (1990). A comparative analysis of public sector vocational/technical training practices and private sector training preferences. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 23(3), 93-99.

Training-In Service

## **Training-In-Service**

- Amick, S., Wesley, M. E. (1999). Educating rehabilitation practitioners: Obstacles and opportunities. *Rehabilitation Education*, 13(1), 25-36.
- Baken, J. W. (1976). Inservice teacher training in a summer program for severely handicapped children: A summer can make the difference. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 37(3), 74-78.
- Barcus, J. M., Wehman, P., Moon, M. S., Brooke, V., Goodall, P., & Everson, J. M.
  (1988). Design and implementation of a short-term inservice training program for supported employment service providers. *Rehabilitation Education*, *2*, 17-33.
- Bennett, F. C., Haley, P., Smith, G., & Valuzzi, J. (1993). Inservice programs for related service teams serving medically fragile children. OSERS News in Print, 5(4), 31-35.
- Berven, N. L. (1979). Training needs of state agency rehabilitation counselors. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 22(4), 320-329.
- Berven, N. L., Possi, M. E., Doran, E. A., Ostby, S. S., & Kaplan, S. P. (1982). Training for cooperating agency supervisors in rehabilitation counselor education. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 26(1), 47-51.
- Boland-Freeman, J. (1979). Rehabilitation counselor and supervisor perceptions of counselor training needs and continuing education. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 10(3), 154-157.
- Carter, J., Shinnick, M., & McDaniel, R. S. (1981). The impact of in-service training in rehabilitation facility administration. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 5(4), 144-148.

- Childers, J. H., Jr., & Rye, D. R. (1987). Doctoral student selection in counselor education: A multidimensional assessment strategy. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 65(10), 555-557.
- Curry, K. L., Posluszny, M. P., & Kraska, S. L. (1993). Training criminal justice personnel to recognize offenders with disabilities. *OSERS News In Print*, 5(3), 4-8.
- Dickerson, L. R., & Roberts, R. R. (1973). Inservice training of rehabilitation counselors in state agencies. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *17*(1), 22-28.
- Emener, W. G., & Hutchison, J. H. (1979). In-service training in clinical supervision in the rehabilitation counseling process. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 22(5), 427-430.
- Emener, W. G., Jr., & Pankowski, J. M. (1978). In-service training for rehabilitation secretaries. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 21(4), 339-342.
- Glenn, M. K. (1994). Preparing rehabilitation specialists to address the prevention of substance abuse problems. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 38(2), 164-179.
- Greer, B., Roberts, R., & Roberts, R. (1989). A survey of training needs in Tennessee vocational training centers. *Rehabilitation Education*, 3(1), 43-53.
- Hanley-Maxwell, C., & Whitney-Thomas, J. (1995). A survey of supported employment agencies' quality improvement practices and training needs. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 39(1), 25-41.
- Hutchinson, J. D., Luck, R. S., & Hardy, R. E. (1978). Training needs of a group of vocational rehabilitation agency administrators. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 2(4), 156-159,178.

- Kirkpatrick, J. D. (1983). A three-step model for more effective presentations. *Personnel* and Guidance Journal, 62(3), 178-179.
- Lofaro, G. A. (1983). Doctoral research in rehabilitation [In-service & short-term training]. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *26*(4), 298-299.
- Martin, W. E., Jr., Johns, A., & Bitter, J. A. (1978). Evaluation planning considerations for postemployment training of professionals in rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 39(6-7), 180-185.
- McFarlane, F. R., & Sullivan, M. (1979). Educational and training needs of rehabilitation counselors: Implications for training. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 10(1), 41-43.
- Noll, A. J. (1991). Training models for the utilization of assistive technology in vocational rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Education*, *5*(4), 279-282.
- Richardson, B. K., & Obermann, C. E. (1972). Inservice training and supervision:Meeting the new demand. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 16(1), 46-55.
- Roberts, R., Roberts, R., & Greer, B. (1989). A survey of training needs in Tennessee vocational training centers. *Rehabilitation Education*, *3*(1), 43-53.
- Sales, A., & Downey, W. T. (1981). A pilot long-term in-service training project in rehabilitation administration. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 5(4), 150-154.
- Spence, J. (1985). Line supervisors as trainers: Hidden talents of the paraprofessional. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin, 18*(4), 157-159.
- Stephens, J. E., & Emener, W. G. (1988). Preparing the professional rehabilitation administrator, manager and supervisor: In-service and continuing education issues and approaches. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 12(4), 106-114.

- Sullivan, M. B., & McFarlane, F. R. (1978). Training needs identification and assessment of rehabilitation counselors. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 22(2), 142-145.
- Wells, G. K., & Hume, K. R. (1980). Training trainers in the VR agency: A concept that works. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 23(4), 295-298.
- Zipple, A., Spaniol, L., & Rogers, E. S. (1990). Training mental health practitioners to assist families of persons who have a psychiatric disability. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 35(2), 121-129.

Training-University Based

## **Training-University Based**

- Alston, R. J., Harley, D. A., & Wilson, K. B. (2000). Rehabilitation education at universities with predominantly minority enrollments [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Education*, 14(4).
- Atkins, B. J. (1981). University-agency contracts: A reality in rehabilitation. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 12(1), 19-22.
- Bandes, R. K., Marme, M., Schiro-Geist, J. G., & Dolon, J. G. (1996). Prestige of rehabilitation counseling programs: A comparison of peer evaluations and scholarly publications. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 27, 50-56.
- Bellini, J. L., Rumrill, Jr., P.D. (1999). Implementing a scientist-practitioner model of graduate-level rehabilitation counselor education: Guidelines for enhancing curricular coherence. *Rehabilitation Education*, 13(3), 261-276.
- Browning, P. (1982). An interdisciplinary program for preparing professional leaders. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 48(4), 57-59.
- Bruch, L. (2001). Teaching tips: Graduate instruction in human resource administration:
  Incorporating disability and work topics. *Rehabilitation Education*, 15(3), 317-320.
- Buxbaum, J. (1988). Helping the disabled, alcohol-dependent client: A training program for rehabilitation counselors. *Rehabilitation Education*, *2*, 113-119.
- Childers, J. H., Jr., & Rye, D. R. (1987). Doctoral student selection in counselor education: A multidimensional assessment strategy. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 65(10), 555-557.

- Conyers, L. M., Enright, M. S., & Strauser, D. R. (1998). Applying self efficacy theory to counseling college students with disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 29(1), 31-36.
- Culberson, J. O., Alcorn, J. D., & Daniels, J. L. (1982). Making undergraduate rehabilitation education relevant: A cooperative project. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 25(4), 228-230.
- Dodd, J. M., Nelson, J. R., Ostwald, S. W., & Fischer, J. (1991). Rehabilitation
   Counselor Education Programs' response to cultural pluralism. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 22(1), 46-48.
- Easton, M. J., Platt, C. P., & Van House, C. L. (1985). A cost-effective training program for paraprofessionals at a university counseling center. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 64(2), 151-153.
- Eldredge, G. M., McNamra, S., Stensrud, R., Gilbridge, D., Hendren, G., Siegfried, T., & McFarlane, F. (1999). Distance education: A look at five programs. *Rehabilitation Education*, 13(3), 231-248.
- Emener, W. G., & Rasch, J. D. (1984). Actual and preferred instructional areas in rehabilitation education programs. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 27(5), 269-279.
- Evenson, T., & Holloway, L. (2000). The undergraduate program in rehabilitation education [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Education*, 14(1).
- Evenson, T., & Holloway, L. (2006). The state of rehabilitation undergraduate education:
  A survey of undergraduate coordinators. *Rehabilitation Education*, 20(2), 103-113.

- Farish, J. (1988). Emphasizing traumatic brain injury in rehabilitation counselor training programs. *Rehabilitation Education*, 2, 237-244.
- Farkas, M., & Anthony, W. A. (1980). Training rehabilitation counselors to work in state agencies, rehabilitation and mental health facilities. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 24(1), 128-144.
- Gandy, G. L., & Martin, E. D., Jr. (1985). Undergraduate rehabilitation education: A humanistic approach. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 46(11-12), 321-324.
- Garcia, J., Cartwright, B., & Glenn, M. (1997). Proposed graduate instruction on psychosocial and rehabilitation issues concerning African Americans and Latinos living with HIV/AIDS. *Rehabilitation Education*, 11(1&2), 55-81.
- Geist, G. O. (1976). University training programs in rehabilitation: 1974-75 fact sheet of the Council of Rehabilitation Counselor Educators. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 20(2), 156-158.
- Gilbride, D. D., Connolly, M., & Stensrud, R. (1990). Rehabilitation education for the private-for-profit sector. *Rehabilitation Education*, *4*(3), 155-162.
- Gilbride, D., Breithaupt, b., & Hoehle, R. (1996). The use of the internet to support both on-and off-campus learners in rehabilitation education. *Rehabilitation Education*, 10(1), 47-62.
- Greenwood, R. (1975). New developments in rehabilitation counselor education-research into practice: The model for rehabilitation research and training centers. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 19(1), 330-344.
- Hansmann, S., Lightfoot, B., & Saladin, S. P. (2007). Student perceptions of the learning environment and experiences of learning in an on-line rehabilitation counselor

education course: A qualitative study. *Rehabilitation Counselor & Educators Journal*, 1(1), 70-82.

- Heppner, M. (1994). An empirical investigation of the effects of a teaching practicum on prospective faculty. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72(5), 500-507.
- Herbert, J. T., & Ward, T. J. (1989). Rehabilitation counselor supervision: A national survey of NCRE graduate training practica. *Rehabilitation Education*, 3(3), 163-175.
- Hershenson, D. B. (1982). Rehabilitation counseling is a profession. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 25(4), 251-253.
- Hershenson, D. B. (1988). Along for the ride: The evolution of rehabilitation counselor education. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *31*(3), 204-217.
- Hershenson, D. B. (2000). Conceptual degradation in academic disciplines: A risk for rehabilitation education. *Rehabilitation Education*, *14*(3), 301-304.
- Hocking, T. K., & Schnier, R. R. (1974). Humanizing education by training the faculty. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 52(9), 603-608.
- Jaques, M. E., Kauppi, D. W., & Schoen, S. (1974). Program profile: A follow-up study of rehabilitation counseling graduates from 1957-1971. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 17(4), 223-231.
- Leech, L. L. (2000). A certificate of graduate study in psychiatric rehabilitation:Responding to a multi-agency need. *Journal of Applied RehabilitationCounseling*, 66(4), 22-29.
- Leung, P., Sakata, R., & Ostby, S. (1990). Rehabilitation psychology professional training: A survey of APA accredited programs. *Rehabilitation Education*, 4(3), 177-183.

- Livingston, P., Randell, J., & Wolkstein, E. (1990). A work-study model for rehabilitation counselor education in substance abuse. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 21(3), 16-20.
- Lytel, R., Jr., McFarlane, F. R., & Jones, R. D. (1975). The status of vocational evaluation in rehabilitation counselor education curricula. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 6(4), 236-244.
- Marini, I., Isom, R., & Reid, C. (2003). Integrating life care planning and expert testimony into rehabilitation education. *Rehabilitation Education*, 17(4), 248-255.
- Martin, G. E., & Jeffrey, D. L. (1978). A conceptual framework for undergraduate education in rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *21*(4), 343-349.
- Matkin, R. E. (1982). Preparing rehabilitation counselors to perform supervisory and administrative responsibilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 13(3), 21-24.
- McMahon, B. T. (1988). Curriculum development and career opportunities in head injury rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Education*, *2*, 247.
- Morran, D. K., Kurpius, D. J., Brack, C. J., & Brack, G. (1995). A cognitive skills model for counselor training and supervision. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 73(4), 384-389.
- Mount, R. E., & Schumacker, R. E. (1991). Rehabilitation administrator perceptions of graduate curriculum needs: A guide to curriculum development. *Rehabilitation Education*, 5(1), 53-58.
- Noll, A. J. (1991). Training models for the utilization of assistive technology in vocational rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Education*, *5*(4), 279-282.

- Paskert, C. (1988). Vocational rehabilitation issues. *Rehabilitation Education*, 2(3,4), 245.
- Patterson, J. B. (1992). Graduate level preparation of rehabilitation counselors. *Journal of Vocational Rehabilitation*, 2(4), 28-35.
- Puckett, F. D., Schweitzer, J. R., & Hale, P. N., Jr. (1991). Training in rehabilitation technology for rehabilitation educators. *Rehabilitation Education*, 5(4), 273-278.
- Racino, J. A. (1999). University-based personnel preparation: Community support as an academic discipline. *Rehabilitation Education*, 13(2), 121-133.
- Redkey, H. (1971). Undergraduate curriculum: A success. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *37*(6), 15-18.
- Riggar, T. F., & Matkin, R. E. (1986). Academic education for private-sector rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Forum*, 13(1), 25-27.
- Riggar, T. F., Crimando, W., Bordieri, J., & Phillips, J. S. (1988). Rehabilitation administration preservice education: Preparing the professional rehabilitation administrator, manager and supervisor. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *12*(4), 93-102.
- Russert, M. G., & Ebener, D. (1989). Doctoral traineeships: An investment in the future. *Rehabilitation Education*, *3*(3), 211-216.
- Sankovsky, R. (1971). Rehabilitation counselor training programs and the vocational assessment process. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *14*(3), 153-158.
- Scorzelli, J. F. (1975). Reactions to program content of a rehabilitation counseling program. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *6*(3), 172-177.
- Scorzelli, J. F. (1979). Assessing the content of a rehabilitation counseling program. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 9(4), 184-186.

- Shaw, L. R., McMahon, B. T., Chan, F., Taylor, D., & Wood, C. (1997). Survey of rehabilitation counselor education programs regarding health care case management in the private sector. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 63(3), 46-52.
- Smart, J. (1998). Teaching writing to graduate rehabilitation programs. *Rehabilitation Education*, *12*(2), 167-173.
- Smart, D., & Smart, J. (1996). Scholarship reconsidered: A direction for rehabilitation education. *Rehabilitation Education*, 10(1), 35-46.
- Smart, J. F., Smart, D. W., & Eldredge, G. M. (1993). A proposal for an undergraduate education course on disability issues. *Rehabilitation Education*, 7, 109-117.
- Stebnicki, M. A., & Glover, N. M. (2001). E-Supervision as a complementary approach to traditional face-to-face clinical supervision in rehabilitation counseling:
  Problems and solutions. *Rehabilitation Education*, 15(3), 283-295.
- Steger, J. M. (1974). A multidisciplinary model for undergraduate education in rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 18(1), 12-21.
- Stoltenberg, C. D. (1993). Supervising consultants in training: An application of a model of supervision. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72(2), 131-138.
- Stubbins, J. (1982). The entry level for rehabilitation counselors: A reassessment. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 25(4), 242-250.
- Taylor, D. W., & Pell, K. L. (1993). Vocational evaluation curricula in rehabilitation education. *Rehabilitation Education*, 7(3), 185-194.
- Toloczko, A. M., Morgan, O. J., Hall, D., Bruch, L. A., Mullane, J., & Walck, C. (1998).Graduate training of rehabilitation counselors in the addictions: A study ofCORE-approved programs. *Rehabilitation Education*, *12*(2), 115-127.

- Trieschmann, J. S., Dennis, A. R., Northcraft, G. B., & Niemi, A. W. Jr. (2000). Serving multiple constituencies in the business school: M.B.A. program versus research performance. *The Journal of Management Journal*, 43(6), 1130-1142.
- Vander Kolk, C., & Jaques, M. E. (1972). Rehabilitation education: A pilot study. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *16*(2), 117-123.
- Vandergoot, D., & Lawrence, R. E. (1978). The coordinator role in graduate rehabilitation counselor-education programs. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 21(3), 204-207.
- Wells, G. K., & Hume, K. R. (1980). Training trainers in the VR agency: A concept that works. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 23(4), 295-298.
- Wilson, L. M., Liveneh, H., & Duchesneau, A. (2002). Disability services in higher education and rehabilitation counseling: Professional parallelism and graduate certificate program. *Rehabilitation Education*, 16(3), 283-294.
- Wright, G. N. (1982). Contemporary rehabilitation counselor education. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 25(4), 254-256.

Training-Continuing Education

# **Training-Continuing Education**

- Armstrong, A. J. (2003). Comprehensive system of personnel development (CSPD) and the online adult learner. *Rehabilitation Education*, 17(3), 171-181.
- Autry, L. H., Bitter, J. A., Brockman, R. L., Connolly, S. G., Dickerson, L. R., Elias, G. S., Jaques, M. E., Kauppi, D. R., Miller, J. H., Otto, N. R., Petring, E. J., Roberts, C. D., & Wells, G. K. (1975). RRCEP directors discuss continuing education. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 41(6), 23-26.
- Barrett, K., Flowers, C., Crimando, W., Riggar, T. F., & Bailey, T. (1997). Training never ends: Human resource development of rehabilitation administrators. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 21(1), 3-18.
- Bitter, J. A. (1978). Continuing education for new rehabilitation counselors. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 22(1), 74-77.
- Bitter, J. A., Gregg, J. G., & Jackson, W. A. (1994). Leadership training by distance. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 18(2), 81-86.
- Bruyere, S. M., & Elliott, J. K. (1979). RRCEPs and continuing education for rehabilitation personnel. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 23(2), 131-135.
- Crewe, N. M. (1994). Implications of the Americans with Disabilities Act for the training of psychologists. *Rehabilitation Education*, *8*, 9-16.
- Dew, D. W., Garcia, J. G., & Forrester, L. E. (1999). Implications of the comprehensive system of personnel development (CPDS) for rehabilitation continuing education. *Rehabilitation Education*, 13(1), 15-23.
- Eldredge, G. M., McNamara, S., Stensrud, R., Gilbride, D., Hendren, G., Siegfried, T., & McFarlane, F. (1999). Distance education: A look at five programs. *Rehabilitation Education*, 13(3), 231-248.

- Eldredge, G. M., Gerard, G., & Smart, J. (1994). A distance education model for rehabilitation counseling. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *18*(2), 75-79.
- Emener, W. G., Evans, T. D., Lowe, R. E., & Richard, M. A. (2001). Graduate certificate programs: An excellent complement to rehabilitation counselor education programs in the new millennium. *Rehabilitation Education*, 15(3), 243-255.
- Hasazi, S. B., Collins, M., Salembier, G. (1992). Building and maintaining capacity:
  Creating a statewide system of professional development for supported
  employment professionals. *Journal of Vocational Rehabilitation*, 2(4), 20-28.
- House, R. B. (1989). A new direction for rehabilitation facility administration training? [Guest editorial]. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *13*(3), 79-80.
- McFarlane, F. R. (1999). The expanded importance and expectations for lifelong learning and continuing education in rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Education*, *13*(1), 3-12.
- Moore, L., McCuller, G. L., & Salzburg, C. L. (1988). Professional skill levels of sheltered workshop staff: Selection criteria and post-employment training. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 54(3), 67-70.
- O'Brien, J. (1994). The Americans with Disabilities Act: Impact on rehabilitation postemployment training programs. *Rehabilitation Education*, 8(1), 37-46.

Peterson, V. (2006). Why continuing ed? RehabPro, 14(1), 36.

- Riggar, T. F., & Hansen, G. (1986). Problem solving, performance based continuing education: A new RCEP paradigm. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *17*(2), 47-50.
- Russell, K. V., Dudgeon, B. J., Dietz, J. C., & Johnson, K. L. (2003). Accessibility and usability of communication and organizational systems in distance learning. *Rehabilitation Education*, 17(2), 81-94.

- Schultz, J. C., & Finger, C. (2003). Distance-based clinical supervision: Suggestions for technology utilization. *Rehabilitation Education*, 17(2), 95-100.
- Stephens, J. E., & Emener, W. G. (1988). Preparing the professional rehabilitation administrator, manager and supervisor: In-service and continuing education issues and approaches. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 12(4), 106-114.
- Wilcoxon, S. A., & Hawk, R. (1990). Continuing education services: A survey of state associations of AACD. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 69(1), 93-94.

Training-Competencies

# **Training-Competencies**

- Andrew, J. D., & Robertson, J. L. (2001). Private-sector computer skills expectations for rehabilitation counselor education. *Rehabilitation Education*, 15(3), 295-300.
- Anthony, W. A. (1973). Human relations skills and training: Implications for rehabilitation counseling. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 16(3), 180-188.
- Anthony, W. A. (1974). Human relations training and rehabilitation counseling: Further implications. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *17*(3), 171-175.
- Anthony, W. A., & Carkhuff, R. R. (1970). Effects of training on rehabilitation counselor trainee functioning. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 13(4), 333-343.
- Atkinson, D. E. (1999). Rehabilitation leadership competencies for the next millennium. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 22(4), 293-296.
- Baum, D. B. (1987). Taking on the opposing expert. *Journal of Private Sector Rehabilitation*, 2(4), 201-208.
- Bolton, B., & Cook, D. (1997). The master's degree curriculum in rehabilitation counseling [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Education*, 11(3), 1-271.
- Botterbusch, K. F. (1977). The type of media playback equipment available in rehabilitation facilities. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 10(2), 32-38.
- Brown, D. (1993). Training consultants: A call to action. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72(2), 139-143.
- Cartwright, B. Y. (2001). Multicultural counseling training: A survey of COREaccredited programs. *Rehabilitation Education*, *15*(3), 233-242.

- Chan, F., Leahy, M., Chan, C., Lam, C., Hilburger, J., Jones, J., & Kamnetz, B. (1999).
   Training needs of rehabilitation counselors in the emerging mental health/managed care environment. *Rehabilitation Education*, 12(4), 333-345.
- Dew, D. W., & Phillips, B. (1990). Practitioners' perceptions of training issues related to vocational rehabilitation services to family members: A perspective for rehabilitation education. *Rehabilitation Education*, 4(3), 195-201.
- DuMars, R. C., Tillinghast, B. S., & Gilley, W. F. (1987). Retention of counseling skills in the private and public rehabilitation sectors. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 18(1), 6-8.
- Eldredge, G. M., Fried, J. H., & Grissom, J. K. (1991). Vocational evaluator training needs: Food for thought. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 24(1), 11-13.
- Elliot, T. R. (1990). Training vocational rehabilitation counselors in group dynamics: A psychoeducational model. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 68(6), 696-698.
- Gannaway, T. W., & Sink, J. M. (1979). An analysis of competencies for counselors and evaluators. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, *12*(3), 3-15.
- Glenwick, D. S., & Hallauer, D. (1976). Stranger in a not-so-strange land: Training in rehabilitation for clinical-community psychologists. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 23(3), 84-90.
- Goodwin, B. A., Taylor, D. W., Chan, F., & Currier, K. (2000). Perceived training needs of disability management specialists in five knowledge domains of disability management practice. *Rehabilitation Education*, 14(3), 229-241.

- Habeck, R. V., & Munrowd, D. C. (1987). Employer-based rehabilitation practice: An educational perspective. *Rehabilitation Education*, 1, 95-107.
- Hanley-Maxwell, C., Bordieri, J., & Everson, J. M. (1990). Issues related to the preparation of administrative personnel for supported employment roles. *Rehabilitation Education*, 4, 277-286.
- Holcomb-McCoy, C. C., & Myers, J. E. (1999). Multicultural competence and counselor training: A national survey. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 77(3), 294-295.
- Janes, M. W., & Emener, W. G. (1984). Graduates' views of instructional/competency areas in rehabilitation counselor education programs: A hypotheses generating study. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 15(2), 38-43.
- Johnson, K. L., Kelley, S. D. M., & Wilson, L. M. (1990). Training needs of job coaches. Journal of Job Placement, 6(1), 28-31.
- Johnston, C. (2006). The need for a formal training program to prepare vocational experts. *RehabPro*, *14*(1), 48-57.
- Kelley, S. D. M. (1993). Training needs in vocational assessment and adjustment:
   Organizational and occupational perspectives. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 36(3), 160-176.
- La Forge, J., & Henderson, P. (1990). Counselor competency in the courtroom. *Journal* of Counseling and Development, 68(4), 456-459.
- Lewis, S., & Patterson, J. B. (1998). Training needs of rehabilitation counselors and rehabilitation teachers in state vocational rehabilitation agencies serving individuals with visual disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 64(2), 46-50.

- Lofaro, G. A. (1983). Doctoral research in rehabilitation [Curriculum development]. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *26*(4), 240-243, 298.
- Matkin, R. E. (1987). Content areas and recommended training sites of insurance rehabilitation knowledge. *Rehabilitation Education*, *1*(4), 233-246.
- Matkin, R. E., Sawyer, H. W., Lorenz, J. R., & Rubin, S. E. (1982). Rehabilitation administrators and supervisors: Their work assignments, training needs, and suggestions for preparation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 6(4), 170-183.
- Menz, F. E., & Bordieri, J. E. (1986). Rehabilitation facility administrator training needs:
  Priorities and patterns for the 1980's. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *10*(3), 89-98.
- Milone, M. N., Jr., Collins, J. L., & Ashcroft, S. C. (1981). Personality characteristics of counselor trainees preparing for work with deaf persons. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 24(5), 354-361.
- Oetting, E. R., & Hawkes, F. J. (1974). Training professionals for evaluative research. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 52(6), 434-438.
- Patterson, J. B., & Pankowski, J. (1988). Preparing the consumer of rehabilitation administration, management, and supervision: Preservice, in-service and continuing education issues. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 12(4), 117-121.
- Porter, T. L., Rubin, S. E., & Sink, J. M. (1979). Essential rehabilitation counselor diagnostic, counseling, and placement competencies. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 10(3), 158-162.

- Rubin, S. E., & Porter, T. L. (1979). Rehabilitation counselor and vocational evaluator competencies. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 45(1), 42-45.
- Sankovsky, R., Brolin, J., & Coffey, D. (1977). Vocational evaluators identify training needs: Report of a national survey. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 10(1), 15-19.
- Saxon, J. P. (1977). Intensive interpersonal communication training: An effective method for improving rehabilitation counselor functioning. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 21(1), 47-50.
- Schiro-Geist, C., Broadbent, E., & Boyraz, G. (2006). The role of comprehensive standards in continuum of educational opportunities for rehabilitation and disabilities practitioners. *RehabPro*, 14(1), 25-29.
- Schlenoff, D. (1978). Considerations in the development of the job placement specialist. *Rehabilitation Literature, 39*(6-7), 190-192.
- Smith, C. A., & Bordieri, J. E. (1988). The provision of training and perceived training needs of rehabilitation facility production staff. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 12(3), 67-71.
- Smith, Q. W., Richards, L. K., Nosek, M. A., & Gerken, L. (1991). Education and training needs of independent living center managers. *Rehabilitation Education*, 5, 101-111.
- Souheaver, H. G, Benshoff, J. J., Wright, W. R., & Riggar, T. F. (1996). AIDS knowledge among rehabilitation professionals. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 62(2), 21-26.
- Steger, J. M. (1977). Rehabilitation counselor education and competency-based instruction. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 20(4), 260-266.

- Szymanski, E. M., Leahy, M. J., & Linkowski, D. C. (1993). Reported preparedness of certified counselors in rehabilitation knowledge areas. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 37(2), 146-162.
- Szymanski, E. M., Shafer, M. S., Danek, M. M., & Schiro-Geist, C. (1990). Supported employment in rehabilitation education. *Rehabilitation Education*, *4*, 261-276.
- Tanner, D. C., & Martin, W. E., Jr. (1986). Services and training needs in communicative problems and disorders for rehabilitation professionals serving Native Americans. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 10(4), 117-122.
- Tripp, J. E. (1976). Perceptions of state vocational rehabilitation counselors, supervisors, and administrators of core competencies for professional vocational rehabilitation counseling. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 7(2), 102-113.
- Trippany, R. L., Kress, V. E. W., & Wilcoxon, S. A. (2004). Preventing vicarious trauma: What counselors should know when working with trauma survivors. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 82(1), 31-37.
- Wright, G. N. (1987). Research on professional rehabilitation competencies [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *31*(2).

Training-Techniques

# **Training-Techniques**

- Ancis, J. R. (1998). Cultural competency training at a distance: Challenges and strategies. Journal of Counseling & Development, 76(2), 134-143.
- Bahrick, A. S., Russell, R. K., & Salmi, S. W. (1991). The effects of role induction on trainees' perceptions of supervision. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 69(5), 434-438.
- Bellini, J. L., Rumrill, Jr., P. D. (1999). Implementing a scientist-practitioner model of graduate-level rehabilitation counselor education: Guidelines for enhancing curricular coherence. *Rehabilitation Education*, 13(3), 261-276.
- Botterbusch, K. F. (1977). The type of media playback equipment available in rehabilitation facilities. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 10(2), 32-38.
- Browning, P. L., & McGovern, K. B. (1974). Technology of rehabilitation short-term training. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 18(2), 117-123.
- Byrd, E. K., Lesnik, M. J., & Byrd, P. D. (1981). A role play model for teaching supervision in rehabilitation settings. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 5(4), 137-142.
- Chan, F., & Questad, K. (1981). Microcomputers in vocational evaluation: An application for staff training. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 14(4), 153-158.
- Chan, F., Berven, N. L., & Lam, C. S. (1990). Computer-based, case-management simulations in the training of rehabilitation counselors. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 33(3), 212-228.

- Collins, N. M., & Pieterse, A. L. (2007). Critical incident analysis based training: An approach for developing active racial/cultural awareness. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 85(1), 14-23.
- Cooney, M. H. (1988). Training students to work with Hispanic clients: Bilingual/multicultural rehabilitation counseling programs. *Rehabilitation Education*, 2, 35-38.
- Crimando, W., Flowers, C. R., & Riggar, T. F. (2004). Theory-based E-learning: Using theory to enhance the success and retention of students in distance learning programs. *Rehabilitation Education*, 18(3), 185-190.
- Crimando, W., Killian, J., & Blankenship, C. (2001). The use of problem-based learning in rehabilitation education and training. *Rehabilitation Education*, *15*(3), 265-282.
- Diamonti, M. C., & Murphy, S. T. (1977). Behavioral objectives and rehabilitation counselor education: A critique. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 21(1), 51-57.
- Dowler, D. L. (1991). Project Enable: Information exchange for rehabilitation professionals. *Rehabilitation Education*, *5*(4), 315-318.
- Elliott, T. R. (1990). Training vocational rehabilitation counselors in group dynamics: A psychoeducational model. *Journal of Counseling and Development, 68*(6), 696-698.
- Emener, W. G., Jr. (1974). Improving interpersonal communication skills by programmed-machine training. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *21*(3), 95-100.
- Glover, N. M., & Welle-Graf, H. (1998). The use of multimodal teaching techniques to enhance meaningful understanding of rehabilitation concepts. *Rehabilitation Education*, 12(3), 223-225.

- Hampton, N. Z. (2002). Teaching a vocational assessment course online: Design and implementation. *Rehabilitation Education*, 16(4), 357-371.
- Heppner, P., & Johnston, J. (1994). Peer consultation: Faculty and students working together to improve teaching. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72(5), 492-499.
- Holbert, W. M., & Miller, J. H. (1970). Traditional versus experiential model for counselor education. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 1(3), 21-31.
- Luck, R. S., & Lassiter, R. A. (1978). Assertive behavior development for rehabilitation personnel: An approach to training. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 9(2), 6-9.
- MacKinnon-Slaney, F. (1994). The adult persistence model: A road map to counseling services for adult learners. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72(3), 268-275.
- Martin, J. (1985). Self-instruction: A curriculum for counseling. *Journal of Counseling* and Development, 64(2), 126-129.
- Musick, K. G. (2001). Distance education: Promoting access and equity for adult learners with disabilities. *Rehabilitation Education*, *15*(1), 63-78.
- Nadolsky, J. M. (1975). Establishment of a basis for the development of a simulation training program for vocational evaluators. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin, 8*(2), 29-41.
- NIDMAR. (2006). Learning through on-site programs, distance education, and international conferences. *RehabPro*, *14*(1), 33-34.
- Pinkard, C., Rasch, J., & Pinkard, C. (1993). Literature as a resource for rehabilitation education. *Rehabilitation Education*, 7(3), 203-208.

- Raphael, A. J., Karpf, D. A., & Sills, F. W. (1980). Human relations training program:
  Prescription for rehabilitation staff satisfaction. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 41(1-2), 16-18, 23.
- Sampson, J. P., Jr., & Krumboltz, J. D. (1991). Computer-assisted instruction: A missing link in counseling. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 69(5), 395-397.
- Sankovsky, R., & Brolin, J. (1977). New directions for training vocational evaluators. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, *10*(2), 39-44.
- Sawyer, H. W., & Allen, C. M. (1976). Microcounseling as a training model for the rehabilitation initial interview. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 7(3), 170-175.
- Sawyer, H. W., & Allen, H. A., Jr. (1980). Microtraining as a strategy in training rehabilitation administrators for the performance evaluation interview. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 4(3), 107-110.
- Schaller, J., & DeLagarza, D. (1994). Infusion of culture and gender issues in rehabilitation counselor education curricula. *Rehabilitation Education*, 8(2), 166-180.
- Schmidt, M. J., & Crimando, W. (1991). The development and formative evaluation of learner-controlled instruction. *Rehabilitation Education*, 5(3), 215-233.
- Schroeder, S. R., & Yarbrough, C. C. (1971-72). The principles of programmed instruction as a model for vocational evaluation. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 2(4), 180-186.
- Smart, J. F. (1998). Multicultural rehabilitation education: Issues of implementation. *Rehabilitation Education*, *12*(2), 129-136.

- Taylor, D., Riggar, T. F., Moore, C. L., & Turner, T. N. (1999). Long distance education/interactive television: Practical challenges. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 22(3), 165-178.
- Thomason, B., & Saxon, J. P. (1973). A reality model for rehabilitation counselor education. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 4(1), 23-32.
- Trolley, B. C. (1996). The use of active learning strategies in teaching rehabilitation counselors clinical skills. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 27(20), 46-52.
- Wood, W. M., Miller, K., & Test, D. W. (1998). Using distance learning to prepare supported employment professionals. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 64(3), 48-52.

Certification/Licensing

# **Certification/Licensing**

- Alberding, B., Lauvwer, P., & Patnoe, J. (1993). Counselor awareness of the consequences of certification and licensure. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72, 33-38.
- Bradley, L. J. (1995). Certification and licensure issues. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 74, 185-186.
- Chan, F., Parker, H. J., & Lam, C. S. (1986). Emerging professional status of vocational evaluators. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 19(4), 125-127.
- Coker, C. C. (1980). Certification for vocational evaluators: Results of the survey. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin, 13*(3), 92-97.
- Cottone, R. R. (1985). The need for counselor licensure: A rehabilitation counseling perspective. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, *63*(10), 625-629.
- Cottone, R. R., Pullen, J. R., & Wilson, W. C. (1983). Counselor licensure, confidentiality, and privileged communication: Implications for private practice in rehabilitation. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 14(2), 6-8.
- Edgar, T. E., & Davis, E. L. (1983). A proven approach to licensure. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 62(2), 70-72.
- Emener, W. G., & Cottone, R. R. (1989). Professionalization, deprofessionalization, and reprofessionalization of rehabilitation counseling according to criteria of professions. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 67(10), 576-581.
- Gerstein, L. H., & Brooks, D. K., Jr. (Eds.) (1990). The helping professions' challenge:
   Credentialing and interdisciplinary collaboration [Special feature]. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 68(5), 475-476.

- Graves, W. H. (1983). Rehabilitation counselor certification: The path toward professional recognition. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *14*(4), 24-29.
- Hardy, R. E., Luck, R. S., & Chandler, A. L. (1982). Licensure of rehabilitation counselors and related issues: Results of a national survey. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 25(3), 157-161.
- Hedgeman, B. S. (1985). Rehabilitation counselor certification. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, *63*(10), 609-610.
- Jaeger, R. M., & Frye, A. W. (1988). An assessment of the job relevance of the National Board for Certified Counselors Examination. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 67(1), 22-26.
- Joiner, J. G. (1994). NRCA certification maintenance knowledge acquisition areas. Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling, 25(4), 26-29.
- Leahy, M. J., & Holt, E. (1993). Certification in rehabilitation counseling: History and process. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *37*(2), 71-80.
- Locke, D. C. (1984). Counselor registration in North Carolina. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 63(1), 45-46.

Loesch, L. C., & Vacc, N. A. (1988). Results and possible implications of the National Board for Certified Counselors Examination. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 67(1), 17-21.

Lofaro, G. A. (1983). Doctoral research in rehabilitation (Professionalization). *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *26*(4), 243, 301.

- Lorenz, J. R., Nelipovich, M., & Wainwright, C. O. (1984). NRAA membership profile and attitudes toward certification of administrators and supervisors in rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 8(1), 13-21.
- Matkin, R. E. (1983). Credentialing the rehabilitation profession. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 49(2), 25-28.
- Matkin, R. E., Bauer, L. L., & Nickles, L. E. (1993). Personality characteristics of certified rehabilitation counselors in various work setting. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 24(3), 42-53.
- Nosel, M., Davidson, K., Zhu, Z., & Howland, C. (1992). Relationships between compliance with federal standards for independent living centers and diversity and amount of funding. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *3*(35), 190-199.
- Page, R. C., & Bailey, J. B. (1995). Addictions counseling certification: An emerging counseling specialty. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 74, 167-171.
- Patterson, J. (2002). Professionalization in rehabilitation: Certification and licensure. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 26(1), 29-38.
- Patterson, J. B., & Parker, R. M. (2003). Rehabilitation counselor education at the crossroads: Private practice or human service? *Rehabilitation Education*, 17(1), 9-17.
- Sawyer, H. W. (1976). Preparation for CARF in the rehabilitation facility. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, *9*(3), 32-35.
- Shrey, D. E. (1979). The rehabilitation counselor in industry: A new frontier. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *9*(4), 164-167.

- Skinner, A. L., & Clawson, P. (2001). A comparison of number of certified rehabilitation counselors and average caseloads and salaries of state-agency vocational rehabilitation counselors in RSA Region IV. *Rehabilitation Education*, 15(1), 55-62.
- Stone, L. A. (1985). National Board for Certified Counselors: History, relationships, and projections. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 63(10), 605-606.
- Stude, E. W. (1990). Professionalization of substance abuse counseling. Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling, 21(3), 11-15.
- Sweeney, T. J. (1995). Accreditation, credentialing, professionalization: The role of specialties. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 74, 117-125.
- Szymanski, E. M., & Leahy, M. J. (1993). Rehabilitation counseling credentialing [Special issue]. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 24(4).
- Szymanski, E. M., & Leahy, M. J. (1993). Rehabilitation counseling credentialing:Research and practice. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *37*(2), 67-70.
- Szymanski, E. M., & Linkowski, D. C. (1995). Rehabilitation counseling accreditation: Validity and reliability. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 61(1), 12-17.
- Tarvydas, V. M., Leahy, M. J. (1993). Licensure in rehabilitation counseling: A critical incident in professionalization. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 37(2), 92-108.
- Thomas, K. R. (1987). Warning!: Certification and accreditation may be hazardous to rehabilitation counseling's health. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *53*(2), 19-22.
- Thomas, K. R. (1993). Professional credentialing: A doomsday machine without a failsafe. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *37*(2), 187-193.

- Tunick, R. H., & Tseng, M. S. (1981). Professional identity, job satisfaction, and rehabilitation counselor certification. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 25(2), 74-79.
- Vacc, N., & Loesch, L. (1993). A content analysis of opinions about the national counselor examination. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 71(4), 418-421.
- VanZandt, C. E. (1990). Professionalism: A matter of personal initiative. Journal of Counseling and Development, 68(3), 243-245.
- Walker, M. L., & Myers, R. W. (1988). A counter proposal: Defining the qualified rehabilitation professional. *Rehabilitation Education*, 2, 49-57.
- Wayne, G. (1982). An examination of selected statutory licensing requirements for psychologists in the United States. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 60(7), 420-425.

Management

#### Management

- Alston, P. P. (1974). Multidiscipline group facilitation training: An aid to the team approach. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *18*(1), 21-28.
- Andrew, J., & Andrew, J. D. (1999). Sexual harassment: Employer liability clarified. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 22(3), 153-164.
- Andrew, M. J., & Andrew, J. D. (1997). Sexual harassment part 3: Internal policies, practices, and procedures. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 21(3), 151-167.
- Anderson, W., Rogers, M., & Bauer, B. (1983). Patron contact training: A workshop for personnel who meet the public. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 62(1), 39-41.
- Auvenshine, C. D. (1971). Support personnel and counseling in vocational rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *15*(2), 116-127.
- Backer, T. E. (1985). Networking in rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *51*(4), 47-50.
- Baldridge, D. C., & Veiga, J. F. (2001). Toward a greater understanding of the
  willingness to request an accommodation: Can requestors' beliefs disable the
  Americans with Disabilities Act. Academy of Management Review, 25(1), 85-99.
- Barak, A. (1994). A cognitive-behavioral educational workshop to combat sexual harassment in the workplace. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72(1), 595-602.
- Barrett K., Riggar, T. F., & Flowers, C. (1997). Violence in the workplace: Examining the risk. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 21(2), 95-114.
- Barrett, K., Riggar, T. F., & Flowers, C. (1997). Violence in the workplace: Preparing for the age of rage. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 21(3), 171-188.

- Barrett, K. E., & Crimando, W. (1996). Empowering rehabilitation employees: An analysis. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 20, 63-74.
- Barrett, K. E., Upton, T. D., & Riggar, T. F. (2001). Decision-making certainty of vocational rehabilitation impartial hearing officers. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 3(25), 129-136.
- Biggs, S., & Bowman, J. T. (1973). Applicability and efficacy of a behavioral approach to rehabilitation counseling. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 4(4), 239-246.
- Bolton, B., & Brookings, J. (1996). Development of a multifaceted definition of empowerment. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 39(4), 256-264.
- Burkhalter, B. (Guest Ed.). (2001). Succession planning in rehabilitation leadership [Special issue]. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 25(2).
- Buys, L. R., & Nelson, R. E. (1996). Impact of rehabilitation counselors' dress and language on employers' willingness to interview persons with severe disabilities, *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 20(2), 121-131.
- Buys, N. J. (1993). Management in the 1990's: A time for employer-based rehabilitation. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 17(1), 7-11.
- Chandler, A. L., Sadler, R. R., & Luck, R. S. (1982). A model for meeting informational needs of vocational rehabilitation agencies. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 43(1-2), 12-15.
- Colella. A. (2001). Coworker distributive fairness judgment of the workplace accommodation of employees with disabilities. *Academy of Management Review*, 26(1), 100-116.

- Colella, A., & Varma, A. (2001). The impact of subordinate disability on leader-member exchange relationships. *The Academy of Management Journal*, *44*(2), 304-315.
- Corrigan, P. M., Garman, A. N., Canar, J., & Lam, C. (1999). Characteristics of rehabilitation team leaders: A replication. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 42(3), 186-195.
- Corrigan, P. W., Lickey, S. E., Campion, J., & Rashid, F. (2000). A short course in leadership skills for the rehabilitation team. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 66(2), 56-58.
- Costa, L., & Altekruse, M. (1994). Duty to warn guidelines for mental health counselors. Journal of Counseling and Development, 72(4), 346-350.
- Crimando, W., Riggar, T. F., & Bernard, T. A. (2002). Delegation: A path to succession planning. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 26(3), 157-168.
- Crimando, W., Riggar, T. F., & Bordieri, J. (1988). Proactive change management in rehabilitation: An idea whose time has been. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 12(1), 20-22.
- Crisler, J. (1989). Impact of retirements on state agency rehabilitation personnel. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 55(3), 13-16.
- Cumming-McCann, A., & Accordino, M. P. (2005). An investigation of rehabilitation counselor characteristics, white racial attitudes, and self-reported multicultural counseling competencies. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin, 48*(3), 167-176.
- Danek, M. M., Power, P., Linkowski, D. C., & Mitra, S. (1985). Networking among rehabilitation education programs. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *51*(4), 51-53.
- Devience, A., Jr. (1991). Legal duties and responsibilities of administrators in third sector of American life. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *15*(1), 148-154.

- Emener, W. G., & Jernigan, J. C. (1985). Creative leadership in rehabilitation administration. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 9(3), 81-88.
- Esser, T. J. (1974). Some perspectives on report writing in the rehabilitation process. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 5(2), 92-99.
- Fabian, E. S., & Luecking, R. G. (1991). Doing it the company way: Using internal company supports in the workplace. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 22(2), 32-35.
- Farley, R. C., & Rubin, S. E. (1979). Rehabilitation counselor information exchange behavior. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 23(2), 89-94.
- Feist-Price, S. (1994). Cross-gender mentoring relationships: Critical issues. Journal of Rehabilitation, 60(2), 13-17.
- Feroz, R. F., & Katz-Garris, L. (1984). Incorporating Theory Z into rehabilitation administration. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 8(3), 84-91.
- Field, T. F., & Hecker, B. (1973). An approach to management for the professional worker. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 6(3), 20-23.
- Fisher, W., Burd, L., & Kerbeshian, J. (1985). Integrating developmental, pharmacologic, and psychological diagnoses and management through the transdisciplinary team process. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 46(9-10), 268-271.
- Forrester, R. (2000). Empowerment: Rejuvenating a potent idea. *The Academy of Management*, 14(3), 67-80.
- Freedman, S. M, & Keller, R. T. (1981). The handicapped in the workforce. Academy of Management Review, 6(3), 449-458.
- Gaines, T. R. (1979). Caseload management revisited. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *3*(3), 112-118.

- Gatlin, B. W., & Brown, C. D. (1990). Problem-solving orientations and decision-making styles among rehabilitation professionals. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 56(2), 21-26.
- Graham, C. S. (1983). The administration of safety: A modern perspective on a fundamental management responsibility. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 7(3), 103-110.
- Guthrie, J. P. (2001). High-involvement work practices, turnover, and productivity:
  Evidence from New Zealand. *The Academy of Management Journal*, 44(1), 180-192.
- Hagner, D., & Marrone, J. (1995). Empowerment issues in services to individuals with disabilities. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 6(2), 17-35.
- Hanks, D. (1994). Teamwork in rehabilitation: Learning from sports. *Journal of Rehabilitation, 60*(1), 12-16.
- Hanley-Maxwell, C., & Whitney-Thomas, J. (1995). A survey of supported employment agencies' quality improvement practices and training needs. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 39(1), 25-41.
- Harley, D. A., Donnell, C., & Rainey, J. (2003). Interagency collaboration: Reinforcing professional bridges to serve aging populations with multiple service needs. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 69(2), 32-37.
- Harley, D. A., Riggar, T. F., Jolivette, K., & Christle, C. Q. (2002). Violence in work settings: Understanding risk and developing solutions. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 26(2), 111-122.
- Hogrebe, M. C., & Dwinell, P. L. (1984). An easy and practical approach to data management. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 62(7), 411-414.

- Jaques, M. E. (1972). Rehabilitation counseling and support personnel. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 15(3), 160-171.
- Katsinas, R. P., Phillips, J. S., & Sawyer, H. W. (1987). Decision-making strategies within groups. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *11*(4), 133-138.
- Katz, N. (2001). Sports teams as a model for workplace teams: Lessons and liabilities. *The Academy of Management Executive*, 15(3), 56-69.
- Kaufmann, F. A., Harrel, G., Milam, C. P., Woolverton, N., & Miller, J. (1986). The nature, role, and influence of mentors in the lives of gifted adults. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 64(9), 576-578.
- Kenny, D. T. (1995). Case management in occupational rehabilitation: Would the real case manager stand up? *Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, 1, 104-117.
- Kivlighan, D. M. Jr., Clements, L., Blake, C., Arnzen, A., & Brady, L. (1993). Counselor sex role orientation, flexibility, and working alliance formation. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72, 95-101.
- Klein, M. A., Swisher, J. D., Lynch, R., & Krewson, C. (1982). The rehabilitation counselor and the medical consultant. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 25(4), 239-241.
- Kosciulek, J. F. (2004). Theory of informed consumer choice in vocational rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Education*, 18(1), 3-11.
- Laplace, M. A. (1983). Communication: The key to higher productivity and morale. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 7(3), 112-115.
- Latta, J. A. (1987). Excellence in rehabilitation: The leadership connection. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 11(2), 53-59.

- Latta, J. A., & Emener, W. G. (1983). State vocational rehabilitation agency leadership behavior styles. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 7(4), 141-148.
- Leung, P. & Isom, R. (2005). Diversity and succession planning in rehabilitation. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 29(2), 83-96.
- Mallik, K., & Lemaire, G. S. (2003). Quality-based strategic planning in a community rehabilitation program. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 26(4), 203-240.
- Mann, L., Beswick, G., Allouache, P., & Ivey, M. (1989). Decision workshops for the improvement of decision-making skills and confidence. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 67, 478-481.
- Margolis, H., & Fiorelli, J. S. (1984). An applied approach to facilitating interdisciplinary teamwork. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *50*(1), 13-17.
- Martin, D. G. (1971). The utilization of support personnel in rehabilitation services. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 2(1), 3-11.
- Matkin, R. E., & Riggar, T. F. (1985). The emperor's new clothes: A preppy pilot. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 46(1-2), 12-15.
- McDermott, M. J. (1993). Will the brain-injury scandal give rehab a black eye? *Rehabilitation Today*, 2(6), 24-29.
- Mello, J. A. (1995). Employment law and workers with disabilities: Implications for public sector managers and human resource practices. *Public Personnel Management*, 24(1), 75-87.
- Metrone, K. F., & Lehy, M. J. (2005). The relationship between vocational rehabilitation client outcomes and rehabilitation counselor multicultural counseling competencies. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 48(4), 233-244.

- Mitus, J. S. (2006). Organizational socialization from a content perspective and its effect on the affective commitment of newly hired rehabilitation counselors. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 72(2), 12-20.
- Morgan, C. A., & Bost, J. M. (1989). The secretary and the rehabilitation office. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 55(1), 14-17.
- Murray, G. C., Portman, T., & Maki, D. R. (2003). Clinical supervision: Developmental differences during pre-service training. *Rehabilitation Education*, 17(1), 19-32.
- Muthard, J. E., & Crocker, L. M. (1975). Rehabilitation state supervisors as knowledge users. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *19*(2), 433-443.
- Nathan, P. (1994). Who should do faculty development and what should it be? *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72(5), 508-509.
- Newman, J. (1987). Human resource management in rehabilitation [Editorial]. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 11(3), 78.
- Packard, S. H., & Kauppi, D. R. (1999). Rehabilitation agency leadership style: Impact on subordinates' job satisfaction. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 43(1), 5-11.
- Patrick, A., & Patterson, J. B. (1986). The management control system: Counselor job satisfaction and work alienation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 10, 12-18.
- Patterson, J. B. (2002). Internet applications and beliefs of state agency personnel. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 68(2), 33-38.
- Pierce, C. A., Aguinis, H., & Adams, S. K. R. (2000). Effects of a dissolved workplace romance and rater characteristics on responses to a sexual harassment accusation. *The Academy of Management Journal*, 43(5), 869-880.

- Pointer, M. P. (2004). Characteristics and leadership styles of state administrators of vocational rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 27(3&4), 83-93.
- Randolph, D. L., & Graun, K. (1988). Resistance to consultation: A synthesis for counselor-consultants. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 67(3), 182-184.
- Rasch, J. D., Hollingsworth, D. K., Saxon, J. P., & Thomas, K. R. (1984). Student recruitment issues in the 1980s. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 28(1), 46-49.
- Rawlins, M. E., & Rawlins, L. (1983). Mentoring and networking for helping professionals. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 62(2), 116-118.
- Rose, G. L., & Brief, A. P. (1979). Effects of handicap and job characteristics on selection evaluations. *Personnel Psychology*, 32(2), 385-392.
- Schott, R. L. (1999). Managers and mental health: Mental illness and the workplace. Public Personnel Management, 28(2), 161-183.
- Rideout, C. A., & Richardson, S. A. (1989). A teambuilding model: Appreciating differences using the Myers-Briggs Type Indicator with developmental theory. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 67(9), 529-533.
- Riggar, T. F., & Patrick, D. (1984). Case management and administration. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *15*(3), 29-33.
- Riggar, T. F., Crimando, W., Bordieri, J. E., & Phillips, J. S. (1990). Matrix management: Increasing applicability for rehabilitation administration. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 14(4), 113-118.
- Riggar, T. F., Eckert, J. M., & Crimando, W. (1993). Cultural diversity in rehabilitation: Management strategies for implementing organizational pluralism. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 17(2), 53-61.

- Roessler, R., & Mack, G. (1975). Strategies for expanded interagency linkages: Rehabilitation implications. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *19*(1), 344-352.
- Sample, J. A. (1984). A model for the collaborative development and use of BARS in appraising the performance of rehabilitation supervisors and counselors. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 8(3), 105-110.
- Schuetze, K. (2006). Case management: Finding common ground in a diverse field of practice. *The RehabPro*, 14(1), 18-20.
- Smiling, Q. R., Portamn, T. A. A., & Wadsworth, J. S. (2003). Collaborative focus groups in rehabilitation administration: Applying the FOCUS PDCA model to workplace violence. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 27(1), 33-41.
- Smith, Q., Richards, L., Redd, L. G., & Frieden, L. (1994). Improving management effectiveness in independent living centers through research and training. OSERS, 6(2), 30-36.
- Smits, S. J., & Ledbetter, J. G. (1979). The practice of rehabilitation counseling within the administrative structure of the state-federal program. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 10(2), 78-84.
- Solomon, J. R. (1984). The application of Japanese management strategies to rehabilitation administration. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 8(1), 4-11.
- Stanard, R., & Hazler, R. (1995). Legal and ethical implications of HIV and duty to warn for counselors: Does Tarasoff apply? *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 73(4), 397-400.
- Stillman, N. G. (1981). Conflict! Equal employment verses occupational health. Advanced Management Journal, 46(2), 16-23.

Stone, D. L., & Colella, A. (1996). A model of factors affecting the treatment of disabled

individuals in organizations. Academy of Management Reviw, 21(2), 352-401.

- Suojanen, W. W. (1977). Responsibility and professional management in vocational rehabilitation agencies: A reaction to Crawford's research. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 1(1), 21-26.
- Tansey, T. N., Salzberg, C., Swett, E. A., & Ferrin, J. M. (2006). Using bibliographic database software in mentoring doctoral candidates. *Rehabilitation Education*, 19(4), 259-264.
- Tombari, H. A. (1979). Lending a hand to the handicapped: A primer for business. *Advanced Management Journal*, 44(4), 44-51.
- Vandercook, T., York, J., & Sullivan, B. (1993). True or false? Truly collaborative relationships can exist between university and public school personnel. OSERS News In Print, 5(3), 31-37.
- Voogt, R. D., & Groteguth, M. L. (1988). Life care planning. *Rehabilitation Education*, 2(3,4), 249-250.
- Walker, M. L., & Simon, S. E. (1993). Participatory action research: A model for empowered change in rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 17(4), 142.
- Wetzel, M. C., Sheets, C. L., & McNaboe, K. A. (1996). Reforming personal planning: The Arizona Division of Developmental Disabilities Case Management Project. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 20(3), 231-245.
- Wilder, M. (1993). What every rehab professional needs to know about malpractice. *Rehabilitation Today*, *3*(2), 32-38.

Performance Appraisal

# **Performance Appraisal**

- Arnold, N. L., & Seekings, T. (1998). Rural and urban vocational rehabilitation:
  Counselors perceived strengths and problems. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 64(1), 5-13.
- Barrett, K. E., Crimando, W., & Riggar, T. F. (1994). Discipline. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 18(3), 169-185.
- Berven, N. L., & Scofield, M. E. (1980). Evaluation of professional competence through standardized simulations: A review. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 24(2), 178-202.
- Blankenship, C., & Crimando, W. (2003). Effectiveness of a performance appraisal training program in increasing knowledge and decreasing discomfort among rehabilitation supervisors. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 27(1), 11-22.
- Bolton, B. (1978). Methodological issues in the assessment of rehabilitation counselor performance. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *21*(3), 190-193.
- Bolton, B., & Rubin, S. E. (1974). A research model for rehabilitation counselor performance. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 17(3), 141-148.
- Bordieri, J. E., Crimando, W., Riggar, T. F., & Schmidt, M. J. (1992). Performance appraisal: A primer for rehabilitation managers. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 16(3), 77-82.
- Brown, C. D. (1988). Personality and interest characteristics of students enrolled in a rehabilitation services education training program. *Rehabilitation Education*, *2*, 1-7.

- Chapin, M. H., & Leahy, M. J. (1999). Factors contributing to rehabilitation counselor success in the private sector in Michigan. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 30(3), 19-28.
- Collinson, C., Flett, R., Handy, J., Brook, J., & Alpass, F. (2000). Job satisfaction in rehabilitation case managers: The role of organizational commitment and climate, occupational self efficacy, and perceived competencies. *Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, 6(2), 67-77.
- Crisler, J. R., & Barney, O. R., Jr. (1976). A comparison of rehabilitation counselor effectiveness to caseload production: Supervisory and peer evaluations. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 7(2), 114-118.
- Dale, B. E., & McDonald, A. A., Sr. (1982). Toward a comprehensive philosophy of personnel performance appraisal in rehabilitation facilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 6(2), 80-87.
- Emener, W. G., & Placido, D. (1982). Rehabilitation counselor evaluation: An analysis and critique. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 6(2), 72-76.
- English, R. W., Oberle, J. B., & Byrne, A. R. (1979). Rehabilitation counselor supervision: A national perspective [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 22(3).
- Graham, C. S. (1981). The supervisor's role in the performance appraisal process. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *5*(4), 170-178.
- Greenwood, R., & Cooper, P. (1976). The case review technique for assessing rehabilitation counselor performance. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 7(2), 124-127.

- Knapper, E. Q. (1978). Counselor accountability. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 57(1), 27-30.
- Krumboltz, J. D. (1974). An accountability model for counselors. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *52*(10), 639-646.
- Livneh, H. (1980). A model for evaluating the performance of rehabilitation counseling trainees. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *4*(3), 114-120.
- Lorenz, J. R. (1979). Setting performance objectives and evaluating individual performance in rehabilitation settings. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *3*(1), 5-12.
- Morrow, K. A, & Deidan, C. T. (1992). Bias in the counseling process: How to recognize and avoid it. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, *70*(5), 571-577.
- Phillips, J. S., Bordieri, J., Buys, N. J., & Sabin, M. C. (1987). A national survey of performance appraisal systems. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 11(3), 80-86.
- Phillips, J. S., Puckett, F. D., Smith, S. L., & Tenney, F. E. (1985). Performance appraisal: Legal concerns, interpersonal factors, and a proposed format. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 9(1), 18-25.
- Reagles, K. W. (1984). Psychological considerations inherent in a conceptual model for performance appraisal of human service professionals. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 29(1), 49-63.
- Riggar, T. F., Barrett, K. E., & Crimando, W. (1995). Applied discipline. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 19(2), 89-101.
- Riggs, R. C. (1979). Evaluation of counselor effectiveness. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 58(1), 54-61.

- Rosenthal, D. A., & Berven, N. L. (1999). Effects of client race on clinical judgment. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 42(3), 243-264.
- Sample, J. A. (1984). A model for the collaborative development and use of BARS in appraising the performance of rehabilitation supervisors and counselors. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 8(3), 105-110.
- Sather, W. S. (1985). Planning for improvement in counselor performance in the state/federal vocational rehabilitation program. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 9(1), 4-14.
- Scott, S. G., & Einstein, W. O. (2001). Strategic performance appraisal in team-based organizations: One size does not fit all. *The Academy of Management*, 15(2), 107-116.
- Simon, S. E. (1983). Work measurement methods: An approach to productivity management in the human services. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 7(4), 151-163.
- Stanger, T. S., & Tucker, C. M. (1992). Job performance of vocational counselors: The effects of feedback evaluations from colleagues and supervisors. *Rehabilitation Education*, 6, 57-66.
- Szymanski, E. M., & Parker, R. M. (1989). Competitive closure rate of rehabilitation clients with severe disabilities as a function of counselor education and experience. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 32(4), 292-299.
- Trotter, A. B., Uhlig, G. E., & Fargo, G. E. (1971). Self-actualization as a predictor of rehabilitation counselor success. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 15(1), 58-67.

- Tucker, C. M., Abrams, J. M., Chennault, S. A., Stanger, T., & Herman, K. C. (1997).The relationship between client satisfaction and rehabilitation success as measures of VR counselor performance. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 63(2), 49-53.
- Tucker, C. M., Parham, G. D., McNeill, P., & Knopf, L. G. (1988). Characteristics important for effective vocational rehabilitation administration: Views of supervisors and administrators in a state VR agency. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 12(3), 61-64.
- Weinburger, T. J. (1977). The design and implementation of a uniform staff performance evaluation instrument. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *1*(2), 26-30.
- Worrall, J. D. (1978). Weighted case closure and counselor performance. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 21(4), 325-334.

## PROFESSIONAL MANAGEMENT

Recruit, Select, Hire

#### **Recruit, Select, Hire**

- Allen, D., Turpin, J., Garske, G., & Warren-Marlatt, R. (1996). Rehabilitation counseling in the state sector: Do job descriptions accurately reflect expected duties? *Journal* of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling, 27(2), 14-17.
- Andrew, J. D., Palmer, C. D., & Faubion, C. (1998). Computer assisted personnel interviews in rehabilitation settings. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 22(1), 15-30.
- Beardsley, M. M., & Rubin, S. E. (1988). Rehabilitation service providers: An investigation of generic job tasks and knowledge. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 32(2), 122-139.
- Belgrave, F. Z., & Walker, S. (1991). Predictors of employment outcome of black persons with disabilities. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *36*(2), 111-119.
- Bishop, M., & Crystal, R. M. (2003). A human resource perspective on counselor retirement and replacement in the state-federal vocational rehabilitation program: A nationwide concern. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 26(4), 231-238.
- Bordieri, J. E., & Drehmer, D. E. (1988). Causal attribution and hiring recommendations for disabled job applicants. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *33*(4), 239-247.
- Bordieri, J. E., Drehmer, D. E., & Taylor, D. W. (1997). Work life for employees with disabilities: Recommendations for promotion. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 40(30), 181-191.
- Brown, C. D., & McDaniels, R. S. (1987). Perceived desirability of applicants having back injuries. *Journal of Private Sector Rehabilitation*, 2(2), 89-97.
- Brown, D. (1990). Facing the future: Readying rehabilitation for the year 2000. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *56*(2), 17-20.

- Cabot, S. J., & Slogoff, R. J. (1995). Interviewing an applicant with a disability. *Supervisory Management*, 40(11), 1-2.
- Crimando, W., Sanders-Henry, M., & Chandler, A. L. (1988). Underlying factors in program choice decisions by students in rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 32(1), 65-71.
- Deane, R. H. (1975). Affirmative action: A new impact. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 41(2), 23-25, 42.
- Degeneffe, C., & Bishop, M. (2004). Navigating the process of seeking and attaining a first position in rehabilitation counseling academia: Strategies for success. *Rehabilitation Education*, 18(1), 33-40.
- Drum, C. E. (1998). The social construction of personnel policy: Implications for people with disabilities. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 9(1), 125-150.
- Eckert, J. M., Falvo, D. R., Crimando, W., & Riggar, T. F. (1993). Training and orientation of certified ombudsperson volunteers for long-term care facilities. *Educational Gerontology*, 19(8), 743-752.
- Fisher, T. F., & Bender, P. A. (1995). Medical inquiry for employment before and after Title I of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990: The role of the rehabilitation counselor. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *6*, 62-65.
- Flowers, C. R., Reyes, S. S., & Riggar, T. F. (2003). Workplace aggression and violence:
  A precis on negligent hiring. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 27(1), 33-44.
- Fraser, R. T., & Austin, M. J. (1981). The new challenges of personnel selection for rehabilitation and human services. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 47(3), 62-67.

- Froehlich, R. J., Garcia, J., & Linkowski, D. C. (1998). Minimum hiring requirements for rehabilitation counselors in states: A comparison across federal regions. *Rehabilitation Education*, 12(3), 193-203.
- Gates, L. B., Akabas, S. H., Zwelling, E. (2001). Have I got a worker for you: Creating employment opportunities for people with psychiatric disability. *Administration* and Policy in Mental Health and Mental Health Services Research, 28(4), 319-325.
- Graves, W. H., & Moore, J. E. (1980). Recruitment: The neglected aspect of rehabilitation personnel management. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 4(1), 27-32.
- Green, J. H., & Brooke, V. (2001). Recruiting and retaining the best from America's largest untapped talent pool. *Journal of Vocational Rehabilitation*, *16*(2), 83-88.
- Hafer, M., & Riggar, T. (1981). Hiring guidelines for rehabilitation facilities. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 5(4), 155-160.
- Hayes, T. L., Citera, M., Brady, L.M., Jenkins, N. M. (1995). Staffing for persons with disabilities: What is 'fair' and 'job related'? *Public Personnel Management*, 24(4), 413-427.
- Jacobs, P. (1994). Help wanted. *Rehabilitation Today*, 4(3), 20-22.
- Khodarahmi, S. (1994). Job screening for safety's sake. *Rehabilitation Today*, 4(2), 20-22.
- Kundu, M. M., (1987). Marketing and placing graduates in the private sector. *Rehabilitation Education*, *1*, 191-196.
- Lehmann, I. S., & Crimando. W. (2004). Veiled barriers: Pre-employment testing and disability. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 28(1), 11-22.

- Lustig, D. C., & Strauser, D. R. (2004). Employee benefits for individuals with disabilities: The effect of race and gender. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 70(2), 38-46.
- Macan, T. H., & Hayes, T. L. (1995). Both sides of the employment interview interaction: Perceptions of interviewers and applicants with disabilities.*Rehabilitation Psychology*, 40, 261-278.
- Mason, T H., & Hayes, T. L. (1995). Both sides of the employment interview interaction:Perceptions of interviewers and applicants with disabilities. *RehabilitationPsychology*, 40(4), 261-278.
- Matkin, R. E. (1988). Immigration control, employment verification, and job placement:A legal quagmire for rehabilitation professionals. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 54(4), 56-62.
- Millington, M.J., Leierer, S., & Abadie, M. (2000). Validity and the employment expectation questionnaire: Do disability-related attitudes affect employment selection outcomes? *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 44(1), 39-47.
- Moore, S., McCuller, G. L., & Salzberg, C. L. (1988). Professional skill levels of sheltered workshop staff: Selection criteria and post-employment training. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 54(3), 67-70.
- O'Brien, G. W. (1995). Employer defenses to discriminatory actions against persons with HIV/AIDS. *Journal of Job Placement*, *11*(1), 37-41.
- Page, E. N. (1974). On hiring counselors: A vita speaks its mind. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 52(7), 471-476.
- Riggar, T. F., Barrett, K. E., & Crimando, W. (1995). Orientation reexamined. *Journal of Job Placement*, *11*(1), 20-26.

- Riggar, T. F., Crimando, W., & Bordieri, J. E. (1990). Human resource needs: The staffing function in rehabilitation-Part I. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 14(4), 99-104.
- Riggar, T. F., Crimando, W., & Bordieri, J. E. (1991). Human resource needs: The staffing function in rehabilitation-Part II. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 15(1), 135-140.
- Riggar, T. F., Hansen, G., & Crimando, W. (1987). Rehabilitation employee organizational withdrawal behavior. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *32*(2), 121-124.
- Rose, G. L., & Brief, A. P. (1979). Effects of handicap and job characteristics on selection evaluations. *Personnel Psychology*, 32(2), 385-392.
- Stillman, N. G. (1981). Conflict! Equal employment verses occupational health. Advanced Management Journal, 46(2), 16-23.
- Tansey, T. N., Bishop, M., & Smart, J. F. (2004). Recruitment in rehabilitation counseling: Maximizing benefits for graduate programs and the state-federal VR system. *Rehabilitation Education*, 18(1), 49-60.
- Thomas, L. T., & Thomas, J. E. (1985). The effects of handicap, sex and competence on expected performance, hiring and salary recommendations. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 16(1), 19-23.
- Warden, T. D. (1991). When an anthropologist supervises human services field placements. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 22(1), 11-14.
- Younes, N. (2001). Getting corporations ready to recruit workers with disabilities. Journal of Vocational Rehabilitation, 16(2), 89-91.

# PROFESSIONAL MANAGEMENT

Supervisory Management

## **Supervisory Management**

- Alleman, E., Cochran, J., Doverspike, J., & Newman, I. (1984). Enriching mentoring relationships. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 62(6), 329-332.
- Barrett, K. E., & Crimando, W. (1996). Empowering rehabilitation employees: An analysis. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 20, 63-74.

Barrett, K., Crimando, W., & Riggar, T. F. (1993). Becoming an empowering organization: Strategies for implementation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 17(4), 159-167.

- Barrett, K., Crimando, W., & Riggar, T. F. (1994). Discipline. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 18(3), 169-185.
- Barrett, K., Riggar, T. F., & Flowers, C. R. (1997). Violence in the workplace: Examining the risk. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 21(2), 95-114.
- Barrett, K., Riggar, T. F., & Flowers, C. R. (1997). Violence in the workplace: Preparing for the age of rage. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 21(3), 171-188.
- Bernier, J. E., (1980). Training and supervising counselors: Lessons learned from deliberate psychological education. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 59(1), 15-20.
- Bishop, M., Crystal, R. M., & Sheppard-Jones, K., (2003). Rehabilitation counselor recruitment and retention: Implications from a study of current counselors. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 27(1), 3-14.
- Blankenship, C., & Crimando, W. (2003). Effectiveness of a performance appraisal training program in increasing knowledge and decreasing discomfort among rehabilitation supervisors. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 27(1), 11-22.

- Boice, R. (1982). Counseling colleagues. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 61(4), 239-241.
- Borders, L. D., & Usher, C. H. (1992). Post-degree supervision: Existing and preferred practices. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, *70*(5), 594-599.
- Bordieri, J. E., Reagle, D. Y., & Coker, C. C. (1988). Job satisfaction and leadership style of rehabilitation facility personnel. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 32(2), 149-160.
- Bozarth, J. D., & Emener, W. G. (1981). A person-centered approach to administration and supervision in rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 24(4), 299-303.
- Buxbaum, J. (1988). Language and thought in supervision. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *19*(3), 44-46.
- Cabot, S. J., & Slogoff, R. J. (1995). Interviewing an applicant with a disability. *Supervisory Management, 40*(11), 1-2.
- Cobia, D. C., & Pipes, R. B. (2002). Mandated supervision: An intervention for disciplined professionals. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 80(2), 140-144.
- Costo, C., Caldwell, C., & Salazar, C. F. (2005). Creating mentoring relationships between female faculty and students in counselor education: Guidelines for potential mentees and mentors. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 83(3), 331-336.
- Devience, A., Jr. (1991). Legal duties and responsibilities of administrators in the third sector of American life. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *15*(1), 148-154.
- Ellis, M., & Douce, L. (1994). Group supervision of novice supervisors: Eight recurring issues. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72(5), 520-525.

- Emener, W. G. (1978). Clinical supervision in rehabilitation settings. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 2(2), 44-55.
- English, R. W., Oberle, J. B., & Byrne, A. R. (1979). Rehabilitation counselor supervision: A national perspective [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 22(3).
- Feist, S. M. (1994). Issues involving cross-ethnic mentoring relationships. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 18(1), 26-32.
- Fowler, C. A., & Wadsworth, J. S. (1991). Individualism and equality: Critical values in North American culture and the impact on disability. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 22(4), 19-23.
- Fraser, R. T., & Wright, G. N. (1977). Improving rehabilitation personnel management. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 43(3), 22-24.
- Frierson, J. G. (1993). The legality of medical exams and health histories of current employees under the Americans with Disabilities Act. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 17(3), 83-89.
- Frisz, R. H. (1986). Peer counseling: Establishing a network in training and supervision. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 64(7), 457-459.
- Fuchs, A. L. (1970). Group supervision: A method of professional development. *Journal* of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling, 1(1), 30-37.
- Gatlin, B. W., & Brown, C. D. (1990). Problem-solving orientations and decision-making styles among rehabilitation professionals. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *56*(2), 21-26.
- Glenn, M. K., & Christensen, J. M. (1999). Mentoring considerations. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 23(1), 63-65.

- Good, A. W. (1974). Supervision: The key to good management. *Journal of Rehabilitation, 40*(6), 13-15.
- Griffin-Shelley, E. (1985). Sexual harassment: One organization's response. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 64(1), 72-73.
- Grossi, T. A., Test, D. W., & Keul, P. K. (1991). Strategies for hiring, training, and supervising job coaches. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *57*(3), 37-42.
- Hanks, D. (1990). Improving the performance of staff specialists. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 14(2), 45-49.
- Herbert, J. T. (2005). Qualitative analysis of clinical supervision within the public vocational rehabilitation program. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 28(2), 51-74.
- Herbert, J. T., & Trusty, J. (2006). Clinical supervision practices and satisfaction within the public vocational rehabilitation program. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 49(2), 66-80.
- Herbert, J. T., & Ward, T. J. (1990). Supervisory styles among rehabilitation counseling practical supervisors. *Rehabilitation Education*, 4(3), 203-212.
- Hilton, D. B., Russell, R. K., & Salmi, S. W. (1995). The effects of supervisor's race and level of support on perceptions of supervision. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 73, 559-563.
- Holloway, E. (1994). Overseeing the overseer: Contextualizing training in supervision. Journal of Counseling and Development, 72(5), 526-530.
- Hotelling, K. (1991). Sexual harassment: A problem shielded by silence. Journal of Counseling and Development, 69(6), 497-501.

- Jackson, A. P., & Meadows, F. B., Jr. (1991). Getting to the bottom to understand the top. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 70(1), 72-76.
- James, D. T. (1973). The supervisor as counselor-facilitator. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *39*(4), 18-21.
- Kauppi, D. R., & Burganowski, D. R. (1993). Front line supervisors: The keystone in human resource development. *The Leading Edge*, 2(1), 2, 8.
- Keim, J. (1999). Workplace violence and trauma: A 21st century rehabilitation issue. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 65(1), 16-20.
- Kim, B. S. K., Liang, C. T. H., & Li, L. C. (2003). Counselor ethnicity, counselor nonverbal behavior, and session outcome with Asian American clients: Initial findings. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 81(2), 202-207.
- Krupp, J. A. (1985). Mentoring: A means of sparking school personnel. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 64(2), 154-155.
- LePine, J. A., & Van Dyne, L. (2001). Peer responses to lower performers: An attributional model of helping in the context of groups. *The Academy of Management*, 26(1), 67-84.
- Lofaro, G. A. (1983). Doctoral research in rehabilitation (Supervision). *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 26(4), 243-244, 302-303.
- Luck, R. S. (1978). The rehabilitation supervisor: Technical expert and trainer. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 2(2), 66-72.
- Lynch, R. T. (1995). Supervision in rehabilitation counseling: Applications of theory to understand supervision style and the supervisory working alliance. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 26(2), 3-11.

- Mallik, K., & Lemaire, G. S. (2003). Assessing departing employee's perceptions may lead to organizational change to reduce staff turnover. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 27(1), 23-32.
- Martin, G. (1984). Training developmentally handicapped persons as supervisors in sheltered workshops. Applied Research in Mental Retardation, 5(2), 199-218.
- Masters, M. A. (1992). The use of positive reframing in the context of supervision. Journal of Counseling and Development, 70(3), 387-390.
- Matkin, R. E. (1980). Supervisory responsibilities relating to legal and ethical issues in rehabilitation settings. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *4*(4), 133-144.
- Matkin, R. E. (1982). Preparing rehabilitation counselors to perform supervisory and administrative responsibilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 13(3), 21-24.
- Meyer, R. J., Jr. (1978). Using self-supervision to maintain counseling skills: A review. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 57(2), 95-98.
- Milite, G. (1994). Understanding 'reasonable accommodation'. *Supervisory Management*, 39(2), 1-2.
- Murray, L., Robertson, S., & Riggar, T. F. (2007). Substance abuse counselor supervision: A conundrum and a solution. *Rehabilitation Counselors & Educators Journal*, 1(1), 29-36.
- Nassar-McMillan, S. C., & Hakim-Larson, J. (2003). Counseling considerations among Arab Americans. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 81(2), 150-159.
- O'Leary-Kelly, A. M., Paetzold, R. L., & Griffin, R. W. (2000). Sexual harassment as aggressive behavior: An actor-based perspective. *The Academy of Management Review*, 25(2), 372-388.

- Osborn, C. J. (2004). Seven salutary suggestions for counselor stamina. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 82(3), 319-328.
- Patrick, A. P., & Patterson, J. B. (1986). The management control system: Counselor job satisfaction and work alienation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 10(1), 12-18.
- Patterson, J. B., & Fabian, E. (1992). Mentoring and other career enhancement relationships for women in rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 16(4), 131-135.
- Ragins, B. R., Cotton, J. L., & Miller, J. S. (2000). Marginal mentoring: The effects of type of mentor, quality of relationship, and program design on work and career attitudes. *The Journal of Management Journal*, 43(6), 1177-1194.
- Reyes, S. S., & Flowers, C. (2004). Precursors of aggression in the rehabilitation workplace. *Rehabilitation Education*, 18(1), 61.67.
- Rideout, C. A., & Richardson, S. A. (1989). A teambuilding model: Appreciating differences using the Myers-Briggs Type Indicator with developmental theory. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 67(9), 529-533.
- Riggar, T. F. (2002). Sexual harassment. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 26(1), 15-28.
- Riggar, T. F., Barrett, K., & Crimando, W. Applied discipline. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *19*(2), 89-101.
- Ronnestad, M., & Skovholt, T. (1993). Supervision of beginning and advanced graduate students of counseling and psychotherapy. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 71(4), 396-405.

- Ross, C. K. (1979). Supervision theory: A prescription for practice. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 3(1), 14-20.
- Runkel, T., & Hackney, H. (1982). Counselor peer supervision: A model and a challenge. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *61*(2), 113-115.
- Satcher, J., & McGhee, M. (1996). Organizational commitment among public agency rehabilitation counselors. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 20(3), 213-224.
- Saunders, J. L., & Peck, S. L. (2001). The code of professional ethics for rehabilitation counselors: The administrator and supervisor perspective [Special issue]. *Journal* of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling, 4(32), 20-26.
- Saxon, J. P. (1975). Communication and decision making in rehabilitation supervision. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 6(1), 21-26.
- Schechtman, Z., Hiradin, A., & Zina, S. (2003). The impact of culture on group behavior:
  A comparison of three ethnic groups. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 81(2), 208-216.
- Smits, S. J. (1972). The rehabilitation supervisor: Within or beyond our reach? *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 38(4), 22-26.
- Sparrowe, R. T., Liden, R. C., Wayne, S. J., & Kraimer, M. L. (2001). Social networks and the performance of individuals and groups. *The Academy of Management Journal*, 44(2), 316-325.
- Stebnicki, M. A. (1998). Clinical supervision in rehabilitation counseling. *Rehabilitation Education*, *12*(2), 137-159.

- Stout, J. K. (1984). Supervisors' structuring and consideration behaviors and workers' job satisfaction, stress, and health problems. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 28, 133-138.
- Sundblad, L. M. (1973). The relationship of commitment to supervisor level of functioning in rehabilitation counseling. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 16(3), 131-136.
- Swanson, J., & O'Saben, C. (1993). Differences in supervisory needs and expectations by trainee experience, cognitive style and program membership. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 71(4), 457-464.
- Tepper, B. J. (2000). Consequences of abusive supervision. *The Academy of Management Journal*, 43(2), 178-190.
- Thorenson, R., Shaughnessy, P., Heppner, P., & Cook, S. (1993). Sexual contact during and after the professional relationship: Attitudes and practices of male counselors. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 71(4), 429-434.
- Tucker, C. M., McNeill, P., Abrams, J. M., & Brown, J. G. (1988). Characteristics important to an effective supervisor: Perceptions of vocational rehabilitation staff. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 12(2), 40-44.
- Utsey, S. O., & Gernat, C. A. (2002). White racial identity attitudes and the ego defense mechanisms used by white counselor trainees in racially provocative counseling situations. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 80(4), 475-483.
- Vander Kolk, C. J. (1974). The relationship of personality, values, and race to anticipation of the supervisory relationship. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 18(1), 41-48.

- Viranyi, S., Crimando, W., Riggar, T. F., & Schmidt, M. J. (1992). Promoting mentoring relationships in rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 16(2), 56-61.
- Wade, A., & Love, R. (1978). Relationship of supervisors' flexibility and intelligence to productivity. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 2(2), 60-64.
- Weinrach, S. G., & Thomas, K. R. (1998). Diversity-Sensitive counseling today: A postmodern clash of values. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 76(2), 115-122.
- Wilkinson, A. D., & Wagner, R. M. (1993). Supervisory leadership styles and state vocational rehabilitation counselor satisfaction and productivity. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 37(1), 15-24.
- Winder, A. E., & Mugford, T. L. (1973). The autonomous supervisor. Journal of Rehabilitation, 39(4), 28-31.

PROFESSIONAL MANAGEMENT

Motivation/Merit

#### **Motivation/Merit**

- Bishop, M. (2001). Motivation to become a rehabilitation counselor with the state-federal vocational rehabilitation program: Implications for rehabilitation administrators. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 3(25), 145-150.
- Bordieri, J. E., & Riggar, T. F. (1989). Identifying and enhancing work incentives for rehabilitation facility direct service staff. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 13(3), 98-103.
- Bruyere, S. M. (1989). Focus on training. *Rehabilitation Education*, 3(3), 221-223.
- Campbell, D. J. (2000). The proactive employee: Managing workplace initiative. *The Academy of Management, 14*(3), 52-66.
- Collinson, C., Flett, R., Handy, J., Brook, J., & Alpass, F. (2000). Job satisfaction in rehabilitation case managers: The role of organizational commitment and climate, occupational self efficacy, and perceived competencies. *Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, 6(2), 67-77.
- Davis, A. H. (1983). Motivation: A rational/irrational perspective. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *14*(1), 44-51, 61.
- DiLorenzo, T., & Heppner, P. (1994). The role of an academic department in promoting faculty development: Recognizing diversity and leading to excellence. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72(5), 485-491.
- Dunn, D. J., & Allen, T. (1973). Vocational needs and occupational reinforcers of vocational evaluators. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 6(4), 22-28.
- Hafer, M. (1989). JRA assessment [Special report]. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *13*(3), 104-105.

- Harley, D. A. (2005). Sabbaticals for rehabilitation administrators: Advantages, disadvantages, and implications. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 29(2), 71-82.
- Kasser, T., Davey, J., & Ryan, R. M. (1992). Motivation and employee-supervisor discrepancies in a psychiatric vocational rehabilitation setting. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 37(3), 175-188.
- McMullen, R. S. (1973). The achievement motivation workshop. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *51*(9), 642-645.
- Osborn, C. J. (2004). Seven salutary suggestions for counselor stamina. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 82(3), 319-328.
- Ross, J. (1992). Setting up job rotation for physical therapists. *Rehabilitation Today*, 2(2), 37-41.
- Saniga, R., & Robinson, W. G., Jr. (1979). Use of merit increase systems in rehabilitation facilities in Southern Illinois. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 3(4),185-192.
- Sstejkovic, A. D., & Luthans, F. (2001). Differential effects of incentive motivators on work performance. Academy of Management Journal, 44(3), 580-590.
- Suojanen, W. W., & Spates, J. M. (1979). Motivation and career development of state vocational rehabilitation personnel. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 3(3), 119-125.

- Wilkins, R. D., & Alexander, E. R., III. (1981). Expectancy theory as an approach to the motivation of rehabilitation counselors. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 12(3), 138-142.
- Zenger, T. R., & Marshall, C. R. (2000). Determinants of incentive intensity in group-based rewards. *The Academy of Management Journal*, *43*(2), 149-163.

HUMAN RESOURCES CONCERNS

# **Working Life/Values**

- Altman, B. M., & Barnartt, S. N. (1993). Moral entrepreneurship and the promise of the ADA. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, *4*(1), 21-40.
- Barrett K., Riggar, T. F., & Flowers. (in press). Violence in the workplace: Examining the risk. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*.
- Bishop, M, & Feist-Price, S. (2002). Quality of life assessment in the rehabilitation counseling relationship: Strategies and measure. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 33(1), 35-46.
- Britton, J. O., & Thomas, K. R. (1974). Life style preferences of rehabilitation education majors. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 17(3), 149-155.
- Burnett, J. W., Anderson, W. P., & Heppner, P. P. (1995). Gender roles and self esteem: A consideration of environmental factors. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 73(3), 323-326.
- Carlson, H. N. (1977). The rehabilitation process and professional values. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, *10*(4), 48-54.
- Chan, F., Parker, H. J., Lynch, R. T., & Johnson, K. (1986). Perceived social standing of rehabilitation counselors in medical settings. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 29(3), 205-208.
- Crisler, J. (1989). Impact of retirements on state agency rehabilitation personnel 1987-1999. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *55*(3), 13-16.
- Curtis, R. S. (1998). Values and valuing in rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 64(1), 42-47.

- Doan, R. E., & Scherman, A. (1987). The therapeutic effect of physical fitness on measures of personality: A literature review. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 66(1), 28-36.
- Dougtherty, C. J. (1991). Values in rehabilitation: Happiness, freedom and fairness. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *57*(1), 7-12.
- Duchene, P. A. (1996). Stabilizing a subjective phenomena: The stress of morale fluctuations. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 20, 79-81.
- Emener, W. G. (1978). Reconciling personal and professional values with agency goals and processes. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 2(4), 166-173.
- Emener, W. G., & Stephens, J. E. (1982). Improving the quality of working life in a changing (rehabilitation) environment. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 6(3), 114-124.
- Feindel, M. (1980). A comparison of occupational values and opportunities of rehabilitation counselors and administrators. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 4(1), 14-18.
- Feldman, D., Gordon, P. A., White, M. J., & Weber, C. (2002). The effects of people-first language and demographic variables on beliefs, attitudes and behavioral intentions toward people with disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 33(3), 18-25.
- Flett, R., Biggs, H., Alpass, F. (1995). Psychological well-being and the rehabilitation professional: The interplay of job rewards and concerns. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 19, 227-237.
- Harley, D. A. (2005). Sabbaticals for rehabilitation administrators: Advantages,
  disadvantages, and implications. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 29(2), 7182.

- Hedgeman, B. S., & Zuger, R. R. (1972). Counselor comfort. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 3(2), 63-66.
- Heinemann, A. W., Frank, S., Scarpelli, J., & Jacobsen, R. (1986). Predictors of desire for involvement in a state rehabilitation association. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 30(1), 13-24.
- Henderson, S. J. (2001). "Follow your bliss": A process for career happiness. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 78(3), 305-315.
- Hindman, R. L. (1973). Informal workgroup and formal organization interaction: Possible rehabilitation outcomes. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 6(3), 35-44.
- Kelley, S. D. M., & Satcher, J. (1992). An organizational support model for rehabilitation agencies. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *16*(4), 117-121.
- Lambert, S. J. (2001). Added benefits: The link between work-life benefits and organizational citizenship behavior. *The Academy of Management Journal*, 43(5), 801-815.
- Leal-Idrago, A. (1993). Vocational rehabilitation of people of Hispanic origin. *Journal of Vocational Rehabilitation*, *3*(1), 27-38.
- Lee, W. G. (1976). A comparison of staff and patient work values in a mental health setting. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 9(3), 21-27.
- Leung, P. (1972). The changing work value and the rehabilitation counselor. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 15(4), 228-232.
- Miller, G. (2002). Maintaining hope in the face of evil. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 80(4), 503-506.

- Mitus, J. (2005). The role of organizational socialization on the affective commitment of newly hired rehabilitation counselors. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 29(1), 19-32.
- Neck, C. P., & Cooper, K. H. (2000). The fit executive: Exercise and diet guidelines for enhancing performance. *Academy of Management*, 14(2), 72-83.
- Park, H., Shafer, M. S., & Drake, L. (1993). Factors related to the working environment of employment specialists. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 59(4), 38-43.
- Pearson, J. E. (1986). The definition and measurement of social support. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 64(6), 390-395.
- Pressly, P. K., & Heesacker, M. (2001). The physical environment and counseling: A review of theory and research. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 79(2), 148-160.
- Quick, J. C., Gavin, J. H., Cooper, C. L., & Quick, J. D. (2000). Executive health: Building strength, managing risks. *Academy of Management*, *14*(2), 34-46.
- Riggar, T. F. (2002). Sexual harassment. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 26(1), 15-28.
- Roberto, K. A., Mathias-Kraft, C., & Carmichael-Schwab, D. (1995). Rehabilitation professionals' knowledge and attitudes about aging. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 19(1), 35-45.
- Robinson, R. E. (1996). The psychosocial and familial dimensions of work addiction:
  Preliminary perspectives and hypotheses. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 74(5), 447-451.

- Satcher, J. (1993). Improving quality of work life for person with learning disabilities: ADA rights and responsibilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 24(1), 16-18.
- Sciarra, D., & Gushue, G. V. (2003). White racial identity development and religious orientation. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 81(4), 473-482.
- Teague, M. L., Cipriano, R. E., & McGhee, V. L. (1990). Health promotion as a rehabilitation service for people with disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 56(1), 52-56.
- Thomas, K. R., Britton, J. O., & Kravetz, S. P. (1974). Vocational rehabilitation counselors view the Judeo-Christian work ethic. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 18(2), 105-112.
- Utsey, S. O., & Gernat, C. A. (2002). White racial identity attitudes and the ego defense mechanisms used by white counselor trainees in racially provocative counseling situations. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 80(4), 475-483.
- Weinrach, S. G., & Thomas, K. R. (1998). Diversity-sensitive counseling today: A postmodern clash of values. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 76(2), 115-122.
- Young, M. H. (1980). Perceived authority and alienation from work and expressive relations. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 4(2), 58-62.

# HUMAN RESOURCES CONCERNS

Attitudes/Discrimination

## Attitudes/Discrimination

- Alston, P. P., Wilkins, L. M., & Holbert, D. (1995). Rehabilitation counselor attitudes towards working with clients with AIDS. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 26(3), 26-29.
- Alston, R. J., & McCowan, C. J. (1994). African American women with disabilities: Rehabilitation issues and concerns. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *60*(1), 36-40.
- Alston, R. J., & McCowan, C. J. (1994). Aptitude assessment and African American clients:
   The interplay between culture and psychometrics in rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 60(1), 41-46.
- Asbury, C. A., Walker, S., Stokes, A., & Rackley, R. (1994). Psychosocial correlates of attitude toward disability and desire to work in African Americans with disabilities.
   *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 25(4), 3-8.
- Baker, L. D., & Karol, C. (1979). Employee insurance benefit plans and discrimination on the basis of handicap. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 3(2), 78-94.
- Berry, J. O., & Meyer, J. A. (1995). Employing people with disabilities: Impact of attitude and situation. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 40(3), 211-222.
- Calzaretta, W. A. (1993). The "makings" of a symposium: A cooperative effort. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 17(3), 137-138.
- Cameron, S. C., & Wycoff, S. M. (1998). The destructive nature of the term race: Growing beyond a false paradigm. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, *76*(3), 277-285.
- Carney, J., Werth, J. L., & Emanuelson, G. (1994). The relationship between attitudes toward persons who are gay and persons with AIDS, and HIV and AIDS knowledge *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72(1), 646-650.

- Casper, M. (1993). Seasons of change-The Americans with Disabilities Act: Implementation in the workplace. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *17*(3), 129-134.
- Chan, F., Parker, H. J., Johnson, K., Langton, A. J., & Corthell, D. (1986). Prestige of rehabilitation occupations: Perceptions of undergraduate rehabilitation students. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 52(1), 56-58.
- Couch, R. H., & Burdg, N. (1986). Disability labeling: A study of bias expectancy transmission. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, *19*(1), 19-22.
- Donnell, C. M., Alston, R. J., Hampton, J. L., & Bell, T. J. (1999). Ethnic and gender influences on the social acceptance of persons with disabilities by African American and white college students. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 30(1), 31-34.
- Elston, R. R., & Snow, B. M. (1986). Attitudes toward people with disabilities as expressed by rehabilitation professionals. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *29*(4), 284-286.
- Feist, S. M. (1994). Issues involving cross-ethnic mentoring relationships. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 18(1), 26-32.
- Feist-Price, S. (1995). African Americans with disabilities and equity in vocational rehabilitation services: One state's review. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 39(2), 119-129.
- Fichton, C. S., Lennox, H., Robillard, K., Wright, J., Sabourin, S., & Amsel, R. (1996).
  Attentional focus and attitudes toward peers with disabilities: Self focusing and a comparison of modeling and self-disclosure. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 27(4), 30-39.

- Franca, M. C., Flowers, C. R., Smith, L. M., & Pitt, J. S. (2007). The impact of multiculturalism in rehabilitation education. *Rehabilitation Counselors & Educators Journal*, 1(1), 51-59.
- Garske, G. G. (1996). The relationship of self-esteem to attitudes of personal attendants towards persons with disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 27, 3-6.
- Gething, L., LaCour, J., & Wheeler, B. (1994). Attitudes of nursing home administrators and nurses towards people with disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *60*(4), 66-70.
- Graf, N. M., Blakenship, C. J., Sanchez, G. & Carlson, R. (2007). Living on the line: Mexican and Mexican American attitudes toward disability. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 50(3), 153-165.
- Green, L., & Belgrave, F. (1994). Attitudinal and perceptual correlates of employment status among African Americans with disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 60(2), 28-32.
- Hahn, H. (1993). Equality and the environment: The interpretation of "reasonable accommodations" in the Americans with Disabilities Act. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 17(3), 101-106.
- Lehmann, I. S., & Crimando, W. (2004). Veiled barriers: Pre-employment testing and disability. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 28(1), 11-22.
- Leung, P. (1993). Minorities with disabilities and the Americans with Disabilities Act: A promise yet to be fulfilled. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *17*(3), 92-98.
- Luzzi, M. H., Goldin, G. J., & Stotsky, B. A. (1973). A profile of work supervisor attitudes in the rehabilitation program of the mental hospital. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 34(9), 267-271.

- Maples, M. F., Dupey, P., Terres-Rivera, E., Phan, L. T., Vereen, L., & Garrett, M. T. (2001).
  Ethnic diversity and the use of humor in counseling: Appropriate or inappropriate? *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 79(1), 53-60.
- Middleton, R. A., Flowers, C., & Zawaiza, T. (1996). Multiculturalism, Affirmative Action, and section 21 of the 1992 Rehabilitation Act Amendments: Fact or faction?
   *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 40(1), 11-30.
- Millington, M. J., Strohmer, D. C., Reid, C. A., & Spengler, P. M. (1996). A preliminary investigation of the role of differential complexity and response style in measuring attitudes toward people with disabilities. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *41*(3), 243-254.
- Moore, C. L., & Feist-Price, S. (1999). Societal attitudes and the civil rights of persons with disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *30*(2), 19-24.
- Moore, T. J., & Crimando, W. (1995). Attitudes toward Title I of the Americans with Disabilities Act. *Rehabilitation Counseling*, *38*(3), 232-247.
- Neely, C. R. (1974). Rehabilitation counselor attitudes: A study to compare the attitudes of general and special counselors. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 5(3), 153-159.
- Parker, H. J., & Chan, F. (1988). Prestige of rehabilitation occupations: Perceptions of a national sample of rehabilitation counseling students. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 54(1), 39-44.
- Patterson, J. B., & Witten, B. (1987). Myths concerning persons with disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *18*(3), 42-44.

- Pederson, L. L., & Carlson, P. M. (1981). Rehabilitation service providers: Their attitudes towards people with physical disabilities, and their attitudes towards each other. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 24(4), 275-282.
- Pitman, J., & Slate, J. (1994). Student's familiarity with and attitudes towards the rights of students who are disabled. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 25(2), 38-40.
- Richardson, T. Q., & Helms, J. E. (1994). The relationship of the racial identity attitudes of Black men to perceptions of "parallel" counseling dyads. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 73(2), 172-177.
- Rosenthal, D. A., & Berven, N. L. (1999). Effects of client race on clinical judgment. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 42(3), 243-264.
- Rosenthal, D. A., Ferrin, J. M., Wilson, L. & Frain, M. (2005). Acceptance rates of African American versus white consumers of vocational rehabilitation services: A metaanalysis. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 71(3), 36-44.
- Rosenthal, D. A., & Kosciulek, J. F. (1996). Clinical judgment and bias due to client race or ethnicity: An overview with implications for rehabilitation counselors. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 27(3), 30-36.
- Rubin, S. E., Worth, C. E., & Emener, W. G. (1981). Disabled and nondisabled persons' satisfaction with conditions in the world of work before and after the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 42(5-6), 138-142.
- Sciarra, D. & Taichang, R. M., & Wong, D. (2005). White racial identity and attitudes toward people with disabilities. *Journal of Multicultural Counseling & Development*, 33(4), 232-242.

- Siegfried, W. D., & Toner, I. J. (1981). Students' attitudes toward physical disability in prospective co-workers and supervisors. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 25(1), 20-25.
- Smart, J., & Smart, D. (1992). Cultural issues in the rehabilitation of Hispanics. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 58, 29-37.
- Solomon, M. L. (1993). Is the ADA "accessible" to people with disabilities? *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *17*(3), 109-117.
- Stageberg, D., Fischer, J., & Barbut, A. (1996). University students' knowledge of civil rights laws pertaining to people with disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 27(4), 25-29.
- Sue, D. W. (1978). Guidelines for nonsexist language in APA journals. Personnel and Guidance Journal, 56(6), 374-377.

Swanson, J. L. (1992). Sexism strikes men. American Counselor, 1(4), 10-13, 39.

- Szymanski, E., & Trueba, H. (1994). Classification of people with disabilities: Potential disempowering aspects of classification in disability services. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 60(3), 12-20.
- Ting, H. (1995). Determinate service attributes in the formulation of attributes towards rehabilitation facilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *61*(2), 72-79.
- Torkelson, R., & Groombridge, L. (1994). Person-first disability language: A pilot of public perceptions. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 60(2), 18-22.
- Utsey, S. O., Ponterotto, J. G., Reynolds, A. L., & Cancelli, A. A. (2000). Racial discrimination, coping, life satisfaction, and self-esteem among African Americans. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 78(1), 72-80.

Walters, S. E., & Baker, C. M. (1996). Title I of the Americans with Disabilities Act:
Employer and recruiter attitudes towards individuals with disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 20, 15-23.

Stress

#### Stress

- Barrow, J. C., & Prosen, S. S. (1981). A model of stress and counseling interventions. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 60(1), 5-10.
- Brodwin, M. G., Sauer, L. J., Hallberg, E., & Goldfarb, H. J. (1996). Stress within the injured worker. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 27, 13-16.
- Buys, N., & Kendall, E. (1998). Stress and burnout among rehabilitation counselors within the context of insurance-based rehabilitation: An institutional-based rehabilitation: An institutional-level analysis. *The Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, 4(1), 1-12.
- Chinnery, D., Campbell, A., Churches, S., Houston, D., King, T., & Prophet, G. (1995). Is counseling a health hazard to counselors? Occupational stress and occupational health for counselors. *The Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, 1, 61-73.
- Chwalisz, K. (1992). Perceived stress and caregiver burden after brain injury: A theoretical integration. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *37*(3), 189-203.
- Clay, D. L., Anderson, W. P., & Dixon, W. A. (1993). Relationship between anger expression and stress in predicting depression. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72, 91-94.
- Day, A. M., & Alston, P. P. (1988). Stress in primary caretakers of chronic physically disabled children and adults. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 33(2), 113-119.
- Emener, W. G., & Rubin, S. E. (1980). Rehabilitation counselor roles and functions and sources of role strain. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *11*(2), 57-69.

- Ferrari, J. R., & Jason, L. A. (1997). Caring for people with chronic fatigue syndrome: Perceived stress versus satisfaction. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 40(4), 240-250.
- Flett, R., Biggs, H., & Alpass, F. (1994). The effects of professional training on occupational stress and personal affect in rehabilitation practitioners. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 60, 39-43.
- Flett, R., Biggs, H., & Alpass, F. (1995). Job stress and professional practice: Implications for rehabilitation educators. *Rehabilitation Education*, 9(4), 275-291.
- Flowers, C. R., & Crimando, W. (2005). Perceived academic preparation, stressors, and coping strategies among rehabilitation educators. *Rehabilitation Education*, 18(4), 211-222.
- Frank, M. L. (2000). What's so stressful about job relocation? *Academy of Management*, *14*(2), 122.
- Gwin, L. (1992). Rehabilitating the rehabilitation professionals. *Rehabilitation Education*, 6(3), 245-249.
- Iwaski, Y, & Mactavish, J. B. (2005). Ubiquitous yet unique: Perspectives of people with disabilities on stress. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulleting*, 48(4), 194-208.
- Jaremko, M. E. (1984). Stress inoculation training: A generic approach for the prevention of stress-related disorders. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *62*(9), 544-550.
- Kampfe, C. M., & Mitchell, M. M. (1992). Stressors associated with master's level rehabilitation counselor internships. *Rehabilitation Education*, *6*, 11-19.

- Keller, R. T. (2001). Cross-functional project groups in research and new product development: Diversity, communications, job stress, and outcomes. Academy of Management Journal, 44(3), 547-555.
- Layne, C. M., Hohenshil, T. H., & Singh, K. (2004). The relationship of occupational stress, psychological strain, and coping resources to the turnover intentions of rehabilitation counselors. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 48(1), 19-30.
- Lightsey, O. R., Jr., & Christopher, J. C. (1997). Stress buffers and dysphoria in a nonwestern population. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 75(6), 451-459.
- Marini, I., Todd, J., & Slate, J. R. (1995). Occupational stress among mental health employees. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *19*(2), 123-130.
- Romano, J. L. (1984). Stress management and wellness: Reaching beyond the counselor's office. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 62(9), 533-537.
- Rubin, S. E., & Emener, W. G. (1979). Recent rehabilitation counselor role changes and role strain-a pilot investigation. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 10(3), 142-147.
- Sawyer, H. W., & Schumacher, B. (1980). Stress and the rehabilitation administrator. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *4*(2), 49-56.
- Smart, J. F., & Smart, D. W. (1994). The rehabilitation of Hispanics experiencing acculturative stress: Implications for practice. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 60(4), 8-12.
- Smart, J. F., & Smart, D. W. (1995). Acculturative stress of Hispanics: Loss and challenge. Journal of Counseling and Development, 73(4), 390-396.
- Sowa, C. J. (1992). Understanding clients' perceptions of stress. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, *71*(2), 179-183.

- Sparks, D., & Ingram, M. J. (1979). Stress prevention and management: A workshop approach. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 58(3), 197-200.
- Staats, T. E., & Hendler, N. (1984). Occupational and psychosocial stressors as related to health problems: Implications for the rehabilitation counseling process. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 15(4), 23-26, 56.
- Stanley, S. R., & Saxon, J. P. (1980). Occupational stress: Implications for vocational rehabilitation counseling. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 46(2), 56-59.
- Stebnicki, M. A. (2000). Stress and grief reactions among rehabilitation professionals:Dealing effectively with empathy fatigue. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 66(1), 22-29.
- Szymanski, E. M., Parker, R. M., Hanley-Maxwell, C., & Koch, W. R. (1989). Dimensions of role strain between rehabilitation counselors and job coaches. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 33(2), 90-99.
- Vander Kolk, C. J. (1977). Counselor stress in relation to disabled and minority clients. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 20(4), 267-274.
- Zarski, J. J., Bubenzer, D. L., & West, J. D. (1986). Social interest, stress, and the prediction of health status. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, *64*(6), 386-389.

Burnout

### Burnout

- Arthur, N. M. (1990). The assessment of burnout: A review of three inventories useful for research and counseling. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, *69*(2), 186-189.
- Bloom, K. D., Buhrke, R. A., & Scott, T. B. (1988). Burnout and job expectations of state agency rehabilitation counselors in North Dakota. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 19(3), 32-36.
- Boy, A. V., & Pine, G. J. (1980). Avoiding counselor burnout through role renewal. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *59*(3), 161-163.
- Buys, N., & Kendall, E. (1998). Stress and burnout among rehabilitation counselors within the context of insurance-based rehabilitation: An institutional-level analysis. *The Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, 4(1), 1-12.
- Clanton, L. D., Rude, S. S., & Taylor, C. (1992). Learned resourcefulness as a moderator of burnout in a sample of rehabilitation providers. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 37(2), 131-140.
- Cranswick, K. (1997). Burnout: A stress of levels of burnout and factors responsible for burnout in rehabilitation workers. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 21(2), 119-134.
- Dilley, J. S. (1983). Does a turned-off light bulb lose its potential to glow? *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 62(2), 86-88.
- Elliott, T. R., Shewchuk, R., Hagglund, K., Rybarczyk, B., & Harkins, S. (1996).
  Occupational burnout, tolerance for stress, and coping among nurses in rehabilitation units. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *41*(4), 267-284.

- Emener, W. G., Jr. (1979). Professional burnout: Rehabilitation's hidden handicap. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 45(1), 55-58.
- Emener, W. G., Luck, R. S., & Gohs, F. X. (1982). A theoretical investigation of the construct burnout. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 6(4), 188-196.
- Florian, V., & Zernicky-Shurka, E. (1986). Vocational instructor burnout in two national rehabilitation systems in Israel. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 17(1), 41-44.
- Forney, D. S., Wallace-Schutzman, F., & Wiggers, T. T. (1982). Burnout among career development professionals: Preliminary findings and implications. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 60(7), 435-439.
- Garte, S. H., & Rosenblum, M. L. (1978). Lighting fires in burned-out counselors. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 57(3), 158-160.
- Goodman, J. (1992). Beating burnout. American Counselor, 1(2), 11-12, 27.
- Krakinowski, L. (1992). Preventing burnout. Rehabilitation Today, 2(3), 18-23.
- Lambie, G. W. (2007). The contribution of ego development level to burnout in school counselors: Implications for professional school counseling. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 85(1), 82-88.
- Macnamara, S. E., Gummow, L. J., Goka, R., & Gregg, C. H. (1990). Caregiver strain: Need for late poststroke intervention. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 35(2), 71-78.
- Maher, E. L. (1983). Burnout and commitment: A theoretical alternative. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *61*(7), 390-393.
- Marini, I., Pell, K., & Black, D. (1992). Job coach burnout: Perceived stressors and solutions. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 16(4), 124-128.

- Maslach, C., & Florian, V. (1988). Burnout, job setting, and self-evaluation among rehabilitation counselors. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *33*(2), 85-93.
- Miller, M., Thoreson, R. W., & Kunce, J. T. (1989). Burnout and recovering status in alcohol rehabilitation treatment providers. *Rehabilitation Education*, *3*(2), 145-154.
- Nadolsky, J. M. (1987). Rehabilitation and wellness: In need of integration [Editorial]. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 53(2), 5-7.
- Payne, L. M. (1989). 1989 Graduate Literary Award Contest winner: Preventing rehabilitation counselor burnout by balancing the caseload. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 55(4), 20-24.
- Riggar, T. F., Garner, W. E., & Hafer, M. (1984). Rehabilitation personnel burnout: Organizational cures. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 8(3), 94-104.
- Riggar, T. F., Godley, S. H., & Hafer, M. (1984). Burnout and job satisfaction in rehabilitation administrators and direct service providers. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 27(3), 151-161.
- Rimmerman, A. (1989). Burnout among beginning rehabilitation workers in Israel and its relationship to social support, supervision, and job satisfaction. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 32(3), 243-247.
- Savicki, V., & Cooley, E. (1987). The relationship of work environment and client contact to burnout in mental health professionals. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 65(5), 249-252.
- Savicki, V., & Cooley, E. J. (1982). Implications of burnout research and theory for counselor educators. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *60*(7), 415-419.

- Spicuzza, F. J., & De Voe, M. W. (1982). Burnout in the helping professions: Mutual aid groups as self-help. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *61*(2), 95-98.
- Stevens, M. J., & Pfost, K. S. (1983). A problem-solving approach to staff burnout in rehabilitation settings. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 27(2), 101-107.
- Trevor, C. O. (2000). Interactions among actual ease-of-movement determinants and job satisfaction in the prediction of voluntary turnover. *The Academy of Management Journal*, 44(4), 621-638.
- Ursprung, A. W. (1986). Burnout in the human services: A review of the literature. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *29*(3), 190-199.
- Ursprung, A. W. (1986). Incidence and correlates of burnout in residential service settings. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *29*(4), 225-239.
- Van Auken, S. (1979). Youth counselor burnout. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 58(2), 143-144.
- Warnath, C. F., & Shelton, J. L. (1976). The ultimate disappointment: The burned-out counselor. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 55(4), 172-175.
- Watkins, C. E., Jr. (1983). Burnout in counseling practice: Some potential professional and personal hazards of becoming a counselor. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 61(5), 304-308.
- Wilkerson, K., & Bellini, J. (2006). Intrapersonal and organizational factors associated with burnout among school counselors. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 84(4), 440-450.

Mental Health

### Mental Health

- Alston, R. J., Bell, T. J., & Feist-Price, S. (1996). Racial identity and African Americans with disabilities: Theoretical and practical considerations. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 62(2), 11-15.
- Anonymous (1991). Sexual harassment: A female counseling student's experience. *Journal* of Counseling and Development, 69(6), 502-506.
- Ashby, J. S., & Lenhart, R. S. (1994). Prayer as a coping strategy for chronic pain patients. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *39*(3), 205-209.
- Barclay, J. R. (1984). Primary prevention and assessment. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 62(8), 475-478.
- Barrett, K. E., Riggar, T. F., & Flowers, C. R. (1997). Violence in the workplace: Examining the risk. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 21(2), 95-114.
- Barrett, K. E., Riggar, T. F., & Flowers, C. R. (1997). Violence in the workplace: Preparing for the age of rage. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 21(3), 171-188.

Bruyere, S. M. (1989). Focus on training. *Rehabilitation Education*, 3(3), 221-223.

- Chinnery, D., Campbell, A., Churches, S., Houston, D., King, T., & Prophet, G. (1995). Is counseling a health hazard to counselors? Occupational stress and occupational health for counselors. *The Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, *1*(1), 61-73.
- Cowen, E. L. (1984). A general structural model for primary prevention program development in mental health. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 62(8), 485-490.
- Duchene, P.A. (1996). Stabilizing a subjective phenomena: The stress of morale fluctuations. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 20, 79-81.

- Dwyer, D. J., & Fox, M.L. (2000). The moderating role of hostility in the relationship between enriched jobs and health. *The Academy of Management Journal*, 43(6), 1086-1096.
- Falvo, D. (1991). Medical and Psychosocial Aspects of Chronic Illness and Disability.Gaithersburg, MD: Aspen.
- Finley, M. H., & Lee, A. T. (1981). The terminated executive: It's like dying. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 59(6), 382-384.
- Flett, R., Biggs, H., & Alpass, F. (1995). Psychological well-being and the rehabilitation professional: The interplay of job rewards and concerns. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 19(3), 227-237.
- Hendrick, S. S. (1990). A client perspective on counselor disclosure (brief report). *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 69(2), 184-185.
- Herring, R. D.(1994). Substance use among Native American youth: A selected review of causality. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72(1), 578-584.
- Kirsh, B. (2000). Work, workers, and workplaces: A qualitative analysis of narratives of mental health consumers. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 66(4), 24-30.
- Kline, Jr., J., & Sussman, L. (2000). An executive guide to workplace depression. A Academy of Management, 14(3), 103-114.
- Lattanzi, M. E. (1981). Coping with work-related losses. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 59(6), 350-351.
- Layne, C.M., Hohenshil, T. H., & Singh, K. (2004). The relationship of occupational stress, psychological strain, and coping resources to the turnover intentions of rehabilitation counselors. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 48(1), 19-30.

- Leonards, J. T. (1981). Corporate psychology: An answer to occupational mental health. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *60*(1), 47-51.
- McLoughlin, C. S., Friedson, W. S., & Murray, J. N. (1983). Personality profiles of recently terminated executives. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 62(4), 226-229.
- Nadolsky, J. M. (1987). Rehabilitation and wellness: In need of integration. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 53(2), 5-7.
- Pearson, J. E., & Long, T. J. (1982). Counselors, nutrition, and mental health. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 60(7), 389-392.
- Thurman, C. W. (1984). Cognitive-behavioral interventions with Type A faculty. *Personnel* and Guidance Journal, 62(6), 358-362.

Job Satisfaction

#### Job Satisfaction

- Atkins, B. J., Meyer, A. B., & Smith, N. K. (1982). Personal care attendants: Attitudes and factors contributing to job satisfaction. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 48(3), 20-24.
- Barrett, K., Riggar, T. F., Crimando, W., Flowers, C., & Bailey, T. (1997). The turnover dilemma: A disease with solutions. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 63(2), 36-42.
- Biggs, H., Flett, R., Voges, K., & Alpass, F. (1995). Job satisfaction and distress in rehabilitation professionals: The role of organizational commitment and conflict. *Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, 26(1), 41-46.
- Bordieri, J. E., & Peterson, S. L. (1988). Job satisfaction of direct-care workers in community residential facilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *54*(3), 62-66.
- Bordieri, J. E., Reagle, D. Y., & Coker, C. C. (1988). Job satisfaction and leadership style of rehabilitation facility personnel. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *32*(2), 149-160.
- Brinson, L. C., & Alston, P. P. (1973). Graduate and undergraduate training: A comparison of the impact on counselor performance and job satisfaction. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 4(2), 110-117.
- Brown, D. (2002). The role of work and cultural values in occupational choice, satisfaction, and success: A theoretical statement. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 80(1), 48-56.
- Collinson, C., Flett, R., Handy, J., Brook, J., & Alpass, F. (2000). Job satisfaction in rehabilitation case managers: The role of organizational commitment and climate, occupational self efficacy, and perceived competencies. *Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, 6(2), 67-77.

- Crawford, P. W. (1977). Job satisfaction and organizational structure in state rehabilitation agencies. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *1*(1), 16-20.
- Farrugia, G. (1986). Job satisfaction among private and public sector rehabilitation practitioners. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *10*(1), 4-10.
- Faubion, C. W., Palmer, C. D., & Andrew, J. D. (2001). Rural/urban differences in counselor satisfaction and extrinsic job factors. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 4(67), 4-12.
- Garske, G. G. (1995). Self-reported levels of job satisfaction of vocational rehabilitation professionals: A descriptive study. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 19(3), 215-224.
- Garske, G. (1996). The relationship of self-esteem to levels of job satisfaction of vocational rehabilitation professionals. *Journal of Applied Counseling*, 27(2), 19-22.
- Garske, G. G. (1999). Rehabilitation counselor job satisfaction: Self-reported rating and recommendations. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 23(1), 21-29.
- Garske, G. G. (2000). The significance of rehabilitation counselor job satisfaction. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *31*(3), 10-13.
- Garske, G. G. (2002). Rehabilitation counselor self-reported levels of job satisfaction, self esteem, and attitudes towards persons with disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *33*(1), 3-6.
- Houser, R., & Chace, A. (1993). Job satisfaction of people with disabilities placed through a project with industry. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 59(1), 45-48.
- Kauppi, D. R., Ballou, M., Jaques, M. E., Gualtieri, J. J., & Blum, C. R. (1983). Job satisfaction predictors of rehabilitation counseling graduates. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 26(5), 336-341.

- Kirkman, B. L., & Shapiro, D. L. (2001). The impact of cultural values on job satisfaction and organizational commitment in self-managing work teams: The mediating role of employee resistance. *Academy of Management Journal*, 44(3), 557-569.
- Ladany, N., Ellis, M. V., & Friedlander, M. L. (1999). The supervisory working alliance, trainee self-efficacy, and satisfaction. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 77(4), 447-455.
- Lam, C. S., & Chan, F. (1988). Job satisfaction of sheltered workshop clients. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 54(3), 51-54.
- Lofaro, G. A. (1983). Doctoral research in rehabilitation (Career satisfaction). *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 26(4), 293-294.
- Mallik, K., & Lemaire, G. S. (2003). Assessing departing employee's perceptions may lead to organizational change to reduce staff turnover. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 27(1), 23-32.
- McAfee, J. K. (1986). The handicapped worker and job satisfaction. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 19(1), 23-28.
- Mitus, J. (2005). The role of organizational socialization on the affective commitment of newly hired rehabilitation counselors. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 29(1), 19-32.
- Moore, S. C., Godbolt, F., Schwartz, M., Moriber, L., & Salzberg, C. L. (1991). Factors contributing to the attrition of supported employment job coaches. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 57(2), 47-50.

- Muthard, J. E., & Morris, J. D. (1976). Predicting long term job satisfaction and persistence among rehabilitation counselors. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 7(1), 27-34.
- Packard, S. H., & Kauppi, D. R. (1999). Rehabilitation agency leadership style: Impact on subordinates' job satisfaction. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 43(1), 5-11.
- Park, H., Shafer, M. S., & Drake, L. (1993). Factors related to the working environment of employment specialists. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 59(4), 38-43.
- Patrick, A. P., & Patterson, J. B. (1986). The management control system: Counselor job satisfaction and work alienation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 10(1), 12-18.
- Phillips, J. S. (1983). Job satisfaction among state directors of vocational rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 7(2), 54-60.
- Raphael, A. J., Karpf, D. A., & Sills, F. W. (1980). Human relations training program:Prescription for rehab staff satisfaction. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 41(1-2), 16-18, 23.
- Satcher, J., & Mcghee, M. (1996). Organizational commitment among public agency rehabilitation counselors. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 20(3), 213-224.
- Shalley, C. E., Gilson, L. L. & Blum, T. C. (2000). Matching creativity requirements and the work environment: Effects of satisfaction and intentions to leave. *The Academy of Management Journal*, 43(2), 215-223.
- Stelmach, M., Postma, J, Goldstein, S., & Shepard, K. F. (1981). Selected factors influencing job satisfaction of attendants of physically disabled adults. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 42(5-6), 130-137.

- Szymanski, E. M., & Parker, R. M. (1995). Rehabilitation counselor work motivation, job performance, and job satisfaction: An exploratory study. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 19(1), 51-63.
- Taricone, P., Janikowski, T., & Bordieri, J. (1992). Factors affecting job retention and turnover among substance abuse providers. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 16(2), 49-53.
- Trevor, C. O. (2001). Interactions among actual ease-of-movement determinants and job satisfaction in the prediction of voluntary turnover. *The Academy of Management Journal*, 44(4), 621-638.
- Tunick, R. H., & Tseng, M. S. (1981). Professional identity, job satisfaction, and rehabilitation counselor certification. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 25(2), 74-79.
- Wilkinson, A. D., & Wagner, R. M. (1993). Supervisory leadership styles and state vocational rehabilitation counselor job satisfaction and productivity. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 37(1), 15-24.
- Zhou, J., & George, J.M. (2001). When job dissatisfaction leads to creativity: Encouraging the expression of voice. *The Academy of Management Journal*, 44(4), 682-696.

### **General Concerns**

- Baldridge, D. C., & Veiga, J. F. (2001). Toward a greater understanding of the willingness to request an accommodation: Can requestors' beliefs disable the Americans with Disabilities Act. Academy of Management Review, 25(1), 85-99.
- Benshoff, J. J., Janikowski, T. P., Taricone, P. F., & Brenner, J. S. (1990). Alcohol and drug abuse: A content analysis of the rehabilitation literature. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 21(4), 9-12.
- Barrett, K. E., Riggar, T. F., & Flowers, C. R. (1997). Violence in the workplace: Preparing for the age of rage. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *21*(3), 171-188.
- Berkowitz, M. (1990). Should rehabilitation be mandatory in workers' compensation programs? *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, *1*(1), 63-80.
- Bishop, M., Crystal, R. M., & Sheppard-Jones, K. (2003). Rehabilitation counselor recruitment and retention: Implications from a study of current counselors. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 27(1), 3-14.
- Brubaker, D. R. (1981). Identity and organizational problems in professional rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 47(1), 54-58.
- Campion, M. A., & Mitchell, M. M. (1986). Management turnover: Experiential differences between former and current managers. *Personnel Psychology*, 39(1), 57-69.
- Cassell, J. L. (1985). Disabled humor: Origin and impact. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 51(4), 59-62.
- Chan, F., Parker, H. J., Lynch, R. T., & Johnson, K. (1986). Perceived social standing of rehabilitation counselors in medical settings. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 29(3), 205-208.

- Clark, W. D., & Knowlton, R. G. (1980). Is a regular exercise program important for rehabilitation administrators? *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 4(2), 72-74.
- Colella. A. (2001). Coworker distributive fairness judgment of the workplace accommodation of employees with disabilities. *Academy of Management Review*, 26(1), 100-116.
- Colella, A., Paetzold, R. L., & Belliveau, M. A., Hollenbeck, J. (2004). Factors affecting coworker' procedural justice inferences of the workplace accommodations of employees with disabilities. *Personnel Psychology*, 57(1), 1-23.
- Cook, D. (1990). Characteristics and concerns of American Rehabilitation Counseling Association members. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *34*(2), 149-154.
- Crimando, W., Hansen, G., & Riggar, T. F. (1986). Employee turnover: The scope of a state DVR personnel problem. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *10*(4), 124-128.
- Crimando, W., Riggar, T. F., & Hansen, G. (1986). Personnel turnover: The plague of rehabilitation facilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *17*(2), 17-20.
- Crisler, J. (1989). Impact of retirements on state agency rehabilitation personnel. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 55(3), 13-16.
- Elvira, M. M., & Cohen, L. E. (2001). Location matters: A cross-level analysis of the effects of organizational sex compositions on turnover. *The Academy of Management Journal*, 44(4), 591-605.
- Feroz, R. (2007). Issue awareness: Rehabilitation counselor salary parity. *Rehabilitation Counselors & Educators Journal*, 1(1), 6-7.
- Freedman, S. M, & Keller, R. T. (1981). The handicapped in the workforce. *Academy of Management Review*, 6(3), 449-458.

- Fujiura, G. T., Yamaki, K., & Czechowicz, S. (1998). Disability among ethnic and racial minorities in the United States: A summary of economic status and family structure. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, (2), 111-130.
- Greenwood, R., Marr, J. N., Roessler, R. T., & Rowland, P. S. (1980). The social climate of a rehabilitation center: Implications for organizational development. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 4(1), 20-24.
- Guthrie, J. P. (2001). High-involvement work practices, turnover, and productivity: Evidence from New Zealand. *The Academy of Management Journal*, 44(1), 180-192.
- Heitzman, A. T. (1989). Increasing productivity and decreasing insurance costs: Prevention and intervention plan development for employers. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 13(3), 81-84.
- Hollenbeck, J. R., & Llgen, D. R. (1992). Lower back disability in occupational settings:A review of the literature from a human resource management view. *Personnel*Psychology, 45(2), 247-278.
- Hom, P. W., Griffeth, R. W., & Sellaro, C. L. (1984). The validity of Mobley's (1974) model of employee turnover. *Organizational Behavior and Human Performance*, 34, 141-174.
- Hurst, J. C., Moore, M., Davidshofer, C., & Delworth, U. (1976). Agency directionality and staff individuality. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *54*(6), 313-317.
- Irzinski, S. M., & Hylbert, K. W. (1970). Factors related to counselor turnover in the public programs. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *13*(3), 300-309.
- Jamal, M. (1984). Job stress and job performance controversy: An empirical assessment. Organizational Behavior and Human Performance, 33, 1-21.

- Jones, L. K. (1996). A harsh and challenging world of work: Implications for counselors. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 74(5), 453-459.
- Kilbury, R., Bordieri, J., & Wong, H. (1996). Impact of physical disability and gender on personal space. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 62(2), 59-61.
- Kim, P. S. (2006). An analysis of the employment of persons with disabilities in the Korean government: A comparative study with the American federal government. *Public Personnel Management*, 35(1), 15-31.
- Latack, J. C. (1984). Career transitions within organizations: An exploratory study of work, nonwork, and coping strategies. *Organizational Behavior and Human Performance*, *34*, 296-322.
- Ledbetter, J., Jr., Parmley, R. J., & Chastain, R. M. (1975). Rehabilitation services through contractual agreement: Legal and psychological considerations. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 6(3), 144-158.
- Majumder, R. K., Fullmer, S. L., Dowler, D. L., Walls, R. T., & Bua-lam, P. (1993). In search of morale in vocational rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 17(1), 15-19.
- Miller, L. A., & Roberts, R. R. (1979). Unmet counselor needs from ambiguity to the Zeigarnik effect. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *10*(2), 60-66.
- Moore, J. E. (2000). Why is this happening? A causal attribution approach to work exhaustion consequences. *The Academy of Management Review*, 25(2), 335-349.
- Neubert, D. A., & Krishnaswami, U. (1992). Supported employment programs in Maryland: Personnel issues and training needs. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 58(1), 43-48.

- Pistole, M. C., & Arricale, F. (2003). Understanding attachment: Beliefs about conflict. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 82(3), 318-328.
- Rosse, J. G., & Hulin, C. L. (1985). Adaption to work: An analysis of employee health, withdrawal, and change. *Organizational Behavior and Human Decision Processes*, 36, 324-347.
- Simon, L., Gaul, R., Friedlander, M. L., & Heatherington, L. (1992). Client gender and sex role: Predictors of counselors' impressions and expectations. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 71(1), 48-52.
- Simone, D. H., & McCarthy, P., & Skay, C. L. (1998). An investigation of client and counselor variables that influence likelihood of counselor self-disclosure. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 76(2), 174-182.
- Smart, J., & Smart, D. (1992). Cultural issues in the rehabilitation of Hispanics. Journal of Rehabilitation, 58, 29-37.
- Stone, D. L., & Colella, A. (1996). A model of factors affecting the treatment of disabled individuals in organizations. *Academy of Management Reviw*, 21(2), 352-401.
- Upton, T. D., Benshoff, J., & McFarlane, F. (2004). Empowerment beliefs of rehabilitation educators: Relevance for rehabilitation administration. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 28(1), 35-46.
- Wells, G. K. (1978). The identity conflict of the first-line supervisor. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 2(4), 160-164.
- Wofford, J. C., & Srinivasan, T. N. (1983). Experimental tests of the leader-environmentfollower interaction theory of leadership. *Organizational Behavior and Human Performance*, 32, 35-54.

Woohams, C., & Danieli, A. (2000). Disability and diversity – a difference too far?

Personnel Review, 29(3), 402-417.

Women in Rehabilitation

## Women in Rehabilitation

- Altamaier, E. M., Greiner, M., & Griffin-Pierson, S. (1988). The new scholarship on women. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 66(7), 345-346.
- Ancis, J. R., & Phillips. S. D. (1996). Academic gender bias and women's behavioral agency self-efficacy. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 75(2), 131-137.
- Andrew, M. J., & Andrew, J. D. (1997). Sexual harassment part 3: Internal policies, practices, and procedures. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 21(3), 151-167.
- Andrew, M. J., & Andrew, J. D. (1997). Sexual harassment part 2: Employer liability. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 21(2), 79-94.
- Andrew, M. J., & Andrew, J. D. (1997). Sexual harassment: The law. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 21(1) 23-42.
- Barker, J. T. (1982). Women as leaders in the field of rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 48(1), 9-18, 68-70.
- Barker, J. T., & Disponett, K. B. (1977). Women in rehabilitation management. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 1(2), 17-22.
- Beardsley, M. M., Onstott, K. L., & Ashley, J. M. (1986). The effect of sex on salaries of certified rehabilitation counselors. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 30(2), 94-101.
- Brown, J. F. (1993). Helping black women build self-esteem. *American Counselor*, 2(1), 9-11.
- Carter, R. T., & Parks, E. E. (1996). Womanist identity and mental health. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 74(5), 484-489.
- Chusmir, L. H. (1983). Characteristics and predictive dimensions of women who make nontraditional vocational choices. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 62(1), 43-47.

- Cianni, M., & Weitz, A. D. (1986). The technological society: Implications for women in the workplace. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, *64*(8), 501-503.
- Danek, M. M. (1992). The status of women with disabilities revisited. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 23(4), 7-13.
- Danek, M. M., & Lawrence, R. E. (1985). Women in rehabilitation: An analysis of state agency services to disabled women. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 16(1), 16-18.
- Davenport, D. S., & Yurich, J. M. (1991). Multicultural gender issues. *Journal of Counseling* and Development, 70(1), 64-71.
- Enns, C. Z., & Hackett, G. (1993). A comparison of feminist and nonfeminist women's and men's reactions to nonsexist and feminist counseling: A replication and extension. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 71(5), 499-509.
- Fabian, E. S., & Patterson, J. B. (1991). Authorship and editorship of women in rehabilitation journals: Is there gender equity? *Rehabilitation Education*, 5(3), 179-183.
- Godley, S. H., Hafer, M., Riggar, T. F., & Maki, D. R. (1983). Gender and job function:Differences in salary, educational levels, and experience. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 7(1), 22-25.
- Hampton, N. Z., & Crystal, R. (1998). Gender differences in acceptance of disability among vocational rehabilitation consumers. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 30(1), 16-21.
- Harrison, D. K., & Wayne, B. (1986). Gender and rehabilitation accessibility. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 10(2), 50-56.

- Hays, P. (1996). Addressing the complexities of culture and gender in counseling. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 74, 300-306.
- Hollingsworth, D. K., & Mastroberti, C. J. (1983). Women, work, and disability. *Personnel* and Guidance Journal, 61(10), 587-591.
- Hill, N. R., Linbaugh, T., Bradley, C., & Hazler, R. (2005). Female counselor educators:
  Encouraging and discouraging factors in academia. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 83(3), 374-380.
- Ihle, G. M., Sodowsky, G. R., & Kwong-Liem, K. (1996). World views of women:Comparisons between White American clients, White American counselors, andChinese international students. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 74, 300-306.
- Kelly, K. R., & Jordan, L. K. (1990). Effects of academic achievement and gender on academic and social self-concept: A replication study. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 69(2), 173-177.
- Lewis, V. G., & Borders, L. D. (1995). Life satisfaction of single middle-aged professional women. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 74(1), 94-100.
- Long, V. O., & Martinez, E. A. (1994). Masculinity, femininity, and Hispanic professional womens' self esteem and self acceptance. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 73(2), 183-186.
- Moore, D. L. (2005). Expanding the view: The lives of women with severe work disabilities in context. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 83(3), 343-348.
- Murray, S. E, & Keenan, D. (1992). The role of women as leaders in rehabilitation: Changing to meet the times. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *23*(4), 34-38.

- Myers, J. E., & Wedl, L. C. (1985). Women in rehabilitation: Publication track records. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *51*(4), 63-66.
- Nelson, D. L., & Burke, R. J. (2000). Women executives: Health, stress, and success. *The Academy of Management, 14*(2), 107-121.
- Nelson, M. L. (1996). Separation versus connection, the gender controversy: Implications for women. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 74, 339-334.
- O'Neil, J. M., & Carroll, M. R. (1988). A gender role workshop focused on sexism, gender role conflict, and the gender role journey. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 67(3), 193-197.
- Ossana, S. M., Helms, J. E., & Leonard, M. M. (1992). Do "womanist" identity attitudes influence college self-esteem and perceptions of environmental bias? *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 70(3), 402-408.
- Padula, M. A. (1994). Reentry women: A literature review with recommendations for counseling and research. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 73(1), 10-15.
- Petersen, S. (2000). Multicultural perspective on middle-class women's identity development. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 78(1), 63-71.
- Riggar, T. F. (2002). Sexual harassment. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 26(1), 15-28.
- Roland, C. B., & Fontanesi-Seime, M. (1996). Women counselor educators: A survey of publication activity. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 74(5), 490-494.
- Smart, J. F. (2001). The role of women in rehabilitation counselor education [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Education*, *15*(1), 1-9.

- Thompson-Barker, J., & Bresch-Disponett, K. (1977). Women in rehabilitation management. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 1(2), 17-22.
- Thoreson, R. W., Shaugnessy, P., & Frazier, P. A. (1995). Sexual contact during and after professional relationships: Practices and attitudes of female counselors. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 74(1), 84-89.
- Thurer, S. L. (1982). Women and rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *43*(7-8), 194-197, 207.
- Vogel, D. L., Epting, F., & Weser, S. R. (2003). Counselors' perceptions of female and male clients. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 81(2), 131-141.
- Westbrook, M. T., Legge, V., & Pennay, M. (1995). Ethic differences in expectations for women with physical disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 26(4), 26-33.
- White, A. (1984). Where have all the women writers gone? *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 62(10), 631-636.
- Williams, C. B. (2005). Counseling African American women: Multiple identities multiple constraints. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 83(3), 278-283.

FISCAL MANAGEMENT

#### **Fiscal Management**

- Barrett, B. (1993). Tips on writing proposals for staffing and capital equipment. *Rehabilitation Today*, *3*(2), 39-45.
- Barry, P. C., II. (1981). The use of budgeting as a management tool in rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *5*(3), 85-92.
- Bernstein, D. (1992). 12 strategies to strengthen relations with insurers. *Rehabilitation Today*, 2(7), 39-46.
- Carter, W. H., & Meenach, L. (1977). Zero-base budgeting and program evaluation. *Journal of Rehabilitation, 43*(1), 18-20, 47-48.
- Cox, B. D., & Elsea, J. E. (1991). Statement of cash flows for rehabilitation facilities: The missing link. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 15(2), 162-167.
- Lipson, M. J. (1978). The licensure and third-party certification of rehabilitation and chronic disease hospitals. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 2(1), 27-30.
- Mallik, K., & Lemaire, G. S. (2003). Quality-based strategic planning in a community rehabilitation program. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 26(4), 203-240.
- Remley, T. P., Jr. (1993). Consultation contracts. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72(2), 157-158.
- Spears, M. O. (1979). Acquisition-the politics of the rehabilitation budget. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *3*(4), 193-196.
- Weber, W. F., & Allen, C. Another way to make capital budgeting decisions in the rehabilitation facility. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 9(4), 131-134.

Wilson, K. B., Turner, T., Liu, J., Harley, D. A., & Alston, R. J. (2002). Perceived vocational rehabilitation service efficacy by race/ethnicity: Results of national customer survey. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 33(3), 26-34. **PRODUCTION MANAGEMENT** 

## **Production Management**

- Benson, J., Phillips, J. S., Lorenz, J. R., & Stover, D. (1986). Innovation in the products and services of sheltered workshops. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 10(1), 22-29.
- Elicker, A., & Schneider, S. (2000). Production-oriented education and training of the mentally disabled in sheltered employment (PIONIER). *Disability &*Rehabilitation, 22(4), 206-210.
- DeRoo, W. M., & Haralson, H. L. (1971). Increasing workshop production through selfvisualization on videotape. *Mental Retardation*, 9(4), 22-25.
- Hildebrand, R. G., Martin, G. L., Furer, P., & Hazen, A. (1990). A recruitment of praise package to increase productivity levels of developmentally handicapped workers. *Behavior Modification*, 14(1), 97-113.
- Martin, G. (1980). A supervisory strategy to improve work performance for lower functioning retarded clients in a sheltered workshop. *Journal of Applied Behavior Analysis*, 13(1), 183-190.
- Melstrom, M. A. (1982). Social ecology of supervised communal facilities for mentally disabled adults: VII Productivity and turnover rate in sheltered workshops.American Journal of Mental Deficiency, 87(1), 40-47.
- Simon, S. E. (1982). Productivity measurement and evaluation in rehabilitation and social service agencies. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *6*(4), 161-166.
- Todd, H. C., & Decker, R. S. (1978). Applications of predetermined time standards in rehabilitation facilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 2(3), 126-132.

Tsang, H., & Chiu, I. Y. (2000). Development and validation of the workshop behavior

checklist: A scale for Assessing work performance of people with severe mental

illness. International Journal of Social Psychiatry, 46(2), 110-121.

### **Evaluation**

- Alonso, R., & Autry, L. H. (1977). Rehabilitation administration: Creativity and accountability. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 1(4), 4-10.
- Arnold, N. L., Seekins, T., & Nelson, R. E. (1997). A comparison of vocational rehabilitation counselors: Rural urban differences. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 41(1), 2-14.
- Auvenshine, C. D., & Mason, E. J. (1982). Needs assessment in planning rehabilitation services. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 6(2), 56-61.
- Bellini, J., Bolton, B., & Neath, J. (1998). Operationalizing multiple services over extended time as a measure of service intensity. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 22(1), 47-66.
- Betz, N. E., Wohlgemuth, E., Serling, D., Harshbarger, J., & Klein, K. (1995). Evaluation of a measure of self-esteem based on the concept of unconditional self-regard. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 74(1), 76-83.
- Biller, E. F., & White, W. J. (1989). Comparing special education and vocational rehabilitation in serving persons with specific learning disabilities. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 33(1), 4-17.
- Blackwell, T. L., & Guglielmo, D. D. (2001). Ethics and assessment. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 32(1), 10-14.
- Bolton, B. (2001). Measuring rehabilitation outcomes. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *44*(1), 10-14.
- Boschen, K. A. (1984). Issues in evaluating vocational rehabilitation programs. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 29(1), 37-48.

Bozarth, J. D. (1974). Reactions on evaluation. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 5(3), 143-147.

- Bozarth, J. D., & Rubin, S. E. (1975). Empirical observations of rehabilitation counselor performance and outcome: Some implications. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 19(1), 294-299.
- Brown, M., Diller, L., Gordon, W. A., Fordyce, W. E., & Jacobs, D. F. (1984). Rehabilitation indicators and program evaluation. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 29(1), 21-35.
- Burck, H. D., & Peterson, G. W. (1975). Needed: More evaluation, not research. *Personnel* and Guidance Journal, 53(8), 563-569.
- Burg, M. A., Crandall, L. A., & Muthard, J. E. (1988). The impact of benefit entitlements, health perceptions and work attitudes on the labor force commitment of disabled persons. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 12(1), 5-10.
- Carter, W. H., & Meenach, L. (1977). Zero-base budgeting and program evaluation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *43*(1), 18-20, 47-48.
- Cartwright, B., & Kim, B. S. K. (2006). Selected factors associated with quality employment outcomes. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 72(3), 41-47.
- Chan, F., Rubin, S. E., Lee, G., Miller, S. M., & Cheng. Z. (2003). A theoretical and operational framework for enhancing counselor and consumer involvement in rehabilitation planning and program evaluation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 27(1), 45-57.
- Christian, W. P. (1981). Programming quality assurance in residential rehabilitation settings:A model for administrative work performance standards. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 5(1), 26-34.

- Christian, W. P. (1981). The biannual report: A model for structuring human service program evaluation and dissemination. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 5(3), 108-114.
- Cook, D. W. (1989). Systematic need assessment: A primer. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 67(8), 462-464.
- Cooper, M., & Parker, L. (1975). Accountability and the future of rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *41*(1), 18-21.
- Cope, R., McCreery, A. M., & Milstein, S. (1987). Indicators of commercial vitality among rehabilitation facilities: Results and recommendations from ten case studies. *Journal* of Rehabilitation Administration, 11(3), 88-96.
- Coven, A. B. (1977). Accountability in rehabilitation: The need for a humanistic model. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 7(4), 228-236.
- Crisler, J. R., & Edwards, J. N. (1980). Outcome measurement in the management control project. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 46(2), 31-35.
- Crystal, R. M. (1982). Analysis of model evaluation units' conceptual frameworks. *Journal* of *Rehabilitation Administration*, 6(2), 65-70.
- Crystal, R. M., & La Forge, J. (1981). Evaluation standards related to the goals of the rehabilitation program. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *5*(2), 61-66.
- DeCaro, J. J., Clarcq, J. R., Walter, G. G., Welsh, W. A., & Reilly, D. (1988). A methodology for utilizing federal data sources in program evaluation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 54(3), 46-50.
- Dolan, J. (1982). Ethics and politics of program evaluation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 6(2), 49-53.

- DuMars, R. C., Tillinghast, B. S., & Gilley, W. F. (1987). Retention of counseling skills in the private and public rehabilitation sectors. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 18(1), 6-8.
- Dunham, M. D., Schrader, M. P., & Dunham, K. S. (2000). Vocational rehabilitation outcomes of adults with co-morbid borderline IQ and specific learning disabilities. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 66(4), 31-36.
- Emener, W. G., Mars, M. G., & Schmidt, J. F. (1984). Client feedback in rehabilitation counselor evaluation: A field-based, professional development application. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 15(1), 33-39.
- Fabian, C. W., & Andrew, J. (2000). A systems analysis of the case coordinator model and on outcomes analysis in supported employment. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 43(2), 75-83, 96.
- Fabian, E. S. (1991). Using quality-of-life indicators in rehabilitation program evaluation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 34(4), 344-356.
- Fabian, E. S., & Waugh, c. (2001). A job development efficacy scale for rehabilitation professionals. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 67(2), 42-47.
- Flynn, R. J. (1984). Introduction to the special issue on program evaluation. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 29(1), 5-10.
- Frey, D. H., Raming, H. E., & Frey, F. M. (1978). The qualitative description, interpretation, and evaluation of counseling. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 56(10), 621-625.
- Gibbs, R. L., Dodd, J. M., Hecimovic, A., & Nickoloff, E. (1996). Managed care administrators' opinion of vocational rehabilitation services. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 27, 42-44.

- Goodyear, D. L., & Bitter, J. A. (1974). Goal attainment scaling as a program evaluation measure in rehabilitation. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 5(1), 19-26.
- Granello, P. F., & Witner, J. M. (1998). Standards of care: Potential implications for the counseling professional. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, *76*(4), 371-80.
- Hagner, D., Noll, A., & Donovan, L. E. (2002). Identifying community employment program staff competencies: A critical incident approach. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 68(1), 45-51.
- Hawryluk, A. (1974). Rehabilitation gain: A new criterion for an old concept. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *35*(11), 322-329.
- Heimlich, K. (2001). Animal-assisted therapy and the severely disabled child: A quantitative study. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, *4*(67), 48-54.
- Hester, E. J., & Decelles, P. G. (1991). A comprehensive analysis of private sector rehabilitation services and outcomes for Workers' Compensation claimants. *Journal* of Job Placement, 7(2), 5-10.
- Hill, M., & Ruth, D. (1992). Improving quality and attacking costs of employment services:
  A radical example of diversity management. *Journal of Vocational Rehabilitation*, 2(2), 73-84.
- Hoffman, D. L., Rowley, D. J., & House, R. B. (1989). An overview of strategic planning for human service organizations. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 13(4), 123-130.
- Honeycutt, T. C., & Brucker, D. (2006). Developing a screening tool to predict disability program participation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 72(2), 21-32.

- Karan, O. C., & Gardner, W. I. (1973). Vocational rehabilitation practices: A behavioral analysis. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 34(10), 290-299.
- Kenny, D. T. (1995). Patterns of referral to accredited rehabilitation providers and outcomes of service. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 26(4), 46-52.
- Kilgore, K. M. (1993). Rehabilitation outcome analysis: Two minds in search of a brain. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 17(2), 36-37.
- Koch, L. C., & Merz, M. A. (1995). Assessing client satisfaction in vocational rehabilitation program evaluation: A review of instrumentation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 61(4), 24-30.
- Kosciulek, J. F., Rosenthal, D., Vessell, R., Accardo, C. M., & Merz, M. A. (1997).
   Consumer satisfaction with vocational rehabilitation services. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 63(2), 5-9.
- Kravetz, S., Florian, V., & Wright, G. N. (1985). The development of a multifaceted measure of rehabilitation effectiveness: Theoretical rationale and scale construction. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 30(4), 195-208.
- Krumboltz, J. D. (1974). An accountability model for counselors. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 52(10), 639-646.
- Kuipers, P., & Quinn, R. (2003). The template: A cooperative approach to evaluating community rehabilitation services. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 69(1), 4-14.
- Kunce, J. T., Miller, D. E., & Cope, C. S. (1974). Macro data analysis and rehabilitation program evaluation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 17(3), 132-140.
- Lee, L. A., & Heppner, P. P. (1991). The development and evaluation of a sexual harassment inventory. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 69(6), 512-517.

- Lewis, A. (2005). Using data to improve outcomes in rehabilitation practice. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 29(1), 43-56.
- Lewis, A., Armstrong, A. J., & Karpf, A. S. (2005). Using data to improve outcomes in rehabilitation practice. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 29(2), 107-120.
- Livneh, H. (1988). Assessing outcome criteria in rehabilitation: A multi-component approach. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *32*(1), 72-94.
- Lofaro, G. A. (1983). Doctoral research in rehabilitation (Program evaluation). *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 26(4), 280-285.
- Lusky, J. B., & Hayes, R. L. (2001). Collaborative consultation and program evaluation. Journal of Counseling & Development, 79(1), 26-38.
- Martin, T. J. (1999). Evaluation: The image of effective implementation of human resource development principles in rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Education*, *13*(1), 69-77.
- Mathews, R. M., Petty, C. R., & Fawcett, S. B. (1990). Rating consistency on successive statewide assessments of disability concerns. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, *1*(1), 81-88.
- McDaniel, R. S., & McDaniel, N. B. (1988). The effect of the Auburn BehavioralClassification training program on three observational methodologies. *Rehabilitation Education*, 2, 39-47.
- McDaniel, R. S., Swanzy, C. M., Porter, T. H., & McDaniel, N. B. (1988). Actual, perceived, and ideal job performance criteria for vocational evaluators in rehabilitation facilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 12(1), 12-17.
- McFarlane, F. R. (1989). An epilogue: Strategic planning in rehabilitation: What is the future? *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *13*(4), 184-186.

- Meyers, N. L. (1972). Setting objectives: Management goal. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 38(2), 26-28.
- Nosek, M. A., Fuhrer, M. J., & Hughes, S. O. (1991). Perceived counselor credibility by persons with physical disability: Influence of counselor disability status, professional status, and the counseling content. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *36*(3), 153-161.
- Patrick, D. C., & Riggar, T. F. (1985). Organizational behavior management: Applications for program evaluation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *9*(3), 100-105.
- Peterson, G. W., & Burck, H. D. (1982). A competency approach to accountability in human service programs. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *60*(8), 491-495.
- Phillips, L. J., & Stuifbergen, A. K. (2006). Predicting continued employment in persons with multiple sclerosis. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 72(1), 35-43.
- Pulvino, C. J., & Sanborn, M. P. (1972). Feedback and accountability. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 51(1), 15-20.
- Reagles, K. W., & O'Neill, J. (1977). Single-subject designs for client groups: Implications for program evaluation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 21(1), 13-22.
- Reed, J. M., Holloway, L. L., Leung, P. & Menz, F. E. (2005). Latino VR access rates by disability type and proportions in the general population with disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *36*(2), 33-41.
- Ridley, C. R., & Mendoza, D. W. (1993). Putting organization effectiveness into practice: The pre-eminent consultation task. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72(2), 168-177.

- Robitschek, C., & Hershberger, A. R. (2005). Predicting expectations about counseling:
  Psychological factors and gender implications. *Journal of Counseling Development*, 83(4), 457-469.
- Russell, T. G., Rowe, W., & Smouse, A. D. (1991). Subliminal self-help tapes and academic achievement: An evaluation. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 69(4), 359-362.
- Sandow, D., Rhodes, L., Mank, D. M., Ramsing, K. D., & Lynch, W. F. (1990). Assuring quality in supported employment. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 14(1), 20-25.
- Saxon, J. P., Spitznagel, R. J., & Shellhorn-Schutt, P. K. (1983). Indicators of successful vocational rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 49(3), 69-72.
- Schalock, R. L., & Harper, R. S. (1983). Untying some Gordian knots in program evaluation. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 7(1), 12-19.
- Schwab, A. J., & DiNitto, D. M. (1993). Factors related to the successful vocational rehabilitation of substance abusers. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 24(3), 11-20.
- Selby, D. (1977). Accountability: Why and how. Challenge and responsibility of sheltered workshops and other rehabilitation facilities today. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 43(2), 25-27.
- Sexton, T. L., & Whiston, S. C. (Eds.). (1996). Counseling outcome research: Implications for practice. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 74(6), 588-624.

- Shipley, R. W., Taylor, S. M., & Falvo, D. R. (1990). Concurrent evaluation and rehabilitation of alcohol abuse and trauma. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 21(3), 37-39.
- Simon, S. E. (1982). Productivity measurement and evaluation in rehabilitation and social service agencies. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *6*(4), 161-166.
- Smith, C. A., & Bordieri, J. E. (1988). The provision of training and perceived training needs of rehabilitation facility production staff. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 12(3), 67-71.
- Spaniol, L. (1977). A program evaluation model for rehabilitation agencies and facilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 1(3), 4-14.
- Struthers, R. D. (1977). A benefit/cost model developed in a state vocational rehabilitation agency. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 1(3), 26-38.
- Szymanski, E. M., & Danek, M. M. (1992). The relationship of rehabilitation counselor education to rehabilitation client outcome: A replication and extension. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 58(1), 49-56.
- Szymanski, E. M., Johnston-Rodriguez, S., Millington, M. J., Rodriguez, B. H., & Lageren, J. (1995). The paradoxical nature of disability services: Illustrations from supported employment and implications for rehabilitation counseling. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 26(2), 17-22.
- Thomas, J. R., & Coffey, K. (1996). Outcome analysis and the uniform data system for medical rehabilitation: Using the UDS. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 20(3), 175-188.

- Thornton, C. (1992). Uncertainty in benefit-cost analysis of supported employment. *Journal of Vocational Rehabilitation*, 2(2), 62-73.
- Todad, P., Race, K., & Hotch. D. (1994). Focus groups: A tool for consumer based program evaluation in rehabilitation agency settings. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *60*(3), 30-33.

Toriello, P. J., Morse, P., Morse, E. V., Keferl, J., & Pedersen-Wasson, E. (2006).
Facilitating the adoption of empirically-supported substance abuse interventions with a continuous quality improvement model: A case study. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 30(4), 241-252.

- Trantow, D. J. (1970). An introduction to evaluation: Program effectiveness and community need. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *31*(1), 2-10.
- Truitt, C. P., & Vandergrift, J. B. (1980). A comparison of bureaucratic and professional expectations for casework accountability. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 4(2), 64-70, 80.
- Vander Kolk, C. J. (1993). Client self-report: Assessment of accuracy. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 24(3), 22-25.
- Walker, M. L. (1979). The university as forum for community rehabilitation planning. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 22(4), 357-360.
- Wheaton, J. E., & Berven, N. L. (1994). Education, experience, and caseload management practices of counselors in a state vocational rehabilitation agency. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 38(1), 44-58.
- Wheaton, J. E., Wilson, K. B., & Brown, S. M. (1996). The relationship between vocational rehabilitation services and the consumer's sex, race, and closure status. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 40(2), 116-133.

- Wilkinson, W., Frieden, L., & Smith, Q. (1994). Implications of the ADA for the training of independent living center personnel. *Rehabilitation Education*, 8(1), 47-58.
- Wilson, K. B., Turner, T., & Jackson, R. L. II (2002). Vocational rehabilitation services received after successful closure: A comparison by race. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 33(1), 26-34.
- Young, J. S., Wiggins-Grame, M., & Cashwell, C. S. (2007). Spirituality and counselor competence: A national survey of American Counseling Association members.
   *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 85(1), 47-52.

Programs

#### Programs

- Arella, L. R., Deren, S., Randall, J., & Brewington, V. (1990). Increasing utilization of vocational services in methadone maintenance treatment programs: Results of a oneyear intervention. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 21(2), 45-57.
- Astramovish, R. L., & Coker, J. K. (2007). Program evaluation: The accountability bridge model for counselors. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 85(2), 162-172.
- Baer, R., Simmons, T., Flexer, R., & Smith, C. (1994). A study of the costs and benefits of supported employment for persons with severe physical and multiple disabilities.
   *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 18(1), 46-57.
- Barkley, A. L., Pixley, F., & Walker, C. (1976). Industrial therapy: A study of success rates over an eight-year period. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *37*(5), 130-140.
- Beveridge, S. F. (2006). Public vocational rehabilitation outcomes: A study on the relationship between rehabilitation goals and employment outcomes. *RehabPro*, 14(1), 59-65.
- Biller, E. F., & White, W. J. (1989). Comparing special education and vocational rehabilitation in serving persons with specific learning disabilities. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 33(1), 4-17.
- Bishop, J. B., & Trembley, E. L. (1987). Counseling centers and accountability: Immovable objects, irresistible forces. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 65(9), 491-494.
- Boeltzig, H. (2005). Working together: The role of community-based disability organizations within the one-stop delivery system. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 29(1), 3-18.

- Bolton, B. (1974). A factor analysis of personal adjustment and vocational measures of client change. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *18*(2), 99-105.
- Budde, J. F., Petty, C. R., Nelson, C., & Couch, R. W. (1986). Evaluating the impact of independent living centers on consumers and the community. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 52(2), 68-72.
- Byington, K., Fischer, J., Walker, L., & Freedom, E. (1997). Evaluating the effectiveness of a multicultural counseling ethics and assessment training. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 28(4), 15-19.
- Carter, A. (1984). Evaluating facility effectiveness (From the practitioner's point of view). *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 17(4), 138-139.
- Chan, F., Rubin, S. E., Lee, G., & Pruett, S. R. (2003). Empirically derived life skills factors for program evaluation in rehabilitation. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 34(4), 15-22.
- Cobb, J. T., Jr. (1980). 1980 Georgia VEWAA faculty survey of staff/client ratios and staff utilization. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, *13*(4), 154-156.
- Coker, C. C., & Valley, J. (1995). Costing employment models. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *19*, 199-213.
- Conte, L., Murphy, S. T., & Nisbet, J. (1989). A qualitative study of work stations in industry. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 55(2), 53-61.
- Cope, R., McCreery, A. M., & Milstein, S. (1987). Indicators of commercial vitality among rehabilitation facilities: Results and recommendations from ten case studies. *Journal* of Rehabilitation Administration, 11(3), 88-96.

- Crystal, R. M., & Williams, K. (1986). Readiness of rehabilitation clients in Kentucky to participate in job training partnership act programs. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 10(3), 101-107.
- Cull, J. G., & Hardy, R. E. (1971). State rehabilitation administrators' views on psychological evaluation. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 32(3), 78-80.
- Cull, J. G., & Levinson, K. F. (1977). State rehabilitation administrators' views on psychological evaluation: A five-year follow-up study. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 38(6-7), 203-205.
- Dunham, M. D., Koller, J. R., & McIntosh, D. E. (1996). A preliminary comparison of successful and nonsuccessful closure types among adults with specific learning disabilities in the vocational rehabilitation system. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 62(1), 42-47.
- Edwards, L. A., & Misra, S. (1989). A framework for determining the cost-effectiveness of computerized information systems (CIS) in rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 13(2), 59-66.
- Fisher, J., Williams, K., Byington, K., & Lonsdale, M. (1996). The re-employment of the sexual addict/offender program: An evaluation. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 27, 33-36.
- Flynn, R. J., Glueckauf, R. L., Langill, G. F., & Schacter, G. (1984). Program evaluation in Canadian rehabilitation facilities for physically disabled persons: A national survey. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 29(1), 11-20.
- Galvin, D. E. (1989). Strategic planning in medical rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *13*(4), 162-166.

- Gamble, D. (2001). A quantitative analysis of client and service data from a PAIR program. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 4(67), 31-37.
- Geist, G. O., Hershenson, D. B., & Hafer, M. (1975). Rehabilitation counselor training: A program evaluation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *19*(1), 305-315.
- Gibbs, W. E. (1990). Alternative measures to evaluate the impact of vocational rehabilitation services. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *34*(1), 33-43.
- Graham, C. S. (1980). An effectiveness measure for work adjustment: Providing evidence of impact. Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin, 13(3), 98-102.
- Hall, R. (1997). California's workers' compensation vocational rehabilitation program: Client factors related to outcomes and costs. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 21(3), 191-206.
- Hanley-Maxwell, C., & Bordieri, J. E. (1989). Purchasing supported employment: Evaluating the service. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 20(3), 4-11.
- Hefferin, E. A., & Katz, A. H. (1971). Issues and orientations in the evaluation of rehabilitation programs: A review article. I. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 32(3), 66-75.
- Hefferin, E. A., & Katz, A. H. (1971). Issues and orientations in the evaluation ofrehabilitation programs: A review article. II. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *32*(4), 98-108.
- Hein, S., Lustig, D. C., & Uruk, A. (2005). Consumers' recommendations to improve satisfaction with rehabilitation services: A qualitative study. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 49(1), 29-39.
- Hester, E. D., & Decelles, P. G. (1991). A comprehensive analysis of private sector rehabilitation services and outcomes for workers' compensation claimants. *Journal of Job Placement*, 7(2), 5-10.

- Hernandez, B., Cometa, M. J., Rosen, J., Velcoff, J., Schober, D., Luna, R. D. (2006).
  Employment, vocational rehabilitation, and the ticket to work program; Perspectives of Latinos with disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *37*(3), 13-22.
- Holloway, L. (2002). Community rehabilitation programs: Assessing effectiveness using the competing values approach to organization analysis. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 26(3), 181-192.
- Jones, M. L., Petty, C. R., Bolles, C., & Mathews, R. M. (1986). Independent living: A survey of program and service needs. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 29(4), 278-283.
- Kay, H. B., Jr. (1977). Service systems and program evaluation. Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin, 10(4), 40-47.
- Kelley, S, D., Emener, W. G., & Wright, T. J. (1995). An analysis of differential employment specialist personnel across four types of rehabilitative job placement programs. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 19(3), 185-194.
- Kennedy, J., & Olney, M. F. (2006). Factors associated with workforce participation among SSDI beneficiaries. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 72(4), 24-30.
- Kim, K. M., Fox, M. H., & White, G. W. (2006). Comparing outcomes of persons choosing consumer directed or agency-directed personal assistance-services. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 72(2), 32-43.
- Kohlenberg, B., & Watts, M. W. (2003). Considering work for people living with HIV-AIDS:
  Evaluation of a group employment counseling program. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 69(1), 22-29.

- Kuipers, P., & Quinn, R. (2003). The template: A cooperative attitude to evaluating community rehabilitation services. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 69(1), 4-14.
- Lam, C. S., Bose, J. L., & Geist, G. O. (1989). Cost prediction in private rehabilitation. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 20(2), 41-42.
- MacDevitt, M., & MacDevitt, J. (1987). Low cost needs assessment for a rural mental health center. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 65(9), 505-507.
- Magarrell, G. W. (1989). Strategic planning in an organization serving people with visual disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *13*(4), 169-172.
- McMahon, B. T., & Fraser, R. T. (1978). The future of subprofessionals: A time for evaluation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 22(1), 30-37.
- McReynolds, C. J., Garske, G. G., & Turpin, J. O. (1999). Psychiatric rehabilitation: A survey of rehabilitation counseling education programs. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 65(4), 45.49.
- Paritzky, R. S., & Magoon, T. M. (1982). Goal attainment scaling models for assessing group counseling. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 60(6), 381-384.
- Peterson, G., & Nelson, R. (2001). Predictors of competitive employment outcomes in public vocational rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 25(1), 51-56.
- Peterson, G. A. (1989). Cost comparison of vocational services offered under industrial insurance. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 55(4), 58-61.
- Peterson, G. A. (2003). Long term effects of total claims management over the vocational rehabilitation process in Washington State. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 26(4), 239-252.

- Peterson, M. (1995). Ongoing employment supports for persons with disabilities: An exploratory study. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *61*(2), 58-67.
- Pickard, J. A., & Deane, F. P. (2000). Evaluation of the "Helping Hands" Volunteer Program for people with mental illness. *The Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, 6(1), 45-56.
- Reagles, K. W., & Wright, G. N. (1972). Economic impact. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *38*(1), 25.
- Reardon, R. (1996). A program and cost analysis of a self-directed career decision-making program in a university career center. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 74, 280-285.
- Rhodes, L, Mank, D., Sandow, D., Buckley, J., & Albin, J. (1990). Supported employment:
  Shifting from program monitoring to quality improvement. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 1(2), 1-18.
- Rice, R. G., Ghertner, S. J., & Rene, A. D. (1972). Assessing rehabilitation counseling needs in a hospital setting. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 19(2), 85-88.
- Roessler, R. T. (1981). Program evaluation in independent living rehabilitation. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *12*(4), 200-204.
- Ross, J. (1992). Measuring patient satisfaction with a well-designed survey. *Rehabilitation Today*, 2(4), 49-52.
- Sav, G. T. (1989). Benefit-cost analysis of transitional employment programs. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 55(2), 44-52.

- Schneider, H. C., & Dunaway, H. L., Jr. (1977). The relationship of case-service expenditures and severity of disability to rehabilitation success. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 1(3), 17-22.
- Simon, E. P. (1982). Implementing program evaluation in a vocational evaluation unit: A case study. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, *15*(2), 63-65, 68.
- Steenbarger, B. N., & Smith, H. B. (1996). Assessing the quality of counseling services: Developing accountable helping systems. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 75(2), 145-150.
- Stice, D. C., & Moore, C. L. (2005). A study of the relationship of the characteristics of injured workers receiving vocational rehabilitation services and their depression levels. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 71(4), 12-22.
- Tate, D. G., Maynard, F., & Forchheimer, M. (1992). Evaluation of a medical rehabilitation and independent living program for persons with spinal cord injury. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 58(3), 25-28.
- Truitt, C. P., & Vandergrift, J. B. (1980). A comparison of bureaucratic and professional expectations for casework accountability. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 4(2), 64-70, 80.
- Vogel, L. L. (1995). A follow-up on earnings after service at a comprehensive rehabilitation center. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *19*(1), 19-30.
- Williamson, C. (1989). Strategic planning in a mental health organization. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 13(4), 176-180.
- Wilson, K. B. (1999). Differences in hourly wages and hours worked between successfully rehabilitated African Americans and European Americans: The more things change,

the more they stay the same. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *30*(4), 10-15.

- Wise, S. A. (1988). Service equity and program effectiveness in the rehabilitation process. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 54(4), 68-72.
- Wood, R., & Steere, D. (1992). Evaluating quality in supported employment: The standard of excellence for employment support services. *Journal of Vocational Rehabilitation*, 2(2), 35-46.

Problems

### Problems

- Bellini, J. (1998). Equity and the order of selection mandate: Critical issues in implementation and evaluation. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, *9*(1), 107-124.
- Botterbush, K. F. (2000). Consumer outcomes in vocational program for professional persons with severe psychiatric disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 24(2), 25-40.
- Broussard, S. L., & Crimando, W. (2002). Effects of consumer attributions of disability and race on rehabilitation outcomes. *Rehabilitation Education*, 16(3), 243-254.
- Coffey, D. (1989). Planning in rehabilitation services. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 22(4), 127-128.
- Danczyk-Hawley, C. E., McMahon, B. T., & Flynn, B. (2002). Progression of disability benefits as a measure of disability management program effectiveness: Implications for future research. *Rehabilitation Education*, 16(2), 197-212.
- Ehrenkrantz, D., Miller, C., Vernberg, D. K., & Fox, M. H. (2001). Measuring prevalence of childhood disability: Addressing family needs while augmenting prevention. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 67(2), 48-54.
- Frank, K. (1978). Program evaluation: Confusion or something more? *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 44(3), 22-24.
- Gilbridge, D. D., Thomas, J. R., & Stensrud, R. (1998). Beyond status code 26: Development of an instrument to measure the quality of placements in the state-federal program.*Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 29(1), 307.

- Griffin, C. E. (1994). Improving rehabilitation service utilization among ethnic/racial groups:
  Rehabilitation administrator's role. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 18(1), 37-45.
- Herman, K. C. (1993). Reassessing predictors of therapist competence. Journal of Counseling and Development, 72, 29-32.
- Hollingsworth, D. K., & Reagles, K. W. (1980). Confronting barriers to the utilization of program evaluation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *4*(3), 93-98.
- Kay, H. B., Jr. (1978). Reconciling program goal conflicts. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 2(1), 19-24.
- Kregel, J. (1992). The subtle and salient points of program evaluation: An illustration from supported employment. *Journal of Vocational Rehabilitation*, 2(2), 53-62.
- Levinson, P., & Klatt, G. R. (1981). Now that worries me: Implications of setting performance standards. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *5*(3), 116-120.
- Lewis, W. A., & Hutson, S. P. (1983). The gap between research and practice on the question of counseling effectiveness. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *61*(9), 532-535.
- McAweeney, M. J., Forchheimer, M., & Tate, D. G. (1997). Improving outcome research in rehabilitation psychology: Some methodological recommendations. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 42(2), 125-135.
- Parker, R. M., & Thomas, K. R. (1980). Fads, flaws, fallacies, and foolishness in evaluation of rehabilitation programs. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 46(1), 32-34.
- Roessler, R. T., Williams, B. T., Featherston, L., & Featherston, J. B. (2006). Motivational factors affecting ticket to work utilization: A pilot investigation. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 37(3), 23-32.

- Rucker, T. F., Rice, N. D., Lustig, D. C., & Strauser, D. R. (2003). Gender differences in rehabilitation counseling consumer involvement and employment outcomes. *Journal* of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling, 34(2), 22-26.
- Rule, W. R., & Wright, K. C. (1981). Regulating the regulators: A rehabilitation dilemma. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 5(2), 45-50.
- Smits, S. J., & Emener, W. G., Jr. (1980). Insufficient/ineffective counselor involvement in job placement activities: A system failure. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 4(4), 147-156.
- Walls, R. T., & Moriarty, J. B. (1977). The caseload profile: An alternative to weighted closure. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 38(9), 285-291.
- Walls, R. T., Dowler, D. L., & Fullmer, S. L. (1989). Cash and in-kind benefits: Incentives rather than disincentives for vocational rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 33(2), 118-126.
- Yang, H., Leung, P., Wang, J., & Shim, N. (1996). Asian Pacific Americans: The need for ethnicity-specific disability and rehabilitation data. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 7(1),33-54.

State/Federal

### State/Federal

- Abrams, J. M., & Tucker, C. M. (1989). Counselor variables that predict job performance among state-employed vocational rehabilitation counselors. *Rehabilitation Education*, 3(3), 193-199.
- Alonso, R. C., & Autry, L. H. (1989). Strategic planning and state vocational rehabilitation agencies. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *13*(4), 154-159.
- Barton, T. R. (2005). Working with date variables and time in the longitudinal study of the vocational rehabilitation services program database. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 29(2), 65-70.
- Beveridge, S. F. (2006). Public vocational rehabilitation outcomes: A study on the relationship between rehabilitation goals and employment outcomes. *RehabPro*, *14*(1), 59-65.
- Capella, M. E. (2001). Vocational rehabilitation programs: Relationships among measures of effectiveness and state-to-state comparisons. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 25(1), 19-28.
- Caston, H. L., & Watson, A. L. (1990). Vocational assessment and rehabilitation outcomes. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *34*(1), 61-66.
- Cloutier, H., Mallory, J., Hagener, D., & Cotton, P. (2006). Choice and control over resources: New Hampshire's individual career account demonstration projects. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 72(2), 4-11.
- Cottone, R. R., & Cottone, L. P. (1986). A systematic analysis of vocational evaluation in the state-federal rehabilitation system. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 19(2), 47-54.

- Crystal, R. M. (1979). An analysis of program evaluation needs in the state-federal rehabilitation program. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 22(5), 390-395.
- Crystal, R. M., & Brinkman, L. F. (1980). The use of evaluation information for policy changes in state rehabilitation agencies. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 4(3), 101-106.
- Dean, D. H., & Dolan, R. C. (1986). Toward an improved methodology for estimating benefits of the vocational rehabilitation program. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 30(2), 110-115.
- Garske, G., Trach, J., & Leung, P. (1992). Evaluation and the state/federal vocational rehabilitation program. *Journal of Vocational Rehabilitation*, 2(2), 9-17.
- Hall, R. (1997). California's workers' compensation vocational rehabilitation program: Client factors related to outcomes and costs. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 21(3), 191-206.
- Hauser, C. (1980). Program evaluation for state rehabilitation agencies: Federal standards and advocated models. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 46(1), 25-28.
- Jamero, P., & Wilkerson, D. (1983). Independent living program evaluation: The Washington State approach. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 7(2), 63-76.
- Langton, A. J., Coker, C. C., & Smith, C. A. (1989). A descriptive study of rehabilitation technology utilization in state vocational rehabilitation agencies. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 13(2), 45-50.
- Leahy, M. J., Thielsen, V., Groomes, D. A. G., Shader-Patterson, L., & Shamsideen, J.
  (2006). A synergistic program evaluation model partnership between a state agency and a university program. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 72(3), 12-18.

- Mank, D. (1994). The underachievement of supported employment. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 5(2), 1-19.
- Marini, I., & Reid, C. R. (2001). A survey of rehabilitation professionals as alternative provider contractors with Social Security: Problems and solutions. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 67(2), 36-41.
- Mathews, R. M., Petty, C. R., & Fawcett, S. B. (1990). Rating consistency on successive statewide assessments of disability concerns. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, *1*(1), 81-88.
- Miller, J. H., & Alfano, A. M. (1974). The efficacy of Tennessee rehabilitation facilities: A counselor critique. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, *7*(1), 31-37.
- Miller, J. V., & Harrison, D. K. (1979). Status of program evaluation in the state-federal vocational rehabilitation program. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 3(3), 134-138.
- Misra, S. (2000). An assessment of the state-of-the-art of information systems in state rehabilitation agencies. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 24(2), 5-24.
- Moore, C. (2001). Disparities in closure success rates for African Americans with mental retardation: An ex-post-facto research design. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *32*(2), 31-36.
- Moss, K., & Johnsen, M., & Ullman, M. (1998). Assessing employment discrimination charges filed by individuals with psychiatric disabilities under the Americans with Disabilities Act. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 9(1), 81-106.
- Parker, H. J. (1985). Closure profiles of four state rehabilitation agencies: 1981-1982. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 51(4), 31-34.

- Peterson, G. A. (1900). Ohio and Washington: A cost/benefit comparison. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 14(3), 71-73.
- Prickett, J. R. (1988). A statistical analysis of successful case closures in Iowa: Focus on learning disabilities. *Journal of Job Placement*, 4(2), 25-29.
- Rubin, S. E. (1977). A national rehabilitation program evaluation research and training effort:Some results and implications. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 43(2), 28-31.
- Sabo, C. W., & Klein, M. A. (2006). The impact of state-federal agency structure on service delivery and outcomes for individuals with visual impairments. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 30(4), 269-280.
- Sandow, D., Rhodes, L., Mank, D. M., Ramsing, K. D., & Lynch, W. F. (1990). Assuring quality in supported employment. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 14(1), 20-28.
- Schwab, A. J., DiNitto, D. M., Simmons, J. F., & Smith, T. W. (1996). Evolution of the Texas Rehabilitation Commission system for measuring quality rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 20, 25-36.
- Schwab, J. A., & Fenoglio, J. A. (1992). The Texas Rehabilitation Commission system for measuring quality rehabilitation. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 23(2), 21-25.
- Simmons, M. A. (1975). A survey of Georgia rehabilitation counselor's opinions about vocational evaluation reports. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 8(2), 24-28.
- Simon, S. E. (1987). Productivity, efficiency and effectiveness: Simple indicators of agency performance. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *11*(1), 4-12.

Spaniol, L. (1977). A program evaluation model for rehabilitation agencies and facilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 1(3), 4-13.

- Steinman, B. A., Cavenaugh, B. S., Giesen, J. M., Moore, J. E., Warren, P. R., & Lobby, E. J. (2003). Strategies for delivering VR services to minorities with visual impairments:
  An evaluation of Title I state plans. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 27(1), 15-24.
- Szymanski, E. M. (1991). Relationship of level of rehabilitation counselor education to rehabilitation client outcome in the Wisconsin Division of Vocational Rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 35(1), 23-37.
- Szymanski, E. M., Herbert, J., Parker, R. M., & Danek, M. M. (1992). State vocational rehabilitation agency counselor education and performance in Pennsylvania,
   Maryland, and Wisconsin. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 16(4), 109-113.
- Szymanski, E. M., Parker, R. M., & Butler, A. J. (1990). Sensitivity of client outcome measures in relating state vocational rehabilitation agency counselor performance to level of counselor education. *Rehabilitation Education*, 4, 93-107.
- Tseng, M. S., & Zerega, W. D. (1976). The intake, process, and outcome performance of vocational rehabilitation in the field. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 37(11-12), 343-347.
- Weed, R. O., & Lewis, S. H. (1994). Workers' compensation rehabilitation and case management are cost effective: True or false? *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 18(4), 217-223.
- Wilson, K. B. (1999). Vocational rehabilitation acceptance: A tale of two races in a large midwestern state. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 30(2), 25-31.

# **PROGRAM EVALUATION AND PLANNING**

Training-University

## **Training-University**

- Alston, P. P., Holbert, D., & Goodwin, L. R. (1999). Effectiveness of applicant screening procedures for a rehabilitation counseling program. *Rehabilitation Education*, 13(4), 301-307.
- Baruth, L. G., & Miller, G. M. (1977). A study of professional contributions by counselor education faculties. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 56(1), 44-46.
- Berven, N. L., Wright, G. N., & Reagles, K. W. (1977). Employer ratings of graduates as program-evaluation measures. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *20*(3), 175-184.
- Bolton, B. (1990). Research methodology for investigating the relationship between
  rehabilitation counselor education and client outcomes. *Rehabilitation Education*, *4*, 79-81.
- Brinson, L. C., & Alston, P. P. (1973). Graduate and undergraduate training: A comparison of the impact on counselor performance and job satisfaction. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 4(2), 110-117.
- Chen, F., Rosen, A. J., Wong, D. W., & Kaplan, S. (1993). Evaluating rehabilitation caseloads management skills through computer simulations. *Journal of Counseling* and Development, 71(5), 493-498.
- Crisler, J. R., & Eaton, M. W. (1975). A ten year follow-up of graduates of a rehabilitation counselor training program. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 6(1), 35-41.
- Crisler, J. R., & Fowler, N. L. (1981). Employment outcome of graduates of a rehabilitation counselor training program: A comparison of graduate employment between 1965-1974 and 1975-1979. *Journal of Rehabilitation, 47*(3), 28-32.

- Dellario, D. J. (1980). A point of convergence in the evaluation of Rehabilitation Counselor
  Education (RCE) program. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 11(3), 128-131.
- Dunn, P. L., Gruggs, L. A. R., & Mulkey, S. W. (2007). Inclusion of case and caseload management in NCRE member rehabilitation curricula. *Rehabilitation Counselors & Educators Journal*, 1(1), 24-28.
- Faubion, C. W. (1999). Drowning while running in place: Innovative teaching versus classroom survival (observations and comments from a first-year assistant professor). *Rehabilitation Education*, 13(4), 369-373.
- Feldman, D., Gordon, P. A., White, M. J., & Weber, C. (2002). The effects of people-first language and demographic variables on beliefs, attitudes and behavioral intentions toward people with disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 33(3), 18-25.
- Gandy, G. L. (1983). Graduates of an undergraduate rehabilitation curriculum. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *26*(5), 357-359.
- Jaques, M. E., Kauppi, D. R., & Schoen, S. (1974). Program profile: A follow-up study of rehabilitation counseling graduates from 1957 to 1971. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 17(4), 223-231.
- Kelley, S. D. M., Dixon, C. G., Emener, W. G., & Wright, T. J. (1999). Evaluation of career outcomes following graduate education in rehabilitation counseling: A 25 year retrospective study. *Rehabilitation Education*, 13(3), 249-260.

- Leahy, M. J., Thielsen, V., Groomes, D. A. G., Shader-Patterson, L., & Shamsideen, J.
  (2006). A synergistic program evaluation model partnership between a state agency and a university program. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 72(3), 12-18.
- Reagles, K. W., Wright, G. N., & Scorzelli, J. F. (1974). Rehabilitation counselor education: Comparative perceptions of coordinators, agency administrators, and facilities personnel. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 17(4), 215-222.
- Sales, A., & McAllan, L. (1999). Evaluation of a continuing education model for delivering a rehabilitation counseling degree: Preliminary findings. *Rehabilitation Education*, 13(1), 61-68.
- Sullivan, M. (1982). A follow-up study of rehabilitation counseling graduates. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *13*(1), 6-10.
- Szymanski, E. M. (1991). Relationship of level of rehabilitation counselor education to rehabilitation client outcome in the Wisconsin Division of Vocational Rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 35(1), 23-37.
- Szymanski, E. M., & Parker, R. M. (1989). Relationship of rehabilitation client outcome to level of rehabilitation counselor education. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 55(4), 32-36.
- Wright, G. N., Reagles, K. W., & Scorzelli, J. F. (1973). Measuring the effectiveness and variations of rehabilitation counselor education programs. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 4(2), 76-87.
- Zimpfer, D. G., & DeTrude, J. C. (1990). Follow-up of doctoral graduates in counseling. Journal of Counseling and Development, 69(1), 51-56.

# **PROGRAM EVALUATION AND PLANNING**

Training-Short Term

## **Training-Short Term**

- Ferritor, D. E., & Leland, M. (1982). Technology of rehabilitation short-term training: Revisited. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 26(1), 52-54.
- Godley, S. H., Hafer, M. D., Vieceli, L., & Godley, M. D. (1984). Evaluation of short-term training in rehabilitation: A neglected necessity. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 28(1), 28-38.
- Martin, W. E., Jr., Johns, A., & Bitter, J. A. (1978). Evaluation planning considerations for postemployment training of professionals in rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 39(6-7), 180-185.
- Moore, J. E. (1981). Predicting evaluation ratings of rehabilitation short-term training programs. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 47(3), 57-61.
- Shinnick, M. D. (1978). The follow-up evaluation of rehabilitation facility short-term training. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, *11*(2), 31-37.
- Stude, E. W. (1973). Evaluation of short-term training for rehabilitation counselors:
  Effectiveness of an institute on epilepsy. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin, 16*(3), 146-154.

**PUBLIC RELATIONS** 

#### **Public Relations**

- Adler, A. B., Wright, B. A., & Ulicny, G. R. (1991). Fundraising portrayals of people with disabilities: Donations and attitudes. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 36(4), 231-240.
- Asner, E. (1984). Do the media have an impact on the role of health care? *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 29(2), 69-75.
- Atkins, B. J. (1982). Issues: Independent living and public rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 6(1), 24-28.
- Barrett, K. E., & Pullo, R. E. (1993). Attitudinal change in undergraduate rehabilitation students as measured by the attitudes toward disabled persons scale. *Rehabilitation Education*, 7, 119-126.
- Byrd, E. K. (1990). A study of Biblical depiction of disability. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 21(4), 52-53.
- Cho, D. W., & Schuermann, A. C., Jr. (1980). An employment model of severely physically handicapped persons: Centre Industries, Sydney, Australia. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 4(4), 157-164.
- Chubon, R. A. (1992). Attitudes toward disability: Addressing fundamentals of attitude theory and research in rehabilitation education. *Rehabilitation Education*, 6(4), 301-311.
- Doyon, M. W. (1991). The inevitable spread of disability awareness [Editorial]. *Rehab USA*, 2.
- Erpenbach, W. J. (1973). The case for guidance: Testimony before Congress. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *51*(8), 551-557.

- Fullmer, S., & Majumder, R. K. (1991). Increased access and use of disability related information for consumers. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *57*(3), 17-22.
- Gouvier, W. D., Brown, L. M., Prestholdt, P. H., Hayes, J. S., & Apostolas, G. (1995). A survey of common misconceptions about epilepsy. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 40(1), 51-59.
- Hellmuth, G. A. (1971). Cardiac employees and their superiors. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *32*(12), 365.
- Holmes, G. E., & Karst, R. H. (1990). The institutionalization of disability myths: Impact on vocational rehabilitation services. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 56(1), 20-27.
- Granello, D. H., & Wheaton, J. E. (2001). Attitudes of undergraduate students toward persons with physical disabilities and mental illness. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 32(2), 9-16.
- McMahon, B. T., & Westerman, L. T. (1981). Alternative concerns for rehabilitation professionals. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *42*(9-10), 276-278.
- McReynolds, C.J., Ward, D. M., & Singer, O. (2003). Stigma, discrimination, and invisibility: Factors affecting successful integration of individuals diagnosed with schizophrenia. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 33(4), 32-40.
- Minch, J. A., & Hursh, N. C. (1981). Consumer involvement: The Massachusetts vocational rehabilitation program. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 42(1-2), 8-13.
- Olney, M. F., Kennedy, Brockelman, K. F., & Newsom, M. A. (2004). Do you have a disability? A population-based test of acceptance, denial and adjustment among adults with disabilities in the U. S. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 70(1), 4-9.

- Patterson, J. B., & Marks, C. (1992). The client as customer: Achieving service quality and customer satisfaction in rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *58*(4), 16-21.
- Parashar, D., & Devanathan, N. (2006). Still not in vogue: The portrayal of disability in magazine advertising. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 37(1), 13-20.
- Phemister, A. A., & Crewe, N. M. (2004). Objective self-awareness and stigma: Implications for persons with visible disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 70(2), 33-37.
- Putnam, M., Geenen, S., Powers, L., Saxton, M., Finney, S., & Dautel, Pa. (2003). Health and wellness: People with disabilities discuss barriers and facilitators to well being. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 69(1), 37-45.
- Ridley, D. E. (1977). An alternative to community group relations. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 8(4), 251-254.
- Tschopp, M. K., Bishop, M., & Mulvihill, M. (2001). Career development of individuals with psychiatric disabilities: An ecological perspective of barriers and interventions. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 32(2), 25-30.
- Usdane, W. M. (1974). The view of the government agency. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 21(4), 117-118.
- Vandergoot, D. (1982). Industry-labor advisory councils in rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 26(2), 133-138.
- Weisel, A., & Florian, V. (1990). Same-and cross-gender attitudes toward persons with physical disabilities. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 35(4), 229-238.
- West, S. L., & Miller, J. H. (1999). Comparisons of vocational rehabilitation counselors' attitudes toward substance abusers. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 30(4), 33-37.

- Whitehead, C. W. (1978). A comprehensive action program for sheltered workshops. *Journal* of Rehabilitation Administration, 2(3), 115-122.
- Whitehead, C. W. (1979). A comprehensive action program for sheltered workshops: Part II. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *3*(1), 32-42.

# **PUBLIC RELATIONS**

**Rights/Discrimination** 

## **Rights/Discrimination**

- Abramson, A. S., & Kutner, B. (1977). A bill of rights for the disabled. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 24(4), 249-250.
- Adams, J. E. (1991). Judicial and regulatory interpretation of the employment rights of persons with disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 22(3), 28-46.
- Adler, A. B., Wright, B. A., & Ulicny, G. R. (1991). Fundraising portrayals of people with disabilities: Donations and attitudes. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 36(4), 231-240.
- Alston, P.P., Wilkins, L. M., & Holbert, D. (1995). Rehabilitation counselor attitudes towards working with clients with AIDS. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 26(3), 26-29.
- Alston, R. J., Wilson, K. B., & Harley, D. A. (Eds.) (2002). Race and rehabilitation services [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 45(3).
- Antoniak, R. F., & Livneh, H. (1995). Direct and indirect methods to measure attitudes towards persons with disabilities, with an exegesis of the error-choice test method. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 40(1), 3-24.
- Asbury, C.A., Walker, S., Stokes, A., & Rackley, R. (1994). Psychological correlates of attitude toward disability and desire to work in African Americans with disabilities.
   *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 25, 3-8.
- Barnartt, S. N., Seelman, K. D., & Gracer, B. (1990). Policy issues in communications accessibility. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 1(2), 47-63.
- Bayh, B. (1979). Employment rights of the handicapped. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 3(2), 57-62.

- Brostrand, H. L. (2006). Tilting at windmills: Changing attitudes toward people with disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 72(1), 4-9.
- Burton, L., Jr. (1982). The rehabilitation agency and the civil rights of clients: An analysis of strategies for policy implementation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 48(2), 46-52.
- Calzaretta, W. A. (1993). The "makings" of a symposium: A cooperative effort. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 17(3), 137-138.
- Carney, J., Werth, J. L., & Emanuelson, G. (1994). The relationship between attitudes towards persons who are gay and persons with AIDS, and HIV and AIDS knowledge. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72, 646-650.
- Casper, M. (1993). Seasons of change-The Americans with Disabilities Act: Implementation in the workplace. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *17*(3), 129-134.
- Chism, M., Stacher, J. (1997). Human resource management students' perceptions of employment and individuals with disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 28(2), 38-42.
- Colella, A. (2001). Coworker distributive fairness judgments of the workplace accommodation of employees with disabilities. *The Academy of Management Review*, 26(1), 100-116.
- Conti, J. V. (1995). Job discrimination against people with a cancer history. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *26*(2), 12-16.
- Cope, J. G., & Allred, L. J. (1990). Illegal parking in handicapped zone: Demographic observations and review of the literature. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *35*(4), 249-257.
- Cull, J. G., & Levinson, K. F. (1977). The rights of consumers of rehabilitation services. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 43(3), 29-32.

Dean, D. G. (1987). Fair housing for the disabled. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 53(2), 17, 66.

- Diksa, E., & Rogers, E. S. (1966). Employer concerns about hiring persons with psychiatric disability: Results of the employer attitude questionnaire. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 40(1), 31-44.
- Donnell, C. M., Alston, R. J., Hampton, J. L, & Bell, T. J. (1999). Ethnic and gender influences on the social acceptance of persons with disabilities by African American and white college students. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *30*(1), 31-34.
- Dooley, D. M., & Gliner, J. A. (1989). Perception of disability labels: Effect of attitude and stimulus presentation. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *34*(4), 259-270.
- Drum, C. E. (1998). The social construction of personnel policy: Implications for people with disabilities. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, *9*(1), 125-250.
- Estes, C. A., Moore, D. P., & Dolezal, J. M. (2004). Violation of handicapped parking laws in a rural, southern town. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 70(3), 20-27.
- Feldman, D., & Feldman, B. (1985). The effect of a telethon on attitudes toward disabled people and financial contributions. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *51*(3), 42-45.
- Fichton, C. S., Amsel, R., Robillard, K., Sabourin, S., & Wright, J. (1997). Personality, attentional focus, and novelty effects: Reactions to peers with disabilities. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 42(3), 209-230.
- Field, S., & Weisenstein, G. (1991). Improving the attitudes of supervisors toward persons with disabilities. *Journal of Job Placement*, 7(1), 9-11.
- Fischer, J. M. (1993). People with learning disabilities: Moral and ethical rights to equal opportunities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 24(1), 3-7.

- Fletcher, D. (1995). A five-year study of effects of fines, gender, race, and age on illegal parking in spaces reserved for people with disabilities. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 40(3), 203-210.
- Fletcher, D. (1997). The effect of the presence of a person in a wheelchair or the presence of an adjacent "reserved for police cars only" parking space on the illegal use of parking spaces reserved for people with disabilities. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 42(4), 317-324.
- Florey, A. T., & Harrison, D. A. (2000). Responses to informal accommodation requests from employees with disabilities: Multistudy evidence on willingness to comply. *The Academy of Management Journal*, 43(2), 224-239.
- Garske, G. G., & Thomas, K. R. (1990). The relationship of self-esteem and contact to attitudes of students in rehabilitation counseling toward persons with disabilities. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 34(1), 67-71.
- Gething, L., LaCour, J., & Wheeler, B. (1994). Attitudes of nursing home administrators and nurses towards persons with disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 60, 66-70.
- Gilbride, D., Stensrud, R., Ehlers, C., Evans, E., & Peterson, C. (2000). Employers' attitudes toward hiring persons with disabilities and vocational rehabilitation services. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 66(4), 17-23.
- Gordon, E. D., Minnes, P. M., & Holden, R. R. (1990). The structure of attitudes toward persons with a disability, when specific disability and context are considered. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 35(2), 79-90.

Gordon, P A., Tantillo, J. C., Feldman, D., & Perrone, K. (2004). Attitudes regarding interpersonal relationships with persons with mental retardation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 70(1), 50-56.

Gouvier, W. D., Steiner, D. D., Jackson, W. T., Schlater, D., & Rain, J. S. (1991).
Employment discrimination against handicapped job candidates: An analog study of the effects of neurological causation, visibility of handicap, and public contact. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *36*(2), 121-129.

- Hackerson, A. E. (1996). AIDS and Tennessee: An overview of guidelines protecting workers in Tennessee with HIV and AIDS. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 27(3), 23-25.
- Hagen-Foley, D. L., Rosenthal, D. A., & Thomas, D. R. (2005). Informed consumer choice in community rehabilitation programs. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 48(2), 110-117.
- Hahn, H. (1993). Equality and the environment: The interpretation of "reasonable accommodations" in the Americans with Disabilities Act. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 17(3), 101-106.
- Havranek, J. E. (1991). The social and individual costs of negative attitudes toward persons with physical disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 22(1), 15-21.
- Hergenrather, K., & Rhodes, S. (2007). Exploring undergraduate student attitudes toward persons with disabilities: Application of the disability social relationship scale. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 50(2), 66-75.

- Hernandez, B., Keys, C., & Balcazar, F. (2000). Employer attitudes toward workers with disabilities and their ADA employment rights: A literature review. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, *66*(4), 4-16.
- Hernandez, B., Keys, C. B., & Balcazar, F. E. (2004). Disability rights: Attitudes of private and public sector representatives. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 70(1), 28-37.
- Holzbauer, J. J. (2005). Disability harassment of students in transition from school to work:Implications for rehabilitation counseling. *Journal of Applied RehabilitationCounseling*, 35(4), 3-7.
- Huang, W., & Rubin, S. E. (1997). Equal access to employment opportunities for people with mental retardation: An obligation of society. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 63(1), 27-33.
- Hunt, B., & Hunt, C. S. (2000). Attitudes toward people with disabilities: A comparison of undergraduate rehabilitation and business majors. *Rehabilitation Education*, 14(3), 269-283.
- Lang, J. (1979). Protecting the handicapped from employment discrimination: The jobrelatedness and bona fide occupational qualification doctrines. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 3(2), 64-76.
- Leal, A., Leung, P., Martin, W. E., Jr., & Harrison, D. K. (1988). Multicultural aspects of rehabilitation counseling: Issues and challenges [Editorial] [Special issue]. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 19(4), 3.
- Leierer, S. J., Strohmer, D. C., Kern, A. M., Clemons-Guidry, D. B., Roberts, K. Jr., & Curry, K E. (1998). The effects of counselor disability status and reputation on perceptions of counselor expertness, attractiveness, and trustworthiness. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 41(4), 278-292.

- Leung, P. (1993). Minorities with disabilities and the Americans with Disabilities Act: A promise yet to be fulfilled. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *17*(3), 92-98.
- Levy, J. M., Jessop, D. J., Rimmerman, A., & Levy, P. H. (1993). Attitudes of executives in Fortune 500 corporations toward the employability of persons with severe disabilities: Industrial and service corporations. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 24(2), 19-31.
- Levy, J. M., Jessop, D. J., Rimmerman, A., Francis, F., & Levy, P. H. (1993). Determinants of attitudes of New York state employers towards the employment of persons with severe handicaps. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *59*(1), 49-54.
- Little, V. M., & Marini, I. (1995). Abuses of handicapped parking. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 26(2), 51-53.
- Loo, R. (2002). Attitudes of management undergraduates toward employing persons with disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *33*(2), 24-30.
- Lustig, D. C., & Strauser, D. R. (2004). Employee benefits for individuals with disabilities: The effect of race and gender. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 70(2), 38-46.
- Luzzo, D. A., & Hutcheson, K. G. (1996). Causal attributions and sex differences associated with perceptions of occupational barriers. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 75(2), 124-130.
- Matthews, C. R., Selvidge, M. M. D., & Fisher, K. (2005). Addictions counselors' attitudes and behaviors toward gay, lesbian, and bisexual clients. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 83(1), 37-65.
- McCaughey, F. J., & Strohmer, D. C. (2005). Prototypes as an indirect measure of attitudes toward disability groups. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 48(2), 89-99.

- Millington, M., Rosenthal, D., & Lott, A. Jr. (1997). Employment expectation profiles as a differential measure of employment-relevant attitudes towards people with disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 28(4), 36-39.
- Millington, M. J., Szymanski, E. M., & Hanley-Maxwell, C. (1994). Effect of the label of mental retardation on employer concerns and selection. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 38(1), 27-43.
- Millington, M. J., & Leierer, S. J. (1996). A socially desirable response to the politically incorrect use of disability labels. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *39*(4), 276-282.
- Moore, C. L. (2001). Racial and ethnic members of under-represented groups with hearing loss and VR services: Explaining the disparity in closure success rates. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *32*(1), 15-23.
- Moore, C. L., Alston, R. J., Donnell, C. M., & Hollis, B. (2003). Correlates of rehabilitation success among African American and Caucasian SSDI recipients with mild retardation. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 34(3), 25-32.
- Mudrik, N. R., & Asch, A. (1996). Investigation and enforcement of a disability discrimination statute: Complaints of employment discrimination filed in New York state. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 7(2), 21-41.
- Nester, M. A. (1993). Psychometric testing and reasonable accommodation for persons with disabilities. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *38*(2), 73-85.
- Noe, S. R. (1997). Discrimination against individuals with mental illness. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 63(1), 20-26.
- O'Birne, G. V. (1996). Customer preference and workplace discrimination against employees with disabilities. *Journal of Job Placement, 12*(1), 7-11.

- Palmer, C., & Roessler, R. T. (2000). Requesting classroom accommodations: Self-advocacy and conflict resolution training for college students with disabilities. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 66(3), 38-43.
- Parham, J. D. (1980). Social-structural view of employment and the freedom to work concept. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *4*(1), 5-10.
- Pichette, E. F., Berven, N. L., Menz, F. E., & LaFromboise, T. D. (1997). Effects of cultural identification and disability needs of American Indians. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 63(4), 38-44.
- Pitman, J., & Slate, J. (1994). Student's familiarity with and attitudes towards the rights of students who are disabled. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 25, 38-40.
- Prater, L. (2005). Enforcing Title I of the Americans with Disabilities Act: Horton hears a who. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *36*(1), 12-19.
- Reilly, N. P., Wennet, C., Murphy, M., Therauf, M., & Gauglr, F. (1998). Teaching evaluations of persons with disabilities differ according to the nature of the disability. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 64(1), 38-41.
- Risica, V. J., & Nevid, J. S. (1990). Effects of counselor disability on counselor attraction. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 33(3), 229-239.
- Roessler, R. T., & Sumner, G. (1997). Employer opinions about accommodating employees with chronic illnesses. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 28(3), 29-34.
- Rosenthal, D.A., & Berven, N. L. (1999). Effects of client race on clinical judgment. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *42*(3), 243-264.

- Rosenthal, D. A., Ferrin, J. M., Wilson, K. & Frain, M. (2005). Acceptance rates of African-American versus white consumers of vocational rehabilitation services: A metaanalysis. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *71*(3), 36-44.
- Rybarczyk, B., Nyenhuis, D. L., Nicholas, J. J., Cash, S. M., & Kaiser, J. (1995). Body image, perceived social stigma, and the prediction of psychosocial adjustment to leg amputation. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 40(2), 95-110.
- Satcher, J., & Dooley-Dickey, K. (1992). Attitudes of human-resource management students toward persons with disabilities. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *35*(4), 248-252.
- Satcher, J., & Gamble, D. (2002). Attitudes of law students toward persons with disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *33*(2), 13-16.
- Satcher, J., & Hendren, G. R. (1991). Acceptance of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 by persons preparing to enter the business field. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 22(2), 15-18.
- Saxon, J. P., & Spitznagel, R. J. (1991). Age bias: An intervening variable in vocational rehabilitation feasibility decision making. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 23(1), 22-26.
- Sigelman, C. K. (1991). Social distance from stigmatized groups: False consensus and false uniqueness effects on responding. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *36*(3), 139-151.
- Solomon, M. L. (1993). In the ADA "accessible" to people with disabilities? *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *17*(3), 109-117.
- Strauser, D. R., Lustig, D. C., & Urek, A. C. (2004). Differences in career thoughts between individuals with and without disability: Do they really exist? *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 35(2), 25-31.

- Thomas, A. (2001). The multidimensional character of biased perceptions of individuals with disabilities. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 67(2), 3-9.
- Upton, T. D., Harper, D. C., & Wadsworth, J. (2005). Postsecondary attitudes toward persons with disabilities: A comparison of college students with and without disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 36(3), 24-32.
- Vaughan, C. E. (1997). Discrimination against individuals. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 63(1), 7-14.
- Walls, R. T. (1982). Disincentives in vocational rehabilitation: Cash and in-kind benefits from other programs. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 26(1), 37-46.
- Warzak, W. J., Majors, C. T., Hansell, A. G., & Allan, T. M. (1988). An analysis of televised presentations of disability. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 33(2), 105-112.
- Weinrach, S. G., & Morgan, L. B. (1975). A bill of client rights and responsibilities. Personnel and Guidance Journal, 53(8), 557-562.
- Whitehead, C. W., & Hawley, I. B. (1981). Rights and entitlements of handicapped persons:An issue for public and private rehabilitation service providers. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 5(2), 68-74.
- Wilson, K. B. (1999). Differences in hourly wages and hours worked between successfully rehabilitated African Americans and European Americans: The more things change, the more they stay the same. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *30*(4), 10-15.
- Wilson, K. B., Harley, D. A., & Alston, R. J. (2001). Race as a correlate of vocational rehabilitation acceptance: Revisited. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 67(3), 35-41.

- Wilson, K. B., Harley, D. A., McCormick, K. Jolivette, K., & Jackson, II, R. L. (2001). A literature review of vocational rehabilitation acceptance and explaining bias in the rehabilitation process. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 32(1), 24-25.
- Wolf, J. (1990). Out of mind, out of sight? From housing discrimination to public accommodations legislation. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, *1*(2), 99-110.

# **PUBLIC RELATIONS**

Policy/Advocacy

### **Policy/Advocacy**

- Adler, A. B., Wright, B. A., & Ulicny, G. R. (1991). Fundraising portrayals of people with disabilities: Donations and attitudes. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 36(4), 231-240.
- Baldridge, D. C., & Veiga, J. F. (2001). Toward a greater understanding of the willingness to request an accommodation: Can requesters' beliefs disable the Americans with Disabilities Act? *The Academy of Management*, 26(1), 85-99.
- Balukas, R., & Baken, J. W. (1985). Community resistance to development of group homes for people with mental retardation. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 46(7-8), 194-197.
- Brieland, D. (1972). Rehabilitation and social policy. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *19*(3), 135-141.
- Brostrand, H. L. (2006). Tilting at windmills: Changing attitudes toward people with disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 72(1), 4-9.
- Byrd, E. K. (1989). A study of depiction of specific characteristics of characters with disability in film. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 20(2), 43-45.
- Byrd, K. (1989). Theory regarding attitudes and how they may relate to media portrayals of disability. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *20*(4), 36-38.
- Byrd, K., Crews, B., Ebener, D. (1991). A study of appropriate use of language when making reference to persons with disabilities. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 22(2), 40-41.
- Cantrell, R. P., & Walker, M. L. (1993). Participatory action research and policy making:
   Consumers and nonconsumers deliberate the reauthorization of the Rehabilitation
   Act. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 37(1), 37-52.

- Carney, N. C. (1992). The influence of consumerism on rehabilitation service delivery and rehabilitation education. *Rehabilitation Education*, *6*(3), 193-194.
- Ciecka, J. E., Fabian, R. G., & Merilatt, D. S. (1982). The economic benefits of rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *6*(1), 5-12.
- Conyers, L. M. (2003). Disability culture: A cultural model of disability. *Rehabilitation Education*, 17(3), 139-154.
- Curl, R. M., & Sheldon, J. B. (1992). Achieving reasonable choices: Balancing the rights and responsibilities of consumers with those of rehabilitation counselors. *Rehabilitation Education*, 6(3), 195-205.
- Daniels, S. (1976). Consumer involvement in rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *19*(4), 610-614.
- Emener, W. G., Darrow, M. A., & Flynn, C. J. (1989). Environmental accessibility assessment and the advocacy role(s) of rehabilitation education. *Rehabilitation Education*, *3*(2), 91-103.
- Frank, J., & Bellini, J. (2005). Barriers to the accommodation request process of the Americans with Disabilities Act. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *71*(2), 28-39.
- Garske, G. G., & Williams, B. T. (1999). The financial costs of severe mental illness. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 65(4), 39-44.
- Groce, N. E. (1998). Firearm violence, disability rights, and rehabilitation: Policy revision in light of shifting demographics. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, *9*(2), 93-110.
- Grossman, H. I. (1979). A new concept of disability. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 45(3), 41-49, 71.

- Hahn, H. (1991). Alternative views of empowerment: Social services and civil rights. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *57*(4), 17-19.
- Harris, R. M., & Harris, A. C. (1977). Devaluation of the disabled in fund raising appeals. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 24(2), 69-78.
- Holzbauer, J. J., & Berven, N. L. (1996). Disability harassment: A new term for a longstanding problem. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, *74*(5), 478-483.
- Howe, S. S., Minch, J. A., & Fay, F. A. (1980). Consumer involvement in rehabilitation: A national perspective. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 46(3), 52-56.
- Johnson, M. D., & Fawcett, S. B. (1987). Consumer-defined standards for courteous treatment by service agencies. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *53*(2), 23-26.
- Kamkar, M., & Tenney, F. (1991). Factors affecting SSDI beneficiaries' return to work. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 15(1), 143-145.
- Kilbury, R. F., Benshoff, J. J., & Rubin, S. E. (1992). The interaction of legislation, public attitudes, and access to opportunities for persons with disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 58(4), 6-9.
- Kilbury, R. F., Eckert, J. M., Bordieri, J. E., Morton, D. R., McGraw-Hunter, M., & Rashee,
  S. A. (2003). Assisting individuals with the most significant disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 27(3&4), 95-100.
- Kiselica, M. S., & Robinson, M. (2001). Bringing advocacy counseling to life: The history, issues, and human dramas of social justice work in counseling. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 79(4), 387-397.
- Kosciulek, J. F. (1999). Consumer direction in disability policy information and rehabilitation service delivery. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 65(2), 4-9.

- Lauth, T. P. (1978). Rehabilitation agencies as public bureaucracies: Professionalism and political control. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 2(4), 143-152.
- Lehmann, I. S. (2006). Minimum wage rates and employment of individuals with disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 72(2), 40-57.
- Lehmann, I. S. (2006). Lobbying: Advocacy for rehabilitation services in the state and federal legislatures. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *30*(2), 103-114.
- LePage, P., & Lees, D. (1994). Advocating change in disability policy. *Journal of Job Placement*, 10(2), 27-26.
- Mann, W. C. (1991). State-wide planning for access to technology application for individuals with disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *57*(1), 17-20.
- Marrone, J., Gandolfo, C., Gold, M., & Hoff, D. (1998). Just doing it: Helping people with mental illness get good jobs. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 29(1), 37-48.
- Mathews, R. M., White, G. W., Mrdjenovich-Hanks, P. (1990). Using a slide presentation to change attitudes toward people with disabilities and knowledge of independent living services. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *33*(4), 301-306.
- McAlees, D. C. (1991). Advocacy of fundamental issues [Editorial]. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 15(3), 185-186.

McDermott, M. J. (1994). Rehab's advocates. Rehabilitation Today, 4(2), 12-15.

McGraw-Hunter, M. (2004). Information for rehabilitation counselors on guardianship and alternatives to guardianship for persons with traumatic brain injuries. *Jouranl of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 35(1), 3-9.

- Megivern, K. (1991). The administrator as advocate [Editorial]. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *15*(1), 133-134.
- Middleton, R. A., Flowers, C., & Zawaiza, T. (1996). Multiculturalism, Affirmative Action, and section 21 of the 1992 Rehabilitation Act Amendments: Fact or fiction?
   *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin, 40*(1), 11-30.
- Moore, C. L. (1998). The minority group model and persons with disabilities: Toward a more progressive disability public policy in the United States of America. *The Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, *4*(1), 36-47.
- Mpofu, E., & Harley, D. A. (2006). Racial and disability identity: Implications for the career counseling of African-Americans with disabilities. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 50(1), 14-23.
- Murphy, S. T. (1980). Vocational rehabilitation counseling and advocacy: An analysis of dissonant concepts. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *41*(1-2), 2-10.
- Myers, J. E., Sweeney, T. J., & White, V. E. (2002). Advocacy for counseling and counselors: A professional imperative. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 80(4), 394-402.
- National Academy of Social Insurance. (1996). Balancing security and opportunity: The challenge of disability income policy. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, *6*(2), 67-78.
- Parashar, D., & Devanathan, N. (2006). Still not in vogue: The portrayal of disability in magazine advertising. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 37(1), 13-20.
- Patterson, J. B., & Leach, R. (1987). Client satisfaction in vocational rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *53*(2), 40-43.

- Patterson, J. B., & Pankowski, J. (1988). Preparing the consumer of rehabilitation administration, management, and supervision: Preservice, in-service and continuing education issues. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 12(4), 117-121.
- Pelletier, J. R., Rogers, E. S., & Thurer, S. (1985). The mental health needs of individuals with severe physical disability: A consumer advocate perspective. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 46(7-8), 186-193.
- Preston, T., & Jansen, M. A. (1982). National rehabilitation policy and rehabilitation psychology. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 27(4), 203-213.
- Quinn, G. (2005). On proposed UN treaty on human rights of persons with disabilities. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 28(2), 92-96.
- Roessler, R. T., & Schriner, K. F. (1991). The implications of selected employment concerns for disability policy and rehabilitation practice. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 35(1), 52-67.
- Schiffer, E. W. (1994). On becoming a lobbyist. *Rehabilitation Today*, 4(1), 32.
- Schriner, K. F. (1998). (Editorial). Political empowerment: Introduction to special section on political participation of people with disabilities. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 9(2).
- Seekins, T., Smith, N., McCleary, T., Clay, J., & Walsh, J. (1990). Secondary disability prevention: Involving consumers in the development of a public health surveillance instrument. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 1(3), 21-36.
- Shoemaker, R. J., Robin, S. S., & Robin, H. S. (1992). Reaction to disability through organization policy: Early return to work policy. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 58(3), 18-24.

- Solomon, C. (1982). Special issue on political action: Introduction. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *60*(10), 580.
- Stebnicki, M. A., Sibrava, M., & Rice-Mason, J. (1998). Disability awareness activities on college campuses: A national study of campuses with undergraduate and graduate programs in rehabilitation counseling. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 29(2), 30-34.
- Stone, J. B. (1971). The rehabilitation counselor as a client advocate. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 2(1), 46-54.
- Taylor, R. D. (1972-1973). The "advocacy" function of the rehabilitation counselor in effecting social change. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *3*(4), 254-261.
- Tesolowski, D. G., Rosenberg, H., & Hammond, M. U. (1980). Interagency cooperation through organizational advocacy. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 13(3), 104-108.
- Tesolowski, D. G., Rosenberg, H., & Stein, R. J. (1983). Advocacy intervention: A responsibility of human service professionals. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 49(3), 35-38.
- Thompson, R., Bethea, L., & Turner, J. (1997). Faculty knowledge of disability laws in higher education: A survey. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 40(3), 166-180.

Traiforos, A. (1990). The role of organized labor in rehabilitation. *Rehab USA*, 1(3), 12-14.

- Trela, J. E., & Falkenstein, H. R. (1974). Coordination and advocacy in rehabilitation programs for the poor. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *17*(3), 176-183.
- Trembley, E. L. (1977). Three steps toward consumer advocacy. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *56*(4), 210-213.

- Verville, R. E. (1979). The disabled, rehabilitation, and current public policy. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 45(2), 48-51, 89.
- White, G. W., Jones, M. L., Ulicny, G. R., Powell, L. K., & Mathews, R. M. (1988).
  Deterring unauthorized use of handicapped parking spaces. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 33(4), 207-212.
- White, G. W., Thomson, R. J., & Nary, D. E. (1997). An empirical analysis of the effects of a self-administered advocacy letter training program. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 41(2), 74-87.
- Wise, E. H. (1974). The right to work versus social security disability benefits. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *35*(3), 79-81.
- Wright, M. E. (1971). Advocacy: A new rehabilitation role function. *Psychological Aspects of Disability*, 18(2), 89-90.

## **PUBLIC RELATIONS**

Resources

#### Resources

- Barrett, B. (1992). Developing and maintaining a community outreach program. *Rehabilitation Today*, *2*(9), 71-75.
- Berndt, J., & Kruger, K. (1984). Funding for the handicapped: An annotated list of information sources. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 50(3), 15-17.

Brodwin, M. G., & Cardoso, E. (2001). Dissemination and utilization of disability information for rehabilitation professionals through academic, scientific, and professional journals/books. *The Rehabilitation Professional*, 9(1), 41-46.

- Buys, L. R. (1995). Rehabilitation counselor language and employer willingness to interview people with disabilities. *Journal of Job Placement*, *11*(1), 27-30.
- Carter, K. (1990). The business funding dilemma. Rehab USA, 1(2), 12-13.
- Czerlinsky, T., & Chandler, S. K. (1993). Effective consumer-service provider interactions in vocational rehabilitation. *OSERS News in Print*, 5(4), 39-43.
- Dalton, R. F., Jr., & Hayman, P. M. (1975). Obtaining money from foundations. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 36(3), 73-82.
- Denson, C. R. (2000). Public sector transportation for people with disabilities: A satisfaction survey. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 66(3), 29-37.
- Farley, R. C., Bolton, B., & Taylor, J. K. (1993). The effects on vocational development of a strategy for empowering and involving consumers in the vocational evaluation process. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 26(3), 97-100.
- Jenkins, W. M. (1979). Organizations concerned with the practice of rehabilitation counseling. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *10*(2), 102-106.

- Kosciulek, J. F., & Merz, M. A. (2001). Structural analysis of the consumer-directed theory of empowerment. *Rehabilitation Counseling*, *44*(4), 209-216.
- McPhail, J. W., & Harris, A. (1977). Business community assistance in evaluation and training: An example. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 10(1), 40-43.
- Moore, J. E., Armstrong, G. K., Lamb, A. M., & Giesen, J. M. (1992). Information and referral needs of persons with partial sight. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 16(3), 94-98.
- Parham, J. D., & Wainwright, C. O. (1978). Funding and referral sources for vocationally oriented rehabilitation facilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 2(3), 110-114.
- Richard, M. A. (2000). A discrepancy model for measuring consumer satisfaction with rehabilitation services. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, *66*(4), 37-43.
- Riemer-Reiss, M., Kampfe, C. M., Yazak, D., Larson, A., Troutman, C., & Cantrell, C.
  (2002). Promoting professional writing among rehabilitation counseling students. *Rehabilitation Education*, 16(4), 345-355.
- Sampson, D. E. (1990). Developing a comprehensive computer-based community resource directory. *Rehabilitation Education*, 4(1), 55-63.
- Slivon, D., Hicken, N., & Marini, I. (1994). Job strategies for persons with visible disabilities: Employer options. *Journal of Job Placement*, 10(2), 23-26.
- Spitznagel, R., & Saxon, J. (1994). User-friendly design concept and Americans withDisabilities Act: Implications for the architectural and rehabilitation communities.*Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 25(3), 53-60.

- Todad, P., Race, K., & Hotch, D. (1994). Focus groups: A tool for consumer-based program evaluation in rehabilitation agency settings. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *60*(3), 30-33.
- Wolf-Branigin, M., & Daeschlein, M. (2000). Differing priorities of counselors and customers to a consumer choice model in rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 66(1), 18-22.
- Ziegler, M. (1992) Parent advocacy and children with disabilities: A History. OSERS News in Print, 5(1), 4-6.

## **PUBLIC RELATIONS**

**Board of Directors** 

#### **Board of Directors**

- Droegemueller, G., & Allen, G. H. (1992). Potential liability of directors and officers: The consequence of decision making. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *16*(1), 23-29.
- Graham, C. S., Dabney, R. L., & Silverstein, G. H. (1982). The chief executive officer and the board of directors: Survival skills for the 80's. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 6(4), 198-207.
- Hall, R. L. (1982). The administration and the board of directors: A troubled relationship. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 6(3), 128-132.

## MARKETING SERVICE

## MARKETING SERVICE

Marketing

#### Marketing

- Banja, J. D. (1994). Deception in advertising and marketing: Ethical application in rehabilitation. Archives of physical medicine and rehabilitation,75(9), 1015-1018.
- Barrett, K. E. (2006). Marketing for rehabilitation administrators: An overview and primer. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *30*(2), 65-76.
- Bartels, E. C. (1985). Marketing vocational rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *51*(2), 62-64.
- Bernstein, D. (1992). 20 ways to market your program to recreational athletes. *Rehabilitation Today*, 2(5), 109-113.
- Boynton, P. S., & Fair, P. A. (1986). Becoming a market-driven rehabilitation program: A case study. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *47*(7-8), 174-178.
- Campbell, L., Mckinley, C., & King, M. (1993). Rehabilitation market survey utilizing a perceptual assessment model. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *17*(1), 22-26.
- Coffey, D. (1990). Marketing vocational rehabilitation services and products. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 23(3), 75-77.
- Coffey, D. D. (1991). A different marketing approach to employing people with severe disabilities. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment*, *24*(1), 3-4.
- Conoley, C. W., Conoley, J. C., Ivey, D. C., & Scheel, M. J. (1991). Enhancing consultation by matching the consultee's perspectives. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 69(6), 546-549.
- Conoley, J. C., & Bonner, M. (1991). The effects of counselor fee and title on perceptions of counselor behavior. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, *69*(4), 356-358.

- Cope, R., McCreery, A. M., & Milstein, S. (1987). Indicators of commercial vitality among rehabilitation facilities: Results and recommendations from ten case studies. *Journal* of Rehabilitation Administration, 11(3), 88-96.
- Couch, R. H., Sink, J. M., & Goetz, J. P. (1988). A qualitative study of subcontracting patterns and practices among work centers in the Southeast. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 54(1), 66-72.
- Crimando, W. (2006). Editorial: Thoughts on the '7Ps' in academia. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 30(2), 61-64.
- Crimando, W. (Guest Ed.). (2006). Marketing [Special issue]. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 30(2).
- Cronin, J. J., Jr. (1987). REMAP: A theoretical framework for marketing analysis and planning in rehabilitation facilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 11(3), 99-107.
- Dohanian, J. (1981). Self marketing tactics for rehabilitation counselors. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *12*(3), 160-163.
- Feinberg, L. B., & Sundblad, L. (1971). Need for approval and college student volunteers in community rehabilitation centers. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 14(4), 245-252.
- Goodwin, L. R., Jr. (1986). Marketing rehabilitation counselor education programs. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *17*(4), 42-47.
- Greenwood, R., Schriner, K. F., & Johnson, V. (1991). Employer concerns regarding workers with disabilities and the business-rehabilitation partnership: The PWI practitioners' perspective. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 57(1), 21-25.

- Hannold, E., & Young, M. E. (2001). Consumer perspectives on the Revised Code of
  Professional Ethics for rehabilitation counselors (Special Issue). *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 4(32), 5-9.
- Hawley, I. B., Grant, C. A., Haqq, I. N., & Montesinos, L. E. (1983). The marketing audit in rehabilitation: A model. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 7(4), 131-139.
- Kadela, T. J. (2006). Marketing rehabilitation services: Conflict of duty. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 30(2), 77-86.
- Kundu, M. M. (1987). Marketing and placing graduates in the private sector. *Rehabilitation Education*, *1*, 191-196.
- Langlois, J. R., Coker, C. C., McCray, P. M., & Smith, C. A. (1989). Marketing practices of vocational rehabilitation facilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 13(1), 14-18.
- Malone, E. A., Jr. (1976). The marketing concept: A survival plan for workshops for severely handicapped people. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *42*(4), 14-17.
- Matkin, R. E., Riggar, T. F., & Puckett, F. D. (1984). Dressing for success from a rehabilitation perspective. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 8(2), 49-53.
- May, V. R., III. (1985). Current trends in marketing and placing the industrially injured worker. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *51*(4), 35-37.

McCahill, W. (1973). The future of volunteerism. Journal of Rehabilitation, 39(2), 2-14.

- McDermott, M. J. (1992). Building referral business: Is your facility keeping up? *Rehabilitation Today*, 2(9), 20-26.
- Moxley, D. P. (2006). Core marketing competencies of the rehabilitation facility. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *30*(2), 87-102.

- Nadolsky, J. M. (1984). The marketing of rehabilitation services [Editorial]. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 50(3), 4-5, 66-67.
- Owens-Johnson, L. (1999). Employer views on job development strategies for marketing supported employment. *Journal of Vocational Rehabilitation*, *12*(2), 113-123.
- Perlman, L. G. (1983). Strategies in the marketing of rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 49(1), 14-17, 79.
- Reid, C., Reed, B., & Flowers, M. Y. (2002). Marketing and recruitment efforts in rehabilitation education programs. *Rehabilitation Education*, 16(3), 267-276.
- Roessler, R., Brown, P., & Rumrill, P. (1993). All aboard job fairs: A joint endeavor of the public and private sectors. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *59*(3), 24-28.

Romano, G. (1992). Recurrent reports: You're on. American Counselor, 1(3), 20-26.

- Seekins, T., Mathews, R. M., Fawcett, S. B., Jones, M. L., & Budde, J. F. (1988). A marketoriented strategy for applied research in independent living rehabilitation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 54(1), 35-38.
- Simmons, T., & Flexer, R. (1992). Business and rehabilitation factors in the development of supported employment programs for adults with developmental disabilities. *Journal* of Rehabilitation, 58(1), 35-42.
- Simpson, M, Taylor, N, & Padmore, J. (2001). Marketing in supported employment enterprises part 1: Case studies. *Journal of Small Business and Enterprise* Development, 8(3), 233-244.
- Thomas, J. R., & Coffey, K. (1996). Outcome analysis and the uniform data system for medical rehabilitation: Using the UDS. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 20(3), 175-188.

- Ting, H., & Fitzgerald, M. H. (1996). Rehabilitation market segmentation and positioning of rehabilitation providers. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 62(2), 36-44.
- Van Doren, D. C., Smith, L. W., & Beigel, D. (1986). Helping the rehabilitation facility live a more independent life through marketing. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 52(4), 11-15.
- Young, J., Rosati, R., & Vandergoot, D. (1986). Initiating a marketing strategy by assessing employer needs for rehabilitation services. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *52*(1), 37-41.

## MARKETING SERVICE

Paraprofessionals

#### **Paraprofessionals**

- American Personnel and Guidance Association. (1967). Support personnel for the counselor: Their technical and non-technical roles and preparation. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 45, 857-861.
- Auvenshine, C. D. (1971). Support personnel and counseling in vocational rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *15*(2), 116-127.
- Benshoff, J. J., Eckert, J. M., Riggar, T. F., & Taylor, D. W. (1995). Parameters of paraprofessionalism: Exploring the myths and realities associated with paraprofessionals in rehabilitation settings. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 19(2), 133-143.
- Brown, W. F. (1974). Paraprofessionals: The evidence. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 53, 257-263.
- Carson, G. W. (1973). Economic survival for counselors: Differentiated staffing. *Personnel* and Guidance Journal, 51(5), 329-333.
- Crisler, J. R. (1973). Effective paraprofessional utilization-Myth or reality. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *4*(1), 41-47.
- Crisler, J. R. (1976). Effects and utility of training and utilizing paraprofessional rehabilitation personnel as group facilitators. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 7(3), 158-163.
- Eckert, J. M., & Moore, T. J. (1993). Doing more with less: Incorporating volunteers in the rehabilitation setting. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *17*(2), 71-74.

Etscheidt, S. (2005). Paraprofessional services for students with disabilities: A legal

analysis of issues. *Research & Practice for Persons with Severe Disabilities*, 30(2), 60-80.

- Feild, H. S., & Gatewood, R. (1976). The paraprofessional and the organization: Some problems of mutual adjustment. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 55(4), 181-185.
- Feinberg, L. B., & Sundblad, L. (1971). Need for approval and college student volunteers in community rehabilitation centers. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 14(4), 245-252.
- Jaques, M. E. (1972). Rehabilitation counseling and support personnel. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 15(3), 160-171.
- Lenihan, G. O., & Jackson, L. (1984). Social need, public response: The volunteer professional model for human services agencies and counselors. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 62(5), 285-289.
- Lofaro, G. A. (1983). Doctoral research in rehabilitation (Paraprofessionals). *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 26(4), 243-244, 303-304.

McCahill, W. (1973). The future of volunteerism. Journal of Rehabilitation, 39(2), 2-14.

- McMahon, B. T., & Fraser, R. T. (1978). The future of subprofessionals: A time for evaluation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 22(1), 30-37.
- Merchant, N., & Dupuy, P. (1996). Multicultural counseling and qualitative research: Shared world view and skills. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 74(6), 537-541.
- Mitra, S. B., Fitzgerald, L, Hilliard, H. S., & Baker, R. N. (1974). Effectiveness of paraprofessionals in the rehabilitation process. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 18(2), 112-117.
- Moore, M. (1974). Training professionals to work with paraprofessionals. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *53*, 308-312.

- Peth, P. R. (1971). A critical examination of the role and function of the nonprofessional in rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *14*(3), 141-153.
- Portowitz, D. (1986). The effects of participation in an academic course for paraprofessional rehabilitation workers on terminal and instrumental values. International Journal of Rehabilitation Research, 9(1), 56-60.
- Thoreson, R. W. (1972). Use of support personnel: Necessary change or passing fancy in rehabilitation counseling practice. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *15*(4), 201-210.
- Upcraft, M. L. (1971). Undergraduate students as academic advisors. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 49, 827-831.
- White, G. W., (1992). National and community service: Challenges and opportunities for people with disabilities to volunteer in America. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, 3(2), 75-84.

LABOR RELATIONS

#### Labor Relations

- Bruyere, S. M. (1993). The implications of the ADA for labor relations, collective bargaining, and contract administration. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *17*(3), 120-126.
- Coelho, R. J. (1990). Job satisfaction of staff in unionized and non-unionized community residences for persons with developmental disabilities. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 56(1), 57-62.
- Enteen, R., Tramm, M., & Herman, R. (1979). Unions and affirmative action for handicapped individuals. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *40*(7), 196-200, 206.
- Geist, G. O., & Backes, R. G. (1978). Job attitudes of union versus NRCA members. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 9(3), 116-119.
- Greenhalgh, L. (1978). Trends in the legal status of unions of staff members in rehabilitation workshops. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 2(1), 10-16.
- Kunze, K. R. (1973). Business and industry look out for their own. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 52(3), 145-149.
- Sacksteder, O., & Riggar, T. F. (1982). Unionization and the rehabilitation administrator. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 6(3), 141-147.
- Salomone, P. R. (1972). Professionalism and unionism in rehabilitation counseling. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 15(3), 137-146.
- Westbrook, F. D. (1985). Third-party consultation, mediation, and coercive bargaining. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, *63*(8), 535-576.

RESEARCH

# RESEARCH

**Rehabilitation Research** 

#### **Rehabilitation Research**

- Berkowitz, M., Englander, V., Rubin, J., & Worrall, J. D. (1976). A summary of "An evaluation Altmaier, E. M., & Claiborn, C. D. (1987). Some observations on research and science. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 66(1), 51.
- Anderson, W. P., & Heppner, P. P. (1986). Counselor applications of research findings to practice: Learning to stay current. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 65(3), 152-155.
- Backer, T. E. (1988). Research utilization and managing innovation in rehabilitation organizations. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *54*(2), 18-23.
- Bard, C. C., Bieschke, K. J., Herbert, J. T., & Eberz, A. B. (2000). Predicting research interest among rehabilitation counseling students and faculty. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 44(1), 48-55.

of policy-related rehabilitation research." Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin, 20(1), 39-45.

- Bieschke, K. J., Herbert, J. T., & Bard, C. (1998). Using a social cognitive model to explain research productivity among rehabilitation counselor education faculty. *Rehabilitation Education*, 12(1), 1-16.
- Bitter, J. A. (1973). Regional exchange for better communication . . . research publication meets practitioner needs. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 39(5), 30-33.
- Bolton, B. (1980). Preparing rehabilitation counselors to be research consumers. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *11*(2), 70-73.
- Bolton, F. F., & Cook, D. W. (Eds.) (1998). The research requirement in rehabilitation doctoral programs [Special issue]. *Rehabilitation Education*, 12(2).

- Casey, A. J. (1983). Developing a dialogue between rehabilitation practitioners and researchers: A research dissemination approach. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 44(3-4), 76-79.
- Chan, F., & Rosenthal, D. A. (2006). Introduction to the special series: Advanced research methodology in rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 49(4), 219-222.
- Coffey, D. D. (1991). Writers as change agents. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment*, 24(4), 123-124.
- Cook, D., Andrew, J., & Faubion, C. (1998). Rehabilitation education and research productivity. *Rehabilitation Education*, *12*(1), 17-27.
- Cook, D. W. (1979). Rehabilitation research and the practice of rehabilitation. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *10*(2), 89-94.
- Cook, D. W. (1988). Research education in rehabilitation counseling. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *31*(3), 238-243.
- Crimando, W. (1981). An idea-generating paradigm and resources for the practitioner/ researcher. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *12*(3), 107-112.
- Crocker, L., & Fisher, N. (1974). Researcher and practitioner: A promising relationship. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 40(2), 14-18.
- Danek, M. M., Parker, R., & Szymanski, E. M. (1991). Disability research and policy:Forging an alliance. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 22(4), 5-10.
- Dellario, D. J. (1978). Rehabilitation research: A need for perspective. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 44(3), 37-39.
- Dembo, T. (1974). The paths to useful knowledge. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 21(4), 124-128.

- Di Michael, S. G. (1974). Information from research and demonstration projects useful to the practitioner. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *21*(4), 119-123.
- Diamonti, M. C., & Murphy, S. (1978). A reexamination of counseling research: A reply to Goldman. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *56*(10), 637-641.

Diller, L. (1974). The researcher's point of view. Rehabilitation Psychology, 21(4), 129-136.

- Dumas, N. S. (1971). Optimizing the utilization of professional literature for rehabilitation personnel: Three jobs and three journals. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 15(1), 19-24.
- Dumas, N. S., & Muthard, J. E. (1971). Coordinating research and practice. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *37*(1), 34-38.
- Dunn, T. W., Smith, T. B., & Montoya, J. A. (2006). Multicultural competency instrumentation: A review and analysis of reliability generalization. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 84(4), 471-482.
- Engstrom, G. A. (1975). Research and research utilization-a many-faceted approach. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *19*(2), 357-365.
- Fabian, E. S., & Patterson, J. B. (1991). Authorship and editorship of women in rehabilitation journals: Is there gender equity? *Rehabilitation Education*, 5(3), 179-183.
- Fenderson, D. A. (1984). Rehabilitation research priorities and process [Editorial]. Journal of Rehabilitation Administration, 8(3), 78-82.
- Fraser, R. T. (1978). Rehabilitation job placement research: A trend perspective. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *39*(9), 258-265.

- Galassi, J. P., Stoltz, R. F., Brooks, L., & Trexler, K. A. (1987). Improving research training in doctoral counseling programs. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 66(1), 40-44.
- Gelso, C. J. (1985). Rigor, relevance, and counseling research: On the need to maintain our course between Scylla and Charybdis. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 63(9), 551-553.
- Goldberg, R. T. (1974). Rehabilitation research: New directions. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 40(3), 12-15.
- Goldberg, R. T. (1976). Current issues in rehabilitation research. *Rehabilitation Literature*, *37*(3), 66-71.
- Goldman, L. (1977). Toward more meaningful research. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 55(6), 363-368.
- Greenwood, R. (1974). Assessment of external effects in rehabilitation research. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 5(3), 138-143.
- Greenwood, R. (1975). New developments in rehabilitation counselor education-research into practice: The model for rehabilitation research and training centers. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 19(1), 330-344.
- Gregory, R. J. (1994). Rehabilitation research and archives: A case study. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 25(4), 52-53.
- Hagner, D. (2002). Subjects or objects? Participants as research partners. *Rehabilitation Education*, 16(2), 135-148.
- Hansen, G. (1984). Research utilization in rehabilitation counseling practice. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *15*(3), 39-42, 47.

- Haring-Hidore, M., & Vacc, N. A. (1988). The scientist-practitioner model in training entrylevel counselors. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 66(6), 286-288.
- Heppner, P. P., & Anderson, W. P. (1985). On the perceived non-utility of research in counseling. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 63(9), 545-547.
- Heppner, P. P., Gelso, C. J., & Dolliver, R. H. (1987). Three approaches to research training in counseling. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 66(1), 45-49.
- Howard, G. S. (1985). Can research in the human sciences become more relevant to practice? *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 63(9), 539-544.
- Joiner, J., & Roberts, D. (1982). Counselor input to topics of rehabilitation education and research. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *13*(1), 34-36.
- Koch, L. C., Schultz, J. C., Kontosh, L. G., & Conyers, L. M. (2006). Rehabilitation research in the 21<sup>st</sup> century: Concerns and potential solutions. *Rehabilitation Education*, 20(1), 7-20.
- Kosciulek, J. F., & Wheaton, J. E. (2004). Editorial: On scientific inquiry. *Rehabilitation Education*, 18(2), 71-75.
- Lewis, A. (2005). Using data to improve outcomes to rehabilitation practice. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 29(1), 43-56.
- Lichtenberg, J. W. (1986). Counseling research: Irrelevant or ignored? *Journal of Counseling* and Development, 64(6), 365-366.
- Liebert, D., & Weissman, C. S. (1992). Use of comparison group designs in transition studies. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 2(2), 28-35.
- Martin, D., & Martin, M. (1989). Bridging the gap between research and practice. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 67(8), 491-492.

- Martin, J. (1988). A proposal for researching possible relationships between scientific theories and the personal theories of counselors and clients. *Journal of Counseling* and Development, 66(6), 261-265.
- Martin, J. (1992). Scholarship and professionalism: A personal narrative. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 70(5), 563-564.
- Meyerson, L., & Kerr, N. (1979). Research strategies for meaningful rehabilitation research. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 26(4), 228-238.
- Miller, S. M., & Rosenthal, D. A. (2006). Applications of meta-analysis in rehabilitation research education. *Rehabilitation Education*, 20(2), 79-89.
- Minor, B. J. (1981). Bridging the gap between research and practice: Introduction. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *59*(8), 485-486.
- Moore, C. L. (2002). Outcome variables that contribute to group differences between Caucasians, African Americans, and Asian Americans who are deaf. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *33*(2), 8-12.
- Murphy, S. T. (1975). Problems in research utilization: A review. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 19(2), 365-377.
- Murphy, S. T. (1986). Teaching research in rehabilitation counseling: Another view. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *30*(1), 53-56.
- Muthard, J. E., & Crocker, L. M. (1975). Rehabilitation state supervisors as knowledge users. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *19*(2), 433-443.
- Parker, H. J., Chan, F., & Hedl, J. J., Jr. (1991). Rehabilitation faculty in NCRE member schools: Their research/publication profile. *Rehabilitation Education*, 5, 139-154.

- Parker, R. M. (1986). Vicissitudes of rehabilitation research. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *30*(1), 48-52.
- Pipes, R. B., & Westefeld, J. S. (1987). Some thoughts about research training. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 66(1), 50.
- Puth, A. D. (1970). Key considerations in developing basic NRA policy on scientific rehabilitation research. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 36(6), 9-16.
- Remer, R. (1981). The counselor and research: Introduction. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *59*(9), 567-571.
- Riggar, T. F., Beardsley, M., & Riggar, S. W. (1983). Rehabilitation administration: A classification of the literature. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 7(3), 89-92.
- Rogers, E. S. (1994). The impact of the Americans with Disabilities Act upon rehabilitation research. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, *5*(2), 25-41.
- Rubin, S. E., McMahon, B. T., Chan, F., & Kamnetz, B. (1998). Research directions related to rehabilitation practice: A Delphi study. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 64(1), 19-26.
- Rubin, S. E., & Rice, J. M. (1986). Quality and relevance of rehabilitation research: A critique and recommendations. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 30(1), 33-42.
- Salomone, P. R. (1970). The research implementation process: Some reflections and suggestions. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *13*(4), 349-355.
- Schaller, J., & Parker, R. (1998). Effect of graduate research anxiety, research utility, and confidence in research skills. *Rehabilitation Education*, 11(4), 273-287.
- Scofield, M. E., & Hynick, T. J. (1983). A multidisciplinary perspective on rehabilitation research needs. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 49(2), 15-18, 24.

- Shontz, F. C. (1989). A future for research on rehabilitation and adjustment to disability. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *33*(2), 163-176.
- Sink, J. M., & McCroskey, B. J. (1979). Improving the quality and effectiveness of rehabilitation facility services through research. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 12(2), 24-27.

Soloff, A. (1972). The utilization of research. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 33(3), 66-72.

- Spaniol, L., Dellario, D. J., Engelkes, J. R., Livingston, R., Lasky, R. G., Bolton, B., & Reagles, K. W. (1977). Teaching research in rehabilitation counseling: Issues, problems, and alternatives. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 20(4), 275-296.
- Szymanski, E. M., Whitney-Thomas, J., Marshall, L., & Sayger, T. V. (1994). The effect of graduate instruction in research methodology on research self-efficacy and perceived research utility. *Rehabilitation Education*, 8(4), 319-331.
- Thomas, K. R., & Weinfrach, S., G. (2002). Gray matter: Racial bias in rehabilitation: Multiple interpretation of the same data. *Rehabilitation Education*, *16*(1), 81-90.
- Thompson, B. (2002). "Statistical," "practical," and "clinical": How many kinds of significance do counselors need to consider? *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 80(1), 64-71.
- Weber, W. F., & Weigel, K. W. (1990). BITNET: A rehabilitation resource. *Rehabilitation Education*, 4(1), 65-70.
- Wehman, P. (1976). Experimental rigor in rehabilitation research: Fact or fantasy? *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 42(3), 39.
- Whiston, S. C., Robinson, F. F. (1997). The past and future role of research. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 76(1), 8-9.

- Wong, D. W., Gay, D. A., & Wainwright, C. O. (1987). Clinical versus statistical predictions of rehabilitation results in proprietary rehabilitation. *Journal of Private Sector Rehabilitation*, 2(4), 177-188.
- Zaretsky, H. H., & Ince, L. P. (1974). The utilization of research for the rehabilitation of the disabled disadvantaged. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 21(4), 114-116.

# RESEARCH

Research Design/Statistics

#### **Research Design/Statistics**

- Aeschleman, S. R. (1991). Single-subject research designs: Some misconceptions. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *36*(1), 43-49.
- Altmaier, E. M. (1989). A pilot investigation of variables associated with patient willingness to participate in psychosocial research. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *34*(4), 185-189.
- Baggaley, A. R. (1981). Multivariate analysis. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 59(10), 619-621.
- Bangert, A. W., Baumberger, J. P. (2005). Research and statistical techniques used in the Journal of Counseling & Development: 1990-2001. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 83(4), 480-487.
- Bellini, J., Neath, J., & Bolton, B. (1995). A comparison of linear multiple regression and a simplified approach in the prediction of rehabilitation outcomes. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 39(2), 151-160.
- Berrios, R., & Lucca, N. (2006). Qualitative methodology in counseling research: Recent contributions and challenges for a new century. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 84(2), 174-186.
- Berven, N. L., & Scofield, M. E. (1982). Nonmetric data-reduction techniques in rehabilitation research. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 25(5), 297-311.
- Bigner, J. J., & Jacobsen, R. B. (1981). Models of developmental research: Individuals and families. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 59(10), 647-651.
- Bolton, B. (1972). Factor analysis in rehabilitation research. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 16(2), 94-103.

- Bolton, B. (1975). Factor analysis in rehabilitation research: II. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *18*(3), 166-176.
- Bolton, B. (1978). Factor analysis in rehabilitation research: III. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 22(2), 146-162.
- Bolton, B. (1990). Research methodology for investigating the relationship between
  rehabilitation counselor education and client outcomes. *Rehabilitation Education*, *4*, 79-81.
- Bolton, B., Neath, J., Bellini, J., & Cook, D. (1995). Longitudinal stability and interrelationships of six criteria of rehabilitation counselor performance.
   *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 39(1), 15-24.
- Bradley, L. J., Sexton, T. L., & Smith, H. B. (2005). The American Counseling Association practice research network (ACA-PRN): A new research tool. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 83(4), 488-491.
- Brown, R. I. (2000). Qualitative methods in rehabilitation research and their relevance to rehabilitation counseling practice. *The Australian Journal of Rehabilitation Counseling*, 6(1), 12-19.
- Bruyere, S. M., & Houtenville, A. J. (2006). Use of statistics from national data sources to inform rehabilitation program planning, evaluation, and advocacy. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 50(1), 46-58.
- Bua-lam, P., Majumder, R., & Misra, S. (1993). A roll call of voting behavior on the 1986
  Rehabilitation Act Amendment: Regression and probity probability models. *Journal* of Rehabilitation Administration, 17(2), 65-69.

- Chan, F., Wang, M., Thomas, K. R., Chan, C. C. H., Wong, D. W., Lee, G., & Liu, K. (2002). Conjoint analysis in rehabilitation counseling research. *Rehabilitation Education*, 16(2), 179-196.
- Chapman, A. D. (1981). Value-orientation analysis: The adaptation of an anthropological model for counseling research. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *59*(10), 637-642.
- Chope, R. C., & Reagles, K. W. (1976). A checklist for planning and evaluating follow-up studies in vocational rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 20(2), 97-104.
- Frain, M. P., Ferrin, J. M., Rosenthal, D. A., & Wampold, B. E. (2006). A meta-analysis of rehabilitation outcomes based on education level of the counselor. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 72(1), 10-18.
- Graves, W. H. (1992). Participatory research: A partnership among individuals with disabilities, rehabilitation professionals, and rehabilitation researchers. *Rehabilitation Education*, *6*(3), 221-224.
- Greenwood, R. (1974). Assessment of external effects in rehabilitation research. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 5(3), 138-143.
- Hackett, G. (1981). Survey research methods. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 59(9), 599-604.
- Hagner, D. C., & Helm, D. T. (1994). Qualitative methods in rehabilitation research. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 37(4), 290-303.
- Hanley-Maxwell, C., Hano, H. A., & Skivington, M. (2007). Qualitative research in rehabilitation counseling. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 50(2), 99-110.
- Harwell, M. R. (1988). Choosing between parametric and nonparametric tests. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 67(1), 35-38.

- Holmes, M. (1977). Experimental rigor in rehabilitation research: Where to find it. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *43*(4), 33.
- Johnson, E. K., Dow, C., Lynch, R. T., & Hermann, B. P. (2006). Measuring clinical significance in rehabilitation research. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 50(1), 35-45.
- Kirchner, C. (1996). Looking under the street lamp: Inappropriate uses of measures just because they are there. *Journal of Disability Policy Studies*, *7*(1), 77-90.
- Kirkpatrick, J. S. (1981). Nonparametric statistics: Useful tools for counselors. *Personnel* and Guidance Journal, 59(10), 627-630.
- Kosciulek, J. F., & Szymanski, E. M. (1993). Statistical power analysis of rehabilitation counseling research. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *36*(4), 212-219.
- Kress, V. E., & Shoffner, M. F. (2007). Focus groups: A practical and applied research. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 85(2), 198-195.
- Leclair, S. W. (1981). Path analysis: An informal introduction. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *59*(10), 643-646.
- Linkowski, D. C., Thoreson, R. W., Diamond, E. E., Leahy, M. J., Szymanski, E. M., & Witty, T. (1993). Instrument to validate rehabilitation counseling accreditation and certification knowledge areas. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *37*(2), 123-129.
- Livneh, H., & Antoniak, R. (1994). Indirect methods to measure attitudes toward persons with disabilities. *Rehabilitation Education*, 8(2), 103-137.
- McAweeney, M. J., & Hendrich, R. (1996). Steps for evaluating and interpreting quantitative research. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 27, 57-61.

- Miller, S. M., & Rosenthal, D. A. (2006). Applications of meta-analysis in rehabilitation research education. *Rehabilitation Education*, 20(2), 79-89.
- Myerson, L., & Kerr, N. (1979). Research strategies for meaningful rehabilitation research. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, 26(4), 228-238.
- Parker, R. M. (1993). Threats to the validity of research. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *36*(3), 130-138.
- Parker, R. M., & Szymanski, E. M. (1992). Fishing and error rate problem. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 36(2), 66-69.
- Recommendations of the APA task force on statistical inference. (1999). Editors. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin, 43*(1), 3-4.
- Reid, C. A., Kolakowsky-Hayner, S. A., Lewis, A. N., & Armstrong, A. J. (2007). Modern psychometric methodology: Applications of item response theory. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 50(3), 177-188.
- Remer, R. (1981). The use of time-series designs: Interaction between skill level and application. *Personnel and Guidance Journal, 59*(10), 621-626.
- Rosenthal, D. A., Hoyt, W. T., Ferrin, J. M., Miller, S., & Choen, N. D. (2006). Advanced methods in meta-analytic research: Applications and implications for rehabilitation counseling research. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 49(4), 234-246.
- Salomone, P. R., & Miller, G. C. (1978). Increasing the response rates of rehabilitation counselors to mailed questionnaires. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 22(2), 138-141.
- Schafer, W. D., & Dayton, C. M. (1981). Techniques for simultaneous inference. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 59(10), 631-636.

- Schmidt, J. A. (1974). Research techniques for counselors: The multiple baseline. *Personnel* and Guidance Journal, 53(3), 200-206.
- Szymanski, E. M. (1993). Research and statistical design. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *36*(4), 179-182.
- Szymanski, E. M., Linkowski, D. C., Leahy, M. J., Diamond, E. E., & Thoreson, R. W. (1993). Validation of rehabilitation counseling accreditation and certification knowledge areas: Methodology and initial results. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *37*(2), 109-122.
- Szymanski, E. M., Parker, R. M., & Borich, G. D. (1990). Aptitude treatment interaction designs in research on the relationship between rehabilitation counselor education and rehabilitation client outcome. *Rehabilitation Education*, *4*, 83-92.
- Toms, J. G., & Brewer, J. K. (1971). A discrete discriminant analysis procedure for vocational rehabilitation predictions. *Rehabilitation Literature*, 32(8), 232-239.
- Vandergoot, D. (1976). A comparison of two mailing approaches attempting to generate the participation of businessmen in rehabilitation. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 20(1), 73-75.

## RESEARCH

**Professional Journals** 

## **Professional Journals**

- Alexander, J. J., & Wall, J. (1975). Righting the wrongs of writing: Copy editors speak out. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *53*(10), 768-773.
- Arredondo, P., Rosen, D. C., Rice, T., Perez, P. & Tovar-Gamero, Z. G. (2005).

Multicultural counseling: A 10-year content analysis of the Journal of Counseling & Development. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 83(2), 155-161.

- Bangert, A. W., & Baumberger, J. P. (2005). Research and statistical techniques used in the Journal of Counseling & Development: 1990-2001. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 83(4), 480-487.
- Benson, J., Davis, J., Graesser, R., Janes, M. W., & Phillips, J. S. (1984). An index for the Journal of Rehabilitation Administration. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 8(4), 155-167.
- Bergland, M. M. (1988). Major contributors to the rehabilitation counseling literature from 1970-1985. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *31*(3), 232-237.
- Coelho, R. J., & LaForge, J. (1996). Journal publication as a professional practice activity for rehabilitation counselors. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 27, 17-21.
- Coelho, R. J., & LaForge, J. (2000). Manuscript characteristics affecting reviewers' decisions for rehabilitation counseling related journals. *The Journal of Rehabilitation*, 66(2), 4-8.
- Coelho, R. J., & Saunders, J. L. (1997). Journal publication and peer review: Guidelines and standards for authors and reviewers. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 28(3), 18-22.

- Coffey, D. D. (1993). Writers for the journal: Both new and seasoned. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 26(3), 75-76.
- Cook, D. W., Andrew, J., Roberts, W., & Faubion, C. (1999). Journal article publications and citations for rehabilitation education faculty members: 1974-1997. *Rehabilitation Education*, 12(4), 309-318.
- Cottone, R. R., & Wolf, A. (1984). Writing for publication: A summary of the publication manual of the American Psychological Association, third edition. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 15(1), 5-8.
- Couch, R. (1993). A VEWAA publications committee survey. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 26(2), 71.
- Crisp, R. (1987). Citation analysis and literature trends [Letters to the editor]. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *32*(3), 181-182.
- Dorn, F. (1980). Professional publication: Perhaps counselors should query first. *Personnel* and Guidance Journal, 59(3), 181-185.
- Dorn, F. J. (1983). Writing for publication: How the pieces of the puzzle fit. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *61*(9), 575-577.
- Dorn, F. J. (1985). Developing your publication potential and copyright confidence. *Journal* of Counseling and Development, 63(8), 512-514.
- Elliott, T. R., Byrd, E. K., & Nichols, R. K. (1987). Influential publications and authors in contemporary rehabilitation counseling literature. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 18(3), 45-48.

- Gale, A. U., Moss, R. C., & Higgins, K. K. (2007). Special topics in the Journal of Counseling & Development, Volumes 66-80, *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 85(2), 204-210.
- Gilbride, D., & Stensrud, R. (1991). Utilization and evaluation of textbooks and journals in rehabilitation education. *Rehabilitation Education*, *5*, 93-100.
- Gladding, S. T., & Wilcoxon, S. A. (1987). Programmatic writing: A "what to" option for professional publication. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, *66*(1), 52.
- Gordon, R. P., & Patterson, J. B. (1996). Ethnic content in rehabilitation journals. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 27(3), 26-29.
- Gray, J. H., Hoggard, R., Marini, I., & Slate, J. R. (1995). Content analysis of journals in rehabilitation. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 26(1), 21-24.
- Hafer, M. (1989). [Special report] JRA assessment. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *13*(3), 104-105.
- Hansen, C. E. (1975). On being a journal contributor. Journal of Rehabilitation, 41(4), 33-34.
- Harmon, L. W., & Harker, H. E. (1989). [Special issues] of the Journal: Topics of interest over the years. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 67(5), 271-273.
- Hernandez, N. R., & White, A. (1989). Pass it on: Errors in direct quotes in a sample of scholarly journal articles. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 67(9), 509-512.
- Johnson, N. (1982). Publishing: How to get started. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 60(5), 321-323.
- Joiner, J. G., & Saxon, J. P. (1989). Rehabilitation practitioner contributions to professional journal literature. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 20(4), 33-35.

Kailes, J. I. (1985). Watch your language, please! Journal of Rehabilitation, 51(1), 68-69.

- La Forge, J. (1991). Preferred language practice in professional rehabilitation journals. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 57(1), 49-51.
- Liberty, L. H., & Sampson, D. E. (1987). Textbooks used most widely in rehabilitation counselor education programs. *Rehabilitation Education*, *1*(4), 295-301.
- McCarthy, H. (2001). Reinforcing the contributor base for RCB. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 44(3), 177.
- Newman, J. F. (1988). Writing for the Journal of Rehabilitation Administration: The first eleven years [Special report]. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, *12*(3), 73-75.
- Nicholson, J. R. (1985). A practitioner's guide to grant writing. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *51*(3), 68-70.
- Ostrowski, P. M., & Bartel, S. (1985). Assisting practitioners to publish through the use of support groups. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, *63*(8), 510-511.
- Parker, H. J., Teddlie, J. C., & Chan, F. (1988). Readability and text analysis of rehabilitation journals. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 54(2), 70-76.
- Parker, R. M. (1978). Writing for journal publication: A synopsis of APA style. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *9*(3), 65-68.
- Parker, R. M. (1983). Writing for journal publication: A synopsis of APA style [Editorial]. Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling, 14(1), 11-13.
- Pelsma, D. M., & Cesari, J. P. (1989). Content analysis of the Journal of Counseling and Development: Volumes 48-66. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 67(5), 275-278.
- Riggar, T. F. (2005). Editorial: The history and the future of the Journal of Rehabilitation Administration. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 29(2), 63-64.

- Riggar, T. F., & Maki, D. R. (1980). Stages in professional writing: A guide to authors. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, *13*(1), 9-12.
- Riggar, T. F., & Maki, D. R. (1981). An empirical examination of professional publication. *Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 14(1), 32-35.
- Riggar, T. F., & Smith, E. R. (1988). Writing for the Journal of Rehabilitation
  Administration: The last five years. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 12(2), 46-48.
- Riggar, T. F., Beardsley, M., & Riggar, S. W. (1983). Rehabilitation administration: A classification of the literature. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 7(3), 89-92.
- Riggs, R. C. (1978). Sources of journal articles in select APGA journals according to academic rank of authors. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *57*(1), 40-41.
- Roberts, B. W. (1973). Writing: A philosophical view. (1973). *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *39*(1), 30-36.
- Salomone, P. R. (1993). Trade secrets for crafting a conceptual article. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 72, 73-76.
- Seligman, L. (1986). The manuscript evaluation process used by AACD journals. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 65(4), 189-192.
- Seligman, L., & Kelly, S. C. (1990). Writing and publishing books in counseling: A survey of authors. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 69(1), 42-45.
- Sherouse, D., Zaycer, M., & Rasch, J. (1981). A content analysis of the rehabilitation counseling literature. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 25(1), 41-44.
- Sink, J. M. (1978). The editorial process-manuscript review and evaluation. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 44(3), 14-15.

- Smith, J. P., & Gray, B. S. (1979). Referencing behaviors of authors in major rehabilitation journals. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 22(5), 451-454.
- Spitznagel, R. J., & Saxon, J. P. (1992). Review of VIEWAA's professional journal: Volumes 11-24 by source and content. *Vocational and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 25(2), 39-44.
- Thomas, K. R. (1972). Institutional sources of articles in the Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin: 1962-1971. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *15*(3), 172-175.
- Thompson, B. (1995). Publishing your research results: Some suggestions and counsel. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 73(3), 342-345.
- Thompson, B., & Snyder, P. A. (1998). Statistical significance and reliability analyses in recent Journal of Counseling & Development research articles. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 76(4), 436-441.
- Walton, J. M. (1982). Counselor educators rank the journals. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 60(6), 338-341.
- Weinrach, S. G. (1987). Some serious and some not so serious reactions to AACD and its journals. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 65(8), 395-399.
- Weinrach, S. G., Lustig, D., Chan, F., & Thomas, K. R. (1998). Publication patterns of The Personnel and Guidance Journal/Journal of Counseling & Development. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 76(4), 427-435.
- Weinrach, S. G., Thomoas, K. R., & Chan, F. (2001). The professional identity of contributors to the Journal of Counseling & Development: Does it matter? *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 79(2), 166-170.

- Williams, M. E., & Buboltz Jr., W. C. (1999). Content analysis of the Journal Counseling & Development: Volumes 67 to74. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 77(3), 344-349.
- Wolf, A. (1983). A descriptive review of contributors to JARC. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, *14*(1), 8-10.

## RESEARCH

Publishing-How To

## **Publishing-How To**

- Cesari, J. P., & Pelsma, D. M. (1986). Institutional affiliations of contributors to the Personnel and Guidance Journal: Volumes 47-62. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 65(4), 185-188.
- Coelho, R. J., & LaForge, J. (1997). Preparing a journal manuscript: A guide for rehabilitation counselor practitioners. *The Australian Journal of Rehabilitation*, 3(1), 1-8.
- Coelho, R. J. & LaForge, J. (1996). Preparing a journal manuscript: A guide for rehabilitation counselor practitioners. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 27(3), 37-41.
- Coffey, D. D. (1992). Learning to live with rejection [Editorial]. *Vocational and Work Adjustment Bulletin*, 25(2), 35-37.
- Coffey, D. D. (1992). Rotten rejections: A literary companion [Topical review]. *Vocational* and Work Adjustment Bulletin, 25(2), 55-56.
- Cook, D. W. (1983). Citation analysis of three vocational rehabilitation journals. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 27(2), 94-100.
- Dumas, N. S., & Muthard, J. E. (1970). The consumer in the scientific and technical information market: Managing the flow of literature in a professional journal. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 14(1), 5-14.

Editorial. (1996). Ethics and publication. Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin, 39(3), 162-164.

Elliott, T. R., & Byrd, E. K. (1986). Frequently cited authors, works, and sources of research in Rehabilitation Psychology. *Rehabilitation Psychology*, *31*(2), 111-115.

- Elliott, T. R., Byrd, E. K., Nichols, R. K., & Sanderson, R. A. (1987). Sources of references cited in the rehabilitation counseling literature. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 18(1), 43-44.
- Feinberg, L. B., & Gatta, L. M. (1974). Sources of graduate education and scholarly contributions to the rehabilitation counseling literature. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 18(2), 123-128.
- Gladding, S. T. (1982). Who becomes a journal editor? A composite picture of APGA journal editors. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, *61*(4), 219-221.
- Gladding, S. T. (1984). Multiple authorship in the Personnel and Guidance Journal: A 12year study. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 62(10), 628-630.
- Hansen, C., Margolis, D., & Roberts, B. W. (1975). Publications: The cutting edge. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, 41(4), 32.
- Herr, E. L. (1987). Another view of AACD and its journals. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 65(8), 400-403.
- Joiner, J. G., Saxon, J. P., & Bair, W. (1987). Types of research and occupational roles of authors in rehabilitation journals. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, *30*(4), 237-242.
- Kauppi, D. R. (1974). Publication preferences and needs of ARCA members: 1975 survey. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin, 19*(1), 323-330.

Kosciulek, J. F. (2005) Practical guidelines for effective writing: Part I – preparation. *Rehabilitation Education*, 18(4), 207-210.

Kosciulek, J. F. (2006). Practical guidelines for effective writing: Part III – Writing the first draft. *Rehabilitation Education*, 20(1), 3-6.

- LaForge, J., & Coelho, R. J. (1998). Writing for publication: Advice from authors. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 29(2), 35-39.
- Margolis, D., & Roberts, B. W. (1975). A former editor looks back: The journal-changing and changeless. *Journal of Rehabilitation*, *41*(4), 35.
- McDaniel, R. S., & Couch, R. H. (1978). Content and source analysis of the VEWAA
  Bulletin 1971-1977. Vocational Evaluation and Work Adjustment Bulletin, 11(4), 29-34.
- Perosa, L. M., & Frantz, T. T. (1981). Publishing in refereed journals: A 10-year survey in rehabilitation counseling. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 24(3), 219-222.
- Rasch, J. D., & Thomas, K. R. (1975). Institutional sources of articles in the Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling: 1970-1974. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 6(4), 195-200.
- Rasch, J. D., & Thomas, K. R. (1978). Institutional sources of articles in the Rehabilitation
  Counseling Bulletin revisited: 1971-76. *Rehabilitation Counseling Bulletin*, 21(4), 346-349.
- Riggar, T. F., & Hafer, M. (1982). Publications in rehabilitation administration: The first five years.
- Tryon, G. S. (1986). Getting published: A personal account. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 64(10), 650.
- Wadsworth, J., & Upton, T. (2003). Strategies to improve the writing of rehabilitation professionals and implications for rehabilitation administrations. *Journal of Rehabilitation Administration*, 27(3&4), 59-69.

- Walker, J. R. (1978). Writing avoidance: A professional approach. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 57(4), 218-219.
- Wall, J. (1974). Getting into print in P & G: How it's done. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 52(9), 594-602.
- Walton, J. M. (1979). Publishable or not: Some guidelines for the emerging scholar. *Personnel and Guidance Journal*, 57(9), 469-470.
- White, A. (1987). Reference list inaccuracies: A four-decade comparison. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 66(4), 195-196.
- White, A., & Hernandez, N. R. (1991). Trends in article citations in three counseling journals, 1952-1988. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, 69(5), 419-422.
- Winston, R. B., Jr. (1985). A suggested procedure for determining order of authorship in research publications. *Journal of Counseling and Development*, *63*(8), 515-518.